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NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON NOVEMBER 14, 2012

The 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Anindaeting”) of The Clorox Company, a Delaware cogimn (“Clorox” or the “Company);
will be held at 9:00 a.m., Pacific time on Wednesddovember 14, 2012, in Building C of the Companileasanton Campus, located at -
Johnson Drive, Pleasanton, CA 94588, for the fatgwpurposes:

1. To elect nine directors to serve until the 2013 dadrMeeting;
2. To conduct an advisory vote on the compensatidghefCompan's named executive officer

3. To ratify the selection of Ernst & Young LLP ds&tCompanys independent registered public accounting firmtiar fiscal year endir
June 30, 201:

4. To approve the Amended and Restated 2005 StocktimeePlan; anc
5. To consider and act upon such other business apropgrly come before the Annual Meeting or anypadjment thereo

The board of directors (the “Boardhes fixed the close of business on September 18,285 the record date for determining the stoaére
entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Annuaeiing and any adjournment thereof. A list of satdtkholders will bevailable at the Annu
Meeting and during the ten days prior to the Anriakting at the office of the Secretary of the Campat 1221 Broadway, Oakland, CA 94612-
1888.

Only record holders and people holding proxies frecord holders of Clorox common stock as of theerm date may attend the Annual Meet
If you plan to attend the Annual Meeting and youhares are registered in your name, you must bringcarrent form of governmer-issuec
photo identification to the Annual Meeting. If youshares are held in the name of a broker, trustleor other nominee, you must provide pre
that you owned Clorox common stock on the recordejaas well as a current form of government-issughoto identification. Please see t
“Attending the Annual Meeting” section of the prostatement for more information.

We are pleased to take advantage of the Secuaitigd&Exchange Commission’s “Notice and Acceas# that allows us to provide stockholders
notice of their ability to access proxy materiala the Internet. This allows us to conserve nattgaburces and reduces the costs of printing
distributing the proxy materials, while providingrostockholders with access to the proxy mateiials fast and efficient manner via the Inter
Under this process, on or about September 28, 204 2yill begin mailing a Notice of Internet Availiity of Proxy Materials to our stockholde
informing them that our proxy statement, annuabrepexecutive summary and voting instructions are atdel on the Internet as of the same 1
As more fully described in the Notice of Internetallability of Proxy Materials, all stockholders ynehoose to access our proxy materials vi
Internet or may request printed copies of the proaterials. Please see the “Information about tleetMg and Voting’section of the prox
statement for more information.

The Notice of Annual Meeting, Proxy Statement and @2 Annual Report—Executive Summary are available ¢
www.edocumentview.com/CLX.

YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT. EVEN IF YOU PLAN TO AT TEND THE ANNUAL MEETING, WE HOPE THAT YOU WILL
READ THE PROXY STATEMENT AND VOTE YOUR PROXY BY TEL EPHONE, VIA THE INTERNET OR BY REQUESTING A
PRINTED COPY OF THE PROXY MATERIALS AND COMPLETING, SIGNING AND RETURNING THE PROXY CARD ENCLOSED
THEREIN.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

e k__lllhm '\:C/ . CL‘J\}\L\_%

Angela C. Hilt

Vice President — Corporate Secretary

& Associate General Counsel
September 28, 2012






YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT, NO MATTER HOW MANY OR HOW F EW SHARES YOU OWN

If you have questions about how to vote your shareeeed additional assistance, please contaisftea M&A Incorporated,
who is assisting us in the solicitation of proxies:

M&A Incorporated

501 Madison Avenue, 20th Floor
New York, New York 10022

Stockholders may call toll-free at (877) 825-8730

Banks and brokers may call collect at (212) 7503583
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THE CLOROX COMPANY
1221 Broadway
Oakland, CA 94612-1888

PROXY STATEMENT

This proxy statement is furnished in connectiorhwite solicitation of proxies by the board of diogs (the “Board™)of The Clorox Company,
Delaware corporation (“Clorox” or the “Company”@rfuse at the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholdtrs fAnnual Meeting”of the Company, 1
be held at 9:00 a.m. Pacific time on Wednesday,elNder 14, 2012, in Building C of the Companfleasanton Campus, located at 4900 Jol
Drive, Pleasanton, CA 9458Blease refer to the “Attending the Annual Meetingsection of this proxy statement for more informati@bou
procedures for attending the Annual Meetin

The Securities and Exchange Commission, or SECadlagted rules that allow us to use a “Notice ande&s’model to make our proxy statem
and other annual meeting materials available ta @uor about September 28, 2012, we will beginlingaia notice, called the Notice of Inter
Availability of Proxy Materials (the “Notice”), tour stockholders advising them that our proxy statet, annual reportexecutive summary a
voting instructions can be accessed on the Intarpeh the commencement of such mailing. You may #exess these materials and vote
shares via the Internet or by telephone or you mgyest that a printed copy of the proxy mateti@sent to you. You will not receive a prir
copy of the proxy materials unless you requestinrtee manner described in the Notice. Using thédecallows us to conserve natural resoL
and reduces the costs of printing and distributiiregproxy materials while providing our stockhoklenth access to the proxy materials in a fas
efficient manner via the Internet.

The Notice of Annual Meeting, Proxy Statement and Anual Report — Executive Summary are available at www.edocumentweacom/CLX.
INFORMATION ABOUT THE MEETING AND VOTING
Q: What is the purpose of this proxy statement?

A: The Board is soliciting your proxy to vote at then@panys 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be heldNonember 14, 2012, and at :
adjournments of the Annual Meeting. This proxyestaént summarizes information that is intended sisagou in making an informed vote on
proposals described in this proxy statement.

Q: Who is entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting?

A: Only stockholders of record at the close of busiras September 18, 2012 (the “Record Dased) entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting.
that date, there were 130,255,096 shares of oummmstock (the “Common Stockdutstanding and entitled to vote. Holders of Comi8tock ar
entitled to one vote per share on each matter dtéaito a vote of stockholders.

Q: Why did | receive a Notice in the mail regardingthe Internet availability of proxy materials instead of a full set of printed proxy
materials?

A: Pursuant to rules adopted by the SEC, we are makisgproxy statement available to our stockholdsgestronically via the Internet. On
about September 28, 2012, we will mail the Notizehe holders of our Common Stock as of the clddsusiness on the Record Date, other
those stockholders who previously requested eleictror paper delivery of communications from useTYotice contains instructions on hov
access an electronic copy of our proxy materiaisluting this proxy statement and our Annual Repdtkecutive Summary. The Notice a
contains instructions on how to request a papey afphe proxy statement. We believe that this psscwill allow us to provide you with t
information you need in a timely manner, while caming natural resources and lowering the costziofing and distributing our proxy materials.

Q: Can | vote my shares by filling out and returning the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials?

A: No. The Notice only identifies the items to be wbten at the Annual Meeting. You cannot vote by rimaykhe Notice and returning it. T
Notice provides instructions on how to cast youev




Q: How can | vote my shares?

A: You can vote your shares in one of two ways: eitheproxy or in person at the Annual Meeting bytten ballot. If you choose to vote
proxy, you may do so via the Internet or by teleghoor by requesting a printed copy of the proxyemals and using the proxy card enclc
therein. Each of these procedures is explainedibdtoen if you plan to attend the Annual Meetirige Board recommends that you submit a p
in advance via the Internet, by telephone or byl.nvaithis way, your shares of Common Stock will\mged as directed by you even if you shi
become unable to attend the Annual Meeting.

Q: May | change my vote?

A: Yes. You may change your vote or revoke your prakgny time before it is exercised at the Annuakfifg by taking any of the followit
actions:

e submitting written notice of revocation to the Sstary of the Company;
e voting again electronically by telephone or via thiernet or by submitting another proxy card véttater date; or

e voting in person at the Annual Meeting.
Q: How many shares must be present to conduct thenhual Meeting?

A: We must have a “quoruntd conduct the Annual Meeting. A quorum is a mayooif the outstanding shares of Common Stock ewtitb vote ¢
the meeting, present in person or by proxy. Abgtiestand broker nometes (described below) will be counted for thepmse of determining
quorum.

Q: What are broker non-votes?

A: A broker nonvote occurs when a bank or brokerage firm doeseusive voting instructions from the beneficial @vmnd does not have

discretion to direct the voting of the shares. Byrokonvotes are not counted as votes against a proposel abstentions, and will not be coul
for purposes of determining the number of votesgmein person or represented by proxy and entitleete with respect to a particular proposi
the number of votes cast on a particular propdgalis, a broker nomete will not affect the outcome of the vote onragmsal that requires t
approval of a majority of the votes present in parar represented by proxy and entitled to vott@tAnnual Meeting (Proposals 2, 3 and 4) o
approval of a majority of the votes cast (Propd3al

Q: Will my shares be voted if | do not provide instuctions to my broker?

A: If you are the beneficial owner of shares held itsteeet name’by a broker, the broker, as the record holder efghares, is required to v
those shares in accordance with your instructitimler applicable New York Stock Exchange rulesjoifi hold your shares through a banl
brokerage firm and your broker delivers this pretgtement to you, the broker has the discretiomte on “routine’matters, such as the ratificat
of the selection of an independent registered pudticounting firm, but does not have discretiorvaéte on “non-routine’matters, such as t
election of directors or proposals on executive pensation matters. Thus, the broker is entitlegbte your shares on Proposal 3 even if you d
provide voting instructions to your broker. The kepis not entitled to vote your shares on Proptsalor 4 without your instructions.

Q: How do | vote if I hold shares in the Clorox 40¢k) Plan?

A: If you are a participant in our 401(k) plan, youlwéceive a voting instruction card to be useditect T. Rowe Price Company, as trustee o
401(k) plan, how to vote the shares of our commeksattributable to your individual account. T.vR® Price Company will vote shares
instructed by participants prior to 11:59 PM (EDdR) November 13, 2012. If you do not provide votdigections to T. Rowe Price Company
that time, the shares attributable to your accauithhot be voted.




Q: How do | vote if | cannot attend the Annual Meeing in person?

A: Because many stockholders cannot attend the Ariviaeting in person, it is necessary that a large bermof stockholders be representet
proxy. By following the procedures for voting vizetinternet or by telephone, or by requesting rat@di copy of the proxy materials and comple
signing and returning the proxy card enclosed theseu will enable Donald R. Knauss, Stephen MblRor Laura Stein, each of whom is nal
on the proxy card as a “proxy holdetg’vote your shares at the Annual Meeting in themea you indicate on your proxy card. When you water
proxy, you can specify whether your shares shoeld/dited for or against each of the nominees farcttir identified in Proposal 1, or you «
abstain from voting on the director nominees. Yan also specify how you want your shares voted végipect to Proposal 2, 3 or 4, which
described in this proxy statement.

Management of the Company is not aware of any msatither than those described in this proxy stateriat may be presented for action ai
Annual Meeting. If any other matters are propenrgsented at the Annual Meeting for consideratiba,groxy holders will have discretion to v
for you on those matters.

e Voting via the Internet.You can vote your shares via the Internet by foilgathe instructions provided either in tNetice or on the pro»
card. If you requested and received a printed fs#teoproxy materials by mail, you shoutdlow the voting instruction form you receiv
The Internet voting procedures are designed toeatittate youidentity and to allow you to vote your shares andfitm that your votin
instructions have been properly recorded. If yotewda the Internet, you do not need to mail a preard to us.

e Voting by TelephoneYou can vote your shares by telephone if you retggeand received a printed set of the proaterials through tt
mail by following the instructions provided on theoxy card or voting instruction form enclosetth the proxy materials you received
you received the Notice only, you can vote by teteye by followingthe instructions at the website address referrad the Notice. Th
telephone voting procedures are designeduthenticate your identity and to allow you to vgtair shares and confirm that your vo
instructions have been properly recorded. If yote\ny telephone, you do not need to mail a proxg t@ us.

e Voting by Mail. You can vote by mail by requesting that a printepycof the proxy materials be sent to your spedifiddress. Upon rece
of the materials, you may fill out the proxy carttkwsed therein and sign and return it as instcuotethe card.

Q: May | vote in person at the Annual Meeting?

A: Yes, you may vote your shares at the Annual Mesfiygu attend in person and use a written balt@wever, if your shares are held in
name of a broker, trust, bank or other nominee, mogt bring a legal proxy or other proof from thabker, trust, bank or nominee granting
authority to vote your shares directly at the Ariraeting. If you vote by proxy and also attend &mual Meeting, you do not need to vote a
at the Annual Meeting unless you wish to change yote. Even if you plan to attend the Annual Megtiwe strongly urge you to vote in adva
via the Internet or by telephone, or by requestingrinted copy of the proxy materials and signitigting and returning the proxy card enclc
therein.

Q: What are the proposals and what is the requiredvote for each?

A: Proposal 1: Election of Directors.The Companys Bylaws provide for majority voting for directars uncontested elections. Accordingly, €
of the nine nominees for director will be electetea or she receives the majority of the votes iraperson or represented by proxy, with respe
that director. A majority of the votes cast medrat the number of shares voted FOR a director excsted the number of shares voted AGAII
that director. An abstention or a broker nmte on Proposal 1 will not have any effect on éhection of directors and will not be countec
determining the number of votes cast.

Proposal 2: Approval (on an advisory basis) of th€ompensation of the Company’s Named Executive Offégs. Proposal 2 is being submiti
to enable stockholders to approve, on an advisasisbthe compensation of the Compangamed executive officers. Since Proposal 2
advisory vote, the provisions of our Bylaws regagdihe vote required to “approve” a proposal
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are not applicable to this matter. In order to ppraved on an advisory basis, Proposal 2 mustweaiFOR vote from a majority of the vc
present in person or represented by proxy andemhtid vote at the Annual Meeting. Abstentions w#lve the same effect as a vote again
proposal. Broker non-votes will have no effect lois proposal and will not be counted.

Proposal 3: Ratification of Selection of IndependerRegistered Public Accounting Firm.The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes gga
in person or represented by proxy and entitledote at the Annual Meeting is required to approv@pBsal 3. An abstention on Proposal 3 will t
the same effect as a vote against Proposal 3. Kebrmnvote will not have any effect on Proposal 3 and mokt be counted. Your broker, howe»
is entitled to vote your shares on Proposal 3 éweou do not provide voting instructions.

Proposal 4: Approval of the Amended and Restated & Stock Incentive PlanThe affirmative vote of a majority of the votes ggat in persc
or represented by proxy and entitled to vote atAhaual Meeting is required to approve Proposaprbyided that the total votes cast on
proposal represent over 50% in interest of all gdes entitled to vote on the proposal. An abstenbn Proposal 4 will have the same effect
vote against Proposal 4. A broker non-vote will hate any effect on Proposal 4 and will not be tedin

Q: What are the recommendations of the Board of Diectors?
A: The Board recommends that you vote:

e FOR the election of the nine nominees for direomed in this proxy statement (Proposal 1);
e FOR the proposal to approve (on an advisory b#stsfompensation of the Company’s named execuffiees (Proposal 2);

e FOR the ratification of the appointment of Ernsiy&ung LLP as the Company’s independent registetdadipaccounting firm for the fisc
year ending June 30, 2013 (Proposal 3); and

e FOR the approval of the Amended and Restated 2@fi%k $hcentive Plan (Proposal 4).
Q: What do | do if | receive more than one proxy ced?

A: Stockholders who hold their shares in more than ammunt may receive separate proxy cards or vatisiguction forms for each of thc
accounts. To ensure that ALL of your shares areesgmted at the Annual Meeting, we recommend thatvpte every proxy card you receive.

If you have any questions or need assistance witing, please call Innisfree M&A Incorporated, quoxy solicitor assisting us in connection v
the Annual Meeting, at (877) 825-8730.

Q: Who will count the votes?
A: Votes will be counted by Computershare Trust CorgpBinA., our inspector of election appointed foe thnnual Meeting.
Q: What happens if the Annual Meeting is postpone@r adjourned?

A: If we adjourn the Annual Meeting, we will condubetsame business at the later meeting, and thelBaardecide to set a new record dat
determining stockholders entitled to vote at thpached meeting or decide to only allow the stodlbs entitled to vote at the original meetin
vote at the adjourned meeting. According to ouraBsd, when a meeting is adjourned to another ptiate, or time, notice need not be given o
adjourned meeting if the place, date, time andpttexy requirements are announced at the meetinghih the adjournment is taken; provic
however, that if the date of any adjourned meeignmore than thirty days after the date for which tneeting was originally scheduled to 1
place, notice of the place, date, time and theyreguirements will be given to each stockholdereafrd entitled to vote at the meeting. If afte
adjournment a




new record date for stockholders entitled to vetiixied for the adjourned meeting, the Board viild new record date for notice of such adjou
meeting and will give notice of the adjourned megtio each stockholder entitled to vote at sucbwdied meeting as of the record date for n
of such adjourned meeting.

Q: What is the deadline to propose actions for comderation at next year's Annual Meeting of Stockhaflers?

A: Stockholders may present proper proposals for anatuin our proxy statement and for consideratipthe next annual meeting of stockholc
by submitting their proposals in writing to the Quany in a timely manner. Proposals should be adddeto The Clorox Company, c/o Secre!
1221 Broadway, Oakland, CA 9461388. For a stockholder proposal to be considesedntlusion in our proxy statement for our 2013nda
Meeting of Stockholders, we must receive the writeoposal no later than May 31, 2013. In additgiockholder proposals must otherwise cor
with the requirements of Rule 14a-8 promulgatedeuitle Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ame(tiedExchange Act”).

Our Bylaws also establish an advance notice praesidn stockholders who wish to present a propaseluding the nomination of directors, bef
an annual meeting of stockholders, but do not ohfen the proposal to be included in our proxyestaent. Pursuant to our Bylaws, a proposal
be brought before the meeting by a stockholder whe a stockholder of record at the time noticeiverg and is entitled to vote at the ant
meeting, and who complied with the notice proceslggecified in our Bylaws. To be timely for our 20Annual Meeting of Stockholders, ¢
assuming the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholddtedglace within 30 days of the anniversary of yieiar's Annual Meeting, we must receive
written notice at our principal executive officestiween July 17, 2013 and August 16, 2013. For nigfie@mation regarding proposals

consideration at the next annual meeting, pleasetse“Stockholder Proposals for the 2013 Annuaktitg” section of this proxy statement. |
stockholder who has notified us of his or her ititento present a proposal at an annual meeting doeappear in person or through a qual
representative to present his or her proposaldit smeeting, we are not required to present theqaaldor a vote at such meeting.

Q: Whom can | contact if | have questions?
A: If you have any questions about the Annual Meedingow to vote your shares, please call Innisfré&AMncorporated, at (877) 825-8730.
Q: Where can | find the voting results?

A: We will report final results in a filing with theEfC on Form 8-K.

PROPOSAL 1:
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

At the Annual Meeting, nine people will be elecesimembers of the Board to serve until the 2013uAhMeeting of Stockholders, or until tk
respective successors are duly elected and quhlifiee Board, upon the recommendation of the Notimgaand Governance Committee,
nominated the nine people listed below for elecdbthe Annual Meeting. Each nominee is currerglying as a director of the Company. Eac
the nominees has agreed to be named in this ptatgnsent and to serve as a director if electecgpbas described below.

Gary Michael, a current member of the Board, wéllrbtiring from the Board on the date of the Anrdakting pursuant to the Compasyirecto
retirement policy, which provides that a ner@nagement director must offer his or her resignat the Chairman of the Board and the Chair €
Nominating and Governance Committee six months poiche Annual Meeting of Stockholders at whichonehe will be age 7:

Richard Carmona is currently a nominee for the @&hate for the State of Arizona. If Dr. Carmonalésted as a U.S. Senator, he has inform
that he will step down from his position as a dioeof the Company prior to beginning his term d4.8. Senator. If this were to occur, the B¢
anticipates that it would fill the vacancy created his departure by appointing a new member toBbard prior to the effective date of |
Carmona’s resignation.




The Board unanimously recommends a vote FOR each tfe Board’s nine nominees for director listed belw. The people designated in
proxy and voting instruction card intend to votauyshares represented by proxy FOR the electicgaoh of these nominees, unless you inc
instructions to the contrary. If for some reason dinector nominee is unable to serve or for goadse will not serve if elected, the persons ne
as proxies may vote for a substitute nominee recena®ad by the Board.

Board of Directors’ Recommendation

The Board recommends that the stockholders FQIR the election of the nine nominees listed below. Bbard believes that all of the nomin
listed below are highly qualified and have skidgperience, backgrounds and attributes that queilémn to serve as directors of the Company
each nomines&’ biographical information and the Nominating ara/&nance Committee section below for more inforomt The recommendati
of the Board is based on its carefully considetetyyiment that the skills, experience, backgroundsadimibutes of the nominees make them the
candidates to serve on our Board.

Certain information with respect to each nominegeaps on the following pages, including age, peseryed as a director, position (if any) with
Company, business experience, directorships ofr gahblicly-owned corporations within the past five years (if)aand relevant experiences
qualifications, including service on certain nomdiiror nonpublic company boards, that contributed to the kaion that each director is qualif
to serve as a director of the Company. Ages liatedas of July 31, 2012.

Vote Required

Majority Voting for Directors The Companys Bylaws require each director to be elected byapority of the votes cast with respect to suchaot
in uncontested elections (the number of sharesdvie@R a director must exceed the number of shatiVAGAINST that director). Under t
Companys Bylaws, any director who fails to be elected bypaority of the votes cast in an uncontested Eleanust tender his or her resigna
to the Board. The Nominating and Governance Coremitvould then make a recommendation to the Boaretheh to accept or reject -
resignation, or whether other action should bertakde Board would act on the Nominating and Gogerce Committes’ recommendation a
publicly disclose its decision and the rationalibd it within 90 days from the date the electiesults are certified. A director who tenders h
her resignation would not participate in the Boamecision.




Name, Principal Occupation Director
and Other Information Since

DANIEL BOGGAN, JR. 1990

Mr. Boggan served as the Chief of Staff of the @adl| California Mayos office from January 2007 through August 2007
served as a consultant to Siebert Brandford Shaflo& LLC (a municipal finance firm) from Septeml2803 to March 200
Mr. Boggan joined the National Collegiate AthleAssociation in October 1994 as Group Executive @mefor Educatio
Services. He served as the National CollegiateetithiAssociatiors Chief Operating Officer from January 1996 to Juget
and served as its Senior Vice President and Chpefr&ing Officer from June 1998 until his retirerhém August 200:
Previously, he was Vice Chancellor for businessadministrative services at the University of Galifia at Berkeley.

Other Public Company Boards:
Mr. Boggan is a director of Collective Brands, Ifformerly known as Payless Shoe Source, Inc. (elper 1997 to preser
and Viad Corp (February 2005 to present).

Non-Profit/Other Boards:
Mr. Boggan is a trustee of The California Endowmeiné¢ President of The Alameda County Medical Qerated serves (
various local boards.

Director Qualifications:

Mr. Boggan has considerable knowledge of the Colyipdiusiness as well as a historical perspectivkefaous on the long-
term interests of the Company and its stockholdersto his longstanding service on the Board. He resides in Odklanc
his involvement in Oakland’local government and as President of The Alantalanty Medical Center has provided |
with an understanding of the Company’s local comityurMr. Boggans previous leadership positions at the Nati
Collegiate Athletic Association and the Universify California, as well as his service on severabligucompany and non-
profit boards, have provided him with a broad pectipe and management, governance and leadershgriemce that |
brings to the Company as Chair of the Nominating &overnance Committee. Additionally, his involvernevith The
Alameda County Medical Center and The Californial@mment (a large health care foundation in Calirprovides hir
with an understanding of health and wellness nmattsge: 66.




Name, Principal Occupation Director
and Other Information Since
RICHARD H. CARMONA, M.D., M.P.H., F.A.C.S. 2007

Dr. Carmona has been Vice Chairman of Canyon Réadife-enhancement company) since October 2006. He atges
as Chief Executive Officer of the Canyon Ranch He8livision and President of the npnefit Canyon Ranch Institut
He is also the first Distinguished Professor of [Ruealth at the Mel and Enid Zuckerman Collegdablic Health at tr
University of Arizona. Prior to joining Canyon RdncDr. Carmona served as the 17th Surgeon GenérthkeoUnitec
States from August 2002 through July 2006, achigetire rank of Vice Admiral. Previously, he was Chwin of the Sta
of Arizona Southern Regional Emergency Medical 8&ysta professor of surgery, public health, and lananc
community medicine at the University of Arizona,dasurgeon and deputy sheriff of the Pima Countyzdkra, Sheriffs
Department. Dr. Carmona served in the United Statesy and the Army’s Special Forces.

Other Public Company Boards:
Dr. Carmona is a director of Taser Internationaa(th 2007 to present).

Non-Profit/Other Boards:
Dr. Carmona serves on the board of Healthline N0

Director Qualifications:

Dr. Carmonas experience as the Surgeon General of the UnitésSand extensive background in public healtiige
him with a valuable perspective on health and ves¥nmatters, as well as insight into regulatoryaoizations an
institutions, which are important to the Companyusiness strategy. In addition, his executiveldeship experienc
including with a global lifestyle enhancement compaprovides him with international experience amdbles him 1
make valuable contributions to the Company’s iraéamal growth strategies. Dr. Carmomaxperience in the Unit
States Army and in academia also strengthens thedBocollective qualifications, skills and expere. Age: 62.

TULLY M. FRIEDMAN

Mr. Friedman is the Chairman and Chief Executivéid®f of Friedman Fleischer & Lowe, LLC (a privaitevestmer
firm). Prior to forming Friedman Fleischer & Lowe 1997, Mr. Friedman was a founding partner of idath & Friedma
(a private investment firm) and a managing direcfo8alomon Brothers, Inc. (an investment bank).

Other Public Company Boards:
Mr. Friedman previously served as a director oftilainc. (1984 to May 2012), Capital Source (26@May 2007) an
Tempur-Pedic International (November 2002 to ApPG06).

Non-Profit/Other Boards:
Mr. Friedman currently serves on the boards of K&mliles Holding Corp. and is the Chairman and eatlir of Churche
Holding Corp.

Director Qualifications:

Mr. Friedman’s more than thirty-five years of expece in finance and twenfive years as a private equity investor
provided him with expertise in financial matter$iig enables him to make valuable contributionsha dreas of merge
and acquisitions, capital deployment and other méjmncial decisions and in his service as Chdiroor Financ
Committee. In addition, Mr. Friedman'executive leadership roles and board positiorseireral industries provide h
with a broad perspective and experience in thesasEananagement, operations and strategy. Mr. Fréedalso has a de
understanding of the Compasybusiness, having served on the Board for numeyeass, enabling him to me
significant contributions to the Company’s strateignovation and long-range plans. Age: 70.

1997




Name, Principal Occupation Director
and Other Information Since
GEORGE J. HARAD 2006

Mr. Harad was Executive Chairman of the Board dfd®Max Incorporated (an office supply and servicesmpany), formerl
known as Boise Cascade Corporation (Boise Cascide), October 2004 until his retirement in June 20B8e served
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive OfficeBoise Cascade from April 1995 until October 20P4eviously, Mt
Harad held various positions at Boise Cascadeudin Controller, Senior Vice President and ChigfaRcial Officer, an
President and Chief Operating Officer. Prior tojog Boise Cascade, Mr. Harad was a consultanthf@Boston Consultir
Group and a teaching fellow at Harvard University.

Director Qualifications:

Mr. Harads prior executive leadership roles enable him tovide valuable contributions with respect to mamaget
operations, strategy, growth and loragrge plans. His experience as a Chief Financifit@fhas provided him with expert
in finance and accounting matters. Additionally,aaformer Chief Executive Officer of a Fortune 58fmpany, Mr. Hare
brings extensive knowledge in executive compensatiatters to his position as Chair of the Manageardavelopment ar
Compensation Committee. Age: 68.

DONALD R. KNAUSS

Mr. Knauss was elected Chairman and Chief Execufifficer of the Company in October 2006. He was dtxige Vice
President of The Coca-Cola Company (a marketer distlibutor of nonalcoholic beverages) and President and (
Operating Officer for Coc&ola North America from February 2004 until Aug@8i06. Previously, he was President of
Retail Division of Cocazola North America and President and Chief Exeeufficer of The Minute Maid Company
division of The Coca-Cola Company. Prior to his &agment with The Coc&ola Company, he held various position
marketing and sales with PepsiCo, Inc. and Pr&®amble and served as an officer in the UnitedeStMarine Corps.

Other Public Company Boards:
Mr. Knauss is a director of the Kellogg Company ¢Bmaber 2007 to present) and URS Corporation (JOhe B present).

Non-Profit/Other Boards:
Among other volunteer activities, Mr. Knauss sereesthe board of trustees of Morehouse College taedUnited State
Marine Corps University Foundation.

Director Qualifications:

Mr. Knauss’' leadership experience as the Chief Gtkee Officer of the Company and his depth knowledge of tl
Companys strategic priorities and operations enable him ptovide valuable contributions and facilitate effee
communication between management and the Boardoltisas Chief Executive Officer also enables honpriovide importar
contributions to strengthening the Company'’s lesitipr operations, strategy, growth and long-rafges Mr. Knaussprior
executive leadership roles include extensive igtgonal experience, providing him with valuableighds into global busine
strategy. In addition, Mr. Knaustadership experience at other consumer packagedsgmmpanies, including his direc
role at the Kellogg Company, provides him with @hkeinderstanding of the Compasyhdustry and customer and consu
dynamics. Age: 61.

2006




Name, Principal Occupation Director
and Other Information Since
ROBERT W. MATSCHULLAT 1999

Mr. Matschullat served as interim Chairman andrimeChief Executive Officer of the Company from Mhar2006 throug
October 2006. He served as presiding director®Bbard from January 2005 through March 2006 aneedeas Chairman
the Board from January 2004 through January 20@5wHs the Vice Chairman and Chief Financial OffiockiThe Seagra
Company Ltd. (a global company engaging in two fess segments: entertainment and spirits and virim@) October 199
until relinquishing his position as Chief Financ@fficer in December 1999 and retiring from hisigios as Vice Chairman
June 2000. Prior to joining The Seagram Company, Md. Matschullat served as head of worldwide Btugent banking fc
Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, and was on tleegdn Stanley Group board of directors.

Other Public Company Boards:
Mr. Matschullat is a director of The Walt Disneyr@pany, Inc. (December 2002 to present) and Visa, (@ctober 2007
present). He previously served as a director of b&s6n Corporation (October 2002 to July 2007).

Director Qualifications:

Mr. Matschullat brings to the Company a wealth oblx company leadership experience at the boaddexecutive level
Mr. Matschullats executive leadership experience includes seescthe Chief Financial Officer of a major globahgmany
and as the division head of a major financial tositin, providing him with expertise in businessldimancial matters as w
as broad international experience. In addition, Matschullat has an extensive understanding ofGbmpanys busines
having served more than ten years on the Boartlydimg in the leadership roles of nemecutive Chairman and presid
director of the Board. Mr. Matschullat also senasdthe Compang’interim Chief Executive Officer. These experienbavi
provided him with a long-term perspective, as vaslvaluable management, governance and leaderglepience. Age: 64.
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Name, Principal Occupation
and Other Information

Director
Since

EDWARD A. MUELLER

Mr. Mueller served as Chairman of the Board andeCHhixecutive Officer of Qwest Communications Intianal Inc
(Qwest) (a provider of voice, data and video s&sjidrom August 2007 until his retirement in A@011. He served as Ch
Executive Officer of WilliamsSonoma, Inc. (a provider of specialty productsdooking) from January 2003 until July 20
Mr. Mueller served on the board of directors of &ihs-Sonoma, Inc. from 1999 until May 2007. Pti@joining Williams-
Sonoma, Inc., Mr. Mueller served as President ahigf(Executive Officer of Ameritech Corporationsabsidiary of SB:
Communications, Inc. (a provider of communicati@rvices and products). He joined SBC in 1968, aeld mumerou
executive positions, including President and Chieécutive Officer of Southwestern Bell Telephonerpany, President a
Chief Executive Officer of Pacific Bell and Presiief SBC International Inc.

Other Public Company Boards:

Mr. Mueller is a director of McKesson Corporatiofptil 2008 to present). Mr. Mueller previously sedvas a director
Qwest (August 2007 to April 2011), Verisign Inculgd 2007 to July 2008) and Willian8enoma Inc. (October 1999 to
2007).

Non-Profit/Other Boards:
Mr. Mueller served as a director of GSC Acquisit@ompany (July 2007 to July 2008).

Director Qualifications:

Mr. Mueller brings to the Board chief executivedesship and business management experience, agsvsttong busine
acumen and financial and strategic planning exgriir. Muellers executive and board leadership experience spgmesa
industries, providing him with a broad perspectared enabling him to provide significant contribaoin the areas

management, operations, strategy, growth and lange plans. Mr. Muelles’ strong financial background qualifies him a
audit committee financial expert, enabling him ta@ke valuable contributions to the Company as Cbéithe Audi
Committee. Age: 65.

2007
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Name, Principal Occupation Director
and Other Information Since
PAMELA THOMAS-GRAHAM 2005

Ms. Thomassraham has served as Chief Talent, Branding andh@orications Officer and member of the Executive idas
Credit Suisse Group since January 2010. From M206A8 to December 2009, she served as a managagatiin the prival
equity group at Angelo, Gordon & Co. (a privateegstment management firm). From October 2005 to Dbee 2007, M:
ThomasGraham held the position of Group President atQlaiborne, Inc. (a designer and marketer of appaessorie
and fragrances). Previously, she served as Chaioh@NBC (a media and entertainment company) frahréary 2005 1
October 2005 and served as President and ChiefulixecOfficer of CNBC from July 2001 to February QB Fron
September 1999 to July 2001, Ms. ThonGasham served as an Executive Vice President of BBCas President and Cl
Executive Officer of CNBC.com. Prior to joining NB®Is. Thomas-Graham was a partner at McKinsey & @amy.

Other Public Company Boards:
Ms. Thomas-Graham served as a director of IdenatRaceuticals, Inc. (June 2005 to January 2010).

Non-Profit/Other Boards:

Ms. Thomassraham serves on the board of the Parsons Schaasign (2006 to present) and the Education Coraeit
the Museum of Modern Art in New York City (2006 ioesent). She is a member of the Business CouhttieoMetropolital
Museum of Art in New York City (2012 to present)dditionally, she served on the Visiting CommittdeHarvard Busines
School (2005 to 2011) and on the board of the Hdr#dumni Association (1998 to 2001).

Director Qualifications:

Ms. Thomassraham brings to the Company significant execuéixpertise. Her current and prior executive leadpraties
enable her to provide valuable contributions wibpect to management, operations, growth andrdamge plans. In additic
Ms. Thomassraham brings to the Company significant experieimceéhe area of branding. Her prior experience
management consultant also enables her to prodtleble contributions to the Compasiybusiness strategies and mer
and acquisitions activities. Additionally, her leaship experience at a private equity firm provithes with financial an
accounting expertise, enabling her to contributéaéooversight of the Company. Age: 49.

CAROLYN M. TICKNOR

Ms. Ticknor was President of the Imaging and Rugptsystems group of the Hewlett Packard Compamyofzal IT company
from 1999 until her retirement in February 2001e Skrved as President and General Manager of HeRdekard Company’
LaserJet Solutions from 1994 to 1999. In additMs, Ticknor consults for entrepreneurs and ventagtal firms.

Other Public Company Boards:
Ms. Ticknor served as a director of OfficeMax Imparated (formerly Boise Cascade Corporation) frosrBary 2000 1
April 2006.

Non-Profit/Other Boards:
Ms. Ticknor served as a director of Lucile Pack@&tiildren’s Hospital, a private nqgorofit organization at the Stanfc
University Medical Center, from October 2001 ufidtober 2009.

Director Qualifications:

Ms. Ticknor's prior executive leadership roles enable her twide valuable contributions with respect to mamaget
operations, strategy, growth and loragnge plans. Her prior leadership at a global Ifgany enables her to provide valu:
contributions with respect to the Companyhternational operations, strategies and growdmsp She also brings to -
Company significant expertise in the areas of imtion and supply chain management. Ms. Ticksiggrvice as a director
Lucile Packard Childres’ Hospital at Stanford University Medical Centehamces her understanding of health and wel
issues, as well as the Company’s focus on commiumithvement. Age: 65.
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COMMITTEES, ORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The Board has established five standing committbesExecutive Committee, the Finance Committee,Ahdit Committee, the Nominating
Governance Committee, and the Management DeveldpamehCompensation Committee. The Finance, Audithating and Governance, ¢
Management Development and Compensation Committeasist only of nomnanagement directors whom the Board has determane
independent under the New York Stock Exchange (“BY3isting standards and the Board’s independestaadards set forth in the Company’
Governance Guidelines, which are discussed beldw. charters for these committees are availabléénGorporate Governance section of
Company’s website ahttp://www.thecloroxcompany.com/corporate-respaiigifperformance/corporate-governance/company-t¢bes , or in
print by contacting The Clorox Company, c/o Secketd221 Broadway, Oakland, CA 94612-1888.

Standing Committees

Executive CommittecThe Executive Committee is composed of directorgdam, Friedman, Harad, Knauss (chair), Michael Bheller. The
Executive Committee is delegated all of the powafrshe Board except certain powers reserved byttawhe full Board. In addition to bei
available to meet between regular Board meetingscsasions when Board action is required but theveoing of the full Board is impracticak
the Executive Committee is authorized to handleigpassignments as requested from time to timtnéyBoard. The Executive Committee helc
meetings during fiscal year 2012.

Finance Committe The Finance Committee is composed of directors Boggriedman (chair), Matschullat, Mueller and Tlasf@raham. Th
Finance Committee oversees and, when appropriatkesmrecommendations to the Board with respedtedCiompanys major financial policie
and actions, including policies and actions relaiedhe Compang capital structure, equity and debt financinggiteh expenditures, ca
management and share repurchase activities. TlméenCommittee held two meetings during fiscal P&drR.

Audit CommitteeThe Audit Committee is composed of directors Harstichael, Mueller (chair), ThomaSraham and Ticknor. The Au
Committee is the principal link between the Boand ¢he Company independent registered public accounting firme Radit Committee has t
functions and duties set forth in its charter, uidlthg, but not limited to, assisting the Board wreseeing (i) the integrity of the Compasyinancia
statements, (ii) the independent registered pudticounting firms qualifications, independence and performancg, tfie performance of tl
Company'’s internal audit function, (iv) the Compangystem of disclosure controls and proceduressgstm of internal control over financ
reporting, (v) the Compang’compliance with legal and regulatory requiremeelsting to accounting and financial reporting teet, and (vi) th
Company'’s framework and guidelines with respectdio assessment and risk management. The Audit Gbee’s duties also include preparing
report required by the SEC proxy rules to be inetith the Compang’ annual proxy statement. The Audit Committee imih& meetings durir
fiscal year 2012. The Board has made a determimdtiat each member of the Audit Committee satisfies independence and experie
requirements of both the NYSE and SEC. The Boasldaermined that Messrs. Michael and Mueller aditacommittee financial experts,
defined by SEC rules, and are financially literatedefined by NYSE rules.

Nominating and Governance CommittThe Nominating and Governance Committee is compos$atirectors Boggan (chair), Carmona, Mict
and Ticknor. The Nominating and Governance Commiktas the functions set forth in its charter, idiolg identifying and recruiting individue
qualified to become Board members, recommendintpgoBoard individuals to be selected as directaninees for the next Annual Meeting
Stockholders, reviewing and recommending to ther@azhanges in the Company’s Governance Guidelimes averseeing the Compary’
compliance program and activities, including themanys compliance with legal and regulatory requiremaetating to matters other th
accounting and financial reporting matters. The Nating and Governance Committee held four meetihgig fiscal year 2012.

Management Development and Compensation ComnThe Management Development and Compensation Coearigtcomposed of directs
Carmona, Friedman, Harad (chair), Matschullat anchikl. The Management Development and Compens@ionmittee has the functions
duties set forth in its charter, including reviegiand approving the policies under which compeaosais paid or awarded to the Company’
executive officers, recommending director compeasab the Board, determining executive compensatimd granting stock options, performe
units and other cash or stock awards under the @oygexecutive incentive compensation and stock ineempians. In addition, the Managem
Development and Compensation Committee overseés,miolvement of the full Board, the Compasyhanagement development and succe
planning processes. The Management DevelopmenCanmgpensation Committee held six meetings duringafigear 2012.
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Evaluation of Director Qualifications and Experience

The Companys Governance Guidelines, which are explained bettescribe the attributes that the Board seeks mimees. In assessing poter
new directors, the Nominating and Governance Cotemiwill consider individuals from various discipdis and diverse backgrounds. While
Board has not established any specific minimumificaions that a potential nominee must possesscibr candidates are considered based
various criteria, including their brodshsed business skills and experience, prominerateegutation in their profession, global businass socia
perspective, concern for long-term stockholderrggts and personal integrity and judgmentHn the context of an assessment of the perd
needs of the Board at that point in time. The gbitif incumbent directors to contribute to the Bbas considered in connection with

renominating process.

In the evaluation of nominees for the Board, theni@ting and Governance Committee has identifiedfthiowing skills and experiences, ami
others, that are important in creating a diverskwell-rounded Board:

Significant Current or Prior Leadership Experienich as service in a significant leadership rahejuding as a chief executive officer, or of
executive officer or other significant leadershipsjtion): enables important contributions to strengthenirgg@ompanys leadership, managem
expertise, operations, strategy, growth and lomgegplans

Leadership Experience on Public Company, -Profit or Other Boards;prepares directors to take an active leadershipirothe oversight ai
governance of the Company.

Knowledge of the Compé's Business, the Consumer Packaged Goods Indust§tteer Complementary Industrgnables enhancement of |
contributions to the Company'’s strategy and pasitiothe Company'’s industry.

Experience in Product Development, Marketing, Syihain Management or Other Relevant Arefacilitates support and contributions to
Company’s strategy, development of products, dffeaharketing to consumers and the Company’s basioperations.

Relevant Retail Experiencprovides insights and contributions to enhancitgti@ns and results with the Company’s customeramumer base.
International Experienceprovides insights and ability to contribute to ®empany’s increasing global business strategy.

Financial and Accounting Expertiseenables analysis and oversight of the Compariiyiancial position, financial statements and ktssof
operations.

Regulatory Experience (including experience in tealth and wellness sectorenables meaningful contributions on matters rejation the
regulatory environment, including in the area dadltteand wellness.

Diversity

Consistent with the ComparsyGovernance Guidelines, the Board recognizesahe\in diversity and endeavors to assemble a Bedhddiverst
skills, professional experience, perspectives, tsoaf view, race, ethnicity, gender and culturatkggound. The Nominating and Governa
Committee assesses the effectiveness of effoessemble a diverse Board by examining the ovesaliposition of the Board and evaluating hc
particular director candidate can contribute todherall success of the Board.

The Nominating and Governance Committee considgrsmmendations from many sources, including stddens, regarding possible candid:
for director. Such recommendations, together witlgtaphical and business experience informatiomi(ar to that required to be disclosed ur
applicable SEC rules and regulations) regarding ddwedidate, should be submitted to The Clorox Compa/o Secretary, 1221 Broadw
Oakland, CA 94612:888. The Nominating and Governance Committee eteduall candidates for the Board in the same nram@uding thos
suggested by stockholders.
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Board of Directors’ Meeting Attendance

The Board held ten meetings during fiscal year 2@1directors attended at least 75% of the megstiaf the Board and committees of which 1
were members during fiscal year 2012. All membérthe Board are expected to attend the Annual Mgetf Stockholders. Each member of
Board attended the Company’s 2011 Annual Meetingto€kholders held on November 16, 2011.

The Clorox Company Governance Guidelines and Direotr Independence

The Board has adopted Governance Guidelines that e found in the Corporate Governance section e €ompanys websit
http://lwww.thecloroxcompany.com/corporate-respailigitperformance/corporate-governance/governancedglines/, and are available in print
any stockholder who requests them from The Clorom@any, c/o Secretary, 1221 Broadway, Oakland, €&12-1888.

The Governance Guidelines present a frameworkh®rgbvernance of the Company. They describe redplitiess, qualifications and operatior
matters applicable to the Board and the Board cdtees and include provisions relating to the ew#uneaof the Chief Executive Officer (“‘CEQ”
and ordinaryeourse and emergency succession planning. The Gavee Guidelines are reviewed annually by the Natirig and Governan
Committee, which recommends changes to the Boaag@®priate.

The Governance Guidelines emphasize and descrébevérsight role of the Board and identify variauigeria for Board members intendec
ensure that the Board consists of individuals wae, on the basis of their knowledge and experiemake valuable contributions to the ove
conduct of the Company’business. The Governance Guidelines currentlyigeedor a combined Chairman and CEO position &ithindepende
director serving as a lead director and outlingouer responsibilities for the lead director, whinte described more fully below unddddard o
Directors Leadership StructureThe Governance Guidelines also include provisiaiating to Board meetings, including the number af¢
materials for, meetings and executive sessionsjdaiboard service, ethics and conflicts of intersteck ownership and retention requirems
orientation and continuing education, compensatinandatory retirement and access to managemenbtiied employees. The Governa
Guidelines require that the lead director andralependent directors provide input to the Managémerelopment and Compensation Comm
in connection with that committee’s annual evalhmibf the CEO of the Company.

Finally, the Governance Guidelines provide that @amity of the Board must consist of independemecators. The Board determines whe
individual Board members are independent, as dafayethe NYSE, using the following standards:

1. A director will not be deemed to be independetiite director is, or has been within the precgdinmree years, an employee of the Company,
immediate family member is, or has been within greceding three years, an executive officer of @mmpany; provided, however, t
employment as an interim chairman, interim CEOthepinterim executive officer does not disquadifgirector from being considered indepen
following that employment.

2. A director will not be deemed to be independérduring any 12month period within the preceding three years,dinector or an immedia
family member received more than $120,000 in dicechpensation from the Company, other than direatat committee fees, pension or o
forms of deferred compensation for prior serviceyed that such compensation is not contingerany way on continued service); provic
however, that compensation for former service amganim chairman or interim CEO or other interieeutive officer, compensation receivec
an immediate family member for service as an ermgdofother than an executive officer) of the Compamydividends on Company stc
beneficially owned by the director need not be @ered in determining independence under this test.

3. A director will not be deemed to be independéfi the director, or an immediate family member,a current partner of the firm that is
Companys independent registered public accounting firip;tifie director is a current employee of such fi(iit) an immediate family member
the director is a current employee of such firm wiarks on the Compang’audit; or (iv) the director or an immediate famitember was withi
the preceding three years (but is no longer) axpadr employee of such firm and personally workrdhe Company’s audit within that time.
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4. A director will not be deemed to be independgnwithin the preceding three years (i) the diogcbr an immediate family member is or \
employed as an executive officer of another compahgre any of the Compars/present executive officers at the same time sesveerved ¢
that companys compensation committee; or (ii) the director muarent employee, or an immediate family member ¢sirrent executive officer,
another company that has made payments to or ezt@iayments from the Company for property or sesvihat, in any of the preceding tt
fiscal years, exceeded $1 million or 2% of sucleottompany’s consolidated gross revenues, whichis\greater.

5. A director may be considered independent nostatiding that the director owns, or is a partneckholder, officer, director or employee of
entity that owns, not more than 30% of the outstemdtock of the Company, unless the director erdhtity owning the Comparg/'stock has
relationship with the Company that, under paragsalpthrough 4 above or otherwise, precludes arfjndf independence.

6. A director will not be deemed independent if tiector serves, or an immediate family membeveseras an executive officer of a tax exe
organization that received contributions from th@rpany or its foundation, in any single fiscal yedthin the preceding three years, in exce:
$1 million or 2% of such organization’s consolidhtgross revenues, whichever is greater.

For purposes of these criteria, “immediate familgmiber” includes a person’s spouse, parents, chilgiblings, mothers- and fathers-in-law, sons-
and daughters-in-law, brothers- and sisters-in-kavd, anyone, other than domestic employees, wheskach person’s home.

Director Independence Determination

The Board has determined that each of the Compatiséctors is independent under the NYSE listiagdards and the independence standar
forth in the Governance Guidelines, except Mr. Kssaas a result of his service as the Company’s CEO.

Related Party Transaction Policies and Procedures

The Company has a lorgganding policy of prohibiting its directors, officc and employees from entering into transactibas are an actual
potential conflict of interest. The CompasyCode of Conduct has a detailed provision prahipitonflicts of interests and is available at
Company’'s  website at http://www.thecloroxcompany.com/corporate-respaiigitperformance/corporate-governance/code-of-coctd
Additionally, the Company has a written policy redjag review and approval of related party transast by the Nominating and Governa
Committee (“Related Party Policy”).

The Company’s Related Party Policy defines an fhagted Transactionas any transaction, arrangement or relationshigesies of simile
transactions, arrangements or relationships (imetpdny indebtedness or guarantee of indebtediessghich (1) the aggregate amount invol
will or may be expected to exceed $120,000 in atgraar year, (2) the Company is a participant,(8hdny Related Party has or will have a d
or indirect interest (other than solely as a restilieing a director or a less than 10% benefmiaher of another entity).

A “Related Party” is any (a) person who is or wsisge the beginning of the last fiscal year forathihe Company has filed a Form KGnd prox
statement, even if such person does not presearilg $n that role) an executive officer, directonominee for election as a director, (b) a bered
owner of more than 5% beneficial of the Compangbmmon Stock, or (c) an immediate family membeny of the foregoing. Immediate far
member includes a person’s spouse, parents, stagpachildren, stepchildren, siblings, mothersd tathers-in-law, sons- and daughterdaw
and brothers- and sisters-in-law and anyone rasidisuch person’s home (other than a tenant of@ree).

Under the Related Party Policy, if a new IntereStethsaction is identified for approval, it is bghti to the Nominating and Governance Comm
to determine if the proposed transaction is redserend fair to the Company. The Nominating and @oance Committee will review the mate
facts of all Interested Transactions that requg@pproval and either approve or disapprove oétltgy into the Interested Transaction.
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The Related Party Policy also contains categofigsempproved transactions that the Board hasiféehtis not having a significant potential foi
actual or potential conflict of interest or improfenefit.

In determining whether to approve or ratify an tagted Transaction, the Nominating and Governarararfittee will take into account, amc
other factors it deems appropriate, whether therésted Transaction is on terms no less favoralble terms generally available to an unaffilii
third party under the same or similar circumstararebsthe extent of the Related Party’s interegéntransaction.

No director participates in any discussion or apalof an Interested Transaction for which he @& sha Related Party, except that the directol
provide all material information concerning theelrgsted Transaction to the Nominating and Govem&@mmmittee. There were no transact
considered to be an Interested Transaction dun@gbmpany’s 2012 fiscal year.

Code of Conduct

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct, whiohbeafound in the Governance section under Compafoymation on the Company’
website, http://www.thecloroxcompany.com/corporate-respaiigifperformance/corporate-governance/code-of-coctd , or obtained in print k
contacting The Clorox Company, c/o Secretary, 1R&iadway, Oakland, CA 94612-1888. The Code of Condpplies to all of the Comparsy’
employees, including executives, as well as cotdraand directors. We also have established aaepSupplier Code of Conduct outlining
standards and expectations of our suppliers andndmss partners, which can be found Htp://www.thecloroxcompany.com/corporate-
responsibility/people/suppliers-partners/

Board of Directors Leadership Structure

The Board believes that it is in the best intere§the Company and its stockholders for the Baansiake a determination on whether to separ
combine the roles of Chairman and CEO based upp&tmpanys circumstances at any particular point in timee Nominating and Governar
Committee regularly reviews the leadership struectiar determine if it is in the best interests af tBompany and stockholders. Currently,
positions of Chairman and CEO are combined and beliflr. Knauss. Mr. Knauss'’ in-depth knowledge loé {Companys strategic priorities al
operations enables him to facilitate effective camination between management and the Board anthaekey issues and recommendation:
brought to the attention of the Board, providingeffiective leadership structure. Having the CEQaears the Chairman also helps to ensure th
CEO understands and can effectuate the recommendathd decisions of the Board.

Because the Board also believes that independadeighip is important, the Board has establishegdisition of lead director. The lead directc
elected annually by and from the independent dirsavith clearly delineated and comprehensive dwdi®d responsibilities and must have serv
a director for a minimum of one year in order taalify as the lead director. The duties of the lelgbctor, which are also included in

Governance Guidelines, include: leading the adtiwitof the independent directors; evaluating, alentp the members of the Managen
Development and Compensation Committee and the atdependent directors, the performance of the C&@ providing feedback to the C
and management in order to effectuate the decisindssecommendations of the independent directoraddition, the lead director: (i) assists
Board and the Compars/officers in promoting compliance with and implaration of the Governance Guidelines; (ii) presideshe executiy
sessions of the independent directors and hasutheriy to call additional executive sessions @etings of the independent directors; (iii) pres
at meetings of the Board in the Chairmsaabsence; (iv) approves information sent to thar8bdy management; (v) approves meeting agend:
meeting schedules for the Board to assure thag kesufficient time for discussion of all agentanis; and (vi) consults and directly communic
with major stockholders, if requested. Mr. Michaetved as lead director during the Compar012 fiscal year. He will step down from thatero
connection with his retirement effective Novembér 2012. Mr. Matschullat has been elected to thd tirector role effective as of that date.

In addition, all of the Company’s directors othieart Mr. Knauss are “independerts defined by the NYSE rules. The Board believas d@hsingl
leader serving as Chairman and CEO, together wighGompanys predominantly independent Board and independ=dt Hirector, promot
effective governance. Accordingly, the Board hatedeined that, under the present circumstancescuhent leadership structure is in the
interests of the Company and its stockholders.
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Board of Directors’ Role in Risk Management Oversigt

The Board has responsibility for the oversightt@ Company’s risk management, while the Compangeagement is responsible for the day-to-
day risk management process. With the oversighhefBoard, the management of the Company has dmelan enterprise risk managen
(“ERM™) process, whereby management identifies the towiohaal risks that the Company faces with respedtstdousiness, operations, strat
and other factors after interviews with key bustnesd functional leaders in the Company and rewéwxternal information. In addition
evaluating various key risks, management identifiegs to mitigate and manage such risks. At leastally, management reports on and disct
the identified risks and risk mitigation and managet efforts with the Board. The Board allocatespomsibility to a specific committee to exan
a particular risk in detail if the committee istire best position to review and assess the riskekample, the Audit Committee reviews complic
and risk management programs and practices reflat@ccounting and financial reporting matters; Menagement Development and Compens,
Committee reviews the risks related to the exeeutiempensation structure; and the Finance Commigteiews risks related to financial r
management, such as foreign currency exchange,rfgedgrangements or interest rate exposure. Inetrent that a committee is alloca
responsibility for examining and analyzing a speaifk, such committee reports on the relevark eisposure during its regular reports to the e
Board to facilitate proper risk oversight by theienBoard.

As part of its responsibilities, the Management &epment and Compensation Committee periodicalljeres the Compang’ compensatic
policies and programs to ensure that the comp@msatiogram is able to incentivize employees, iniclgdexecutive officers, while mitigatil
excessive risk taking. The overall executive conspbn program contains various provisions thaigate against excessive risk taking, including:

e An appropriate balance between annual cash comipemsad equity compensation that is earned oysrind of three to ten years;

e Caps on the payouts under executive and non-execiattentive plans, which protect against the filiyi that executives take shdefmr
actions to maximize bonuses that are not suppoofileng-term objectives;

e Strategic metrics under the executive annual imeerglan (“AlIP”) that are equally weighted betweldet CustomeiSales and Econon
Profit, which discourage revenue generation aettpense of profitability and vice versa;

e Claw-back provisions applicable to current and ferraxecutives as set forth in the applicable ptaat enable theecapture of previous
paid compensation under certain circumstances,hndécve as a deterrent to inappropriate risk-takutiyities; and

e Stock ownership guidelines that require executifieers to accumulate meaningful levels of equitynership in theCompany, which alig
executives’ short- and long-term stockholder ingtse

Based on its review and the analysis provided byiritlependent consultant, Frederic W. Cook & Cloe Management Development .
Compensation Committee has determined that the agking from the Comparg/compensation policies and practices for its eyga@s, includin
executive officers, are not reasonably likely toéna material adverse effect on the Company.

Executive Sessions

As required by the NYSE listing standards, the pedelent directors generally meet in executive sesai each regularly scheduled board me
without the presence of management directors ol@rees of the Company to discuss various mattéasebto the oversight of the Company,
management of the Board'’s affairs and the CEO’fopmance.
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BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF VOTING SECURITIES

The following table shows, as of July 31, 2012 éptcas otherwise indicated), the holdings of Comi@totk by (i) any entity or person knowr
the Company to be the beneficial owner of more &fdnof the outstanding shares of Common Stockeéioh director and nominee for director
each of the five individuals named in the Summaoyn@ensation Table (the “named executive officewsiy (iii) all current directors and execu

officers of the Company as a group:

Amount and Nature of
Name of Beneficial Owner (1) Beneficial Ownership (2) Percent of Class (3)

BlackRock, Inc. (4) 9,128,207 6.92

40 East 52nd Street

New York, NY 10022
State Street Global Associates (5) 8,288,140 6.39

One Lincoln Street

Boston, MA 02111
T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. (6) 6,476,468 5.00

100 E. Pratt Street

Baltimore, MD 21202
Daniel Boggan, Jr. 5,741 *
Richard H. Carmona 0 *
Tully M. Friedman 34,305 *
George J. Harad 9,000 *
Donald R. Knauss 1,244,273 *
Robert W. Matschullat 7,324 *
Gary G. Michael 6,651 *
Edward A. Mueller 0 *
Lawrence S. Peiros 436,901 *
Stephen M. Robb 101,374 *
Laura Stein 232,068 *
Frank A. Tataseo 269,507 *
Pamela Thom:-Graham 9,778 *
Carolyn M. Ticknor 8,000 *
All current directors and executive officers asaup (22 persons) (7) 3,420,235 2.7

*

@

)

Does not exceed 1% of the outstanding shi

Correspondence to all executive officers and dimsciof the Company may be mailed to The Clorox Camgp c/o Secretary, 12
Broadway, Oakland, CA 946-1888.

Unless otherwise indicated, each beneficial owis¢ed has sole voting and dispositive power coringrthe shares indicated. These tc
include the following numbers of shares of Commaaock that such persons have the right to acquireutih stock options exercisa
within 60 days of July 31, 2012, or with respectMaoich such persons have shared voting or dispesitower: Mr. Boggan 4,500 options
Mr. Friedman — 6,000 options and 28,200 shares lnel@ully M. Friedman Revocable Trust; Mr. Hara®,800 options and shared vot
and dispositive power with respect to 1,000 shaetd jointly with spouse; Mr. Knaussl;137,720 options and shared voting and dispo
power with respect to 101,032 shares held in fatnigt; Mr. Matschullat — 6,000 options; Mr. Peir0895,505 options and shared vor
and dispositive power with respect to 31,878 shhedd in family trust; Mr. Robb 98,035 options and shared voting and dispositiweet
with respect to 3,339 shares held in family trddg. Stein — 216,830 options; Mr. Tatase®63,072 options and shared voting
dispositive power with respect to 5,396 shares efdmily trust; Ms. Thomas-Graham — 8,000 optidvis. Ticknor —8,000 options; and :
current directors and executive officers as a gre8f20,449 options. The numbers in the table abovead include the following numbe
of shares of Common Stock that the executive aBiteve the right to acquire upon the terminatibtheir service as employees pursual
deferred stock units granted in December 1995 ahamge for the cancellation of certain restrictedls and deferred dividends on defe
stock units: Mr. Peiro- 15,087; Mr. Tatase— 16,207; anc
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all current executive officers as a groupt294. The numbers in the table above do not dectbhe following numbers of shares of Comi
Stock that the nomanagement directors have the right to acquire tpetermination of their service as directors parg to deferred sto
units granted under the Independent Directors’IS®&sed Compensation Plan: Mr. Boggan — 27,313C@armona — 9,133; Mr. Friedman
39,064; Mr. Harad — 21,702; Mr. Matschullat — 623%ir. Michael — 14,045; Mr. Mueller — 17,059; MEhomas-Graham £2,705; and M:
Ticknor —18,574. The numbers in the table above do not decline following numbers of shares of Common Stibelt the executiv
officers have the right to acquire upon the termdamaof their service as employees pursuant toeeeperformance units that were deferre
the executive officers’ election: Mr. Peiros — 380Mr. Robb — 10,239; Ms. Stein — 27,231; Mr. Bata—7,500; and all current execut
officers as a grou— 149,286.

Based on information contained in a report on Scleed3G/A filed with the SEC on February 13, 20BRckRock, Inc. reported, as

Based on information contained in a report on Fb&Hh filed with the SEC, State Street Global Asssiaeported, as of June 30, 2012,

Based on information contained in a report on Fb8f filed with the SEC, T. Rowe Price Associates, feported, as of June 30, 2012,

(3) OnJuly 31, 2012, there were 129,613,607 shar€oofmon Stock outstandin
) . report on Sl

December 30, 2011, sole voting and dispositive pawih respect to these shar
®) ; ormati .

voting and dispositive power with respect to thelsares
) ; ormati :

voting and dispositive power with respect to thelsares
(7

Pursuant to Rule 3b-7 of the Exchange Act, exeeutificers include the Comparsyturrent CEO and all current executive vice pessi
and senior vice presiden

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table sets out the number of shafe€a@mmon Stock to be issued upon exercise of cudstg options, warrants and rights,
weightedaverage exercise price of outstanding options,amésrand rights, and the number of securities avigilfor future issuance under eq
compensation plans as of June 30, 2012.

[a] [b] [c]

Number of securities
remaining for future
issuance under non-
qualified stock-based
compensation programs
(excluding securities
reflected in column [a])
(in thousands)

Number of securities t
be issued upon exercis
of outstanding options
warrants and rights
(in thousands)

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,

Plan category warrants and rights

Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrsid 11,71¢ $62 4,172
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechotgiers —

Total

11,71¢

4,172

Column [a] includes the following outstanding egtliased awards (in thousands):

e 10,104 stock options

e 1,370 performance units and deferred shares

e 223 deferred stock units for non-employee directors

e 19 restricted stock units




COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Executive Summary

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis (“CD&A8scribes our executive compensation philosophypaogram, the compensation decis
made under this program, and the factors we coreidim making those decisions. This CD&A focusestlod compensation of oumamer
executive officers” for fiscal year 2012, who wexa:

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ");

Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Office

Executive Vice President — Strategy & Growth, Penships and Professional Products Division;
Senior Vice President — Chief Financial Officer FQ");

Senior Vice President — General Counsel; and

Executive Vice President — Chief Financial Offi¢eatired November 16, 2011).

Compensation PhilosophyThe key principle of our compensation philosoj@pay for performance. Our compensation prograresiasigned |
align executive pay with the achievement of shard longterm financial and strategic objectives that bsildckholder value. This link betwe
compensation and business goals is an importatdrféitat has historically driven, and will continte drive, the Compang’ performance al
growth. We believe we can best ensure that comfiensa commensurate with the building of stockleslgalue and Company growth by keej
the majority of executive pay “at riskThis means that the largest portion of executivaeensation is variable and tied to Company andviddal
performance.

Fiscal Year 2012 Performance Highligh. Due to global economic conditions throughoutdlisgear 2012, Clorox continued to face ong:
business and consumer challenges. In particularCttmpany was negatively affected by higher comtygartists and other inflationary pressu
The Company addressed these challenges througixéoeation of its “3D"demand creation model (Desire, Decide and Delighi)lementation ¢
price increases across its portfolio, product iraimn, and cost structure management. By remaiioioigsed on key goals and executing its stra
the Company delivered strong growth and celebnatederous successes in fiscal year 2012, includieddilowing:

e grew sales by 5% with increases in all four regie@egments;

expanded its product portfolio through innovatidelivering a record level of new products, inclugihe new gii® line of natural person
care products under the Burt's B&3srand, the expansion of the on-the-go Brita® Bditle, the Liquid-Plumf Double Impact snake + ¢
system, Cloro® high-efficiency bleach gel and new flavors of Hiddéalley ® dressings;

acquired HealthLink and Aplicare, Inc., leading yders of infection control products that increabe Company’s exposure to faster-
growing categories and expand the breadth and detie Company’s health care portfolio, as welSay Vay® Enterprises, Inc., whi
makes Asian marinades and dressings;

responded to cost pressures by taking pricing retmd aggressively managing costs;

delivered diluted net earnings per share from ceiittig operations in fiscal year 2012 of $4.10, msréase oapproximately 4% from fisc
year 2011, excluding the fiscal year 2011 noncasitgill impairment chargé;

returned $315 million in dividends to stockholdamsl, in May 2012, announced an increase in thediagtend of nearly 7%; and
successfully attracted and retained key talentitiespallenges resulting from an unsolicited acitjois proposal from an activist investor.

How Pay Was Tied to the Comp’s Performance in Fiscal Year 201@ur fiscal year 2012 results provided us with apasfunity to furthe
establish that our pay for performance philosopbyks as intended, with pay being impacted in thiewng ways:

1 This comparison to fiscal year 2011 is a ®AAP measure. For a reconciliation to the mostafiyecomparable U.S. GAAP measure,
“Diluted net earnings per share from continuing ragiens” on page 5 of Clorox’s “ManagementDiscussion and Analysis of Finan
Condition and Results of Operatic” filed as Exhibit 99.1 to its Annual Report on Fat6-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2C
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e Fiscal Year 2012 Annual Incentive PaydDansistent with our pay-for-performance philosophy, payout undesur annual incentive awe
was above target due to our strong fiscal year 2@%Qlts. This annual payout determined through a combination of factors: theua
results of Company financial performance, strategatricsand individual performance evaluations. The Comppostion of the annu
incentive award is determined based on the achiemeof net customer sales (“NCS”) and economicip(tEP”) targets, as defined belc
which are weighted equally. For fiscal year 2018,aghieved 144% of our NCS target and 152% of @utaEget, resulting ithe Compan
performance portion of the annual incentive awagithdp 148%, a substantial increase from last ye&aoimpany performance portion of 7(
The payout calculation for each named executivie@ffvas then determinday factoring the Company performance portion, rtssof the
strategic metrics and individual performance, whishbased primarily on the performance of the operation functions under tl
individual's responsibility. As a result, the firalvards ranged from 155% to 170% of target

e Fiscal Year 2012 Long-Term Incentive Payoutlso consistent with our pay-for-performance pbdphy, the payout under our thrgea
performance share award that was granted in Septe®9 and vested in August 2012 vbetow target. The payout was based ot
growth during the three-year performance period ith@duded fiscalyears 2010 through 2012 and had a potential ramge ©% to 150% ¢
target. During fiscal years 2010 and 2042 achieved EP growth that exceeded our targe®sselhesults, however, could not offset
below-target result achieved during fiscal year2®ccordingly the londerm incentive payout in fiscal year 2012 was 66%agyet. Th
performance shares are in addition to stock optignish make up the total long-term incentive awardder theexecutive compensati
program.

Recent Key Compensation Program Chanln addition to the significant program changes mduléng fiscal years 2010 and 2011, we contit
our longstanding practice of reviewing our overall execgittompensation program to ensure that it strongpparts our financial and hurr
resource objectives and also aligns with market prextices. We made the following key changessicat year 2012:

e Eliminated the tax gross-up for tax liabilitiestire event of a change in control for the CEO; and
e Increased the stock ownership retention requirerfoerihe CEO from 4x to 6x base salary.

These changes are consistent with our overall cosgi®n philosophy and practice of driving perfont& and stockholder growth, ensu
alignment with investor preferences and recognimst practices, in addition to maintaining theigbtb attract and retain key talent. It is thisre
philosophy that led us to take the following actiam prior years:

e Reduced change in control cash severance paynoeral €xecutives other than the CEO from thredi(Bgs to twa(2) times the sum of tl
executive’'s base salary and prior 3-year averagaalrbonus;

e Eliminated tax gross-ups for tax liabilities in teeent of a change in control for all executivateo than the CEQyhich was eliminated
fiscal year 2012;

e Reduced the cash severance payment for the CEOthaa (3) times to two (2) times the sum of theOGEbasesalary and 75% of tl
prior 3-year average annual bonus;

e Eliminated executive employment agreements foexdicutives other than the CEO and reduced cashasmepayments from two (2) tim
the sum of an executive’s base salary and 75%eoptior 3-year average annual bonus to two (2)gibese salary; and

e Froze the existing Supplemental Executive Retirénilan, which is a defined benefit plan, in favdrao new supplemental define
contribution plan with reduced benefits.

To further ensure alignment with our compensatibitosophy, we maintain the following key governapodicies:

e Stock ownership and retention guidelines for albof executives;

e Prohibition on short-term or speculative transaxtior derivative transactions involving the Comparsgock,including options trading
hedging; and

e Claw-back policies.
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Our Executive Compensation Program Philosophy
Our executive compensation program is designeddoraplish the following:

e Pay for Performance Executive compensation is designed to rewardopmdnce that drives the achievement of the Compgastyort-anc
long-term goals.

e Attract, Retain and Motivate Talented Executiv€sir executive compensation program is designedneopete for anthcentivize talent b
attracting, retaining and motivating high-perforgiexecutives.

e Create Alignment Between Management and Stockhdihderests. By using long-term, equity-based incentives amgintaining stoc
ownership and retention guidelines, we are betiér # align the interests of our executive offeceith our stockholders by facilitating
culture of ownership and also rewarding executiffeeers for sustained anduperior performance as measured by operatingtseani
stockholder return.

e Financial Efficiency. Our executive compensation program is designedhep ensure that payouts are appropriatipported b
performance and that payouts qualify as performdmased compensation, which is tax deductible tadCbepany, under Internal Revel
Code (“IRC”) Section 162(m) (“Section 162(m)"), agpropriate.

e Risk-Management Consideration®ur executive compensation plans are designetbtivate our executives faursue objectives that cre
long-term stockholder value and discourage behatiar could lead to unnecessaryexcessive risk or risk that is inconsistent with
short- and long-term strategic and financial olijest We do this by balancing our fixed and at-ney (both annual and lonigfir
incentives) and choosing financial metrics thatogbeve drive long-term stockholder value.

How We Make Compensation Decisions

The Management Development and Compensation Coeenjthe “Committee”js made up entirely of independent directors. Then@ittee
regularly reviews the design and implementatiomuf executive compensation program and providesrtepf its discussions and actions to
Board.

Although the Board has determined that, consistétfit our Governance Guidelines and the NYSE lisstandards, all members of the Comm
are “independent,” the Committee determined that Rbbert W. Matschullat may not qualify as an “ddesdirector” for purposes of Section 162
(m) due to his service as interim CEO from May 200! October 2006. As a result, a subcommittes established comprised of directors
Richard H. Carmona and Messrs. Tully M. Friedmaaoi@e J. Harad and Gary G. Michael (the “Subconrestijto take the actions required un
Section 162(m) in order for performanibased compensation to be fully deductible by thengany for income tax purposes. The Subcommitt
responsible for the performance, from time to timfejuties that require action by a compensationrodtee comprised solely of two or more “non-
employee directors” and/or two or more “outsideediors.” These duties include granting awards &retive officers under the Compasyannue
incentive and long-term incentive plans, and eihlvig any performance goals related to such awardsher performancbased compensation

the Company’s executive officers. All other deaisigelated to executive compensation matters ade ima the full Committee.

The Committee makes decisions on compensatiorhéonamed executive officers based on various factocluding its review of the Compamsy’
performance, individual performance, peer groupad@s further described below) and input and recenuations from the independ
compensation consultant (as further described heleactors evaluated to assess individual perfocmamclude the individuad skill set relative 1
industry peers, overall experience and time in fbsition, performance of the business or operationswvhich the individual is responsikt
criticality of the individuals role, difficulty of replacement, expected futaantributions, readiness for promotion to a higleeel, role relative t
that of other executive officers and, in the casexternally recruited named executive officeranpensation earned with a prior employer.

For the compensation package for each of the namedutive officers other than the CEO, the Commitieceives input and recommendat
from our CEO and our Senior Vice Presidenttiman Resources & Corporate Affairs. The named wiez officers do not have a role in
determination of their own compensation. The nameecutive officers other than the CEO do, howedé&cuss their individual performar
objectives with the CEO.

In evaluating and determining the compensation @gekor the CEO, the Board undertakes a thorougibweprocess, whereby each Board mer
provides candid feedback to the Senior Vice PresideHuman Resources & Corporate Affairs regardirgCEOS performance. In evaluating
CEO'’s performance, the Board utilizes a varietkef substantive factors that the Board
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has identified as being most significant to effeetCEO performance, with a focus on strategy, peagerations and values. The collective re
of the CEQO$ performance against the key factors are substygukscussed by the Board, which then providesmamendations on compensa
to the Committee. The Committee, after evaluatimg Boards recommendations and with input from the indepehdempensation consults
makes a final decision on the CEE@ompensation. The CEO does not have a role ioviiscompensation determination other than to gipste ir
a discussion with the Board regarding his perforzean

Results of 2011 Advisory Vote to Approve Executiv€ompensation

At our 2011 annual meeting of stockholders heldNavember 16, 2011, we submitted two proposals tostackholders regarding our execu
compensation practices. The first proposal wasdaisary vote on our fiscal year 2011 compensatisarded to our named executive offic
(commonly known as a “say-on-paydte). Our stockholders approved our fiscal yedrl2€ompensation awarded to our named executiveen
with approximately 78% of the votes cast in favbthe proposal. However, we believe our approvallts may have been negatively impacte
the vote of approximately 9.5% of our stock heldalmyactivist investor that had announced an urissdiproposal to acquire the Company shi
before the annual meeting. We believe that theaooécof our say-on-pay vote signals our stockholdeupport of our compensation approi
specifically our efforts to attract, retain, andtimate our named executive officers.

We were pleased with our stockholders’ supportwf @dmpensation program in 2011, and the Compamanagement and Board continue
review our executive compensation practices td&rralign our compensation practices with our paypkrformance philosophy. For example,
past year we eliminated the tax grogsfor tax liabilities in the event of a changecontrol for our CEO. We value the opinions of otackholder
and will continue to consider the outcome of futsag-onpay votes, as well as feedback received througtmeuyear, when making compensa
decisions for our named executive officers.

The second proposal was a vote on the frequendytofe stockholder advisory votes regarding comptos awarded to our named execu
officers. An annual frequency received the higimeshber of votes cast, as well as a majority ofvbies cast. Based on these results, our Bo:
Directors determined to hold our say-on-pay votesiw annual basis.

Roles and Responsibilities
The following parties are responsible for the depaient of our executive compensation program fomamed executive officers:

Management Development and Compensation Comn. The Committee (i) oversees our executive compms@arogram, (i) determines a
approves the compensation of our named executfieerd, as well as officers at or above the leedemior vice president and officers covere:
Section 16 under the Exchange Act, as amended(jigrmbnsults with the independent members of Board to establish and evaluate perform.
objectives for the CEO each year.

Independent Committee Consult— Frederic W. Cook & Co. (“FWC"). FWC is engaged by and reports to the Committeecandults directl
with its Chair to advise on executive compensatitatters. FWC generally attends and advises durimgrfiittee meetings, including execut
sessions, and, at the Commiteeeéquest, provides advice and guidance on execatimpensation topics including compensation levetsu:
peers, market trends, incentive plan designs, andsaessment of the risk and reward structure efwive compensation plans, policies
practices. Neither FWC nor any of its affiliate®yides any other services to the Company or hasotimer business or personal relationships
any member of the Committee or of our senior exeeueam.

Chief Executive Officer The CEO makes compensation recommendations tdtmemittee for all executive officers other thamkelf an
provides input from time to time on the design efnpensation plan components and other compensaiated issues as they arise.

Management. Management provides analyses regarding competjiractices and pay ranges, compensation and beptafis, policies ar
procedures related to equity awards, perquisites gameral compensation and benefits philosophyioSdmman resources, finance and |
executives attend non-executive sessions of Comenitteetings to provide perspective and expertiseast to the meeting agenda.
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Our Peer Group

The Committee uses a peer group of 16 consumeupt®dompanies (the “compensation peer grotprovide competitive market rates for
Companys executive officers, including the named executiffecers. The compensation peer group was seldayeitie Committee based on
factors described below with input from FWC. Thenpensation peer group is used to compare bothetradsl of executive compensation
compensation practices within the consumer prodadisstry.

For fiscal year 2012, the compensation peer groapaemprised of the following companies:

Alberto-Culver Company The Hershey Company

Avon Products, Inc. JM Smucker

Campbell Soup Company Kellogg Company

Church & Dwight Co., Inc. Molson Coors Brewing Company
Colgate-Palmolive Company Newell Rubbermaid Inc
Energizer Holdings Revlon, Inc.

General Mills, Inc. S.C. Johnson & Son, Inc.

H.J. Heinz Company Tupperware Brands

To determine the compensation peer group each ylearCommittee considers companies that hold Ishgempositions in branded consui
products, and that are of reasonably similar sizsetl on market cap and revenue, compete with timep&uy for executive talent and h
executive positions similar in breadth, complextyd scope of responsibility. The Committee reviamd makes aseeded adjustments to
compensation peer group annually to ensure thatltbeen companies continue to meet the relevaetieri The changes to our compensation
group for fiscal year 2012 were (i) removing bothct Corporation (due to its acquisition) and Dédnte Foods Company (which was ta
private) and (ii) as a result of the reductionhie tompensation peer group, adding four compaaiessure the statistical reliability of the ma
data: Energizer Holdings, JM Smucker, Molson C&»swving Company and Tupperware Brands.

For fiscal year 2012, management engaged Aon Hewitbbtain compensation data for the compensatieer group. FWC reviewed tl
information and performed an independent compemsainalysis of the compensation peer group datihwhas used to advise the Committe:
potential compensation actions, including the CE€@mpensation. Although each individual comporgrgxecutive compensation is review
particular emphasis is placed on targeting totalpensation within 15% of the median of our comptosgeer group.

To determine compensation for the named execufifieecs, the Committee reviewed the Aon Hewitt dA0C compensation analyses as we
other factors as described above. Based on thedgsan and other factors, target total compens&tiomdividual named executive officers n
vary above or below the median of the compensat@sT group. Actual incentive plan payouts anduim,ttotal realized compensation, may \
above or below the targeted total compensation leaged on the Comparsyperformance relative to its corporate financrad atrategic goals
well as the Company'’s stock performance.

Tally Sheets

To help ensure that our executive compensatiorgdasialigned with our overall compensation philasp of pay for performance and that t
compensation levels are appropriate, the Comméiteeially reviews compensation tally sheets for edaur named executive officers. These
sheets outline current target total compensatizeiyding the elements described below), the patentalth creation of longerm incentive awart
under various assumed stock prices and the paoteatiee of payouts under various termination sciesar
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What We Pay: Elements of Our Compensation Program

Our executive compensation program includes bdaeysannual incentives paid in the form of cashumes and lonterm incentives consisting
grants of stock-based performance shares and sfuitns. Periodically, tim&ased restricted stock units and/or stock optisasuaed for speci
circumstances, such as retention, recognition ciuitnent. The majority of our executive comperwmatis variable compensation orrak pay
Base salary is the only fixed compensation compprenoutlined in the following charts:

Compensation Mix - CEO™ Compensation Mix - Average of All Other NEOs'!

Short-term

Base Salary =
Incentive

Short-rarm o

< . Elnrjt'a e SSMA%/*'
\ W IWQ_/

Long-tarm

Ghty ¥ i
\\_ Inceative ahom Long-tecmi
I e Incenmie

|:| Fixed compensation |:| Fixed compensation

(1) Compensation mix represents the base salary, tsinget-term and target long-term incentives indis2012.

Additional elements of the executive compensatimygmam include retirement plans, péstmination compensation and perquisites as apiatte
to support our executive compensation philosoptpecBics regarding what we pay, the elements of exgcutive compensation program,
reasons we use them and certain characteristicsofh@re outlined in the table and described ithiirnarrative detail in the paragraphs below:

Element Purpose Characteristics
Base Salary Compensate named executive officers for their rolg Fixed component.
and level of responsibility, as well as individual
performance.
Annual Incentives(1) Promote the achievement of the Company’s annualPerformance-based cash bonus opportunity.

corporate financial and strategic goals, as well as
individual objectives.

Long-Term Incentiveg1) Promote the achievement of the Company’s long-teAmounts earned under performance share grant gnd
corporate financial goals and stock price apprimiaf stock option awards will vary as the ultimate vakie
based on actual financial and stock price

performance.
Retirement Plans Provide replacement income upon retirement (seryésxed component; however, Company retirement
as a long-term retention incentive). contributions will vary based on pay, years of g&rv

and employee contributions.

Post-Termination Compensation Provide contingent payments to attract and retain | Only payable if a named executive officer’s
named executive officers. Promote orderly succesgiemployment is terminated under specific

for key roles. circumstances as described in the applicable
employment agreement or severance plan.

Perquisites Provide other benefits competitive with the Financial planning, Company automobile or car
compensation peer group and encourage executivieallmwvance, paid parking, annual executive physical
attend to their health and financial affairs. and health club reimbursement.

26




(1) Payouts under the annual and ldegs incentive plans are determined based on thiexament of preestablished objectives determiry
the Committee at the beginning of the performarerod. The performance period is one year for tireual incentive plan and three ye
for the performance shares awarded under the tlenmg-incentive plan. Specific financial goals canbe changed during the performa
period, except according to principles set forththy Committee at the time the goals are estaldishat allow for adjustments in limit
circumstances, including, among other things adipis, restructuring charges or significant change generally accepted accoun
principles, and only if the adjustments exceedexiigd minimum financial impact to the Compa

Base Salan. In determining base salary levels for the CEO atfér named executive officers, the Committeegakt consideration the fact
outlined above in Our Peer Group and generallysélestablish base salaries for the CEO and atraed executive officers at the median of
compensation peer group. The Committee consider&drs such as the executiseble, level of experience and sustained perfoomas well ¢
the compensation peer group market data in deterghgach named executive officebase salary for fiscal year 2012. Changes in salsey ar
approved by the Committee in September and aretiféein October of each year. For fiscal year 20dlPbase salaries for the named exec
officers were generally aligned with the mediardafined above. The annual base salary increasesifanamed executive officers, excluding
CEO but including Mr. Daniel J. Heinrich, who retir from the organization in November 2011, rangethf1.98% to 3.00%, with an aver:
increase of 2.42%. These increases were effectoteb®r 1, 2011. The base salary for our CEO wasneotased in fiscal year 2012 as his |
salary was in line with the median CEO base salaithe Companys compensation peer group. The actual amountsaasneur named executi
officers in fiscal year 2012 are listed in the $akolumn of the Summary Compensation Table.

Annual Incentive. On an annual basis, the Committee sets perforengoals under the Company’s Executive Incentive @areation (“EIC")Plar
that are designed to promote the achievement oBtie@dapproved annual corporate financial and strategifopmance goals. The EIC P
provides annual incentive awards to the named eixecofficers based on the level of achievemertheée annual performance goals and indiv
objectives.

To meet the requirements of Section 162(m), maxinammual incentive award levels are based on Compgangings before income ta
(“Company earnings”)The EIC Plan has a maximum award limit of 1.0% ofrfpany earnings for the CEO and 0.6% of Companyiregs fol
each of the other named executive officers. The i@itime has discretion to reduce, but not to in@eaxentive payments under the EIC Plan.
Committee has historically paid annual incentiveads that are substantially lower than the maxini&i@ Plan award levels. The Commit
reduces the maximum possible award to the amounglic paid based on four factors: (1) a target rawfar each named executive officer,
performance measured against predetermined coepfimancial goals, (3) the level of achievemenstoftegic metrics, and (4) the named exec
officer’s individual performance, which is basednparily on the performance of the operations orcfions under the individua’ responsibility
The final individual EIC Plan payout is determirtadthe following formula:

Final Target
Individual Base Salary Ann%al Financial Strategic Individual
EIC Plan (As of June 30) . Performance Metrics Performance
Payout Incentive

Each of these elements is described below.

Target Annual Incentive Each year, the Committee sets an annual incetdiget level for each named executive officer aeentage of his
her base salary. The annual incentive target iswgbically set at the median of bonus targetthefmost comparable positions in our compens
peer group. The table below outlines the targetsi®fiscal year 2012 annual incentive awards.
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Target Annual
Incentive
Named Executive Officer (% of Base Salary)

Donald R. Knauss, Chairman and CEO 140%
Lawrence S. Peiros, Executive Vice President aridf@perating Officer 90%
Frank A. Tataseo, Executive Vice President — Sgsa& Growth, Partnerships and Professional ProdDétssion 75%
Stephen M. Robb, Senior Vice President - Chief irdre Officer 70%
Laura Stein, Senior Vice President — General Cdunse 70%
Daniel J. Heinrich, former Executive Vice Presider@hief Financial Officer (retired November 16,120 75%

Financial PerformanceAt the beginning of each fiscal year, the Comeeitsets financial goals for the EIC Plan basechertdrgets approved
the Board. At the end of the year, the Committeteres the results of the Compasyperformance against the financial goals seteab#tginning ¢
the year. When appropriate, the Committee takesaotount other factors, such as stockholder retucmderlying business performance during
year.

For fiscal year 2012, the Committee establishedrfaial goals focused on increasing NCS and EPdardo drive sustainable growth in shaitc
long-term stockholder returns. These metrics arghted equally as the Committee believes this rffixciively balances focus on both ttipe anc
bottomiine performance. In selecting the metrics andrggthe performance goals in the EIC Plan, the Cataencarefully considered whether
goals appropriately align with the goals in thega@erm incentive program such that the overall corspgan design does not unintention
encourage participants to take unnecessary or gixeessk or actions that are inconsistent with @@mpany’s short- and lortgrm strategic ar
financial objectives.

For fiscal year 2012, the financial goals for tHE€ Plan, the potential percentage of target awargbpts for achieving those goals and the a
results as determined by the Committee were asvisl|

Annual Incentive
Financial Goals (in millions)

0% 100% 200%
Goal (minimum) (target) (maximum) Actual
NCS (weighted 50%) (1) 95,193 | 95,353 | 95,514 | 95,424
EP (weighted 50%) (2) §$ 353 | ¢ 393 §433 | ¢ 414

(1) NCs is defined by the Company as net sales astezbior its consolidated financial stateme

(2) EP is defined by the Company as earnings from goimtg operations before income taxes, wash restructuring and asset impairment
and interest expense, tax affected, and less datagiarge. The capital charge represents averagigat employed by the Compa
multiplied by the estimated weighted-average costapital. Estimated weightealverage cost of capital is the blended averagheotost ¢
the Company’s debt and estimated cost of equitytalaf-or the fiscal years presented, the estimateightedaverage cost of capital us
was 9 percent. Average capital employed represeiigopoint average of adjusted capital employed for dheent fiscal year and to
capital employed for the prior fiscal year, basad/earend balances. Adjusted capital employed represetatiscapital employed adjustec
add back the current fiscal year's non-cash restring and asset impairment costs. Total capitgbleyed represents total assets less non
interest-bearing liabilities. Additional informatids provided in Exhibit 99.3 to the Company’s Aah®eport on Form 18- for fiscal yea
2012.

Strategic Metrics At the beginning of each fiscal year, the Comesitsets strategic metrics for the EIC Plan basetherCompanys overal
strategy, which is to be a higlerformance organization of enthusiastic owners) with superior capabilities in Desire, Decide ddelight;
accelerate growth both in and beyond the core; raetehtlessly drive out waste. For fiscal year 20ttare were eleven metrics and four
associated targets set forth in our balanced saaidhat supported this overall strategy in thiofoing key areas:

Employee engagement and diversity;

Consumer product preference and increase in dsiiare, both domestically and internationally;
Growth of NCS over the long term and strategic pobghipeline;

Progress on reshaping the portfolio;
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e Cost savings, margin improvements and infrastredtwestments; and
e Reduction of the Company’s environmental footprint.

After a review of the Company’performance in fiscal year 2012 relative to itategic metrics, the Committee determined thabatltwo of th
fourteen targets were successfully achieved. Higltsi of the results of these metrics and targetasfollows:

e For the fourth year in a row, we exceeded our eagnt target and significantly exceeded this ydagischmark. Wevere also success
in meeting all of our diversity targets.

We grew dollar share in the United States anderitkernational segment.

We significantly exceeded our goal to hit our griowargets, tying our all-time record on growth frpnoduct innovation.

We exceeded our targets on reshaping the portfolio.

We met or exceeded all of our cost savings and imséaggets.

We successfully met all operational footprint netragain this year.

Based on these results, the Committee determirsdtta level of achievement for the strategic mstwas 100%. The Committseassessment
the strategic metrics is subjective and is useal@mslltiplier in conjunction with Company financehd individual performance.

Individual Performance Consistent with our pay-fggerformance philosophy, payouts, initially deteredrby financial results and the performe
against strategic metrics, may then be adjustdteriip or down based upon individual performancase on this review, the Commit
individually adjusted the ultimate payout for thenmed executive officers to reflect fiscal year 20ddividual contributions. The payouts v
primarily due to the Committeg’assessment of the performance of divisions, tipesaor functions under the responsibility of treaned executi
officer. The high end of the range, 163%, was aedt the Executive Vice President and Chief Opggadfficer for outstanding business resi
The Executive Vice PresidentStrategy & Growth, Partnerships and Professionatiiets Division had strong business results in Isalbs an
profit during the fiscal year in a challenging eoomc environment and, therefore, was awarded 15684rget. The Senior Vice PresidenChiel
Financial Officer and the Senior Vice Presidei@eneral Counsel each provided outstanding leageosha variety of initiatives that supported
Company strategy and were also awarded 155% oéttakly. Knauss'annual incentive payout was 170% due to his outstgnleadership ar
business results achieved and is described in dhgp€nsation for Mr. Knauss — Chairman and CEO @edi this proxy statement.

The actual amount of annual incentive compensataimed by our named executive officers in fiscalry2012 is disclosed in the N&guity
Incentive Plan Compensation column of the Summam@nsation Table.

Long-Term Incentives We provide annual lontgrm incentive compensation in the form of perfonoe shares and stock options to our ne
executive officers because we believe these forfrmpensation align our executivesterests with the interests of our stockholderg &5«
believe these incentive awards support the achieseof our long-term corporate financial goals.

The Committee, with the assistance of its indepehdempensation consultant, annually reviews thetscof, and potential stockholder dilut
attributable to, our lon¢germ incentive program versus that of our compémsateer group to ensure that the overall progfmancially efficien
and in line with that of our peers. In determinitig total value of the lontgrm incentive opportunity for each named executfficer, the
Committee reviews the compensation peer groupptatsented by both management and its independemiartsation consultant on a position-by-
position basis and considers recommendations b€ E@ for the other named executive officers.

The Committee’s goal is to establish lotegm incentive award targets that are competitiith the median of our compensation peer group. &
longterm incentive award target levels for individualhmed executive officers may vary above or belowntieglian based on a variety of fact
such as the named executive offisegxperience, criticality of his or her role, indival sustained performance and expected futur&ibations
Like the annual incentive awards, actual payoutdeurlongterm incentive awards will vary from target basen whether the Compa
underperforms or outperforms its predeterminedetaggals. Individual performance is not considdrethe actual payout of longrm incentive:
The value of actual payouts will also vary basedcbanges in the market price of our Common Stook.fiscal year 2012, lonterm incentivi
awards granted to the named executive officers generally at the median of our compensation pesrg
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Consistent with prior years, the Committee deteeuiithat the named executive officers would recé&®# of the value of their total fiscal y:
2012 annual longerm incentive awards in performance shares andif0$ck options. The Committee believes this ofiequity awards suppo
several important objectives, including compensgatiamed executive officers for achievement of lterga goals tied to the business strat
rewarding named executive officers for sustainedeases in the Common Stock price, enhancing fetefy mitigating the impact of o
Common Stock price fluctuations and ensuring theralV cost of the program is aligned with compeiosatealized by named executive offic
and performance delivered to stockholders. In aiditthese londerm incentive grants were intended to be competitvith those of ot
compensation peer group. The Committee does natidemthe amount of outstanding performance shatesk options, and restricted st
currently held by a named executive officer wherkimg annual awards of performance shares and stpt&ns because such amounts reprt
compensation attributable to prior years.

The following provides details on the types of ldrgn incentives awarded to our named executivieert:

Performance SharesPerformance shares are grants of restricted stoitk that vest after a thrg@ar performance period only if the Comp
meets predetermined financial performance goalsb@lieve that performance shares align the interesbur named executive officers with
interests of our stockholders because the numbshares earned and the shares’ potential valuleatinetied to the achievement of the Company’
longterm financial goals. In selecting the performargmals for the performance shares, the Committeesiders whether the goals
appropriately aligned with those in the EIC Plantisat the overall compensation design does nottemiionally encourage participants to t
unnecessary or excessive risk or actions thahamnsistent with the Company’s short- and long-tstrategic and financial objectives.

The performance share payout is subject to the @agip achievement of a threshold cumulative operatirgfitptarget at the end of t
performance period. If the threshold cumulativerapeg profit is not attained, the entire award appnity is forfeited. If the threshold operat
profit target is attained, the actual payout is eacpntage of the target award opportunity, whictbased on a cumulative economic pi
(“cumulative EP”)target. The percentage range for payouts is from i@%he event the minimum required financial goate not met, to
maximum of 150% of the target number of shared) wipayout of 50% of the target number of shareswthe minimum cumulative EP target
the threshold cumulative operating profit target attained.

For grants made in fiscal years 2009 through 2€i2 Committee established an objective measuremfitative operating profit at the beginn
of the performance period to determine the perfoiceaevel that would allow for the maximum possibleard payout of 150% of the tar
number of shares granted. The Committee also dietedhspecific goals for the performance period Basecumulative EP.

For the fiscal year 2012 grant, the Committee tseffinancial targets for the performance perioanfrituly 2011 through June 2014. The cumul;
operating profit threshold target was set at $2,8dllion. The cumulative EP target, which is a dfied percentage of growth, was set so tha
target payout of 100% would require EP growth gfragimately 3% per year during the performancequkrirhe Committee believes this me
directly supports the Company’s corporate stratagy long-term financial goals and correlates tolsfwice performance.

In August 2011, the Committee certified the resoltghe fiscal year 2009 grant. The financial tasgir this grant were based on cumule
operating profit of $2,346 million and a cumulatiZ® goal over the thregear performance period of $1,168 million. The clative operatin
profit result of $2,808 million exceeded the thmdshtarget, and the Committee approved a payoe leflv140% based on cumulative EP resul
$1,209 million. Information regarding the vestingliese performance shares is shown in the Opti@ndises and Stock Vested table.

In August 2012, the Committee certified the resoltghe fiscal year 2010 grant. The financial tasgir this grant were based on cumule
operating profit of $2,935 million and a cumulatiZ® goal over the thregear performance period of $1,282 million. The clative operatin
profit result of $2,942 million exceeded the th@shtarget and the Committee approved a payout l&#v86% based on cumulative EP result
$1,235 million. Because this grant vested priortite date of the proxy statement filing, specififoimation regarding the vesting of th
performance shares can be found in the Outstaritingy Awards table and will also be included irxngear’s proxy statement.
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Stock Options We believe stock options align the interests ofrtamed executive officers with those of stockhadercause the stock options ¢
have value if the price of the Company’s stock éases after the stock options are granted. Stadnspvest in 25% increments over a fgaa
period (beginning one year from the date of grant) expire ten years from the date of grant. loafiyear 2012, the Committee awarded s
options to our named executive officers as padwfannual longerm incentive plan. The exercise price for theaseksoptions was equal to
closing price of our stock on the date of grarfiodmation on all stock option grants is shown ia @Grants of Plan-Based Awards table.

Retirement Plan. The named executive officers participate in #i@a tax-qualified retirement benefit programs adé to all other United States-
based salaried and non-union hourly employees Cidmpanys retirement plans are designed to provide replaoémcome upon retirement anc
be competitive with programs offered by our pe®@/s. balance the effectiveness of these plans ampeamsation and retention tool with the cot
providing them. The Company had traditionally pd®ed these retirement benefits under The Clorox GompPension Plan (the “Pension Plan”
and The Clorox Company 401(k) Plan (the “401(k)nPlawhich historically included a profit sharingqwision known as “Value Sharing.”
Effective July 1, 2011, the defined benefit castahee Pension Plan was frozen and the 401(k) P&nevVSharing provision was eliminated.
Company now provides its qualified retirement béadhrough an annual fixed Company contributiod arCompany match into the 401(k) Plan.

In addition, because the IRC limits the amounteidfits that can be contributed to and paid fra@xaqualified retirement plan, the Company :
provides our executive officers, including our nahexecutive officers, with additional retiremennbéts intended to restore amounts that w
otherwise be payable under the Company’saiaatified retirement plans if the IRC did not hdweits on includable compensation and maxin
benefits. We call these plans “restoration plabstause they restore executive benefits to the smreentage level provided to our sala
employees who are not limited by IRC restrictidBsnefits under the restoration plans, which hagehially included the cash balance restor:
and the Value Sharing restoration benefits, weritaiaed under our Nonqualified Deferred Compesaklan (the “NQDC™and are unfunde
unsecured obligations of the Company through fiseslr 2012. In fiscal year 2013, amounts equivatenparticipant deferrals and Comp.
contributions made beginning January 1, 2012 veilsbt aside in a Rabbi Trust.

The Company also offers the Supplemental ExecU®ggrement Plan (the “SERPtp our executive officers, including our named astse
officers. The SERP was frozen with an effectiveedat June 30, 2011, as discussed in further detddw. In the case of Mr. Knauss onl)
replacement SERP was put in place when Mr. Knaesarhe the CEO to compensate for his loss of retintrhenefits at his prior emplo
(“replacement SERP”).

A brief description of each of our retirement pramis and a summary of the changes we adopted &l jisar 2012 are set forth below. Each ol
named executive officers participates in theseamient programs except our CEO who does not gaatieiin the Executive Retirement Plan.

The Clorox Company Pension Pla@ur Pension Plan, a cash balance Pension Pktoribally provided eligible employees a compettlevel o
retirement benefits based on each emplayba’se salary and annual incentives. Effective JuR011, we froze the Pension Plan and, instea
making Company contributions to our 401(k) Plare(3&e Clorox Company 401(k) Plan section for deteégarding replacement contributio
This change was made to provide employees witlytbatest opportunity for longrm return on investment and income replacemergtirement
This change did not affect the benefits alreadywsmt under the Pension Plan, which remains fulhdéd. Further details on the provisions of
Pension Plan are described in the Overview of BarBBenefits section and the footnotes to the ParBamefits Table below.

The Clorox Company 401(k) PlarBeginning July 1, 2011, the Company started ngakin annual fixed contribution of 6% of eligibleypand :
matching contribution of up to 4% of eligible pay ¢ur 401(k) Plan, and we eliminated the 401(knRlgrofit sharing provision. Due to 1
transition from our prior retirement plans to thewn401(k) Plan, we provided all eligible employeed01(k) Plan contribution of 10% of tr
eligible pay for the pay periods from July 2011otilgh December 2011, regardless of whether emplay@@sibuted to the 401(k) Plan during -
time. Beginning January 1, 2012, employees wereired to contribute at least 4% of pay in orderetceive the full 4% Company match.

Nongualified Deferred Compensation P. We offer our NQDC to help our named executivaceffs as well as other senilersel employees sa
for retirement and to be competitive with generakket practice. Under the NQDC, our named execuffieers may voluntarily defer the rece
of salary and annual incentive awards in amount® g% of base salary and 100% of annual
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incentive awards. In fiscal year 2012, deferred @m® could be invested in accounts that mirroredftinds available in the 401(k) Plan, excep
the capital preservation fund, which differs framattin the 401(k) Plan. Historically, the NQDC pétad the Company to contribute amounts
exceeded the IRC compensation limits in the gaalified plans through the cash balance and V&haring restoration provisions. Howe
effective July 1, 2011, such restoration provisionsler the NQDC were aligned to the new 401(k) Rlampany contribution provision. Furtl
details about the historic restoration provisiores@ovided in the Overview of the Nonqualified Beéd Compensation Plans section below.

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plafhe SERP was closed to new participants effediwal 2007 and, effective June 30, 2011, was fn
with regard to pay and offsets, while still allogimage and service credits to continue to accruaefs under the SERP have historically t
determined based on age and years of service emiffaet by the annuity value of Company contritosi to the taxgqualified retirement plans a
by Social Security. The benefit formula under tpian is described under the Overview of PensioneBensection. We believe the SERP
historically been a strong retention tool becawstigpants were not eligible for a full benefittifey left the Company prior to reaching age 6%
at least 15 years of service. Participants attgimige 55 with at least ten years of service agghédi to receive a benefit that is actuarially reeh
from that available upon retirement at age 65. dffe July 1, 2011, the SERP, which was a defirenkfit plan, was replaced by the new Execi
Retirement Plan (“ERP”\which is a defined contribution plan and is deseditbelow. Making the change from the SERP to th® ERated
defined contribution structure that is more closaligned with general market practice and provieescutives with benefits that are more in
with what is provided by the Company’s compensagiear group.

Executive Retirement PlarThe ERP became effective on July 1, 2011 anderecutive officers (including the named executiffecers other tha
Mr. Knauss) are participants in the plan. UnderBERP, we make an annual contribution of 5% of &gildé participants base salary plus ann
incentive into the plan. Our named executive ofcetho are eligible participants under the SERP ateive annual “step-downfansitior
contributions into the ERP over a five-year per(®b in the first year to 5% in the fifth year).

Replacement Supplemental Executive Retirement FRamsuant to his employment agreement, and to cosapefor the loss of retirement bene
at his prior employer when he became our CEO, Mauss participates in a replacement SERP. Theceplent SERP provides retirement ben
that are equal to the greater of the amount catedilander the Company SERP frozen effective Jun@@D1, described above, or the benefi
which he would have been entitled if he had statdus previous employer, The Co€ala Company. Mr. Knauss is fully vested in thelaepmer
SERP, and he is the sole participant in the plan.

Further details about the provisions of the SERE,ERP, and Mr. Knausseplacement SERP are described in the OvervienensiBn Benefil
and the Overview of the Nonqualified Deferred Congagion Plans sections below.

Pos-Termination CompensationThe Company has a Severance Plan that provigesamed executive officers (other than the CEOh wist-
termination payments in the event such named eixecuofficers’ employment is terminated by the Company other floarcause. Among oth
things, these payments help mitigate economic hgydassociated with unexpected termination. Theserance benefits are designed t
competitive with our compensation peer group artdreal market practice. The Company also has ahiate an employment agreement with
CEO in May 2010, which provides for severance hignehder similar conditions. See Potential Paysméigon Termination or Change in Con
for additional information.

The Company also provides an Executive Change imtr@loSeverance Plan (the “CIC Pland) provide for the payment of severance benef
certain eligible executives of the Company, inahgdiall of the Compang’ named executive officers other than the CEO i dvent the
employment with the Company terminates involungaril connection with a change in control of the @amy. The Company also has entered
a change in control agreement with Mr. Knauss tividie change in control severance benefits. Thagenpnts help mitigate economic hard:
associated with termination after a change in cbntinereby encouraging the executives to congidézntial transactions based on an indeper
objective viewpoint and also supporting our atitatand retention objectives. Under the CIC Plath eélmange in control agreement for Mr. Kne
only, the named executive officer is eligible fdrange in control severance benefits in the evaithik or she is terminated in connection w
change in control either without cause or for goegson. See the Potential Payments upon Terminati@ihange in Control section for additic
information on the Severance Plan, the CEO’s enmpént agreement, the CIC Plan, and Mr. Knauss’ aaamgontrol agreement.

32




Perquisites. We provide our named executive officers with othenefits we believe are competitive with our cemgation peer group a
consistent with the Comparsybverall executive compensation program. Theseflierare reflected in the All Other Compensatiofumn in the
Summary Compensation Table. We believe these lerdfow our named executive officers to work meféciently and, in the case of t
financial planning program, help them optimize tldue received from our compensation and benefitgrams. These perquisites consist
Company automobile or car allowance, paid parkinthe Companys headquarters, an annual executive physical es&imbursement for hea
club membership and financial planning service Value of perquisites provided to our named exeeuwifficers is shown in a separate table
footnote to the All Other Compensation column & 8ummary Compensation Table.

Our Executive Compensation Policies

Stock Award Granting Practicehe Company awards annual lotggm incentive grants each September at a regutatheduled Committ
meeting, which typically occurs during the thirdekeof the month, or about six weeks after the Camggaas publicly reported its annual earni
The meeting date is the effective grant date feratvards, and the exercise/grant price is equillei@losing price of the Common Stock on
date.

The Committee may also make occasional grantsaakspptions and other equibased awards at other times to recognize, retaire@ui
executive officers. These grants are approved &Cibmmittee on or before the grant date, whicleternined based on the timing of the trigge
event. The exercise/grant price is the closingepatthe Common Stock on the effective date ofgitamt. The Committee must approve all ec
grants to executive officers of the Company, ingigchamed executive officers.

All long-term incentive grants are made pursuant to thestsghforth in The Clorox Company 2005 Stock InieenPlan, which was reapproved
our stockholders at the 2010 Annual Meeting.

Executive Stock Ownership GuidelinTo preserve the linkage between the interests efgive officers of the Company and our stockhadal
executive officers, including the named executiffecers, are expected to establish and maintaiigrificant level of direct stock ownership. T
can be achieved in a variety of ways, such as tainiag stock received upon the exercise of stqukoas or the vesting of stock awards ol
purchasing stock in the open market. At a minimexgcutive officers are expected to establish anihtaia direct ownership of Common St
having a value equal to a required multiple of eagbcutive officers annual base salary. The current stock ownergvigl lguidelines are
follows:

Chief Executive Officer 6x annual base salary
All Other Executive Officers 3x annual base salary
Other Senior Executives 2x annual base salary

As of the date of this proxy statement, all of tim@ned executive officers meet the required owngraviels with the exception of Mr. Robb dur
his promotion to CFO in fiscal 2012.

Retention Ratio. Executive officers, including the named executbfficers, are required to retain a certain pe@gatof shares obtained uj
either the exercise of stock options or the reledisestrictions on fulkalue equity awards, after satisfying applicableeta The CEO is expectec
retain 75% of shares acquired (after taxes) unéilrhinimum ownership level is met. After attainihig minimum ownership level, the CEO n
retain 50% of any additional shares acquired (aéees) until retirement or termination. Other ndne@ecutive officers must retain 75% of sh
acquired (after taxes) until the minimum requireehership levels are met and thereafter must réx&d of shares acquired (after taxes) for
year after receipt.

Ownership levels are based on shares of Commork 8tened by the named executive officer or held pans to the Company plans, includ
performance shares that have vested and beenatbfiorr settlement. Stock options and shares that hat vested due to time or performe
restrictions are excluded from the ownership levhlamed executive officers achieve ownership leesisr time through the ongoing requi
retention ratios associated with the exerciseaksbptions and vesting of full-value shares ophbychasing stock in the open market.

Securities Trading PolicyTo further align the interests of our executiveiaafs, including our named executive officers, vtk interests of o
stockholders, the Company’s Insider Trading Polimes not permit executive officers to engage inrtsteom or speculative transactions
derivative transactions involving the Company’scktancluding options trading or hedging. Trading
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is permitted only during announced trading periodg accordance with a previously establisheditgglan that meets SEC requirements. A
times, including during announced trading peri@dgcutive officers are required to receive preeeree from the Comparg/General Counsel pri
to entering into any transactions in Company séesriunless those sales occur in accordance witlke\dously established trading plan that m
SEC requirements.

Clawback ProvisionsOur executive compensation incentive programs delalawback provisions that allow the Company twoup proceec
received by named executive officers under certaimditions. Under our EIC Plan, in the event okatatement of financial results to corre
material error, the Committee is authorized to oedor recoup an executive officeraward, as applicable, to the extent that the Cties
determines such executive officer’s fraud or intamdl misconduct was a significant contributingtémdo the need for a restatement.

Tax Deductibility Limits on Executive CompensatiSaction 162(m) limits the tax deductibility of coemsation paid to our CEO and the ti
other most highly compensated named executiveasffiemployed at the end of the year (other tharCéi®) to $1 million per year, unless s
amounts are determined to be performanased compensation. Our policy with respect toi@e@62(m) seeks to balance the interests c
Company in maintaining flexible incentive plans iagathe possible loss of a tax deduction whenliexaompensation for any of the execu
officers subject to Section 162(m) exceeds $1 omillber year. The EIC Plan and lotegm incentive plan are designed to meet the rements ¢
Section 162(m) for performance-based compensation.

Compensation for Mr. Knauss — Chairman and CEO

The compensation of the Chairman and CEO, Mr. Ksaigsconsistent with the executive compensatidlogbphy and program described ab
for the other named executive officers. Mr. Knauagjet total compensation is designed to be comeetiith the compensation of other CEO
the compensation peer group, and his annual ineeatid long-term incentive awards are linked to Gany performance.

In September 2011, the Committee, with input frésnindependent compensation consultant, reviewleeleghents of Mr. Knausgompensatic
including base salary, and annual incentive and-term incentive award opportunities relative to thfasthe compensation peer group. In addi
the Board reviewed Mr. Knauss’ performance fordigear 2011 as described in How We Make Compes&tecisions above.

Based on the review of Mr. Knausadividual performance, overall Company performaaoé his compensation versus that of the compem
peer group, the Committee did not increase Mr. Kkpabase salary. However, the Committee approvediauss'annual incentive target at 14

of base salary for fiscal year 2012, which is aréase of ten percentage points from the prior.\&ath decisions were made in order to align
Knauss’ target total compensation with the margktce more emphasis on variable compensation vskapay, and further support our pay-for-
performance philosophy. The Committee granted Mradés a longerm incentive award of 282,270 stock options ad@@0 performance sha
with a total economic value at grant date of appnaxely $5,250,300. Each individual element of Mnauss’compensation was in line with
median of CEO compensation within the compensagt@er group.

For fiscal year 2012, the Committee reviewed Mralss’performance and determined that Mr. Knauss wouddive an annual incentive payou
170% of target, which reflects the impaétboth the current year financial performance abtarget, and an assessment of his overall perfoe
against both strategic and individual goals. In imgkthis determination, the Committee and the Boaatbgnized Mr. Knaussbutstandin
leadership and exceptional contributions to thetanding growth and performance of the Companyitéetite challenging economic environrmr
and activist investor pressures in the first hathe fiscal year.

Information about Mr. Knauss’ base salary and ahmeentive and londgerm incentive is described in more detail in tlotes to the Summa
Compensation Table.
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THE MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENT AND COMPENSATION COMMITT EE REPORT

As detailed in its charter, the Management Develapmand Compensation Committee of the Board overdke Companyg executiv
compensation program and policies. As part of thigtion, the Committee discussed and reviewed widmagement the CD&A. Based on
review and discussion, we have recommended to dlaedBthat the CD&A be included in the proxy stataine

THE MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENT AND COMPENSATION COMMITEE

George J. Harad, Chair
Richard H. Carmona
Tully M. Friedman

Robert W. Matschullat

Gary G. Michael
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The following table sets forth the compensatiomedr paid or awarded to our named executive offifer the fiscal years ended June 30, 2

2011 and 2010.

Change in
Pension Value
Non-Equity Nonqualified
Incentive Deferred
Stock Option Plan Compensation All Other
Name and Principal Salary Bonus Awards Awards Compensation Earnings Compensation Total
Position Year ($) (1) ($) ($) 2)Q) (%) (2) ($) 4) ($) (5 (%) (6) (%)

Donald R. Knauss 2012 $1,154,423 — | $2,625,408 $2,625,111 $2,740,22( $1,978,367] $334,860 | $11,458,389
Chairman and Chief 2011| 1,135,384 — 2,625,295 2,625,018 732,550 1,812,176 246,354 9,176,778

Executive Officer 2010| 1,075,000 — 2,500,108 2,500,005 1,967,250 1,623,151 201,851 9,867,365
Lawrence S. Peiros 2012 713,942 — 800,081 799,9V1 1,047,620 2,132,983261,457 5,756,05¢
Executive Vice President 2011 672,908 + 799,/54 @O0 389,150 208,366 125,74p 2,995,531

and Chief Operating Officer 2010 638,150 + 78,028 780,429 802,640 1,220,139 104,741 4,324,72
Frank A. Tataseo 2012 514,442 — 449,790 450,036 600,230 1,635,484 193,888 3,843,870
Executive Vice President — 2011 504,404 — 450,070| 449,993 265,130 138,384/ 100,001 1,907,982

Strategy & Growth, 2010 492,500 — 437,390 439,028 475,570 1,005,312 87,813 2,937,613

Partnerships and Profession

Products Division
Laura Stein 2012 532,253 — 380,277 380,080 580,340 1,858|718 3,02Q 3,934,638
Senior Vice President — 2011 519,836 + 380,p66 CBBY, 255,050 214,64y 100,31 1,850,138

General Counsel
Stephen M. Robb 2012 396,361 — 187,413 437,511 401,100 849,638 116,665 2,388,688
Senior Vice President —

Chief Financial Officer
Daniel J. Heinrich
(retired November 16, 2011) 2012 221,03¢ — 500,221 500,040 261,170  2,454|673 8,788 4,115,928
Executive Vice President — 2011 567,137 — 499,030 99,983 332,49 331,848 109,60p 2,340,p73

Chief Financial Officer 201p 529,85 —+ 4a145( 463,414 560,96 705,491 90,915 2,812[613

@

higher due to the extra day in the pay cycle asalt of the leap yea

)

Reflects actual salary earned for fiscal years 22001 and 2012. Mr. Knausahnual base salary is $1,150,000; actual earniregs slight

The amounts reflected in these columns are theesatletermined under Financial Accounting Stand&woard Accounting Standar

Cadification Topic 718Compensation—Stock Compensatidor the awards granted in the fiscal years erliee 30, 2010, 2011 and 2C
in accordance with the applicable accounting stahdBhe assumptions made in valuing stock awardsagtion awards reported in th
columns are discussed in NoteSymmary of Significant Accounting Policigsder subsectiofShare-Based Compensatigri and in Not
15, Share-Based Compensation Plarte the Companyg consolidated financial statements for the thregry in the period ended June
2012, included in the Company’s Annual Report omi@0K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The dwaanted to Mr. Heinrich fi
2012 was forfeited due to his retirement. Additidnéormation regarding the stock awards and optaards granted to our named exect
officers during fiscal year 2012 is set forth ie tBrants of Ple-Based Awards tabl
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®)

4

®)

The grant date fair value of the performance sharards reflected in this column is the target paymsed on the probable outcome of
performancebased conditions, determined as of the grant ddte.maximum potential payout of the stock awardsildide 150% of tt
target shares awarded on the grant date. The meaximalue of the performance share award for 2012rdehed as of the date of gr
would be as follows for each respective named akecofficer: Mr. Knauss — $3,938,112; Mr. Peiro$1%200,122; Mr. Tataseo 64,685
Ms. Stein — $570,416; Mr. Robb — $281,120; and W&inrich — ¥50,332. The award granted to Mr. Heinrich for 205 forfeited due
his retirement. See the Grants of PBased Awards table for more information about tefggmance shares granted under the 2005
Incentive Plan

Reflects annual incentive awards earned for figears 2010, 2011 and 2012 and paid out in Septe2@i), 2011 and 2012, respectiv
under the EIC Plan. Information about the EIC R&aset forth in the Compensation Discussion andlysmaunder Annual Incentives. Per
terms of the EIC Plan, Mr. Heinrich was considenetttemen-eligible and thus received a jrata award for fiscal year 201

The amounts reflect the aggregate increase in rgept value of accumulated benefits during figesrs 2010, 2011 and 2012 under
SERP, including Mr. Knausseplacement SERP, The Clorox Company Pension Rldrthe cash balance restoration benefit of the N
(refer to the Pension Benefits Table for furthdoimation). Each plan amount in fiscal year 2018esforth in the following table

Donald R. Lawrence S. Frank A. Laura Stephen M. Daniel J.
Knauss Peiros Tataseo Stein Robb Heinrich
SERP (includes, for Mr. Knauss,
the replacement SERP) $1,941,88!| $2,120,80:| $1,601,52"| $1,841,52.| $838,92: | $2,443,39I
The Clorox Company Pension Plan 1,21( 8,06¢ 5,66¢ 4,29¢ 4,917 2,40t
Cash Balance Restoration Benefit 35,27: 4,112 28,29: 12,90( 5,79¢ 8,87¢
Total $1,978,36' $2,132,98:| $1,635,48. | $1,858,71!| $849,63¢| $2,454,67.

(6)

The amounts shown in the column represent (i) adl@npany contributions under the Company’s 401kan, (i) non-qualifiec
contributions under the NQDC and Executive Retineirfélans, other than the cash balance restoratmefth, which is reflected in tl
change in pension value column (refer to the Nolifigch Deferred Compensation section for furtheformation and (iii) perquisite
available to named executive officers of the Comgp&mounts are set forth in the following tab

Donald R. |Lawrence S| Frank A. Laura Stephen M.| Daniel J.

Knauss Peiros Tataseo Stein Robb Heinrich
The Clorox Company 401(k) Plan $ 31,86%|$ 31,32:($ 31,17:|$ 33,80¢($ 31,94¢|$ 16,90¢
NQDC/ERP 264,03(] 194,89¢| 126,26'| 129,13 60,51¢| 145,70!
Company Provided Perquisites 38,95¢| 35,23¢[ 36,45I| 40,08(| 24,20¢| 16,17¢
Total $334,86(]| $261,457| $193,88¢| $203,02: | $116,66! | $178,78!

The following table sets forth the perquisites wakm available to our named executive officers dedcost to the Company for provid
these perquisites during fiscal year 2012. Othequsites consists of paid parking at the Compsumgadquarters, health club reimbursel
and an annual executive physical. The amount imduchder NorBusiness Use of Company Aircraft represents theemental cost to ti
Company of Mr. Knauss’ nohusiness use of the Company aircraft for a stopdugng a business flight in fiscal year 2012. Ti&emente
cost is determined on a |-flight basis and consists of the variable costsiired as a result of the flight activit

Donald R.| Lawrence S.| Frank A. Laura |Stephen M] Daniel J.

Knauss Peiros Tataseo Stein Robb Heinrich

Executive Automobile Program $13,20(] $13,20( | $13,20(| $13,20(| $13,20(| $ 5,50(
Basic Financial Planning 14,717 15,14¢ | 17,14¢| 20,78(| 5,46« 7,67¢
Non-Business Use of Company Aircraft 3,15 — — — — —
Other Perquisites 7,88¢ 6,891 6,10z| 6,10(| 5,53¢| 2,99¢
Total $38,95¢| $35,23¢ | $36,45:| $40,08( | $24,20:| $16,17¢
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GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS

This table shows grants of plan-based awards tadheed executive officers during fiscal year 2012.

J All Other | All Other

Estimated Future Share Payoutd Stock Option

Estimated Possible Payouts Undef Under Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Awards: . Grant Date
pebel el ot L

Stock or [Underlying | of Option |and Option
Grant Threshold| Target |Maximum |Threshold| Target |Maximum Units Options Awards Awards
Name Date ($) $) ($) #) (#) (#) #) #) ($/Sh) (6]

Donald R. Knauss

Annual Incentive (1) $— $1,610,000] $7,910,00(

Performance Shares (2) 9/14/2011] 19,200 38,400 57,600 $2,625,409

Stock Options (3) 9/14/2011 282,270 $68.37 2,625,111

Lawrence S. Peiros

Annual Incentive (1) — 643,500 4,746,000

Performance Shares (2) 9/13/2¢11 5,870 11,740 17,610 800,081

Stock Options (3) 9/13/2011 86,390 68.15 799,971

Frank A. Tataseo

Annual Incentive (1) — 386,250| 4,746,000

Performance Shares (2) 9/13/2011] 3,300 6,600 9.900 449,790

Stock Options (3) 9/13/2011 48,600 68.15 450,034

Laura Stein

Annual Incentive (1) — 373,450 4,746,000

Performance Shares (2) 9/13/2¢11 2,790 5,580 8,370 380,277

Stock Options (3) 9/13/2011 41,040 68.15 380,09

Stephen M. Robb

Annual Incentive (1) — 258,110| 4,746,000

Performance Shares (2) 9/13/2011] 1,375 2,750 4,125 187,413

Stock Options (3) 9/13/2011 20,250 68.15 187,515

Stock Options (3) 11/17/2011 32,467 64.96 249,994

Daniel J. Heinrich (4)

(retired November 16, 2011)

Annual Incentive (1) — 165,777 4,746,000

Performance Shares (2) 9/13/2¢11 3,670 7,340 11,010 500,221

Stock Options (3) 9/13/2011 54,000 68.15 500,04

(1) Represents estimated possible payouts for anncahiive awards for fiscal year 2012 under the El@hFor each of our named execu
officers. The EIC Plan is an annual cash incentipportunity and therefore awards are earned iny#s of grant. The target amotL
represent the potential payout if both Company amttividual performance are at target levels. Theximam amount represents
stockholderapproved maximum payout in the EIC Plan of 1.0%€ofmpany earnings for the CEO and .6% of Companyimegs for all othe
named executive officers. The EIC Plan is desigimecheet the requirements of IRC Section 162(m), gredmaximum column reflec
maximum awards possible under the EIC Plan. Ther@itiee historically has paid annual incentive awaittht are substantially lower tt
the maximum EIC Plan payouts. See the Summary Cosapien Table for the actual payout amounts irefiyear 2012 under the EIC PI
See Compensation Discussion and Anal- Annual Incentives for additional information abdlie EIC Plan

(2) Represents possible future payouts of Common Stoeclerlying performance shares awarded in fiscal 842 to each of our narr
executive officers as part of their participatiortiie 2005 Stock Incentive Plan. These awardswedt upon the achievement of performs
measures based on cumulative operating profit antutative economic profit growth over a thrgear period, with the threshold, target
maximum awards equal to 50%, 100% and 150%, respbgctof the number of performance shares grarifetie minimum financial goa
are not met at the end of the thgesar period, no awards will be paid out under tB@52Stock Incentive Plan. See Compensation Disan
and Analysis Long-Term Incentives for additional informatic
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(3) Represents stock options awarded to each of ouedi@xecutive officers under the 2005 Stock Incenfilan. All stock options vest in eq
installments on the first, second, third and fowatimiversaries of the grant date. Mr. Robb was d&dia one-time oftycle stock optio
grant when he was promoted to Senior Vice Pres- Chief Financial Officer effective November 17, 20

(4)  The option and equity awards granted to Mr. Helnfar fiscal year 2012 were forfeited due to higreenent.

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END

The following equity awards granted to our nameelceive officers were outstanding as of the enfisofl year 2012.

Option Awards

Stock Awards

) Equity
Equity Incentive
Equity Incentive Plan Awards:
Incentive Plan Awards: Market or
Plan Awards: Market Number of Payout Value
Number of Number of Number of Number | Value of Unearned of Unearned
Securities Securities Securities of Shares | Shares or| Shares, Units | Shares, Units
Underlying Underlying Underlying or Units of | Units of or Other or Other
Unexercised Unexercised Unexercised| Option Stock That| Stock That| Rights That Rights That
Options - Options - Unearned | Exercise | Option Have Not | Have Not Have Not Have Not
Exercisable Unexercisable Options Price |Expiration | Vested Vested Vested Vested
Name (#) (#) (#) ($) Date (#) (%) (#) (%) (1)
Donald R. Knauss
Stock Options (2) 275,00 $63.21 | 10/2/201¢
185,00( 61.1¢€ 9/18/201°
170,78: 56,92¢ (3) 63.9¢ 9/16/201¢
149,16} 149,16! (4) B1.28 9/15/201¢
77,847 233,54 (5) 66.4¢ 9/14/202(
282,27((6) 68.37 9/14/202:
Performance Shares (2) 28,82:(7) $2,088,44.
39,49((8) 2,861,44!
38,40( (9) 2,782,46.
Lawrence S. Peiro
Stock Options (2) 45,00( 53.8¢ | 9/15/201-
32,20( 57.0C 9/21/201!
34,10( 61.51 9/19/201¢
20,00( 63.8¢ 1/5/201°
53,40( 61.1¢ 9/18/201°
53,93: 17,97¢(3) 63.9¢ 9/16/201¢
46,56¢ 46,56 (4) 57.2¢ 9/15/201¢
23,72t 71,17¢(5) 66.4¢ 9/14/202(
86,39( (6) 68.1¢ 9/13/202:
Performance Shares (2) 8,96¢(7) 649,89:
12,03( (8) 871,69
11,74¢(9) 850,68(
Frank A. Tataseo
Stock Options (2) 35,20( 53.8¢ | 9/15/201:
29,00( 57.0C 9/21/201!
31,70( 61.51 9/19/201¢
41,100 61.1¢€ 9/18/201°
35,95¢ 11,98t (3) 63.9¢ 9/16/201¢
26,19t 26,19t (4) B1.28 9/15/201¢
13,34¢ 40,03: (5) 66.4¢ 9/14/202(
48,60( (6) 68.1°f 9/13/202:
Performance Shares (2) 5,04 (7) 365,34:
6,77 (8) 490,55
6,60( (9) 478,23
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Option Awards

Stock Awards

) Equit_y
Equity Incentive
Equity Incentive | Plan Awards:
Incentive Plan Awards:| Market or
Plan Awards: Market Number of | Payout Value
Number of Number of Number of Number | Value of Unearned | of Unearned
Securities Securities Securities of Shares | Shares or | Shares, Units| Shares, Units
Underlying Underlying Underlying or Units of | Units of or Other or Other
Unexercise(| Unexercised | Unexercised| Option Stock That| Stock That| Rights That | Rights That
Options - Options - Unearned | Exercise| Option Have Not | Have Not Have Not Have Not
Exercisable| Unexercisable Options Price | Expiration Vested Vested Vested Vested
Name (#) (#) (#) (%) Date (#) (%) (#) (%) (1)
Laura Stein
Stock Options (2) 30,00( 58.5¢ 1/18/201!
24,20( 57.0( 9/21/201!
25,40( 61.5] 9/19/201t
32,90( 61.1¢ 9/18/201
28,76 9,58¢ (3) 63.9t 9/16/201
22,12( 22,12((4) 57.2¢ 9/15/201¢
11,27( 33,81((5) 66.4¢ 9/14/202!
41,04((6) 68.1¢ 9/13/202:
Performance Shares (2) 4,257 (7) 308,46.
5,72((8) 414,47:
5,58( (9) 404,32
Stephen M. Robl
Stock Options (2) 11,00( 53.8¢ 9/15/201«
9,70( 57.0C 9/21/201!
11,40( 61.51 9/19/2011
15,40( 61.1¢ 9/18/201
13,48¢ 4,49t (3) 63.9t 9/16/201
10,91¢ 10,91 (4) 57.2¢ 9/15/201¢
5,56( 16,68( (5) 66.4¢ 9/14/202!
20,25( (6) 68.1¢ 9/13/202:
32,46’ (10) 64.9¢ [11/17/202
Performance Shares (2) 2,09¢(7) 152,02:
2,82((8) 204,33
2,75((9) 199,26!
Daniel J. Heinrich (11)
(retired November 16, 2011)
Stock Options (2) 10,27¢ 61.1¢ 9/18/201
23,97( 63.9t 9/16/201t
18,02¢ 57.2¢ 9/15/201¢
59,31( 66.4¢ 9/14/202!
Performance Shares (2) 4,29((7) 310,85:
3,551(8) 257,30!

(1) Represents unvested “targettimber of performance shares under the 2005 Stoméntive Plan multiplied by the closing price ofr
Common Stock on June 29, 2012, except as notedvbeléootnote (7). The ultimate value will depend whether performance criteria
met and the value of our Common Stock on the aesting date

(2) Grants were made under the 2005 Stock Incentive

(3) Represents unvested portion of stock options that in four equal installments beginning one yeamfthe grant date of September

2008.

(4) Represents unvested portion of stock options that in four equal installments beginning one yeamfthe grant date of September

2009.

(5) Represents unvested portion of stock options that in four equal installments beginning one yeamfthe grant date of September

2010.
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(6) Represents unvested portion of stock options that in four equal installments beginning one yeamfthe grant date of September
2011 for Mr. Knauss and September 13, 2011 foothkr named executive office

@) Represents the actual number of performance sti@atwere paid out under our 2005 Stock Incentia®.PThe grants from the plan hay
three-year performance period (fiscal years 20PD%2). Performance is based on achievement of @atimelloperating profit growth a
cumulative economic profit growth. After completiofthe 2012 fiscal year the Committee determinéetiver the performance measi
had been achieved and based on the results, onsAl§u2012, the Committee approved the payoutiefaward at 66% of target. Th
amounts do not include dividend equivalents to d&id pn the performance shares settled. The awasdsettded on August 20, 201

(8) Represents the “targatumber of performance shares that could be earnddriwour 2005 Stock Incentive Plan. The grants ftoenplal
have a three-year performance period (fiscal y2atd —2013). Performance is based on achievement of @timelloperating profit grow
and cumulative economic profit growth. The Comneitteill determine whether the performance measues® tbeen achieved after
completion of fiscal year 201

9) Represents the “targatumber of performance shares that could be earngdriwour 2005 Stock Incentive Plan. The grants ftoenplai
have a three-year performance period (fiscal y2at2 —2014). Performance is based on achievement of @timelloperating profit grow
and cumulative economic profit growth. The Comneitteill determine whether the performance measues® been achieved after
completion of fiscal year 201

(10) Represents unvested one-time off-cycle stocloopgrant that was granted to Mr. Robb when he wampted to Senior Vice President -
Chief Financial Officer effective November 17, 20
(11) The awards granted to Mr. Heinrich for fiscal y@@i2 were forfeited due to his departure. The asvgrdnted to Mr. Heinrich for fisc

years 2010 and 2011 were -rated due to his retiremel
OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED

This table shows stock options exercised and stested for the named executive officers duringaigear 2012.

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Shares Value Realized or Number of Shares Value Realized on
Acquired on Exercise Exercise Acquired on Vesting Vesting (2)
Name (#) (%) (1) (#) (%)

Donald R. Knaust — $ — 52,73¢ (4) $3,638,39! (4)
Lawrence S. Peiro 66,00( (3) 2,019,63: 16,66( (4) 1,149,37: (4)
Frank A. Tataseo 45,00( (3) 1,130,23. 11,10: (4) 765,92° (4)
Laura Stein — — 8,87¢ (4) 612,35! (4)
Stephen M. Robl — — 4,15¢ (4) 286,86( (4)
Daniel J. Heinrich (retired November 16, 201 99,52( (3) 917,41t 11,10: (4) 765,92° (4)

(1) The dollar value realized reflects the differeneséneen the closing price of the Common Stock ondtite of exercise and the stock op

exercise price

(2) The dollar value realized reflects the market valtithe vested shares based on the closing pritkeo€ommon Stock on the vesting d

unless otherwise note

(3) Represents exercise of nonqualified stock optisastgd in previous years under the Comj|'s 2005 Stock Incentive Pla

4

Stock awards listed represent the vesting of perfoice shares at 140% of target, granted througfcipation in the 2005 Stock Incent
Plan. The grant from the plan had a three-yearopmdnce period (fiscal years 20@®11). Performance is based on achieveme
cumulative operating profit and economic profit\gth. On August 11, 2011, the Committee approvedptngout of this award at 140%
target, and the award was settled on August 161.ZMe actual realized value of the vested shaesshased upon the value of the Com
Stock on the date the shares were settled unlétsnsent of the shares was deferred, in which dasas based on the closing price of
Common Stock of $72.46 on June 29, 2(
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Overview of Pension Benefits

Historically, pension benefits have been paid ®rihmed executive officers under the following plaii) The Clorox Company Pension Plan,
the cash balance restoration provision in the NQQi,the SERP, and (iv) in the case of Mr. Knaus® replacement SERP, which was pi
place to compensate for Mr. Knau$sss of retirement benefits at his prior employdrew he became our CEO and is described in furtbil
below. Effective July 2011, the Pension Plan arel ¢hsh balance restoration provision under the NQ&@ frozen. The SERP was fro
effective June 30, 2011, as described in the Reérg Plan section of the CD&A and in the narrafpeeagraphs below. The following table is
overview of the current terms and provisions of filoezen Pension Plan, cash balance restorationigiooy and SERP, other than the replace

SERP.

Pension Plan

Cash Balance Restoration
Provision in Nonqualified
Deferred Compensation Plan

SERP

Reason for Plan

Along with our non-qualified plans,
provide eligible employees a
competitive level of retirement benefi
based on pay.

Provide eligible employees with a
competitive level of retirement benefi
fbased on pay, by restoring benefits
limited by the IRC.

Along with our non-qualified plans,
fprovide eligible employees with
retirement replacement income that i
competitive with peers and supports
long-term retention of key talent.

Eligibility

Salaried and hourly employees of th¢
Company, including the named
executive officers. The Pension Plan
was frozen effective July 1, 2011.

Named executive officers and select
group of senior employees. The
restoration provision of the Pension
Plan was eliminated effective July 1,
2011 when the Pension Plan was
frozen.

Named executive officers and a sele
group of senior executives. Plan wag
closed to new participants in April
2007 and frozen with an effective daf
of June 30, 2011, with regard to pay
and offsets, while still allowing age
and service credits.

Retirement Eligibility

If hired prior to July 1, 2011, fully
vested after three years of service.
Employees hired July 1, 2011 or late
are not eligible for the Pension Plan.

If hired prior to July 1, 2011, fully
vested after three years of service.
Employees hired July 1, 2011 or late
are not eligible for the Cash Balance
Restoration Provision.

For eligible employees in SERP prio
to its closing in April 2007, maximum
benefit is payable at age 65 with 15
years of service. Participants are
eligible for a reduced early retirement
benefit at age 55 with ten years of
service. SERP-eligible employees
terminating before reaching age 55
with ten years of service receive no

benefits from the SERP.
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Pension Plan

Cash Balance Restoration
Provision in Nonqualified
Deferred Compensation Plan

SERP

Pension Formula Quarterly credits based on an interest

factor. Plan is frozen with regard to pa
credits.

Prior to the freeze, annual credits of
ythree percent of eligible compensation
(base salary and annual incentive) tha

exceeded the IRC compensation limits.

In combination with other Company
retirement plans (cash balance plan,
Company contributions to the 401(k)
Plan, including the Value Sharing
provision, cash balance restoration of
NQDC and Value Sharing restoration

can receive maximum total benefits of]
approximately 55% of average
compensation (defined as the average
the highest consecutive three years of
base salary plus the average of the
highest three years of EIC Plan award
The maximum benefit is proportionate
reduced for service between ten and 1
years at a rate of three percent per ye

Payment Form

A participant whose benefits vested at
retirement or other termination of
employment may elect a cash
distribution or an alternate annuity forr
The normal retirement benefit is an
annuity payable upon attainment of ag|
65. A reduced retirement benefit annu
is payable at age 55 with at least ten

A participant whose benefits vested at
retirement or other termination of
employment may elect a lump sum
hdistribution or annual installments up t
ten years that will be paid out based o
epreviously determined criteria.

ty

the participant. Plan also provides a
disability and survivor’s benefit. Lump
Dsum option is not available.

X

years of vested service.

The Replacement Supplemental Executive Retirent@mtFRursuant to his employment agreement, Mr. Knaugicjmates in a replacement SE
that provides retirement benefits that are equ#héogreater of the amount calculated under thegaom SERP, described above, or the benel
which he would have been entitled if he had statdds previous employer, The CoCala Company. Mr. Knauss is fully vested in thelaepmer
SERP, and he is the sole participant in the plan.

Eligible compensation for the replacement SERPésaverage of five years of base salary prior ticereent plus the average of five years of
Plan awards received by Mr. Knauss prior to hisaetent. All items in the above overview are inéddn the Change in Pension Value colum
the Summary Compensation Table and the Pensiorfigehable.

Changes to the Retirement Plans in 2B#ective July 1, 2011, the Company froze the Ramstlan and eliminated our profit sharing planhie
401(k) Plan known as Value Sharing and, instead, @ompany began making contributions in the form(ipfa fixed 6% annual employ
contribution and (ii) an employer match of up to 4foeligible pay, each into the Compasy201(k) Plan. This change was made to prc
employees with the greatest opportunity for laegn return on investment and income replacemengtirement. Due to the transition from
prior retirement plans to the new 401(k) Plangldible employees received a 401(k) Plan contidsuequal to 10% of their eligible pay for the
periods from July 2011 through December 2011,
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regardless of whether employees contributed tel€igk) Plan during this time. Beginning Januar@]2, employees were required to contri
at least 4% of pay in order to receive the full 1@¥mpany contribution (6% fixed employer contrilbatiand 4% employer match). The Pen
Plan remains fully funded.

Our SERP was closed to new participants effectipel 2007 and, effective June 30, 2011, was froaéh respect to pay and offsets, while

allowing age and service credits to continue towecThe SERP, which is a defined benefit plan, reataced by a new Executive Retirement

(ERP), which is a defined contribution plan (please the Overview of the Nonqualified Deferred Cengation Plans section below for furt
details on the new ERP).

PENSION BENEFITS TABLE

The following table sets forth each nhamed execuiffieer’'s pension benefits under the Company’ssgamplans for fiscal year 2012.

Number of Years o Present Value of Payments During
Credited Service Accumulated Benefit Last Fiscal Year
Name Plan Name #) (1) ($) 2) %)
Donald R. Knaus: The Clorox Company Pension Plan 6 $ 32,23 $ =
Replacement SERP/SERP 6 6,732,71. —
Cash Balance Restoration 6 315,23 —
Lawrence S. Peiro The Clorox Company Pension Plan 32 214,92: —
SERP 32 5,366,27i —
Cash Balance Restoration 32 352,11¢ —
Frank A. Tataseo The Clorox Company Pension Plan 18 150,88: —
SERP 18 4,635,58! —
Cash Balance Restoration 18 276,36¢ —
Laura Stein The Clorox Company Pension Plan 15 114,38( —
SERP 15 3,455,33! —
Cash Balance Restoration 15 140,61: —
Stephen M. Robl The Clorox Company Pension Plan 23 130,95¢ —
SERP 23 1,299,82. —
Cash Balance Restoration 23 67,00: —
Daniel J. Heinrich The Clorox Company Pension Plan 11 — 79,21
(retired November 16, 2011)| SERP 11 4,117,05: 133,00:
Cash Balance Restoration 11 — 201,64:

(1) Numbers of years of credited service is roundetiémearest whole numb

(2) Present value of the accumulated benefit was ckedilusing the following assumptions: Mortality TeEalRP2000; Discount Rate: 3.8C
pay at June 30, 2011, age at June 30, Z

Overview of the Nonqualified Deferred CompensatiorPlans

Executive Retirement PlaThe ERP became effective on July 1, 2011 and reglase SERP, which was frozen effective June 3Q12Qu
executive officers (including each of our namedcei@e officers other than Mr. Knauss) are eligifde participation in the ERP. The ERP provi
that the Company will make an annual contributiorb®% of an eligible participard’ base salary plus annual incentive into the gfam.name
executive officers who were age 55 or older asubf 1, 2011, Company contributions are fully vestethe ERP. For named executive officers
had not attained age 55 as of July 1, 2011, Comjganiributions will vest over a three-year periaw awill fully vest upon the participargt’
attainment of age 62 with ten years of servicemath time they are considered retiremefigible under the ERP). An eligible participanhagec
distribution in a lump sum or up to 15 annual ilistants upon a qualifying payment event.

Our named executive officers who are eligible pgrtints under the SERP (including each of the naexedutive officers other than Mr. Knat
receive annual “step-down” transition contributi@ver a five-year period (9% in the first year &b # the fifth year).
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Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Pldn addition to historically providing the cash hada restoration benefits described in the Oveno
Pension Benefits section above, the NQDC has kdsity provided benefits that supplement the Vahiraring provision of the 401(k) Plan and .
permit the deferral of compensation. The Value Blgaprovision was a Company profikaring plan under which, depending on finai
performance measurements, the Company contribdted 32% of the participarst’eligible compensation, including annual basergaad annu:
incentive, to the participat’401(k) Plan and, if applicable, to his or her NQ&ccount. Company contributions in amounts up%oof a name
executive officer’s eligible compensation withinethRC compensation limits were tax qualified andreveredited to the participast'401(k
account. The portion of eligible compensation up/% that exceeded the IRC compensation limits wesited to the NQDC Value Shar
restoration provision of the NQDC. In addition, aayount exceeding 7% of eligible compensation cdddoaid in cash or deferred under
Value Sharing restoration provision of the NQDCpeleding upon the participastelection. Company contributions under the Valber®c
provision were determined using the Compargthievement of financial performance based on HQEEP, the same metrics used to deter
the financial payout for the annual incentive award

Effective July 1, 2011, both the cash balance dedMalue Sharing restoration provisions under tDIE were eliminated and replaced with
401(k) restoration provision. All Company retirerhenntributions are now made in the form of (ij»efl 6% employer annual contribution and
an employer match up to 4% of pay into the 401(&hPsubject to the IRC compensation limits. Cdmnitions on eligible compensation that exc
the IRC compensation limits are contributed infmaeticipant’'s NQDC account under the 401(k) restonaprovision.

Under the NQDC, participants, including each of named executive officers, may voluntarily defex teceipt of up to 50% of base salary an
to 100% of annual incentive awards. Participandeuthe NQDC may elect to receive benefits fromNi@DC either in a lump sum or up to
annual payments upon a qualifying payment eveatmRiuly 1 through December 31, 2011, participaatsthe option of selecting two investrr
crediting rates under the NQDC - the yafar Treasury Bond yield and/or an S&P 500 indexgiBning July 2011, participants were providec
option of selecting from a broader array of investincrediting rates that mirror the investment foptions available in the 401(k) Plan, excep
the capital preservation fund which differs fromattin the 401(k) Plan. The NQDC uses the same hidoghulas, the same types of compens:
to determine benefits and the same vesting reqeingsmas our tagualified retirement plans. The responsibility @ypenefits under the NQL
was an unfunded and unsecured obligation of thegaomthrough fiscal year 2012.

The following table provides information regardithg accounts of the named executive officers utideNQDC and ERP plans in fiscal year 2(

Executive Registrant Registrant
Contributions | Contributions Contributions Aggregate Earnings | Aggregate Balance
in Last FY in Last FY in Last FY-ERP |in Last FY (incl ERP) at Last FYE
Name (%) (1) (%) (2) (%) (2) (%) (3) ($) (4) (5)

Donald R. Knaus: $161,00( | $264,03! — $135,59! $3,290,08
Lawrence S. Peiro 623,75( 125,63t 69,25¢ (84,129 5,593,591
Frank A. Tataseo 269,01: 77,72 48,54 184,29 2,964,71
Laura Stein 8,00¢ 80,68: 48,44¢ 33,14¢ 1,041,19
Stephen M. Robl 4,25( 36,79( 23,72¢ 12,38: 589,32:
Daniel J. Heinrich (retired November 16, 201 — 82,86¢ 62,83¢ 822 535,96:

(1) For Messrs. Knauss, Peiros and Robb and Ms. Skeirgmount represents base salary and for Mr. ##imannual incentive award defe
during fiscal year 2012. Deferred base salary $8 abported in the Summary Compensation TabBalary. For Mr. Tataseo, the amc
represents the annual incentive award deferredhgldiscal year 2012. Deferred anniatentive awards are also reported in the Sum
Compensation Tab~ Nor-Equity Incentive Plan Compensatic

(2) Represents that portion of the Company’s final ¥aBharing restoration contribution of up to 7% lidible compensation, the Compasy’
401(k) match and contribution of up to 10% of dligicompensation that is in excess of IRC Companmsdmits pursuant to the restorat
provisions of the NQDC plan and the Compangontribution under the Executive Retirement Plarese contributions are also reporte
the Summary Compensation TableA# Other Compensation and are included under #ygtion NQDC in footnote (6) to the Summ
Compensation Tab- All Other Compensatior
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(3) From July 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011 easnarg based on an array of investment optionsntiirabr the 401(k) (except for tl
capital preservation fund which differs from thel@)) as well as the 3@ear Treasury Bond yield and the S&P 500 IndexeAllanuary !
2012 the 3-year Treasury Bond and S&P 500 Index option wereiehted. Earnings vary based on participant inmest elections

(4) Reflects aggregate balances under the restoratomispn of the NQDC plan, other than the cash tegarestoration provision, the ERP
and any deferred base salary and annual incentigeda as of the end of fiscal year 20

(5) The executive and registrant contribution total ants in the table below are also reported as cosgtiem in the Summary Compensa
Table in the years indicate

Donald R. Lawrence S. Frank A. Laura Stephen M. Daniel J.

Fiscal Year Knauss Peiros Tataseo Stein Robb Heinrich
2012 $425,03! $818,64! $395,27(| $137,13: $64,76¢ $145,70!
2011 244,66 217,59¢ 38,70¢| 248,89¢ 57,43,
2010 637,00: 699,37: 38,15 41,617

POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN CO NTROL
Payments upon Termination

Severance Plan for Named Executive Officers OtlmTMr. KnaussUnder the terms of the Severance Plan, our nameduéixe officers ai
eligible to receive benefits in the event their éogment is terminated by the Company without cafatker than in connection with a chang
control). No benefits are payable under the terfnth® Severance Plan if the Company terminatesttreed executive officer for cause or
named executive officer voluntarily resigns.

Regardless of the manner in which a named execaffieer's employment terminates, each named executiveeoffiould retain the amounts t
he or she has earned over the course of his cerhployment prior to the termination event, suctih@snamed executive officerbalances und
the NQDC, vested and accrued retirement benefispagviously vested stock options, except as adlibelow under Termination for Cause.
further information about previously earned amousé&e the tables entitted Summary CompensationeT&hltstanding Equity Awards at Fis
Year-End, Option Exercises and Stock Vested, Peramefits Table and Nonqualified Deferred Comptosa

Under the Severance Plan, each named executiveofrees to return and not retain proprietargrimtion received during his or her tern
employment and thereafter and all information rdijey the Company that he or she receives duringetra of his or her employment and ¢
agrees that he or she will not solicit for employingny employee of the Company for two years dfteior her termination.

Termination benefits under the Severance Plandonamed executive officers other than Mr. Knaussaa follows:

Involuntary Termination Without Causedf the Company terminates a hamed executive eficemployment without cause, the Severance
entitles the named executive officer to receiveesance payment after the termination in the fofra lump sum payment. The severance an
under the Severance Plan is two times the namezlitixe officer’s current base salary. Under the Severance Plamaimed executive officer
also entitled to an amount equal to 75% of hisasrattual annual EIC award for the current fiseadry pro-rated to the date of termination.

The Severance Plan provides that the named exeauffiicer is entitled to continued participationthle Companys medical and dental insural
programs for up to two years following termination the same terms as active employees. In additibthe end of this coverage, a na
executive officer will be eligible to participata the Companyg medical and/or dental plans offered to former legges who retire at age 55
older, provided they have at least ten years ofig®ron the same terms as such other former erapfyf eligible, this coverage will continue u
the named executive officer is age 65. Thereatternamed executive officer may participate inGmenpanys general retiree health plan as it |
exist in the future, if otherwise eligible. If tiiamed executive officer will be age 55 or older hAade at least ten years of service at the enana
including, the twoyear period following termination, the named exa@ubfficer will be deemed age 55 and/or with texars of service under &
pre-65 retiree health plan as well as the SERP.
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The above severance-related benefits are providigdfdche named executive officer executes a galnelease prepared by the Company.

Termination Due to RetirementUnder the Compang’policy, which is applicable to all employees, mpetirement the named executive office
entitled to his or her salary through the last dagmployment and a pnata portion of the EIC Plan award for the fiscahyin which his or h
retirement occurs. Based on the provisions of dspective plans, he or she will also be eligibleeteive SERP, ERP and other benefits unde
Companys various retirement plans. In addition to the ant®that the named executive officer has earnextorued over the course of his or
employment under the Comparyjualified and nonqualified plans, named executifficers who are at least age 55 with ten yearsenfice o
who have 20 years of service regardless of ageglagible to receive retirement-related benefitglemthe longerm incentive program. Sto
options held greater than one year will vest ith dmd remain exercisable for five years followitg thamed executive officarretirement, or un
the expiration date, whichever is sooner, and perdmce shares will be paid out on a pata basis at the end of the relevant performaeceq
based on the actual level of performance achieveidglthat period.

Termination Due to Death or DisabilityUnder the Company’s policy, which is applicabteall employees, if the named executive offiger’
employment is terminated due to his or her de&a,named executive officer's beneficiary or estatentitled to (i) the named executive officer’
salary through the end of the month in which hisi@r death occurred, (ii) a pro-rata portion of tlaened executive offices’target EIC Plan awe
for the fiscal year of his or her death and (ii@nbkfits pursuant to the Compasyife insurance plan. Stock options will vest idl fand remai
exercisable for an additional year following theneal executive offices death and all performance shares will be paicbtite end of the relev:
performance period based on the actual level dbpeance achieved during that period.

If the named executive officer begins to receivadiiégs under the Company’s lotgrm disability plan, the Company may terminate riaenes
executive officers employment at any time, in which case the namxedwive officer will receive his or her salary dhgh the date of his or t
termination and will also be entitled to a pada portion of the target EIC Plan award for tisedl year of his or her termination. Stock optiank
vest in full and remain exercisable for an add#ioyear following the named executive officedisability and all performance shares will bed
out at the end of the relevant performance perast on the actual level of performance achievedglthat period.

Termination for CauseThe Company may terminate a named executiveasfi@mployment for cause at any time without notigon the name
executive officers termination for cause, the named executive affcentitled to his or her salary through the dztais or her termination, but
not entitled to any EIC Plan award for the fiscahwyin which his or her termination for cause osc@ause under the Severance Plan means:
willful and continued neglect of significant duties willful and continued violation of a materialo@pany policy after having been warne:
writing; (ii) a material act of dishonesty, fraudisrepresentation or other act of moral turpity@dg;gross negligence in the course of employrr
(iv) the failure to obey a lawful direction of tilB®mard or a corporate officer to whom he or she rspdirectly or indirectly; and (v) an action this
inconsistent with the Comparsybest interests and values. All outstanding stption grants awarded since September 2005 areitfedtfupon
termination for cause. In addition, any retiremexited benefits a named executive officer wouldhradly receive related to performance sh
are also forfeited upon a termination for cause.

Voluntary Termination. A named executive officer may resign from hisher employment at any time. Upon the named exeeudilicer’s
voluntary resignation, the named executive offiseentitled to his or her salary through the ddteeomination, but is not entitled to any EIC F
award for the fiscal year of termination. All unted outstanding stock option and performance siyanets are forfeited upon voluntary terminat

The Company also maintains a Change in Control raaece Plan for the benefit of each of the namedwgkee officers (other than Mr. Knaus
Please see the Potential Payments upon Termir@tiGhange in Control section for further detailstiom Change in Control Severance Plan.

Mr. Knaus’ Employment Agreemerin May 2010, Mr. Knauss agreed to enter into a eewployment agreement with the Company that re
current market trends and practices and is gegaahifined with the terms of the Severance Plan. Kihauss’agreement sets forth that his ani
salary will be subject to periodic review in accamde with the Company’regular administrative practices for named exeeubfficers, a
described in the CD&A. Mr. Knausemployment agreement also states that Mr. Knausligible to participate in the replacement SERRicW is
described in the Overview of Pension Benefits sactibove, and other compensation, incentive andfivgrlans made available to the Company’
named executive officers.
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Upon completion of seven years of service in Oat@@4.3, Mr. Knauss will be deemed to be retirerradigiible under all Company welfare bene
equity and other incentive plans and programs eablé to the Company’executive officers; provided, however, that sbehefits will be offset t
any comparable retiree benefits on a benefit-byeberand coverage-bgeverage basis received from his previous emplojér. Knaus:
participates in the Company SERP and will be elggfor an early retirement benefit upon completidrseven years of service. Mr. Knauss is
eligible for an additional retirement benefit thghua replacement SERP, which is intended to duplittee rights and benefits to which he w
have been entitled under the supplemental exectgtirement plan of his previous employer. Howetlee, supplemental retirement benefit that
Knauss will be eligible to receive upon retiremetilt be limited to the greater of the amount atiitiéible to the Company SERP or the replace
SERP. For information regarding the Company SERPtlaa replacement SERP, see Overview of PensioafB&n

The terms of Mr. Knaus€mployment agreement relating to termination byGbenpany without cause, due to retirement, duesdtdor disability
and for cause are similar to the terms of the Sencer Plan for our other named executive officensichv are described above. Mr. Knauss’
termination benefits differ from the other nameédaxive officers in the following ways:

Upon termination by the Company without cause,yomMb. Knauss for good reason (each as definedsrehiployment agreement and describt
further detail below), and provided that Mr. Knaegecutes a general release, Mr. Knauss will recegverance-related benefits as follows:

e A lump sum amount equal to two times his currergebsalary plus two times 75% of the average ofahisual EICPlan awards for tt
preceding three years;

e A pro-rata portion of the EIC Plan award for thecéil year in which termination occurs based onac@ompanyresults, paid at the end
the fiscal year;

e Continuation of medical and dental benefits fortilie-year period after termination. In additionMf. Knauss hasompleted seven years
service at the time of his termination, he will émtitled to participate in the medical adental benefits offered to former employees
retire at age 55 with at least ten years of senénd

e If Mr. Knauss gives the Company at least three m&ntotice prior to terminating his employment dadrested inhis Company SEFR
benefit at the time of his termination, his terntioa will be deemed to be due to retirement forpmses of the Company’s lorgrr
incentive awards plan. If Mr. Knauss is not vestethe SERP, or does not eléotcommence benefits under the SERP, then outsig
stock awards will vest in accordance with the teafhe respective award agreements.

“Good reason” is defined in Mr. Knauss’ employmagteement as the: (i) assignment of duties inctemgisvith Mr. Knaussposition or materii
diminution of his position, excluding appointmeifittonon-executive Chairman of the Board; (ii) thentpanys failure to provide compensation i
benefits as provided in Mr. Knauss’ employment agrent; (iii) relocation of Mr. Knaussffice that increases his commute by more than B€s;
(iv) termination of his employment by the Compariljes than as expressly permitted by Mr. Knawsaployment agreement; or (v) failure of
Company to obtain a successor company’s agreemessume Mr. Knausgmployment agreement. In addition, a failure byBloard to appoit
Mr. Knauss to the Board will also constitute goedson. A failure by the stockholders to elect Mnalss to the Board will not constitute g
reason.

“Cause” is defined in Mr. Knausg€mployment agreement as: (i) the willful and comtid neglect of significant duties or willful andntimuec
violation of a material Company policy after havingen warned in writing; (ii) a material act offthmesty, fraud, misrepresentation or other &
moral turpitude; (iii) gross negligence in the miof employment; or (iv) the failure to obey afialvdirection of the Board.

In addition to the employment agreement, the Compdso entered into a revised change in contradegent with Mr. Knauss, on November
2011, which is described below in Potential Paymeipon Change in Control.
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Potential Payments upon Change in Control

Change in Control Severance Plan for Named Exeeuifficers Other Than Mr. Knauddnder the CIC Plan, executives are eligible forngeir
control severance benefits, subject to the exetutia waiver and release, in the event that heheris terminated without cause or for good re
(each as defined under the CIC Plan and furthesritbesl below) during (i) the twgear period following a change in control or (iipariod up t
one year prior to the change in control in limitumstances where the executs/érmination is directly related to or in antidipa of a chang
in control.

The severance benefits under the CIC Plan inclaglea (ump sum severance payment equal to two tiheesum of the executivebase salary a
average annual EIC Plan award for the three ya@stp termination, (b) a lump sum amount that \Wdoequal the difference between the actu
equivalent of the benefit the named executive effiwould have been entitled to receive if his ar émployment had continued until the sec
anniversary of the date of termination and the ax@li equivalent of the aggregate benefits paigayable as of the date of termination unde
qualified and nonqualified retirement plans, (chtiouation of healthcare benefits for a maximumwb years following a severancgralifying
termination, (d) continued financial planning sees for the year of termination, (e) vesting ofaltstanding equity awards granted prior tc
change in control, and (f) a prata portion of the average annual EIC Plan awardhie three years preceding termination. In adidjtihe CIC Pla
provides for an excise tax cutback such that thesextax under Sections 280G and 4999 of the IRCnot apply (unless the executive wo
receive a greater amount of severance benefits after-tax basis without a cutback, in which ctgecutback will not apply).

The CIC Plan permits the Committee to make chahgéise CIC Plan that are adverse to covered exasutvith 12 months advance notice.
change in control of the Company occurs during fi#atnonth period, then such changes would not becofieetefe. Participants under the
Plan are subject to certain restrictive covenamtiuding confidentiality and non-disparagement simns and a noselicitation provision durin
the term of his or her employment and for two yeheseafter.

“Cause”is generally defined as (i) willful and continuedllfire to substantially perform duties upon writ@gmand or (i) willfully engaging
illegal conduct or gross misconduct that is maligrend demonstrably injurious to the Company. Artemation for cause requires a vote of 75¢
the Board at a meeting after notice to the exeeutas been given and the executive has had antopjppito be heard.

“Good Reason” is generally defined as (i) an asaigmt of duties inconsistent with the executiveasffis position (including offices and report
requirements), authority, duties or responsibiti®ther than reassignments with a substantiahyilai level and scope of authority, dut
responsibilities and reporting relationship); @hy failure to substantially comply with any of theaterial provisions of compensation pl:
programs, agreements or arrangements as in eff@cédiately prior to the change in control, whichteni@l provisions will consist of base sal:
cash incentive compensation target bonus oppoytuaguity compensation opportunity in the aggregasgvings and retirement benefits in
aggregate and welfare benefits (including medibahtal, life, disability and severance benefitsthie aggregate; (iii) relocation of principal plaaf
employment that increases his or her commutingadégt by more than 50 miles; (iv) termination of @yment by the Company other thar
expressly permitted by the CIC Plan; or (v) failofea successor company to assume the CIC Plan.

Change in Control Agreement with Mr. Knau8s November 15, 2011, the Committee approved aatamge in control agreement for Mr. Kne
to better align with market practice and providerenconsistency with the CIC Plan. The new agreemegiaces the change in control agreel
with Mr. Knauss that became effective on Octobe2®)6, when Mr. Knauss began his employment asr@aai and CEO of the Company.
changes from the prior change in control agreermatiide the elimination of the tax grogp-for tax liabilities in the event of a changecontro
and the elimination of the annual renewal provisiothe prior agreement.

In the event that Mr. Knauss is terminated withcaiise or resigns for good reason (each as definkid ichange in control agreement and fu
described below) within the thregear period following a change in control, he Wil entitled to the following change in control sevee benefit
subject to the execution of a general release aiden

e Cash compensation equal to three times base sataryhree times the average annual EIC Plan avierdle preceding three years, p
100% of the average annual EIC Plan awards fopteeeding three years, pro-rated todlage of termination. This amount will be paid
lump sum after termination.
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e Payment of an amount that would equal the diffezdretween the actuarial equivalent of the benefithhauss wouldhave been eligible
receive if his employment had continued until thed anniversary of the date of termination ghd actuarial equivalent of his act
aggregate benefits paid or payable, if any, ahefdate of termination under thealified and nonqualified retirement plans. Thiscain
will also be paid in a lump sum after termination.

e Continued participation in health, welfare and nasice benefits until the third anniversary of tteedof terminationln addition, fo
purposes of determining Mr. Knauss’ eligibility fogtiree benefits under other Company plans @mgirams, he will be deemed to h
continued employment during such period and to etieed on the last day of such period.

e Financial planning services for the calendar yéaemnination.

e In addition, any outstanding stock awards grane®it. Knauss under the Company’s long-term incentiwardsprogram prior to th
change in control will automatically vest upon alifying termination following a change icontrol in accordance with the terms of
award agreements.

“Good reason” is defined in Mr. Knaussiange in control agreement as (i) a material ditiom of position or an assignment of inconsistiuties
(i) a decrease in or failure to provide compemsatand benefits, (iii) a material change in workaton, (iv) a termination of Mr. Knauss’
employment by the Company other than as expressimigied by his agreement, (v) any material failogethe Company to have a succe
corporation assume the agreement or (vi) a fabdfithe Board to nominate Mr. Knauss to the Boardrat time. Failure by the stockholders to ¢
Mr. Knauss to the Board will not constitute goodsen.

“Cause” is defined in Mr. Knausghange in control agreement as the (i) willful amehtinued failure to perform duties after receivingvritter
warning or (ii) willful engagement in illegal conduor gross misconduct that is materially and destrably injurious to the Company.

In the event that any payments made in connectiitim & change in control would be subject to theldga parachute®xcise tax, the revis
provision in Mr. Knauss’ change in control agreetraovides for best afteax result provision whereby Mr. Knauss would rgedinal paymer
based on the greater net aftax-result under the following scenarios: (i) Mmadss receives full value of all benefit paymemid pays excise ti
(and all other taxes) on the benefit paymentsipth@ Company cuts back benefit payments (cashraaee payment is reduced) to the safe h
limit to avoid triggering excise tax on the bengftyments. Mr. Knauss and the Company pay all attteme and employment statutory taxe
the same manner as regular taxable compensation.

In addition to the above benefits, under Mr. Knaakange in control agreement, if Mr. Knauss diegrdy the twoyear protection period followir
a change in control or if Mr. Knauss’ employmenteisminated due to disability during the twear protection period following a change in coh
all stock options granted to him under his employtragreement become fully vested and, in the ch#fgecstock options, will remain exercisa
for one year following the date of death or termioradue to disability or, if earlier, until the gixation of the term of the option. Furthermorepn
a change in control, should the continuing entity assume or replace the stock options awardedrtdKhauss under his employment agreen
such awards will become immediately vested uporchizage in control.

Mr. Knauss is subject to the same restrictive caménas set forth in the CIC Plan, described inidabove.
Estimated Potential Payments upon Termination or Cange in Control

The following table reflects the estimated amountampensation payable to each of the Commangmed executive officers (excluding Dani
Heinrich who was no longer an employee at the dnfiscal year 2012) upon termination of the namadaaitive officers employment und
different scenarios. The amounts exclude earnediatasuch as vested or accrued benefits, otherbibaefits vested under the Compan@ERI
or replacement SERP. If a named executive offisaligible for his or her SERP benefit as of theuased termination date, the respective S
benefit amount reported under the Retirement coligratso included in the scenarios for Involuntagrmination Without Cause and Termina
After Change in Control on the Retirement Benéiits.
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The amounts shown below are calculated using anress termination date effective as of the lastriess day of fiscal year 2012 (June 29, 2
and the closing trading price of our Common Stagion which certain of the calculations are basdd/246 on such date. Although

calculations are intended to provide reasonablenatts of the potential compensation payable, #reybased on assumptions outlined ir
footnotes below and may not represent the actuabatthe named executive officer would receiveniedigible termination event were to occur.

The table does not include compensation or benafitéided under plans or arrangements that arergdnavailable to all salaried employees v
the exception of disability and life insurance. Amts reflected for change in control assume thah emmed executive officer is involunta
terminated by the Company without cause or volugtéerminates for good reason within two yearsera# change in control. For further dei
about the post-termination amounts shown in thie thélow, see the respective discussions above.

TERMINATION TABLES

Involuntary
Termination
Without Cause Termination
(or Good Reason After Change In
Name and Benefits for CEO Only) Control Retirement Disability Death

Donald R. Knauss
Cash Severance $ 5902,321(1) | $8,762,85:(2) | $ — $ —@3) | $ — (3)
Stock Options — 5,304,32. (4) — 5,304,32. (5) 5,304,32. (5)
Restricted Stock — — — — —
Performance Shares — 6,398,80! (6) — 9,308,54. (7) 9,308,54: (7)
Retirement Benefits 6,858,45! (8) 11,389,33 (9) 6,858,45! (8) 7,107,581 (10) 3,724,68! (11)
Health and Welfare Benefits —(12) 11,69: (13) — — —
Disability/Life Insurance (14) — — — 1,486,92i 1,150,001
Financial Planning (15) 16,50( 16,50( — — —
Excise Tax Gross-Up (16) = = = = =

Total Estimated Valud $12,777,27 $31,883,50 $ 6,858,45! $23,207,37 $19,487,54
Lawrence S. Peiros
Cash Severance $ 2,073,501 (17) | $ 3,197,37:(18) | $ — 19| % —@33) | 9% — @3
Stock Options 1,752,31 (20) 2,699,37: (4) 1,752,31 (20) 1,659,211 (5) 1,659,211 (5)
Restricted Stock — — — — —
Performance Shares 1,682,10! (21) 1,972,861 (6) 1,682,10! (21) 2,861,35!(7) 2,861,35: (7)
Retirement Benefits 7,059,63 (22) 7,059,63 (23) 7,059,63 (24) 5,366,27: (10) 3,522,551 (11)
Health and Welfare Benefits 25,152 (12) 31,70¢ (25) — — —
Disability/Life Insurance (14) — — — 766,16: 715,00(
Financial Planning (15) 16,50( 16,50( — — —
Excise Tax Gross-Up (16) — — — — —

Total Estimated Valuqd $12,609,21 $14,977,46 $10,494,05 $10,653,00 $ 8,758,111
Frank A. Tataseo
Cash Severance $ 1,416,251 (17) | $ 2,131,45((18) | $ —(19) | $ —@3) | $ — (3
Stock Options 1,008,99 (20) 1,541,78: (4) 1,008,99!' (20) 949,29 (5) 949,29 (5)
Restricted Stock — — — — —
Performance Shares 946,00( (21) 1,109,461 (6) 946,00( (21) 1,609,12i (7) 1,609,12i (7)
Retirement Benefits 5,792,40: (22) 5,792,40: (23) 5,792,40: (24) 4,635,58' (10) 3,098,75! (11)
Health and Welfare Benefits 32,42¢(12) 38,51( (25) — — —
Disability/Life Insurance (14) — — — 436,30( 515,00(
Financial Planning (15) 16,50( 16,50( — — —
Excise Tax Gross-Up (16) — — — — —

Total Estimated Valud $ 9,212,57! $10,630,10 $ 7,747,40. $ 7,630,31 $ 6,172,18
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Involyntary
Termination
Without Cause Termination
(or Good Reason After Change In
Name and Benefits for CEO Only) Control Retirement Disability Death

Laura Stein
Cash Severance $1,347,08: (17) | $2,173,07 (18) | $ — (19| % —@3) |'$ — (@3
Stock Options — 797,10: (4) — 797,10: (5) 797,10: (5)
Restricted Stock — — — — —
Performance Shares — 937,07¢(6) — 1,359,431 (7) 1,359,431 (7)
Retirement Benefits — — — 3,455,331 (10) | 1,976,80! (11)
Health and Welfare Benefits 20,89 (12) 26,917 (25) — — —
Disability/Life Insurance (14) — — — 542,45t 533,50(
Financial Planning (15) 16,50( 16,50( — — —
Excise Tax Gross-Up (16) — — — — —

Total Estimated Valuq $1,384,48! $3,950,67 $ — $6,154,31 $4,666,84
Stephen M. Robb
Cash Severance $1,147,501 (17) | $1,491,221(18) | $ — (19 | $ —@3) | $ — (3)
Stock Options 304,01¢ (20) 634,79¢ (4) 304,01¢ (20) 634,79t (5) 634,79¢ (5)
Restricted Stock — —
Performance Shares 393,86: (21) 461,97((6) 393,86: (21) 670,14« (7) 670,14« (7)
Retirement Benefits — — — 1,299,82 (10) 889,001 (11)
Health and Welfare Benefits 32,42¢(12) 37,08: (25) — — —
Disability/Life Insurance (14) — — — 298,43( 425,00(
Financial Planning (15) 16,50( 16,50( — — —
Excise Tax Gross-Up (16) — — — — —

Total Estimated Valugd $1,894,30: $2,641,56' $697,87¢ $2,903,19 $2,618,94.

@

)

®)

(4)

®)

(6)

7

®

This amount represents two times Mr. Knawas'rent base salary of $1,150,000, plus two tin&¥% ®f his average annual EIC Plan aw
for the preceding three years, plus 100% of hisettiryear EIC Plan award target of $1,610,000-rated to the date of terminatic

This amount represents three times Mr. Knaasg'ent base salary, plus three times the averd#@ePtan awards for the preceding tr
years, plus the average EIC Plan awards for theegieg three years, f-rated to the date of terminatic

Named executive officers whose termination is @it of disability or death are eligible to reae® pr-rata EIC Plan award through
date of termination. However, all bonabgible employees active as of June 30, 2012 kgéle to receive an annual incentive award,
prc-rata EIC Plan award would not be applicable siheeaissumed termination date is June 30, Z

This amount represents the value of the acceleragsting of all outstanding stock options, calcedabas the difference between the clo
price of our Common Stock on June 29, 2012 of $&ard the exercise price for each opt

This amount represents the value of the aceldrvesting of outstanding stock options uponnidwmed executive offices’termination ¢
employment due to disability or death, calculatedtee difference between the closing price of oam@on Stock on June 29, 201z
$72.46 and the exercise price for each op

Performance shares will vest on a paita basis after a change in control. This amosstimes a targeted payout and is valued at theng
price of our Common Stock on June 29, 2012 of %.:

This amount represents the value of the acceleraeting of performance shares upon a death obitiigaassuming a target payout ¢
valued at the closing price of our Common Stocklone 29, 2012 of $72.46. Upon a death or disaligitsnination, the entire performai
share grant will vest. The actual payout will netdetermined until the end of the performance pe

Mr. Knauss is vested in the replacement SERP. Heotseligible for any additional retirement bengfih the event of an involunte
termination or retirement above what he has alreactyrued. These benefits are described furthehéndiscussions on Mr. Knauss’
Employment Agreement and Overview of Pension Bés
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9) This amount represents the difference betweendheaal equivalent of the benefit Mr. Knauss wobkd/e been eligible to receive if
employment had continued until the third anniversafrthe date of termination, under the qualified anonqualified retirement plans ¢
the actuarial equivalent of Mr. Knausitual aggregate benefits paid or payable, if anygf the date of termination under the qualifiad
nonqualified retirement plans. Mr. Knausshount also includes the value of the SERP behefitvould receive upon termination, as t
already vested in this bene

(10) This amount represents the present value of thePSEghefit payable to the named executive officethattime of termination due
disability. For Mr. Knauss, this amount includes firesent value accrued to date of the replace8tERP benefit under a termination du
disability.

(11) This amount represents the present valueeoSERP benefit payable to the named executiveenTideneficiary at the time of death.
Mr. Knauss, this amount represents the preseneadarued to date of the replacement SERP bergfihbe to his beneficiar

(12) This amount represents the estimated Compastyaf providing continuing medical and dental Hagador the twoyear period followin
termination. Mr. Knauss currently has not electeceteive medical and dental coverage under thep@oy’s plans, so there is no Comp
cost related to this benefit for hi

(13) This amount represents the estimated Company €psbeiding welfare benefits, including medical,nda, disability and life insurance, -
the threeyear period following a qualifying termination afte change in control. Mr. Knauss currently has eletted to receive medi
and dental coverage under the Comy's plans, so there is no Company cost related sqothition of the benefi

(14) These amounts represent benefits payable gmirso the Compang’disability and life insurance plans. The disapitienefit represents t
same benefit level offered to other salaried engdsy The death benefit represents the life inseranwerage elected by the nai
executive officer, and is also the same prograrishaffered to other salaried employe

(15) This amount represents the cost of providing fimgrmaanning for the year of terminatic

(16) This amount represents the gross-up paymenbyer the IRC Section 4999 excise tax, if any, @wa any change in controdlatec
severance payments and benefits. This provisian Isnger applicable for the named executive offic

(17)  This amount reflects two times the named etkeewfficer's current base salary. In addition, for Messrscdeilataseo, and Robb who
retirement-eligible, this amount includes 100%hdit current year target EIC Plan award pated to the date of termination. For Ms. S
this amount includes 75% of her current year EléhRiward, pr-rated to the date of terminatic

(18) This amount represents two times the namedutixe officer’s current base salary, plus two times the averdGeFtan awards for tt
preceding three years, plus the average EIC Plandsior the preceding three years,-rated to the date of terminatic

(19) Messrs. Peiros, Tataseo, and Robb are thenamhed executive officers who are retirement-eligdnd thus are eligible for a prata EIC
Plan award upon retirement. However, all boaligible employees active as of June 30, 2012 bgéke to receive an annual incent
award, so a prrata EIC Plan award would not be applicable aisfdate since the assumed termination date is3Wun2012

(20) Messrs. Peiros, Tataseo, and Robb are retiriegtigible and, thus, all unvested stock options tgglshter than one year will automatic
vest upon termination. This amount represents #hgevof the accelerated vesting of the stock opticalculated as the difference betw
the June 29, 2012 closing Common Stock price of&rand the exercise price for each opt

(21) Messrs. Peiros, Tataseo, and Robb are retireetigible and, thus, are entitled to receive @ata portion of all performance shares he
least one year at the date of termination. Thisieakpresents the prata vesting of the eligible shares from the Sep#m?2009 an
September 2010 grants, assuming a target payoutaodd at the closing price of our Common StockJane 29, 2012 of $72.46. 1
actual payout of the shares will not be determimetil the end of the performance period. Named etree officers who are not retirement-
eligible forfeit shares upon termination under thesenarios

(22) For Messrs. Peiros and Tataseo, this amount igrie=nt value of the SERP benefit each would reagdon termination as they are alre
vested in this benefi
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(23) This amount represents the difference betweendhumdal equivalent of the benefit the named exeeufficer would have been eligible
receive if his or her employment had continuedluhé second anniversary of the date of terminadiothe first day of the month followil
the named executive officer65th birthday if earlier, under the qualified armhqualified retirement plans and the actuariaivaient of thi
named executive offices’actual aggregate benefits paid or payable, if asyf the date of termination under the qualiied nonqualifie
retirement plans. Messrs. Peiros’ and Tatasaaiounts also include the value of the SERP hezeth would receive upon termination
they are already vested in this bene

(24) As described above, for Messrs. Peiros and Tatdss@mount represents the value of vested bengfier the Company SERP per
provisions of the plan and would be payable uptineraent.

(25) This amount represents the estimated Company €psbeiding welfare benefits including medical, d&ndisability and life insurance, 1
the twc-year period following a qualifying termination afte change in contro

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Only our non-employee directors receive compensdtiotheir services as directors. The Companyis@mployee director compensation prog
is comprised of cash compensation and an annuai gfaeferred stock units.

The following table sets forth information regamglicompensation for each of the Company’s non-eng@alirectors during fiscal year 2012:

Fees Earned Stock Option
or Paid in Cash Awards Awards Total
Name (%) (1) (%) (2) ($) 3) ($)
Daniel Boggan, Jr. 100,00( 120,000 — 220,000
Richard H. Carmona 90,00( 120,000 — 210,000
Tully M. Friedman 100,00( 120,000 — 220,000
George J. Harad 110,00( 120,000 — 230,000
Robert W. Matschullat 90,00( 120,000 — 210,000
Gary G. Michael 115,00 120,000 — 235,000
Edward A. Mueller 110,00( 120,000 — 230,000
Pamela Thomas-Graham 90,00( 120,000 — 210,000
Carolyn M. Ticknor 90,00( 120,000 — 210,000

(1) The amount reported in the “Fees Earned or Pa@hash”column reflects the total annual cash retainer@hdr cash compensation ear
by each director in fiscal year 2012 and include®ants deferred into cash or deferred stock umitBcat amounts issued in Common St
in lieu of cash at the direc’'s election. The annual cash retainer is paid th daector in quarterly installment

(2) The amount reported reflects the grdate fair value for financial statement reportinggoses of the annual grant of deferred stock
earned during fiscal year 2012. Awards are grantedn annual basis at the end of each calendar Refer to Note 15 to the Consolide
Financial Statements contained in our Annual RepartForm 10K for the year ended June 30, 2012, for a discussiothe releval
assumptions used in calculating the grdate fair value under applicable accounting guidads of June 30, 2012, the following direc
had the indicated aggregate number of deferredk stoits accumulated in their deferred accountsafbyears of service as a director, wt
includes deferrals of cash compensation, annuatdsmaf deferred stock units and additional deferstxtk units credited as a resul
dividend equivalents earned with respect to therdedl stock units: Mr. Boggan — 27,313 units; Darr@ona — 9,133 units; Mr. Friedman
39,064 units; Mr. Harad — 21,702 units; Mr. Matdtdtu- 63,342 units; Mr. Michael — 14,045 units;.NMtueller — 17,059 units; Ms. Thomas-
Grahamr— 12,705 units; and Ms. Tickn+~ 18,574 units

(3) No stock options were granted to directors in fisegar 2012. The award of stock options as an ehmé director compensation w
discontinued in October 2006. Prior to October 2@@&h new non-employee director received atone-grant of 8,000 options upon join
the Board, which award vested in two equal instafita over a two-year period. The Company’s pridicp®f making annual grants to non-
employee directors of stock options that vested avivoyear period was discontinued in 2004. As of June2B@2, the following directo
had vested options for the indicated aggregate eumwisshares: Mr. Boggan — 4,500 shares; Mr. Fratm 6,000 shares; Mr. Harad®;00(
shares; Mr. Matschulle 6,000 shares; Ms. Thon-Graham- 8,000 shares; and Ms. Tickr— 8,000 share:
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Fees Earned or Paid in Cash

Cash compensation consists of annual cash retameunts and any special assignment fees. The fioliptable lists the various retainers eal
for board service and service as the lead direstarcommittee chair during fiscal year 2012:

Annual director retainer* $90,000
Lead director retainer 25,000
Committee chair retainers:
Nominating and Governance Committee 10,000
Finance Committee 10,000
Audit Committee 20,000
Management Development and Compensation Giesm 20,000

*  The annual director retainer through Septembe2802 was $90,000. The annual director retainerin@gased to $95,000 effective Octc
1, 2012.

A director who serves as a Board member, leadtdirec committee chair for less than the full fisgaar receives a prated retainer amount ba:
on the number of days he or she served in suchigosiuring the fiscal year.

In addition to the retainer amounts, each eamployee director is entitled to receive a fee 3680 per day for any special assignment requédst
the Board. No special assignment fees were pdiddal year 2012.

Under the Company’s Independent Direct@sferred Compensation Plan, a director may anneddlgt to receive all or a portion of his or hesh
compensation in the form of cash, Common Stoclerded cash or deferred stock units.

Payment in stockDirectors who elect to receive cash compensatioauas in the form of Common Stock are issued shaf&Sommon Stoc
based on the fair market value of the Common Stocthe date on which the fees are scheduled taioe p

Elective deferral programFor directors who elect deferred cash, the amoaferced is credited to an unfunded cash accoumntishaedited wit!
interest at an annual interest rate equal to Wedlgjo Bank, N.As prime lending rate in effect on January 1 of epedr. Upon termination
service as a director, the amounts credited talitestor's deferred cash account are paid out in five ancasth installments or in one lump ¢
cash payment, at the direc®election. For directors who elect deferred staeiks, the amount deferred is credited to an unédnaiccount in tf
form of units equivalent to the fair market valudetlte Common Stock on the date on which the feessaeheduled to be paid. When dividends
declared, additional deferred stock units are atiet to the directos’ deferred stock unit account in amounts equivalenhe dollar amount
Common Stock dividends paid by the Company dividgdhe fair market value of the Common Stock ondhte the dividends are paid. U
termination of service as a director, the amoungslited to the deferred stock unit account, whintiuide any elective deferrals and the an
deferred stock unit grants described below, ard pat in shares of Common Stock in five annualalfrsients or in one lump sum, at the director’
election.

Stock Awards

In addition to the cash compensation amounts destrbove, each n@mployee director also receives an annual gradefefrred stock units, t
value of which was increased from $120,000 to 15 effective October 1, 2012. Awards are madef #isedlast business day in the calendar
and represent payment for services provided dwuap calendar year. The deferred stock unit awarouat relating to fiscal year 2012 for e
non-employee director was $120,000. Directors wétves as non-employee Board members for less tharfuthcalendar year receive pratec
awards based on the number of full fiscal quatteey served as noemployee Board members during the calendar yeanofed above, deferr
stock units accrue dividend equivalents and a ttirscdeferred stock unit account is paid out im@eon Stock following the direct@’terminatiol
of service in the manner described above.
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Stock Ownership Guidelines for Directors

The Board believes that the alignment of director&rests with those of stockholders is strengtemeen Board members are also stockhol
The Board therefore requires that each amployee director, within five years of being fiedécted, owns Common Stock or deferred stock
having a market value of at least five times tlaginual cash retainer. This program is designedsore that directors acquire a meaningful
significant ownership interest in the Company dgtineir tenure on the Board. As of June 30, 20&2haonemployee director was in complial
with the guidelines.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTI CIPATION

Each of Richard H. Carmona, Tully M. Friedman, Geod. Harad, Robert W. Matschullat and Gary G. klétserved as a member of
Management Development and Compensation Committeagdall of fiscal year 2012. None of the membees an officer or employee of 1
Company or any of the subsidiaries during fiscary2012 or in any prior fiscal year other than Matschullat, who served as interim ClI
Executive Officer of the Company from March 2006otigh October 2006. No executive officer of the @amy served on the Board
compensation committee of any other entity thatdrasad one or more executive officers who sensed anember of the Board or Manager
Development and Compensation Committee during 2012.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLI ANCE

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act and SEC regulati@quire the Compars/directors, certain officers and holders of mdrant 10% of th
Companys Common Stock to file reports of ownership on F@end changes in ownership on Form 4 or 5 withSBE. The reporting directo
officers and 10% stockholders are also require@B¢ rules to furnish the Company with copies ofSalttion 16(a) reports they file. Based sc
on its review of copies of such reports receivedoiten representations from its directors andceffs, the Company believes that all Section :
filing requirements applicable to its directors anfficers were complied with during fiscal year 201

PROPOSAL 2:
ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

In accordance with the provisions of Section 14Atef Exchange Act, as enacted as part of the Boddk Wall Street Reform and Consu
Protection Act in July 2010, we are providing otmc&holders the opportunity to vote on a rmnding, advisory resolution to approve
compensation of our named executive officers. Thigposal gives our stockholders the opportunityexpress their views on the Company’
executive compensation, and is commonly referredst@a “say-on-payproposal. This vote is only advisory and will na binding upon tt
Company or the Board. However, the Management Deweént and Compensation Committee, which is resplendor designing ar
administering the Comparg/’executive compensation program, values the amnéxpressed by stockholders and encourages ekhstiders t
vote their shares on this matter.

The Companys compensation programs are designed to enableeanfdrce its overall business strategy by aligniay with the achievement
short- and londerm financial and strategic objectives to buildckholder value and by providing a competitive lewmiecompensation needed
recruit, retain and motivate talented executiveticat to the Company’s longerm success. The key principle underlying thesmpamsatio
programs is pay-for-performance. Our pay{i@rformance principle and the alignment of our cengation programs with the building
stockholder value are fully discussed in the “Congagion Discussion and Analysiséction of this proxy statement, which begins ogep2l. Th
Board urges you to consider the factors discuss#ukl “Compensation Discussion and Analysisttion of this proxy statement when deciding
to vote on this Proposal 2.

Board of Directors’ Recommendation

The Company is asking its stockholders to supp@rtcompensation of the named executive officeideasribed in this proxy statement. This
is not intended to address any specific item ofpensation, but rather the overall compensatioruoinamed executive officers in fiscal year 2
and the philosophy, policies and practices undeglyhat compensation, which are
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described in this proxy statement. The Board bebethat the Comparg’overall compensation process effectively impletméis compensatic
philosophy and achieves its goals. Accordingly, Bleard recommends a vote FOR the adoption of thewiing advisory resolution, which will t
presented at the Annual Meeting:

“RESOLVED, that the stockholders of The Clorox C@mp approve, on an advisory basis, the compensafiche named executive
officers, as disclosed in The Clorox Company’s Rr8tatement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockkeod pursuant to the compensation
disclosure rules of the Securities and Exchange risgion, including the Compensation Discussion @uadhlysis, the Summary
Compensation Table and the other related tablesliaotbsure.”

The Board recommends a vote FOR the advisory wo&xecutive compensation.
Vote Required

The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes ggat in person or represented by proxy and entilecbte at the Annual Meeting is requirer
approve this proposal. The people designated inptb&y and voting instruction card will vote younases FOR approval unless you incl
instructions to the contrary.

This vote is advisory, and therefore not bindingtba Company, the Board or the Management Develaopraed Compensation Committ
However, the Board and the Management DeveloprmehCampensation Committee value the opinions ofdbmpanys stockholders and, to 1
extent there is any significant vote against themexd executive officersfompensation as disclosed in the proxy statememtwill consider suc
stockholderstoncerns and the Management Development and Cortn€ommittee will evaluate whether any actioresrgecessary to addrn
those concerns.

PROPOSAL 3:
RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOU NTING FIRM

The Audit Committee of the Board has selected E&n¥bung LLP as the Company’independent registered public accounting firmtier fisca
year ending June 30, 2013. Ernst & Young LLP hants® engaged since February 15, 2003.

Board of Directors’ Recommendation

Ratification of the selection of Ernst & Young LIy stockholders is not required by law. Howeveraasatter of policy, such selection is be
submitted to the stockholders for ratification la Annual Meeting (and it is the present intentiérthe Board to continue this policy). The At
Committee and the Board recommend the ratificadiothe Audit Committee’s appointment of Ernst & YmuLLP as the Companyindepende
registered public accounting firm for the fiscabyending June 30, 2013.

The Board recommends that stockholders vote FORdBed 3. The people designated in the proxy anidigdnstruction card will vote your sha
represented by proxy FOR ratification unless yaluide instructions to the contrary. If stockholdfa® to ratify the appointment of this firm, t
Audit Committee will reconsider the matter.

Representatives of Ernst & Young LLP are expeabduktpresent at the Annual Meeting to respond pocgguiate questions and to make a state
should they desire to do so.

Vote Required

The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes ggat in person or represented by proxy and entilecbte at the Annual Meeting is requirer
ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilliitg responsibility for oversight of the quality daintegrity of the accounting, auditing ¢
reporting practices of the Company. The Audit Cottawioperates in accordance with a written chantkich was adopted by the Board. A cop
that charter is available on the Company’s website http://www.thecloroxcompany.com/corporate-respaitisifperformance/corporate-
governance/compa-charters/, or in print by contacting The Clorox Company, Secretary, 1221 Broadway, Oakland, CA 946888. Eac
member of the Audit Committee is “independent,texpuired by the applicable listing standards ofNf¥SE and the rules of the SEC.

The Audit Committee members are not professionabastants or auditors, and their functions are inteinded to duplicate or to certify !
activities of management or the Company’s independsgistered public accounting firm. The Audit Quitiee oversees the Compasyinancia
reporting process on behalf of the Board. The Camijzamanagement has primary responsibility for tharfaoial statements and reporting proc
including the Company' internal control over financial reporting. Thelépendent registered public accounting firm is eesfble for performin
an integrated audit of the Compasfinancial statements and internal control ovearficial reporting in accordance with the audititapndards ¢
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board.

In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, theudlit Committee reviewed and discussed with managethe audited financial statements include
the Annual Report on Form Xfor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Thigerewncluded a discussion of the quality and theeatability of thi
Companys financial reporting and system of internal colstrocluding the clarity of disclosures in thedirtial statements. The Audit Commi
also reviewed and discussed with the Compaindependent registered public accounting firmaheited financial statements of the Compan
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the indepénegistered public accounting firm’judgments as to the quality and acceptabilitythe
Companys financial reporting, and such other matters aseguired to be discussed by Statement on AudBtagdards No. 61, as amended ai
adopted by the Public Company Accounting OversiRysdrd.

The Audit Committee obtained from the independegiistered public accounting firm the written distices and the letter from the audi
required by the applicable requirements of the ieubbmpany Accounting Oversight Board regarding samications with the Audit Committ
concerning independence of the auditors and diedussth the auditors their independence. The A@dimmittee meets periodically with 1
independent registered public accounting firm, vétid without management present, to discuss thdtsesf the independent registered pu
accounting firm’s examinations and evaluationshef Company’s internal controls and the overall ipiaf the Company’s financial reporting.

Based upon the review and discussions referredbdoen the Audit Committee recommended to the Babadl the Compang’ audited financii
statements be included in the Company’s Annual RepoForm 10-K for the fiscal year ended JuneZ2®0,2, for filing with the SEC.

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Edward A. Mueller, Chair
George J. Harad
Gary G. Michael

Pamela Thomas-Graham
Carolyn Ticknor
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Fees of the Independent Registered Public AccountinFirm

The table below includes fees related to fiscaty@812 and 2011 of the Compamyhdependent registered public accounting firrmsE& Young
LLP:

2012 2011
Audit Fees (1) $4,076,00! $4,178,00!
Audit-Related Fees (2) 81,00( 482,00(
Tax Fees (3) 199,00( 425,00(
All Other Fees (4) — —
Total $4,356,00! $5,085,00!

(1) Consists of fees for professional services rendévedhe audit of the Comparg’annual financial statements and internal corra
financial reporting, as required by Section 404hef Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, included in the @any’s Annual Reports on Form X0-
for each of the fiscal years ended June 30, 20822841, and for review of the financial statementduded in the Compang’Quarterl
Reports on Form -Q during those fiscal yeat

(2) Consists of fees for assurance and relatedcesryincluding audits of one of the Company’s hastg units and the Compasyemploye
benefit plans) not included in the Audit Fees tistdbove

(3) Consists of fees for tax compliance, tax advicetarglanning for the fiscal years ended June BQ22and 2011. These services include:
return preparation and review services for foreighsidiaries and affiliates and advisory serviageta@ matters

(4) Consists of fees for all other services not inctudethe three categories set forth above. There we such services in fiscal years 2012
2011.

The Audit Committee has established a policy tlegfuires it to approve all services provided by @wnpanys independent registered pu
accounting firm before services are provided. ThedidA Committee has prapproved the engagement of the independent registeublic
accounting firm for audit services, and certaincéferl auditrelated services and tax services within definedtdi. The Audit Committee has |
pre-approved engagement of the independent regisfriblic accounting firm for any other non-auditvices.

PROPOSAL 4:
APPROVAL OF AMENDED AND RESTATED 2005 STOCK INCENTI VE PLAN

Overview

The Company’s 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, as amemaedrestated (the “Plan”provides for the grant of incentive stock optiomstitin the
meaning of Section 422 of the IRC), nqualified stock options, stock appreciation rightsstricted stock, restricted stock units, perfarog
shares, performance units and other stoged awards to employees, directors and consubbétthe Company. The Plan, as amended and re;
was adopted by the Board on September 11, 201%dirfatecome effective on the date that it is apmaby stockholders.

The primary amendment reflected in the amendedestdted version of the Plan is an increase ofexpately 2.9 million in the number of sha
of the Companys Common Stock that may be issued under the Plae.amended and restated version of the Plan aflertse additione
amendments, including: new expiration date of tte Rvill be November 14, 2022; update of languagghibiting the reduction of the exerc
price of an outstanding option or the grant pritarooutstanding stock appreciation right withdwe approval of stockholders; increase in flexiy
for the Company to establish appropriate vestingods for awards; addition of language providingttdividends relating to performanbese!
awards will be subject to the same conditions asutiderlying award; update to list of performabesed metrics that can be used with respt
performance-based awards; and, other minor changes.

Additionally, in order to allow for awards undeetRlan to continue to qualify as tax-deductibldgenance-based compensation under Section 16
(m) of the IRC (“Section 162(m)"the Company is asking stockholders to approve thtemal terms of the performance goals under tlae
However, there can be no guarantee that awardsegrander the Plan eligible
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for treatment as qualified performanicased compensation under Section 162(m) will recsivch treatment. Approval of this proposal
constitute approval of the Plan itself and appr@fdahe material terms of the performance goalsetineder for purposes of Section 162(m).

Why You Should Vote to Approve the Plan

The Board recommends that the Company’s stocki®ldpprove the Plan because it believes that thep@oy's ability to grant equithase!
awards continues to be crucial in promoting shamtd longterm financial growth and stability, thereby enhiagcstockholder value. The Board &
believes that including terms in the Plan that petine Company to grant awards that are not suljekinits on tax deductibility is also in the b
interests of stockholders.

Section 162(m) of the IRC

The Board believes that it is in the best intereftsthe Company and its stockholders to provide dor equity incentive plan under wh
compensation awards made to the Compamyecutive officers are eligible to qualify fordidetibility by the Company for federal income
purposes. Accordingly, the Plan is designed to fietme grant of awards that are intended to quasy“performance-based compensatiaot
subject to Section 162(n$)$1,000,000 deductibility cap. There can be noantae, however, that amounts payable under theviRlebe treated ¢
qualified “performance-based compensatiantler Section 162(m). In general, under Sectior(ridn order for the Company to be able to de
compensation in excess of $1,000,000 paid in aeyyear to the Company’s chief executive officeany of the Company'three other most higt
compensated executive officers (other than the @myip chief financial officer), such compensationsinqualify as “performance-base®he o
the requirements of “performance-basedinpensation for purposes of Section 162(m) is tatmaterial terms of the performance goals L
which compensation may be paid be disclosed toagptdoved by the Comparsystockholders at least once every five years. &\vthié Board di
submit the material terms of the performance gémighe Plan to stockholders in 2010, since therated and restated Plan makes some r
adjustments and clarifications to these termsBibard is seeking approval for the proposed matégimhs. For a more detailed discussion o
proposed material terms, please refer to “Plan SampnPerformance-Based Awardsh page 62. For purposes of Section 162(m), thenmai
terms include (i) the employees eligible to receteenpensation, (ii) a description of the busine#eria on which the performance goal is ba
and (iii) the maximum amount of compensation thet be paid to an employee under the performanck @6t respect to the various types
awards under the Plan, each of these aspectscissdisd below, and, as noted above, approval dPldreitself will constitute approval of eact
these aspects of the Plan for purposes of the eplprequirements of Section 162(m).

Promotion of Good Corporate Governance Practices

The Plan has been designed to include a numberoefspons that the Company believes promote besttimes by reinforcing the alignmi
between equity compensation arrangements for erapiydirectors and consultants and stockholdetstests. These provisions include, but
not limited to, the following:

No Discounted Option. Stock options may not be granted with exerciseepriower than the fair market value of the unded shares on the gr:
date.

No Repricing without Stockholder Approv. The Company will not, without the approval of ckbolders, reduce the exercise price o
outstanding option or the grant price of an outditasn stock appreciation right (“SAR”And, at any time when the exercise price of antantiing
option or the grant price of an outstanding SARksve the fair market value of a share of Commaockstno amendment will provide that any s
outstanding option or outstanding SAR be cancelled regranted or exchanged for either cash or a new awdbhda lower (or no) exercise prir
without the approval of stockholders.

No Dividends on Unearned Performance Awe. The Plan prohibits the current payment of dividieer dividend equivalent rights on uneal
performance awards.

No Transferability. Awards generally may not be transferred, excgpibl or the laws of descent and distribution, esd approved by t
Committee (as defined below).

No Evergreen Provisio. There is no “evergreerféature pursuant to which the shares authorizeds$orance under the Plan can be automat
replenished.
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No Automatic Grant. The Plan does not provide for automatic granetpparticipant.
No Tax Gros-ups. The Plan does not provide for any tax gross-ups.
Plan Summary

The following paragraphs provide a summary of thegipal features of the Plan. This summary dodspooport to be complete and is subjec
and qualified in its entirety by, the provisionstieé Plan, which is attached to this proxy statarasrppendix A.

Background and Purpos. The purposes of the Plan are to attract andrétai best available personnel for positions oftatial responsibility, -
provide additional incentives to employees, director consultants of the Company or its subsidsafmllectively, the “participants”and tc
optimize the profitability and growth of the Compathirough incentives that are consistent with tleen@anys goals and that link the interest:
participants in the Plan with those of the Comparstockholders. The Plan permits the grant of tileviing types of incentive awards:

incentive and nomualified options, (2) SARs, (3) restricted sto@K), restricted stock units, (5) performance shai@sperformance units, and

other stock-based awards.

Shares Subject to the Plafhhe maximum number of shares of the Compsar§®mmon Stock which may be issued pursuant todsaander th
Plan (as amended and restated) that are grantgdafie 30, 2012 will be 7.1 million (reflecting iacrease of approximately 2.9 million shares
addition, the following shares will not be consefias having been issued under the Plan or anygtaok plan of the Company and may be is
under the Plan: (i) shares that are potentiallyvdedble under an award that expires or is cancdtetkited, settled in cash or otherwise se
without the delivery of shares, (ii) shares that laeld back or tendered to cover the exercise pri¢ax withholding obligations with respect tc
award, (iii) shares that are issued pursuant tordsvéhat are assumed, converted or substitutedommertion with a merger, acquisiti
reorganization or similar transaction, and (iv) relsathat are repurchased in the open market witltoroproceeds. However, for purpose:
determining the number of shares available for tgaanincentive stock options, only shares thatsatgect to an award that expires or is canc
forfeited or settled in cash will be treated asmting been issued under the Plan. As of Jun2CBIL®, there were approximately 11,716,000 sl
subject to outstanding awards granted under the, Rlad approximately 4,172,000 shares remainedad@ifor issuance under the Plan
including the share increase reflected in the améraohd restated version of the Plan). The closiitg pf a share of the CompasyCommon Stoc
on September 25, 2012 was $71.39.

Administration. The Plan will be administered by a committeehef Board (the “Committee”-he Board has currently designated the Manage
Development and Compensation Committee of the Basuttie Committee for the Plan. Subject to theipions of the Plan, the Committee has
authority to: (1) select the persons to whom awandsto be granted, (2) determine whether and tatwektent awards are to be granted
determine the size and type of awards, (4) appfowes of agreement for use under the Plan, (5)rohéte the terms and conditions applicabl
awards, (6) establish performance goals for anfopeance period and determine whether such goate satisfied, (7) amend any outstant
award in the event of termination of employmenanrevent resulting in a change in control of theewship of the Company as defined in the
(“Change in Control”), §) construe and interpret the Plan and any awargkeatent and apply its provisions, and (9) subjeaetrtain limitations
take any other actions deemed necessary or adeif@abthe administration of the Plan. Subject tpliapble law, the Committee may delegat:
authority under the Plan.

Eligibility to Receive Award. The Plan provides that awards may be grantedticypants, except that incentive stock optiony ime granted on
to employees. The approximate number of persogikdito participate in the Plan is nine directansl 1,114 employees.

Section 162(m) The Company has designed the Plan so that itifgethe issuance of awards that are intended ttifguees performance bas
under Section 162(m).

No Repricing. The Company will not, without the approval ofckbolders, reduce the exercise price of an outsignaption or the grant price

an outstanding SAR. In addition, at any time wHemexercise price of an outstanding option or ttaatgprice of an outstanding SAR is above

fair market value of a share of common stock, nermment will provide that any such outstandingaptir outstanding SAR be canceled and re-
granted or exchanged for either cash or a new awiinda lower (or no) exercise price, without thgpeoval of stockholders.
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Terms and Conditions of Stock Optiorisach option grant will be evidenced by an awayg@ment that will specify the exercise price, tdren o
the option, the conditions of exercise, and subtleroterms and conditions as the Committee will mheilee. The Committee sets the exercise pri
the shares subject to each option, provided thiéjest to limited exceptions, the exercise pricentd be less than 100% of the fair market valt
the shares on the optiangrant date. In addition, the exercise price oinaentive stock option must be at least 110% ofrfearket value if, on tr
grant date, the participant owns stock possessimg than 10% of the total combined voting powealbtlasses of stock of the Company or ar
its subsidiaries (a “10% Stockholderhe means of payment for shares issued upon egeastian option is specified in each award agreel
Payment generally may be made by cash, with othares of Common Stock owned by the participantaby other method permitted by
Committee, or by a combination of the foregoingcltaward agreement will specify the term of theimptand the date when the option i
become exercisable. The Plan provides that in eatewill an option granted under the Plan be egertimore than ten years after the date of ¢
Moreover, in the case of an incentive stock opticented to a 10% Stockholder, the term of the optidl be for no more than five years from
date of grant. Shares issued upon exercise walibgect to such continuing restrictions as willpgpevided in a recipient’s award agreement.

Terms and Conditions of Stock Appreciation Rigl88R grants may be either freestanding or in tamdéth option grants. Each SAR grant will
evidenced by an award agreement that will speti® drant price, the term of the SAR, the conditioh®xercise, and such other terms
conditions as the Committee will determine. Thengmice of SARs may not be less than 100% of #irerharket value of the shares subject tc
award on the grant date. Tandem SARs may be egdroisly with respect to the shares for which thelated option is then exercisable. U
exercise of a SAR, the holder of the SAR will béiterd to receive payment in an amount equal toptteeluct of (i) the difference between the
market value of a share on the date of exercisdtanédxercise price and (ii) the number of shasesvhich the SAR is exercised. At the discre
of the Committee, payment to the holder of a SAR im& in cash, shares or a combination thereof h€cektent that a SAR is settled in cash
shares available for issuance under the Plan wilbe diminished as a result of the settlement. SgRnted under the Plan expire as determin
the Committee, but in no event later than ten yéara the date of grant. No SAR may be exercisedryperson after its expiration. Shares is
upon exercise will be subject to such continuirgjrietions as will be provided in a participantgaad agreement.

Share Limit for Stock Options and SAR$o participant may be granted options and SARsutgchase more than 2,000,000 shares in anp@#
period.

Terms and Conditions of Restricted Stock, Restti€mck Units, Performance Shares, PerformancesUand Other Stock-Based AwardBact
award will be evidenced by an agreement that vpiicify its terms. The Committee will have the didimn to determine the number of shi
subject to the award and the conditions for vestireg must be satisfied. Shares issued at theesetit date of awards will be subject to ¢
continuing restrictions as will be provided in atgapant’s award agreement.

Share Limit for Restricted Stock, Restricted Stdoks, Performance Shares, Performance Units ande©Stock-Based AwardsNo participar
will be granted, in the aggregate, more than 8@gbares of restricted stock, restricted stocksypirformance shares, or other stbeked awart
in any 36month period. No participant will be granted a parfance unit award providing for a payment valuenofe than $10,000,000 in any
fiscal year valued either in cash or the fair mauaue of the shares on the grant date.

Performanc-Based Awards The Committee may grant awards which are intendegialify as “performance-based compensatfon’purposes ¢
deductibility under Section 162(m). For any suctaelythe Committee will establish the performanbfectives to be used within 90 days aftel
commencement of the performance period, or, if, [B5% of the performance period applicable to samfard. The performance objectives tc
used will be selected from the following list of asares (collectively, the “Performance Measuregijal shareholder return, stock price,
customer sales, volume, gross profit, gross mamgerating profit, operating margin, managemenfiprearnings from continuing operatic
before income taxes, earnings from continuing djmers, earnings per share from continuing operatiearnings before interest and taxes, ear
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortimatiet operating profit after tax, net earnings, @arnings per share, return on assets, rett
investment, return on equity, return on investguitel cost of capital, average capital employedhcvalue added, economic value added, ecol
profit, cash flow, cash flow from operations, warficapital, working capital as a percentage ofcustomer sales, asset growth, asset turr
market share, customer satisfaction, and emplogsfaction. Performance goals that are financiefrits may be calculated on either a GAA
non-GAAP basis. The targeted level or levels of perfanoe with respect to the Performance Measures mastablished at such levels anc
such terms as the Committee
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may determine, in its discretion, on a corponateée basis or with respect to one or more busineds, divisions, subsidiaries, business segmen
functions, and in either absolute terms or relativeahe current and/or historical performance oé @mm more companies or an index cove
multiple companies. Unless otherwise determinethleyCommittee, measurement of performance goals ne@ipect to the Performance Meas
listed above will exclude the impact of chargesr&structurings, discontinued operations, extra@ngi items, and other unusual or maacurring
items, including, for example, asset impairmentrgbs and force majeure, as well as the cumulaffeets of tax or accounting changes, eac
determined in accordance with generally acceptedwatting principles or identified in the Compasifinancial statements, notes to the finai
statements, management’s discussion and analysther filings with the SEC. Awards that are ndemded to qualify as “performanbase!
compensation” under Section 162(m) may be basdbese or such other performance measures as theiftemmay determine.

Nor-Transferability of Awards An award granted under the Plan which is an itieenstock option may not be sold, pledged, assl
hypothecated, transferred or disposed of in anyn@aather than by will or by the laws of descentistribution and may be exercised, during
lifetime of the recipient, only by the recipientth®r awards will be transferable to the extent juted in the award agreement and the rules ¢
SEC governing the registration of the Plan’s shargbin any event no award may be transferreddosideration.

Adjustments Upon Changes in Capitalizat. In the event of any merger, reorganization, ctidation, recapitalization, liquidation, stock dil&nd
split-up, spineff, stock split, reverse stock split, share corabiom, share exchange, extraordinary dividend nhgrahange in the corporate struc
affecting the shares, such adjustment will be madbe number and kind of shares or other secariieproperty that may be delivered unde
Plan, the individual award limits set forth in tAkn, and, with respect to outstanding awarddyeémumber and kind of shares or other securiti
property subject to outstanding awards, the exeqige, grant price or other price, if any, ofrésasubject to outstanding awards, any perforn
conditions relating to shares, the market pricesludres, or peshare results, and other terms and conditions tftamding awards, as may
determined to be appropriate and equitable by trar@ittee, in its sole discretion, to prevent ddator enlargement of rights.

Change in Control Except as otherwise provided in an award agregnrethe event of an event resulting in a Chamg€antrol, if the success
corporation does not assume, convert, continuelmstigute equivalent awards, such awards will bex@@0% vested, provided, however, that ir
event of a participant’s termination of employmaiithout cause within twentfeur months following consummation of a Change ontol, an
assumed, converted or replaced awards will beconmeetiately exercisable. Awards with vesting praisi based on performance goals
generally vest at the end of the original perforoeaperiod based on the Companpgerformance up to the date of the Change in Gbriiowever
if such award continues after the date of the ChangControl after modification as described abahen the award will vest in full upon 1
termination of the participant by the Company withgause prior to the end of the performance peoiodf applicable, the resignation of
participant under circumstances in which the piict has been constructively terminated (whichRlaen calls a “good reason”).

Amendment, Suspensions and Termination of the. The Board may amend, suspend or terminate the &lany time; provided, however, t
stockholder approval is required for any amendnterthe extent necessary to comply with the NYSHnlis standards or applicable laws.
addition, no amendment, suspension or terminatiay materially adversely impact an award previougiginted without the consent of
participant to whom such award was granted unleggired by applicable law. Unless the Board orGoenmittee adopt resolutions providing
an earlier date, the Plan will automatically teratéqon November 14, 2022.

Benefits to Be Received Upon Approlt is not possible at this time to determine awatig will be made in the event that the Plan jsraped b
stockholders. However, it is anticipated that awayenerally will be similar to those granted untther Plan in prior years.

Federal Tax Aspects

The following paragraphs are a summary of the naterS. federal income tax consequences undelR@eassociated with awards granted u
the Plan. The summary is based on existing U.Ss kavd regulations, and there can be no assuraatcthtse laws and regulations will not che
in the future. The summary does not purport todraglete and does not discuss the tax consequepoeasaparticipang death, or the provisions
the income tax laws of any municipality, stateanefgn country in which the participant may reside.
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Incentive Stock Option. No taxable income is recognized when an incengibeek option is granted or exercised, although ekercise is &
adjustment item for alternative minimum tax purmoaad may subject the participant to the altereatiinimum tax. If the participant exercises
option and then later sells or otherwise dispo$e¢kseoshares more than two years after the graetated more than one year after the exercise
the difference between the sale price and the eseeprice generally will be taxed as lotegm capital gain or loss. If these holding periads no
satisfied, the participant will recognize ordinamgome at the time of sale or other dispositionatdqo the difference between the exercise price
the fair market value of the shares at the dathebptions exercise. Any gain or loss recognized on suctemature disposition of the share
excess of the amount treated as ordinary incoméwilreated as long-term or short-term capitah gailoss, depending on the holding period.

Nonqualified Stock Optior. No taxable income is recognized when a nongedlifitock option is granted to a participant withexercise pric
equal to the fair market value on the date of grdpbn exercise, the participant will recognizeioady income in an amount equal to the exce
the fair market value of the shares at the timexafrcise over the exercise price. Any taxable ireoacognized in connection with the exercise
nonqualified stock option by an employee is subjectax withholding by the Company. Any additiorgdin or loss recognized upon Iz
disposition of the shares is capital gain or legsich may be long-term or short-term capital gaifoss depending on the holding period.

Stock Appreciation RightsNo taxable income is recognized when a SAR istgdhto a participant. Upon exercise, the partidipeill recogniz:
ordinary income in an amount equal to the amoumwtsh received and the fair market value of anyesheceived.

Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, Perforaabhares, and Performance Ur. A participant generally will not have taxable anee upo!
grant of restricted stock, restricted stock ungesrformance shares, or performance units. Instbadparticipant will recognize ordinary income
the time of vesting equal to the fair market valoe the vesting date) of the shares or cash regdehiaus any amount paid. For awards for w
shares are issued at grant only, a participardadsmay elect to be taxed at the time of grant.

Other Stock-Based AwardsA participant generally will recognize income uapreceipt of the shares subject to award (or,tér|aat the time «
vesting of such shares).

Tax Effect for the CompanyThe Company generally will be entitled to a taddction in connection with an award under the Rtaan amour
equal to the ordinary income realized by a pardiotpand at the time the participant recognizes saocbme (for example, the exercise ¢
nonqualified stock option).

Deductibility of Executive Compensati. Special rules limit the deductibility of competisa paid to the chief executive officer and to lea€ the
next three most highly compensated executive afficether than the chief financial officer. UndexcBon 162(m), unless various conditions
met that enable compensation to qualify as “perforoe-based,the annual compensation paid to any of these spécéxecutives will k
deductible only to the extent that it does not exc&1,000,000. However, the rules and regulatiawsnplgated under Section 162(m)
complicated and subject to change from time to tiseenetimes with retroactive effect. In additiomwmber of requirements must be met in ¢
for particular compensation to so qualify. As sutlfiere can be no assurance that any compensatiardedvor paid under the Plan will
deductible under all circumstances. In additioe, @ommittee has the discretion to make awardsdibatot qualify as performance based u
Section 162(m) when appropriate.

Other Tax Considerations In the event of a Change in Control of the Conypasertain payments in the nature of compensatiocertai
individuals, if contingent on the Change in Contmbuld be nondeductible to the Company and sultfeet 20% excise tax to the recipien
addition to income taxes. Awards under the Plam #a made or that vest or become payable in ctionewith a Change in Control may
required to be taken into account in determining@thiar these penalties apply.

Section 409A Some awards granted under the Plan may be coedidengualified deferred compensation that is subjecptecial rules and m
trigger additional income tax under Section 409Aha IRC. It is intended that the Plan and any d&granted thereunder will comply with
requirements of Section 409A of the IRC, and then@ittee will generally design and administer sualaals to either be exempt from or avoid
imposition of additional taxation under Section AQ%f the IRC. However, there is no commitment oaguntee that any federal, state or loca
treatment will apply or be available to any papait. As a result, tax consequences for any péatiQarticipant may vary based on indivic
circumstances.
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Vote Required and Board of Directors’ Recommendatio
The Board recommends that the stockholders vote tH@Rdoption of the following resolution, whichiMie presented at the Annual Meeting:

“RESOLVED, that the stockholders of the Companyebhgrapprove and adopt the 2005 Stock Incentive, Rlaramended and restated,
attached as Appendix A to the proxy statementHisrneeting.”

The people designated in the proxy and voting uesion card will vote your shares represented pxpr-OR this proposal unless you incl
instructions to the contrary. The affirmative vatiea majority of the votes present in person oresented by proxy and entitled to vote ai
Annual Meeting is required to approve the Plan.

OTHER INFORMATION
Annual Report, Financial Statements and Form 10-K

The following portions of the Company’s Annual Repon Form 10K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 are latd@as Appendix B to tt
proxy statement: Management's Discussion and Armlgé Financial Condition and Results of Operation®nagemens Report on Intern
Control over Financial Reporting; Report of Indegpent Registered Public Accounting Firm; Consolidakénancial Statements; Valuation
Qualifying Accounts and Reserves; and Reconciliatib Economic Profit. The Company’s Form KGhas been filed with the SEC and poste:
the Company’s website and a copy may be obtaingtput charge, by calling Clorox Stockholder Dirett888-CLX-NYSE (259-6973) toftee
24 hours a day, seven days a week, or by contadtiegClorox Company, c/o Secretary, 1221 Broadvgkland, CA 94612-888. The 201
Annual Report — Executive Summary is available wfita Proxy Statement at www.edocumentview.com/CLX.

Director Communications

Stockholders and interested parties may direct conirations to individual directors, including theatl director, to a board committee, to
independent directors as a group or to the Boara whole, by addressing the communications to #ivaed individual, to the committee, to
independent directors as a group or to the Boaalvalsole and sending them to The Clorox Compary Sefcretary, 1221 Broadway, Oakland,
946124888. The Secretary will review all communicatiaesaddressed and will forward to the addressel(@ramunications determined to b
substantively on the business, management or ganeenof the Company.

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

We will pay for the entire cost of soliciting pres on behalf of the Company. We will also reimblsgkerage firms, banks and other agent
the cost of forwarding the Compasyproxy materials to beneficial owners. In additioor directors and employees may solicit proxiepersor
by telephone, via the Internet or by other meansasfimunication. Directors and employees will notdagd any additional compensation
soliciting proxies. We have retained Innisfree M&mcorporated (“Innisfree”) to assist in solicitipgoxies for the AnnuaMeeting at an estimat
cost of $20,000 plus out-gfecket expenses. In addition, we have agreed tenmndfy Innisfree against certain liabilities arigiout of or i
connection with its engagement.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR THE 2013 ANNUAL MEETING

In the event that a stockholder wishes to haveopgwal considered for presentation at the 2013 Alnkieeting of Stockholders and included in
Company'’s proxy statement and form of proxy usechinnection with such meeting, the proposal mugohearded to the Compars/Secretary ¢
that it is received no later than May 31, 2013. Aagh proposal must comply with the requirement®ué 14a8 promulgated under the Excha
Act.

Under the Companyg’ Bylaws, if a stockholder, rather than includingraposal in the proxy statement as discussed alsaeks to nominate
director or propose other business for consideraidthat meeting, notice must be received by #weary at the principal executive offices of
Company not later than the close of business o8@lte day or earlier than the close of businestheri20th day prior to the first anniversary of
preceding year’s annual meeting. To be timely ier 2013 Annual Meeting of
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Stockholders, the notice must be received by tleeeSmry on any date beginning no earlier than thsecof business on July 17, 2013, and er
no later than the close of business on August @632However, in the event that the date of theiahmeeting is advanced by more than 30 «
or delayed by more than 30 days from such annimgdate, notice by the stockholder to be timely niesso delivered not earlier than the clos
business on the 120th day prior to such annualingeend not later than the close of business onatex of the 90th day prior to such anr
meeting or the 10th day following the day on whiehblic announcement of the date of such meetifigsismade.

HOUSEHOLDING

The SEC’s “householdingules permit us to deliver only one Notice of Anhifeeeting and Proxy Statement or Notice of InterAegilability of
Proxy Materials to stockholders who share an adduatess otherwise requested. This procedure requaging and mailing costs. If you share
address with another stockholder and have receiagdone set of proxy materials, you may request@arate copy of these materials at no c«
you by calling Clorox Stockholder Direct at 888-CINKY' SE (259-6973) tolfree, 24 hours a day, seven days a week, or byactmg The Cloro
Company, c/o Secretary, 1221 Broadway, Oakland,9881241888. Alternatively, if you are currently receivimgultiple copies of the pro:
materials at the same address and wish to recelirgbe copy in the future, you may contact us aWirg or writing to us at the telephone nur
or address given above.

If you are a beneficial owner (i.e., your shares lzld in the name of a bank, broker or other haddeecord), the bank, broker or other holde
record may deliver only one copy of the proxy miaterto stockholders who have the same addressatiie bank, broker or other holder of re:
has received contrary instructions from one or nudréne stockholders. If you wish to receive a sefgacopy of the proxy materials, now or in
future, you may contact us at the address or telepmumber above and we will promptly deliver assete copy. Beneficial owners sharing
address who are currently receiving multiple copiethe proxy materials and wish to receive a singpy in the future should contact their b.
broker or other holder of record to request thdy arsingle copy be delivered to all stockholdertha shared address in the future.

ATTENDING THE ANNUAL MEETING

The Annual Meeting will be held on Wednesday, Nokeml4, 2012, at 9:00 a.m. Pacific time, in Buitdid of the Companyg’ Pleasanton Camp
located at 4900 Johnson Drive, Pleasanton, CA 9468&ck-in for the Annual Meeting begins promptly8a30 a.m.To attend the Annue
Meeting, you must be a stockholder of the Comparsycd the close of business on the Record Date amvige proof that you owned Clort
Common Stock on the Record Date or hold a legalyyrdrom a Record Date stockholder. Please see thmendetailed information below
Admission will be on a first-come, firsierved basis and seating is limited. Even if yangb attend the Annual Meeting, we strongly urge ic
vote in advance by proxy.

If you plan to attend the Annual Meeting this ygdease be aware of the following information:

e To be admitted to the Annual Meeting, you must haweirrent form of government-issued photo idesdtion (such as a driverlicense ¢
passport).

e Because attendance at the Annual Meeting is lintiteldecord Date stockholders, you must provide fptioat youowned Clorox Commc
Stock on the Record Date.

e If you hold your shares with Clorox’s transfer ageg@omputershare Trust Company, N.A., your owngrstiiCloroxCommon Stock as
the Record Date will be verified through reportsyided by Computershare prior to admittance tanleeting.

e If you hold your shares with a broker, trustee,kbannominee, you must provide proof of beneficiainershipas of the Record Date, st
as a brokerage account statement showing that woea Clorox Common Stock fahe statement period immediately prior to the Rd
Date, a copy of your Notice of Internet Availahilibf Proxy Materials, a copy of your proxy and voting instfantcard, a letter or lec
proxy provided by your broker, trust, bank or noegnor other similar evidence of ownership on tbedrd Date.

e If you are not a Record Date stockholder, you tll admitted to the Annual Meeting only if you havéegal proxyfrom a Record Da
stockholder.
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e Cameras, recording equipment and other electranitcds will not be allowed in the meeting exceptdse by the Company.

e For your protection, briefcases, purses, packagesmay be subject to inspection as you entemibeting. We regretny inconvenience tt
may cause you.

e Directions to the Annual Meeting are availabletdtp://www.thecloroxcompany.com/contact/bayarea.

By Order of the Board of Director

Angela C. Hilt
Vice Presiden- Corporate Secretar
& Associate General Couns

September 28, 2012
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Appendix A

THE CLOROX COMPANY
2005 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

Effective as of November 16, 2005
Amended and Restated as of November 14, 2012

1. Establishment, Objectives and Duration.

(a)_Establishment of the Plaithe Clorox Company, a Delaware corporation (meféér referred to as the “Companyhgreby establishes
incentive compensation plan to be known as “ThedXdCompany 2005 Stock Incentive Plan” (hereinaftferred to as the “Plan”Yhe Plai
permits the granting of Nonqualified Stock Optiohentive Stock Options, Stock Appreciation RigiRestricted Stock, Restricted Stock Ui
Performance Shares, Performance Units and Othek-B@sed Awards. The Plan was originally adopted &ffeas of November 16, 2005 and
current amendment and restatement of the Planoigted effective as of November 14, 2012 (the “BffecDate”), subject to the approval of t
Plan by the stockholders of the Company at the Zrfual Meeting. Definitions of capitalized termsed in the Plan are contained in the atta
Glossary, which is an integral part of the Plan.

(b) Objectives of the Plan The objectives of the Plan are to attract andimethe best available personnel for positions ufstantic
responsibility, to provide additional incentiveRarticipants and to optimize the profitability agrdwth of the Company through incentives tha
consistent with the Company’s goals and that Ik personal interests of Participants to thosé@fQGompanys stockholders. The Plan is furt
intended to provide flexibility to the Company ts ability to motivate, attract, and retain thevemrs of Participants who make or are expect
make significant contributions to the Company’scass and to allow Participants to share in theesscof the Company.

(c) Duration of the Plan No Award may be granted under the Plan afterddye immediately preceding the tenth (20 anniversary of tt
Effective Date, or such earlier date as the Boarth®@ Committee shall determine. The Plan will rema effect with respect to outstanding Awe
until no Awards remain outstanding.

2. Administration of the Plan.

(a) The Committee The Plan shall be administered by the Managemertlopment and Compensation Committee of the Boasdich othe
committee (the “Committee”as the Board shall select consisting of two or moembers of the Board, each of whom is intendebeaal
“independent director” under New York Stock Excharigting standards and also may be a “non-emplayeetor” within the meaning of Ru
16b-3 (or any successor rule) of the Exchange Adtax an “outside directortinder regulations promulgated under Section 162frthe Code. Tt
members of the Committee shall be appointed frome tio time by, and shall serve at the discretionhaf Board.

(b) Authority of the Committee Subject to Applicable Laws and the provisionshaf Plan (including any other powers given to tloen@ittee
hereunder), and except as otherwise provided byBtad, the Committee shall have full and finalhauity in its discretion to take all actic
determined by the Committee to be necessary iadh@nistration of the Plan, including, without liadion, discretion to:

(i) select the Employees, Directors and Consultantshom Awards may from time to time be granteckbader;
(ii) determine whether and to what extent Awardsgnanted hereunder;

(i) determine the size and types of Awards grdrtereunder;

(iv) approve forms of Award Agreement for use unither Plan;

(v) determine the terms and conditions of any Awgnahted hereunder;

(vi) establish performance goals for any PerforneadPeriod and determine whether such goals weisfiedti
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(vii) amend the terms of any outstanding Advgranted under the Plan, whether in the eventRdréicipants termination of employment,
the event of a Change in Control or otherwise, e that, except as otherwise provided in Sect®nno such amendment shall reduce
Exercise Price of an outstanding Option or the gpaite of an outstanding SAR, and at any time wtienExercise Price of an outstanc
Option or the grant price of an outstanding SARKsve the Fair Market Value of a share of Commamri§tno such amendment shall proy
for the cancellation and mgrant or the exchange of any such outstanding @miicSAR for either cash or a new Award with a lo@ no
exercise price without the approval of the stoclbod of the Company, and provided further, that amendment that would materic
adversely affect the Participant’s rights undepatstanding Award shall not be made without thei€pant’'s written consent;

(viii) construe and interpret the terms of the Pdana any Award Agreement entered into under the,Rlad to decide all questions of
arising in its application; and

(ix) take such other action, not inconsistent wfith terms of the Plan, as the Committee deems ppate.

Except to the extent prohibited by Applicable Lawtee Committee may delegate its authority as ifiedtiherein, including the power ¢
authority to make Awards to Participants who are“‘msiders” subject to Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act, Awardended to satisfy t
Performance-Based Exception and/or Awards interideshtisfy the exception under Rule 18{oh(1) promulgated under the Exchange
pursuant to such conditions and limitations asGoenmittee may establish. References to the Comeniittethis Plan shall refer to a deleg
with respect to any action of such delegate withenscope of the authority delegated to such ddgathe Committee

(c) Effect of Committe’ss Decision All decisions, determinations and interpretatiohthe Committee shall be final, binding and cosole ot
all persons, including the Company, its Subsidgrits stockholders, Employees, Directors, Constdtand their estates and beneficiaries.

3. Shares Subject to the Plan; Effect of Grants; Indiidual Limits.

(a) Number of Shares Available for GranSubject to adjustment as provided in Sectiond@df, the maximum number of Shares which
be issued pursuant to Awards under the Plan grafted June 30, 2012 shall be 7,100,000 Shares,tpinumber of Shares deemed not is
under the Plan or the Prior Plans pursuant to papag (i), (ii), (iii) or (iv) of this Section 3(aJ-or the avoidance of doubt, the Company she
entitled to issue Shares under awards granted uhdd?lan or the Prior Plans that were outstandimgune 30, 2012 and such issuances sh
reduce the foregoing.

(i) Shares that are potentially deliverable underAavard or a Prior Plan award that expires or isceted, forfeited, settled in cash
otherwise settled without the delivery of Shareallgiot be treated as having been issued unddrlttreor a Prior Plan.

(i) Shares that are held back or tendered (eitotnally or constructively by attestation) to cotiee exercise price or tax withhold
obligations with respect to an Award or Prior Péavard shall not be treated as having been issuger tihe Plan or a Prior Plan.

(iii) Shares that are issued pursuant to awards dh@ assumed, converted or substituted in cororeatith a merger, acquisitic
reorganization or similar transaction shall notieated as having been issued under the Plan.

(iv) Shares that are repurchased in the open marikietOption Proceeds from Awards or Prior Plan mdgashall not be treated as ha
been issued under the Plan or a Prior Plan; prdyldewever, that the aggregate number of Sharesetkaot issued pursuant to the repurc
of Shares with Option Proceeds shall not be greéhter the amount of such proceeds divided by tleNrarket Value of a Share on the dat
exercise of the Option or Prior Plan option givitgg to such proceeds.

Notwithstanding paragraphs (i) through (iv) abofa, purposes of determining the number of Shareslable for grant as Incentive Stc
Options, only Shares that are subject to an Awa Brior Plan award that expires or is cancefiedeited or settled in cash shall be treate
not having been issued under the Plan or a Praor.
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The Shares to be issued pursuant to Awargshmauthorized but unissued Shares or treasumeSha
(b) Individual Limits. Subject to adjustment as provided in Sectioner@df, the following rules shall apply with respecAwards:

(i) Options and SARs: The maximum aggregate nurob&hares with respect to which Options and SARg beagranted in any 3@wontr
period to any one Participant shall be 2,000,008r&h

(i) Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units, Barfance Shares and Other St@#sed Awards: The maximum aggregate numb
Shares of Restricted Stock and Shares with respedhich Restricted Stock Units, Performance SharesOther StocBased Awards may |
granted in any 36-month period to any one Partitighall be 800,000 Shares.

(iii) Performance Units: The maximum aggregate cengation that can be paid pursuant to Performamits dwarded in any one fis
year to any one Participant shall be $10,000,00® mumber of Shares having an aggregate Fair Maf&lee on the date of grant not in exc
of such amoun

4. Eligibility and Participation.
(a) Eligibility . Persons eligible to participate in the Plan idelall Employees, Directors and Consultants.

(b) Actual Participation Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Conaritmay, from time to time, select from all eligidEmployee:
Directors and Consultants, those to whom Awardd bleagranted and shall determine the nature anouatmof each Award. The Committee r
establish additional terms, conditions, rules ascpdures to accommodate the rules or laws of agipécforeign jurisdictions and to affc
Participants favorable treatment under such lawsyiged, however, that no Award shall be grantedenrany such additional terms, conditic
rules or procedures with terms or conditions wtaoh inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan.

5. Types of Awards.

(a) Type of Awards Awards under the Plan may be in the form of Qmi¢both Nonqualified Stock Options and/or IncemtBtock Options
SARs, Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock UnitsfdPerance Shares, Performance Units and Other Raskd Awards.

(b) Designation of Award Each Award shall be designated in the Award Agnert.

6. Options.

(a) Grant of Options Subject to the terms and provisions of the P@ptjons may be granted to Participants in such murabd upon sut
terms, and at any time and from time to time, adl &le determined by the Committee.

(b) Award Agreement Each Option grant shall be evidenced by an Awagteement that shall specify the Exercise Price,dbration of th
Option, the number of Shares to which the Optionaies, and such other provisions as the Commdttied] determine including, but not limited
the Option vesting schedule, repurchase provisioights of first refusal, forfeiture provisions, rfo of payment (cash, Shares, or o
consideration) upon settlement of the Award, andrgnt contingencies. The Award Agreement also spatify whether the Option is intende:
be an Incentive Stock Option or a Nonqualified &t@ption. Options that are intended to be Incen®teck Options shall be subject to
limitations set forth in Section 422 of the Code.

(c) Exercise Price Except for Options adjusted pursuant to Secti®rdrein, and replacement Options granted in cdimmewith a merge
acquisition, reorganization or similar transactithig Exercise Price for each grant of an Optioril stzd be less than one hundred percent (100¢
the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date thiéoDjis granted. However, in the case of an IneenBtock Option granted to a Participant wh
the time the Option is granted, owns stock repitasgmore
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than ten percent (10%) of the voting power of kkses of stock of the Company or any Subsidi&wey Bxercise Price for each grant of an Of
shall not be less than one hundred ten percen®fld0the Fair Market Value of a Share on the da#eOption is granted.

(d)_Term of Options The term of an Option granted under the Planl dfeldetermined by the Committee, in its sole dion; providec
however, that such term shall not exceed ten (&8)ysy However, in the case of an Incentive Stocko®mranted to a Participant who, at the 1
the Option is granted, owns stock representing ntloae ten percent (10%) of the voting power ofcddisses of stock of the Company or
Subsidiary, the term of the Incentive Stock Opsball be five (5) years from the date of grantéleéior such shorter term as may be provided i
Award Agreement.

(e) Exercise of OptionsOptions granted under this Section 6 shall beatsable at such times and be subject to suchigtstrs and conditior
as set forth in the Award Agreement and as the Citteenshall in each instance approve, which ned¢dadhe same for each grant or for ¢
Participant.

(f) Payments Options granted under this Section 6 shall beotsed by the delivery of a written notice to thenpany, setting forth tl
number of Shares with respect to which the Opt®toibe exercised and specifying the method ofgkercise Price. The Exercise Price o
Option shall be payable to the Company: (i) in caslits equivalent, (ii) by tendering (either adtpar constructively by attestation or throt
authorization to withhold Shares otherwise issuaplen exercise of an Option) Shares having an gagtgd-air Market Value at the time of exer
equal to the Exercise Price, (iii) in any other mamnthen permitted by the Committee that is deteechito provide a benefit to the Company, or
by a combination of any of the permitted methodpafment. The Committee may limit any method ofrpemt, other than that specified under
for administrative convenience, to comply with Appble Laws or otherwise. Shares issued upon eseghall be subject to such contint
restrictions as shall be provided in a ParticigaAtivard Agreement.

(9) Restrictions on Share Transferabilitfhe Committee may impose such restrictions on%mgres acquired pursuant to the exercise
Option granted under this Section 6 as it may dedrisable, including, without limitation, restriotis under applicable federal securities |
under the requirements of any stock exchange okehampon which such Shares are then listed anddded, and under any blue sky or ¢
securities laws applicable to such Shares.

(h) Termination of Employment or Servic&ach Participans’ Option Award Agreement shall set forth the extenvhich the Participant sh
have the right to exercise the Option followingn@ration of the Participarg’employment or, if the Participant is a DirectoiGmnsultant, servic
with the Company and its Subsidiaries. Such promssishall be determined in the sole discretiorhef@ommittee, need not be uniform amon
Options, and may reflect distinctions based orr¢lasons for termination of employment or service.

(i) No Repricing without Stockholder ApprovalThe Company shall not, without the approval & #hockholders of the Company, reduce
Exercise Price of an outstanding Option. And, at tiame when the Exercise Price of an outstandingiddpis above the Fair Market Value c
share of Common Stock, the Company shall not, wittioe approval of the stockholders of the Compangyide for the cancellation and gean
or the exchange of such outstanding Option foreeitiash or a new Award with a lower (or no) exergigce.

7. Stock Appreciation Rights.

(a) Grant of SARs Subject to the terms and provisions of the PEkRs may be granted to Participants in such amamdsupon such tern
and at any time and from time to time, as shaldéermined by the Committee. The Committee maytdregestanding SARs, Tandem SARs
any combination of these forms of SAR.

(b) Award Agreement Each SAR grant shall be evidenced by an AwarceAgrent that shall specify the grant price, the tefthe SAR, an
such other provisions as the Committee shall determ

(c) Grant Price The grant price of a Freestanding SAR shall edelss than one hundred percent (100%) of theMraiket Value of a Share
the date of grant of the SAR, and the grant price@ Bandem SAR shall equal the Exercise Price efr¢hated Option; provided, however, that tl
limitations shall not apply to Awards that are ad@ad pursuant to Section 18 herein.
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(d)_Term of SARs The term of a SAR granted under the Plan shafldiermined by the Committee, in its sole discretfrovided, howeve
that such term shall not exceed ten (10) years.

(e) Exercise of Tandem SAR# Tandem SAR may be exercised only with respetihé Shares for which its related Option is thegreisable
To the extent exercisable, Tandem SARs may be isgeréor all or part of the Shares subject to #lated Option. The exercise of all or part
Tandem SAR shall result in the forfeiture of thghtito purchase a number of Shares under the de@p¢ion equal to the number of Shares
respect to which the SAR is exercised. Conversglpn exercise of all or part of an Option with espto which a Tandem SAR has been gra
an equivalent portion of the Tandem SAR shall sinhil be forfeited.

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plantlte contrary, with respect to a Tandem SAR graitteconnection with an I1SO: (i) tl
Tandem SAR will expire no later than the expiratodrthe underlying 1SO; (ii) the value of the payetith respect to the Tandem SAR may be
no more than one hundred percent (100%) of therdiffce between the Exercise Price of the underlf®@ and the Fair Market Value of
Shares subject to the underlying ISO at the tireeTtandem SAR is exercised; and (iii) the Tandem A&y be exercised only when the |
Market Value of the Shares subject to the ISO ededlee Exercise Price of the ISO.

(f) Exercise of Freestanding SARdreestanding SARs may be exercised upon whatevers and conditions the Committee, in its
discretion, imposes upon them and sets forth irAtlard Agreement.

(g) Payment of SAR AmountUpon exercise of a SAR, a Participant shall biitled to receive payment from the Company in aroan
determined by multiplying:

(i) the difference between the Fair Market Value@hare on the date of exercise over the grace;doy
(i) the number of Shares with respect to which$AdR is exercised.

At the discretion of the Committee, the paymentruS#®R exercise may be in cash, in Shares of eqntvalalue, or in some combinat
thereof. Shares issued upon SAR exercise shalllfject to such continuing restrictions as shalptzevided in a Participant’s Award Agreement.

(h) Termination of Employment or Servic&ach SAR Award Agreement shall set forth the mxte which the Participant shall have the r
to exercise the SAR following termination of thertiRépant's employment or, if the Participant is a Director @onsultant, service with t
Company and its Subsidiaries. Such provisions sfellietermined in the sole discretion of the Coitemjtneed not be uniform among all S#
and may reflect distinctions based on the reasomtefmination of employment or service.

(i) No Repricing without Stockholder ApprovalThe Company shall not, without the approval & #hockholders of the Company, reduce
grant price of an outstanding SAR. And at any twteen the grant price of an outstanding SAR is abttveeFair Market Value of a share
Common Stock, the Company shall not, without thpreyal of the stockholders of the Company, provimtethe cancellation and mgrant or th
exchange of such outstanding SAR for either cashraaw Award with a lower (or no) exercise price.

8. Restricted Stock.

(a) Grant of Restricted StockSubject to the terms and provisions of the PRestricted Stock may be granted to Participan®igh amoun
and upon such terms, and at any time and fromtintiene, as shall be determined by the Committee.

(b) Award Agreement Each Restricted Stock grant shall be evidenceanbfward Agreement that shall specify the appleabstrictions, th
number of Shares of Restricted Stock granted asugéson the grant date, and such other provisitiseaCommittee shall determine.
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(c)_Other RestrictionsThe Committee shall impose such other conditammor restrictions on any Shares of RestrictedkSgmanted pursua
to the Plan as it may deem advisable includinghavit limitation, a requirement that Participanty pastipulated purchase price for each Sha
Restricted Stock, a requirement that the issuaricehares of Restricted Stock be delayed, restristibased upon the achievement of spe
performance goals, timeased restrictions requiring a minimum period o¥ige as a condition of vesting any or all Share&estricted Stoc!
and/or restrictions under Applicable Laws or unither requirements of any stock exchange or markeat wgich such Shares are listed or trade
holding requirements or sale restrictions placethenShares by the Company upon vesting of suctrigted Stock. The Company may retain i
custody any certificate evidencing the Shares atfitted Stock and place thereon a legend andutesstoptransfer orders on such Shares, ani
Participant shall be obligated to sign any stockerorequested by the Company relating to the Shargive effect to the forfeiture provisions :
any other restrictions of the Restricted Stock.

(d) Removal of RestrictionsSubject to Applicable Laws, Restricted Stock shetome freely transferable by the Participargrattie lapse
all of the restrictions applicable thereto.

(e) Voting Rights Unless otherwise determined by the Committeesatdorth in a Participarg’ Award Agreement, to the extent permitte
required by Applicable Laws, as determined by tleenBittee, Participants holding Shares of Restri@aatk granted hereunder may exercise
voting rights with respect to those Shares.

(f) Dividends and Other DistributionsExcept as otherwise provided in a Participadtivard Agreement, to the extent permitted or neg
under Applicable Laws, Participants holding ShareRestricted Stock shall receive all regular cBshidends paid with respect to all Shares w
they are so held, and, except as otherwise detedmiy the Committee, to the extent permitted ouireqg under Applicable Laws, all ott
distributions paid with respect to such Restric&dck shall be credited to Participants subjecthi® same restrictions on transferability
forfeitability as the Restricted Stock with respaztwhich they were paid and shall be deliveredaticipants in conjunction with the Share
Restricted Stock with respect to which such distidtns were made. Notwithstanding the foregoingjid@nds or other distributions that relat
performance-based Restricted Stock will be sul@etiie same performance conditions as the underkimard.

(g) Termination of Employment or Servicd&each Award Agreement shall set forth the extenwhich the Participant shall have the rigt
retain unvested Restricted Stock following termimrabf the Participant employment or, if the Participant is a DirectoiGmnsultant, service wi
the Company and its Subsidiaries. Such provisidradl £e determined in the sole discretion of then@uttee, need not be uniform among
Awards of Restricted Stock, and may reflect digtores based on the reasons for termination of eympémt or service.

9. Restricted Stock Units.

(a) Grant of Restricted Stock UnitsSubject to the terms and provisions of the PRestricted Stock Units may be granted to Partidipan
such amounts and upon such terms, and at any tiché@m time to time, as shall be determined byGbenmittee.

(b) Award Agreement Each grant of Restricted Stock Units shall bedenced by an Award Agreement that shall specifyapplicabli
restrictions, the number of Restricted Stock Ugitmnted, and such other provisions as the Comnstiel determine.

(c) Value of Restricted Stock UnitsThe initial value of a Restricted Stock Unit dredual the Fair Market Value of a Share on the a
grant; provided, however, that this restrictionlshat apply to Awards that are adjusted pursuargéction 18 herein.

(d) Other Restrictions The Committee shall impose such other conditeomd/or restrictions on any Restricted Stock Unitd/ar the Share
issuable upon the settlement of Restricted StocksUgranted pursuant to the Plan as it may deenisalle including, without limitation,
requirement that Participants pay a stipulated lrase price for each Restricted Stock Unit, timased restrictions requiring a minimum perio
service as a condition of settlement of any oRalbtricted Stock Units, and/or restrictions undpplicable Laws or under the requirements of
stock exchange or market, or holding requirementakte restrictions placed on any Shares issugbdeoompany upon vesting and in settleme
such Restricted Stock Units.
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(e)_Form and Timing of PaymenExcept as otherwise provided in Section 19 heseia Participang Award Agreement, payment of Restric
Stock Units shall be made at a specified settlerdate that shall not be earlier than the last day any timebased restrictions have lapsed.
Committee, in its sole discretion, may settle Retstd Stock Units by delivery of Shares or by pagimi@ cash of an amount equal to the
Market Value of such Shares (or a combination Wgrd’he Committee may provide that settlement etRcted Stock Units shall be defer
either on a mandatory basis or at the electiom@fRarticipant. Shares issued at the settlemeatstiall be subject to such continuing restrictias
shall be provided in a Participant’'s Award Agreetmen

(f) Voting Rights. A Participant shall have no voting rights witlspect to any Restricted Stock Units granted hereund

(g) Termination of Employment or Servicdeach Award Agreement shall set forth the extenivhich the Participant shall have the rigk
receive a payout respecting an Award of Restri@tmtk Units following termination of the Particigaemployment or, if the Participant i
Director or Consultant, service with the Companyg @a Subsidiaries. Such provisions shall be detezchin the sole discretion of the Commit
need not be uniform among all Restricted Stock4J@itd may reflect distinctions based on the reaBmrtermination of employment or service.

(h) Dividends and Other DistributionsShares underlying Restricted Stock Units shakitled to Dividends or other distributions omdythe
extent provided by the Committee. In the event thatCommittee decides to grant Restricted Stocikslthat are entitled to Dividends or ot
distributions, Dividends or other distributions thalate to performancleased Restricted Stock Units shall be subject ¢ostiime performan
conditions as the underlying Award.

10.Performance Shares.

(a) Grant of Performance ShareSubject to the terms and provisions of the PlRerformance Shares may be granted to Participargadt
amounts and upon such terms, and at any time andtime to time, as shall be determined by the Cittaen

(b) Award Agreement Each grant of Performance Shares shall be evidefhy an Award Agreement that shall specify theliegiple
Performance Period(s) and Performance Measurd(@)namber of Performance Shares granted and issudtie grant date, and such o
provisions as the Committee shall determine.

(c) Performance Period and Other Restrictiofdie Committee shall impose such conditions ant¥strictions on any Performance Sh
granted pursuant to the Plan as it may deem adeisabluding, without limitation, a requirement tHarticipants pay a stipulated purchase pric
each Performance Share, titn@sed restrictions requiring a minimum period o¥/®e as a condition of vesting of any or all Perfiance Share
and/or restrictions under Applicable Laws or uniier requirements of any stock exchange or market wghich the Shares are listed or trade
holding requirements or sale restrictions placedhenShares by the Company upon vesting of suclofence Shares. The Company may rt
in its custody any certificate evidencing the Shard place thereon a legend and institute stoysfer orders on such Shares, and the Parti
shall be obligated to sign any stock power requebiethe Company relating to the Shares to givecefto the forfeiture provisions and any o
restrictions of the Performance Shares.

(d) Removal of RestrictionsSubject to Applicable Laws, Performance Sharedl blecome freely transferable by the Participdtdarahe laps
of all of the restrictions applicable thereto.

(e) Voting Rights. Unless otherwise determined by the Committeesadorth in a Participart’ Award Agreement, to the extent permitte
required by Applicable Laws, as determined by tleen@ittee, Participants holding Performance Sharastgd hereunder may exercise full vo
rights with respect to those Shares.

(f) Dividends and Other DistributionsExcept as otherwise provided in a Participardtivard Agreement, to the extent permitted or nexg
under Applicable Laws, Participants holding Perfante Shares shall receive all regular cash Divisigradd with respect to all Shares while 1
are so held; provided, however, that all Dividendsther distributions shall be subject to the sperdormance conditions as the underlying Aw
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(g9)_Termination of Employment or ServicBach Award Agreement shall set forth the extenttich the Participant shall have the right tair
unvested Performance Shares following terminatiohe Participans employment or, if the Participant is a Consultaatvice with the Compa
and its Subsidiaries. Such provisions shall berdeted in the sole discretion of the Committee,cheet be uniform among all Participants,
may reflect distinctions based on the reasonsefonination of employment or service.

11.Performance Units.

(a) Grant of Performance UnitsSubject to the terms and conditions of the PRerformance Units may be granted to Participantsuirt
amounts and upon such terms, and at any time andtime to time, as shall be determined by the Cittaen

(b) Award Agreement Each grant of Performance Units shall be evidénog an Award Agreement that shall specify the nembi
Performance Units granted, the Performance Pejicai{d Performance Measure(s), the performance goadssuch other provisions as
Committee shall determine.

(c) Value of Performance UnitsThe Committee shall set performance goals idigsretion that, depending on the extent to whigly tare me
will determine the number and/or value of Perforo@bnits that will be paid out to the Participants.

(d) Form and Timing of PaymentExcept as otherwise provided in Section 19 heogira Participans Award Agreement, payment
Performance Units shall be made following the clob¢he applicable Performance Period on a setti¢rdate selected by the Committee.
Committee, in its sole discretion, may settle Pannce Units in cash or in Shares that have areggtg Fair Market Value equal to the valu
the Performance Units (or a combination thereolle Tommittee may provide that settlement of Perforee Units shall be deferred, either ¢
mandatory basis or at the election of the Partitipghares issued at the settlement date shallijecs to such continuing restrictions as sha
provided in a Participant’s Award Agreement.

(e) Voting Rights A Participant shall have no voting rights witlspect to any Performance Units granted hereunder.

(f) Termination of Employment or ServiceEach Award Agreement shall set forth the extentvhich the Participant shall have the rigk
receive a payout respecting an Award of Performdoois following termination of the Participastemployment or, if the Participant i
Consultant, service with the Company and its Sudseb. Such provisions shall be determined insible discretion of the Committee, need nc
uniform among all Performance Units and may reftistinctions based on reasons for terminatiomgbleyment or service.

(9) Dividends and Other DistributionsShares underlying Performance Units shall betledtto Dividends or other distributions only tce
extent provided by the Committee. In the event that Committee decides to grant Performance Uhis &re entitled to Dividends or ot
distributions, Dividends or other distributions ke subject to the same performance conditiorth@sinderlying Award.

12.Other Stock-Based Awards.

(a) Grant The Committee shall have the right to grant othwards that may include, without limitation, theagt of Shares based on attainn
of performance goals established by the Committezpayment of Shares as a bonus or in lieu of baskd on attainment of performance ¢
established by the Committee, and the payment afeShn lieu of cash under other Company incertiv@onus programs.

(b) Restrictions The Committee shall impose such conditions amdfstrictions on Other Stod&ased Awards granted pursuant to the Plar
may deem advisable including, without limitationyegquirement that Participants pay a stipulatechmse price for each Share subject tc
Award, timebased restrictions requiring a minimum period avi®e as a condition of vesting in any or all Slsasebject to the Award, and
restrictions under Applicable Laws or under theuregments of any stock exchange or market, or hgldequirements or sale restrictions place
any Shares issued by the Company upon vestingnesettiement of Other Stock-Based Awards.
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(c)_Payment of Other Sto@ased Awards Settlement of any such Awards shall be made @h smanner and at such times as the Comn
may determine. The Committee may provide thatesattht of Other StocBased Awards shall be deferred, either on a mandatsis or at tt
election of the Participant. Shares issued updtessnt shall be subject to such continuing retsns as shall be provided in a Participamwarc
Agreement.

(d) Termination of Employment or Servicdhe Committee shall determine the extent to whighParticipant shall have the right to rec
Other Stock-Based Awards following termination loé tParticipans employment or, if the Participant is a DirectoiGmnsultant, service with t
Company and its Subsidiaries. Such provisions dieliletermined in the sole discretion of the Comemjtsuch provisions may be included i
agreement entered into with each Participant, betimot be uniform among all Other Std®&sed Awards, and may reflect distinctions base
the reasons for termination of employment or servic

13. Dividend Equivalents. At the discretion of the Committee, Awards granpeoisuant to the Plan may provide Participants with right tc
receive Dividend Equivalents, which may be paidently or credited to an account for the Partictsaand may be settled in cash and/or Shar
determined by the Committee in its sole discretisnbject in each case to such terms and condittanghe Committee shall establ
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Dividend Equivaletitat relate to performanr-based Awards will either not be made at all orldbalsubject to tr
same performance conditions as the underlying Award

14.Performance-Based Exception.

(a) The Committee may specify that the attainmémtne or more of the Performance Measures set forthis Section 14 shall determine
degree of granting, vesting and/or payout with eespo Awards that the Committee intends will gyaior the Performanc&ased Exception. Tl
performance goals to be used for such Awards bleathosen from among the following performance mess(the “Performance Measuresbtal
shareholder return, stock price, net customer sal@lsime, gross profit, gross margin, operatingfiproperating margin, management pre
earnings from continuing operations before incomwee$, earnings from continuing operations, earnpgsshare from continuing operatic
earnings before interest and taxes (“EBIT”"), eagribefore interest, taxes, depreciation and anabidiz (“EBITDA”), net operating profit after te
net earnings, net earnings per share, return @tsassturn on investment, return on equity, returninvested capital, cost of capital, averagetal
employed, cash value added, economic value addedpmic profit, cash flow, cash flow from operasonvorking capital, working capital a:
percentage of net customer sales, asset growtht, tassover, market share, customer satisfactind,eanployee satisfaction. The targeted lev
levels of performance with respect to such PerfoiceaMeasures may be established at such levelomradich terms as the Committee |
determine, in its discretion, on a corporatele basis or with respect to one or more businests, divisions, subsidiaries, business segmet
functions, and in either absolute terms or relativehe current and/or historical performance oé @m more companies or an index cove
multiple companies. Performance measures thaireadial metrics may or may not be calculated icoadance with generally accepted accout
principles, at the Committee’s discretion. Awartiattare not intended to qualify for the PerformaBesed Exception may be based on the
such other performance measures as the Committeel@ermine.

(b) Unless otherwise determined by the Committeeasurement of performance goals with respect tdPdr@ormance Measures above ¢
exclude the impact of charges for restructurings;ahtinued operations, extraordinary items, argiotinusual or norecurring items, includin
for example, asset impairment charges and forceunaj as well as the cumulative effects of tax aroanting changes, each as determine
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptex or identified in the Compars/financial statements, notes to the financialestaints
management’s discussion and analysis or othegé§limith the SEC.

(c) Performance goals may differ for Awards graritedny one Participant or to different Particigant

(d) Achievement of performance goals in respe@wérds intended to qualify under the PerformaBesed Exception shall be measured o'
Performance Period specified in the Award Agreemant the goals shall be established not later Btrdays after the beginning of
Performance Period or, if less than 90 days, timebau of days which is equal to 25% of the rele\erformance Period applicable to the Award.
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(e) The Committee shall have the discretiomdfust the determinations of the degree of attamtnof the presstablished performance go
provided, however, that Awards that are designegutdify for the PerformancBased Exception may not be adjusted upward (thenditize may
in its discretion, adjust such Awards downward).

(f) The Committee shall certify the extent to whimhy Performance Measures have been satisfiedthanaimount payable as a result the
prior to payment, settlement or vesting of any Advtirat is intended to satisfy the PerformaBesed Exception. Shares issued upon full or p
achievement of the selected Performance Measwk&)) be subject to such continuing restrictionsiaall be provided in a ParticipasitAwarc
Agreement.

15. Transferability of Awards. Incentive Stock Options may not be sold, transtergedged, assigned, or otherwise alienated ootwgeatec
other than by will or by the laws of descent anstrdbution, and shall be exercisable during a Bigant’s lifetime only by such Participant. Ot
Awards shall be transferable to the extent providettie Award Agreement, except that no Award mayrbnsferred for consideration. Each Aw
may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assignedtherwise alienated or hypothecated by a Partitipther than by will or the laws of descent
distribution, and each Option or Stock AppreciatiRight shall be exercisable only by the Participduning his or her lifetime. Notwithstanding
foregoing, to the extent permitted by the Commijttee person to whom an Award (other than an lriieer§tock Option) is initially granted (t
“Grantee”) may transfer an Award to any “family meen’ of the Grantee (as such term is defined in Sedt{a)5) of the General Instructions
Form S-8 under the Securities Act of 1933, as ameftForm S-8"));provided that, (i) as a condition thereof, the $faror and the transferee
execute a written agreement containing such tesmaay be specified by the Committee, and (ii) ta@dfer is pursuant to a gift or a dome
relations order to the extent permitted under teadgal Instructions to Form S-8.

16. Taxes. The Company shall have the power and right, poathe delivery of Shares pursuant to an Award,gdudt or withhold, or require
participant to remit to the Company (or a Subsigiean amount (in cash or Shares) sufficient tsSatny applicable tax withholding requireme
applicable to an Award. Whenever under the Plammaangs are to be made in cash, such payments sha#éttof an amount sufficient to satisfy
applicable tax withholding requirements. Subjectdch restrictions as the Committee may prescaititarticipant may satisfy all or a portion of
tax withholding requirements for an Award payabiesettled in Shares by electing to have the Compuitiyhold Shares having a Fair Mar
Value equal to the amount to be withheld up torttieimum statutory tax withholding rate (or suchetlnate that will not cause the Award tc
accounted for under variable award account or atiserresult in a negative accounting impact).

17.Conditions Upon Issuance of Shares.

(a) Shares shall not be issued pursuant to theieresr settlement of an Award unless the exemisettiement of such Award and the issu.
and delivery of such Shares pursuant thereto sbatiply with all Applicable Laws, and shall be fiethsubject to the approval of counsel for
Company with respect to such compliance.

(b) As a condition to the exercise or settlemenamwfAward, the Company may require the person etegcsuch Award or receiving st
settlement to represent and warrant at the tinengfsuch exercise or settlement that the Shardsesmg acquired only for investment and witt
any present intention to sell or distribute suclargh if, in the opinion of counsel for the Compasych a representation is required by
Applicable Laws. The Company may also require thes@n exercising such Award or receiving such esattiht to acknowledge and affirm
restrictions applicable to the Shares issuable tipprexercise or settlement of an Award.

18. Adjustments Upon Changes in Capitalization Notwithstanding any other provision of the Planthe contrary, in the event of any men
reorganization, consolidation, recapitalizatioguidation, stock dividend, split-up, spaff, stock split, reverse stock split, share corakion, shar
exchange, extraordinary dividend, or any changeaéncorporate structure affecting the Shares, sdfistment shall be made in the number
kind of Shares or other securities or property thay be delivered under the Plan, the individualt§ set forth in Section 3(b), and, with respe
outstanding Awards, in the number and kind of Shareother securities or property subject to oatliteg Awards, the Exercise Price, grant pric
other price, if any, of Shares subject to outstagdiwards, any performance conditions relating har8s, the market price of Shares, or Plear
results, and other terms and conditions of outstgnélwards, as may be determined to be appropeaiateequitable by the Committee,
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in its sole discretion, to prevent dilution or eglement of rights; provided, however, that, unleiserwise determined by the Committee,
number of Shares or other securities or propefjestito any Award shall always be rounded dowa tehole number. Adjustments made by
Committee pursuant to this Section 18 shall bd fimading, and conclusive.

19.Change in Control, Cash-Out and Termination of Undewater Options/SARs, and Subsidiary Disposition.

(a) Change in Contral Except as otherwise provided in a Participgmtward Agreement or pursuant to Section 19(b) dferepon thi
occurrence of a Change in Control, unless othersggeeifically prohibited under Applicable Laws, oy the rules and regulations of any gover
governmental agencies or national securities exgdsn

(i) any and all outstanding Options and SARs grartereunder shall become immediately exercisablessrsuch Awards are assun
converted, replaced or continued by the contin@ntty; provided, however, that in the event of atigipants termination of employme
without Cause within twentfour (24) months following consummation of a Chamg€ontrol, any Awards so assumed, convertedaosnl o
continued will become immediately exercisable;

(ii) any Period of Restriction or other restrictionposed on Restricted Stock, Restricted Stockd)Rierformance Shares, Performance |
and Other StocBased Awards shall lapse unless such Awards awenask converted, replaced or continued by the oointi entity; provide(
however, that in the event of a Participant’s teation of employment without Cause within tweffityrr (24) months following consummati
of a Change in Control, the Period of Restrictiorany Awards so assumed, converted, replaced ¢inced shall lapse; and

(iii) the portion of any and all Performance Sharf@srformance Units and other Awards (if perfornedpased) that remain outstanc
following the occurrence of a Change in Controllisha determined by applying actual performancenfrine beginning of the Performal
Period through the date of the Change in Controiguthe formula set forth in the Award AgreemerRgfformance Measure Formulad
determine the amount of the payout or distributisunded to the nearest whole Share. Notwithstanitiagoregoing, if the Change in Con
occurs prior to the end of a Performance PeriogfoAward, the Performance Measure Formula shakgdly be adjusted to take into accc
the shorter period of time available to achieve Beformance Measures. If a quantitative Performakeasure Formula for the en
Performance Period has been determined by the Gomipa adding together one or more goals for Perforte Measures Performanc
Measure Goals”) for multiple time periods withiretRerformance Period (each a “subperiotfign the adjusted Performance Measure Fol
for a given level of performance shall be equah® sum of (1) the Performance Measure Goals fcin eampleted subperiod for such leve
performance and (2) a prorated Performance Mea&Soed (determined by the number of days in such exibg falling on or before tt
occurrence of the Change in Control divided byttital number of days in such subperiod) for suekllef performance for each subperiod
completed on or before the occurrence of the Chan@ontrol. If there are no subperiods, then tharjitative Performance Measure Forn
shall be prorated by taking the Performance Mea&oal for each specified level of performance foe £ntire Performance Period
multiplying it by a fraction, the numerator of whiés the number of days in the Performance Perdlthg on or before the occurrence of
Change in Control and the denominator of whicthétbtal number of days in the Performance Pefdlitative Performance Measures <
not be adjusted. In the unlikely event that the @any is unable to substantially adjust the targefdPmance Measure(s) for an Award as
forth above, then the portion of such Award thatllsfemain outstanding shall be based on the assomihat the target level of performai
for each Performance Measure for the entire Pedooma Period has been achieved.

The portion of the Award that remains outstandiolipfving the occurrence of a Change in Control etednined in the preceding paragr
shall vest in full at the end of the Performancedeeset forth in such Award so long as the Partint's employment (or if the Participant i
Director or Consultant, service) with the Companyadsubsidiary does not terminate until the enthefPerformance Period. Notwithstanc
the foregoing, such portion shall vest in full upive earliest to occur of the following events: (¢ termination of the Participant by
Company without Cause, (2) the refusal of the cmitig entity to assume, convert, replace or coetithe Award, or (3) if applicable, t
resignation of the Participant for a “good reas@s’described further in the following paragraph.
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With respect to paragraphs (i), (i) and (iii) oé&ion 19(a) above, the Award Agreement may protfide any replacement awards will bect
immediately exercisable or any Period of Restricsball lapse in the event of a termination of eyplent by the Participant for “good reasah”
and as such term is defined in the Award Agreereiainy employment agreement, severance agreemeitiaragreement or policy applicabli
such Participant.

(b) CaskDut and Termination of Underwater Options/SAR$e Committee may, in its sole discretion, previtdat (i) all outstanding Optic
and SARs shall be terminated upon the occurreneeGfiange in Control and that each Participant shedive, with respect to each Share su
to such Options or SARs, an amount in cash andhareS equal to the excess of the Fair Market Valua Share immediately prior to !
occurrence of the Change in Control over the Opfigarcise Price or the SAR grant price; and (ii}i@ps and SARs outstanding as of the da
the Change in Control may be cancelled and terméhaithout payment therefore if the Fair Market Mabf a Share as of the date of the Chan
Control is less than the Option Exercise PricherAR grant price.

(c) Subsidiary Disposition The Committee shall have the authority, exerdesaither in advance of any actual or anticipatetbs®liary
Disposition or at the time of an actual SubsidiBrgposition and either at the time of the grananfAward or at any time while an Award rem:
outstanding, to provide for the automatic full wegtand exercisability of one or more outstandinyasted Awards under the Plan and
termination of restrictions on transfer and repasghor forfeiture rights on such Awards, in conioectvith a Subsidiary Disposition, but only w
respect to those Participants who are at the tingaged primarily in Continuous Service with the Sdiary involved in such Subsidic
Disposition. The Committee also shall have the @uitihto condition any such vesting and exercisgbdr release from the limitations of an Aw
upon the continuation or subsequent terminatiothefaffected Participarst’ Continuous Service with that Subsidiary withispecified perio
following the effective date of the Subsidiary Dosfiion. The Committee may provide that any Awasdss/ested or released from such limitat
in connection with a Subsidiary Disposition, shiathain fully exercisable until the expiration orlea termination of the Award.

20. Amendment, Suspension or Termination of the Plan.

(a) Amendment, Modification and TerminatioThe Board or the Committee may at any time aonchftime to time, alter, amend, suspen
terminate the Plan in whole or in part; providedwhkver, that no amendment that requires stockhalgeroval in order for the Plan to continu
comply with the New York Stock Exchange listingratards or any rule promulgated by the SEC or aoyrites exchange on which Shares
listed or any other Applicable Laws shall be effeztinless such amendment shall be approved iethasite vote of stockholders of the Comg
entitled to vote thereon within the time perioduiegd under such applicable listing standard oe.riunless the Board or the Committee a
resolutions providing for an earlier date, the Raall automatically terminate on November 14, 202% purposes of Section 422 of the Code
also relevant provisions of Applicable Laws, thepgtibn of the Plan as approved by the stockholderslovember 14, 2012 shall be deemed !
the adoption of a new plan.

(b) Adjustment of Awards Upon the Occurrence oft@iarUnusual or Nonrecurring Event$he Committee may make adjustments in the t
and conditions of, and the criteria included in, ads in recognition of unusual or nonrecurring eés€mcluding, without limitation, the evel
described in Section 18 hereof) affecting the Camgpar the financial statements of the Company ashainges in Applicable Laws, regulations
accounting principles, whenever the Committee daters that such adjustments are appropriate inr aoderevent dilution or enlargement of
benefits or potential benefits intended to be madslable under the Plan. With respect to any Awantended to comply with the Performance-
Based Exception, unless otherwise determined b timemittee, any such exception shall be specifteieh times and in such manner as will
cause such Awards to fail to qualify under the &entince-Based Exception.

(c) Awards Previously GrantedNo termination, amendment or modification of flan or of any Award shall adversely affect in angteria
way any Award previously granted under the Plarhetit the written consent of the participant holdswgh Award, unless such terminat
modification or amendment is required by Applicabdevs and except as otherwise provided herein.
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(d)_No Repricing The Company shall not, without the approval & stockholders of the Company, reduce the ExeRiige of an outstandil
Option or the grant price of an outstanding SARdAat any time when the Exercise Price of an ontbitey Option or the grant price of
outstanding SAR is above the Fair Market Value share of Common Stock, no amendment shall pratideany such outstanding Optior
outstanding SAR be cancelled andgrented or exchanged for either cash or a new Awgéttda lower (or no) exercise price, without thEpeova
of the stockholders of the Company.

(e) Compliance with the PerformanBased Exceptionlf it is intended that an Award comply with thequirements of the PerformanBaset
Exception, the Committee may apply any restrictidndeems appropriate such that the Awards maingdigibility for the Performanc®&asel
Exception. If changes are made to Code Sectionm)p@( regulations promulgated thereunder, the Cdtemimay, subject to the other provisi
of this Section 20, make any adjustments to then Rlad/or Award Agreements it deems appropriate tluets not prevent the Plan or
outstanding Awards intended to comply with the &enlance-Based Exception from complying with Secti6@(m) of the Code.

21.Reservation of Shares.

(a) The Company, during the term of the Plan, atilall times reserve and keep available such nuwib8hares as shall be sufficient to sa
the requirements of the Plan.

(b) The inability of the Company to obtain authyffitom any regulatory body having jurisdiction, whiauthority is deemed by the Company’
counsel to be necessary to the lawful issuancesaledof any Shares hereunder, shall relieve thep@agnof any liability in respect of the failure
issue or sell such Shares as to which such reguaisthority shall not have been obtained.

22.Rights of Participants.

(a) Continued Service The Plan shall not confer upon any Participant aght with respect to continuation of employmemtconsulting
relationship with the Company, nor shall it inteefén any way with his or her right or the Compansight to terminate his or her employmer
consulting relationship at any time, with or with@ause.

(b) Participant No Employee, Director or Consultant shall hawe tight to be selected to receive an Award undePian, or, having been
selected, to be selected to receive future Awards.

23. SuccessorsAll obligations of the Company under the Plan arnthwespect to Awards shall be binding on any sssceto the Compar
whether the existence of such successor is thét mfsal direct or indirect purchase, merger, coisdion, or other event, or a sale or dispositi€
all or substantially all of the business and/oe&ssf the Company and references to the “Comphaygin and in any Award Agreements sha
deemed to refer to such successors.

24.Legal Construction.

(a) Gender, Number and Referencdsxcept where otherwise indicated by the contamy, masculine term used herein also shall inclbd
feminine, the plural shall include the singular &nel singular shall include the plural. Any refezerin the Plan to a Section of the Plan eithehé
Plan or any Award Agreement or to an act or cod® @ny section thereof or rule or regulation theder shall be deemed to refer to such Se
of the Plan, act, code, section, rule or regulatamnmay be amended from time to time, or to amgessor Section of the Plan, act, code, se
rule or regulation.

(b) Severability. In the event any provision of the Plan shall b&lhllegal or invalid for any reason, the illegglor invalidity shall not affe
the remaining parts of the Plan, and the Plan $leatlonstrued and enforced as if the illegal oalidvprovision had not been included.

(c) Requirements of LawThe granting of Awards and the issuance of Sharessh under the Plan shall be subject to alllidpple Laws an
to such approvals by any governmental agencieatimmal securities exchanges as may be required.
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(d) Governing Law To the extent not preempted by federal law, tlae,Pand all agreements hereunder, shall be catsiruaccordance wi
and governed by the laws of the State of Delanwaxteluding any conflicts or choice of law rule oingiple that might otherwise refer construc
or interpretation of this Plan to the substantas bf another jurisdiction.

(e) NonExclusive Plan Neither the adoption of the Plan by the Boarditeosubmission to the stockholders of the Comganypproval sha
be construed as creating any limitations on thegvay the Board or a committee thereof to adophsather incentive arrangements as it may ¢
desirable.

(f) Code Section 409A ComplianceTo the extent applicable, it is intended thas fRlan and any Awards granted hereunder eithexdm
from the requirements of, or else comply with tleguirements of, Section 409A of the Code and atgte@ regulations or other guidal
promulgated with respect to such Section by the D&partment of the Treasury or the Internal ReeeBarvice (“Section 409A"Any provisior
that would cause any Award granted hereunder tor indditional taxes under Section 409A shall havdance or effect until amended to comr
with Section 409A, which amendment may be retroadi the extent permitted by Section 409A.
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GLOSSARY OF DEFINED TERMS
1. Definitions. As used in the Plan, the following definitions $legply:

“ Applicable Laws’ means the legal requirements relating to the adtnittion of stock incentive plans, if any, undeplagable provisions ¢
federal securities laws, state corporate and gezsutaws, the Code, and the rules of any applecatiick exchange or national market system.

“ Award " means, individually or collectively, Nonqualifiedd8k Options, Incentive Stock Options, Stock Appaton Rights, Restricte
Stock, Restricted Stock Units, Performance Sh&edprmance Units and Other Stock-Based Awardstgdaimder the Plan.

“ Award Agreement means an agreement entered into by the Compang Badgtticipant setting forth the terms and provisiapplicable to ¢
Award.

“ Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

“ Cause” means (i) the willful and continued failure ofetlParticipant substantially to perform the Par#aifs duties with the Company (ot
than any such failure resulting from incapacity dughysical or mental iliness), after a writtenmdd for substantial performance is delivere
the Participant by the Chief Executive Officer bétCompany, a member of the Committee, or anothioezed officer of the Company, wh
specifically identifies the manner in which the denbelieves that the Participant has not subsinperformed the Participastduties; or (ii) th
willful engaging by the Participant in illegal camt or gross misconduct which is materially and destrably injurious to the Company.

No act or failure to act on the part of the Paptcit shall be considered to “willful” unless it is done, or omitted to be done, by theidhsant ir
bad faith or without reasonable belief that thetiBigant’s action or omission was in the best interesthef@ompany. Any act or failure to
based upon authority given pursuant to a resolutioly adopted by the Board or upon the instructiohgshe Chief Executive Officer of t
Company or the Committee or another authorized®ffof the Company or based upon the advice ofssldar the Company shall be conclusiy
presumed to be done or omitted to be done by théipant in good faith and in the best interedtthe Company. The cessation of employme
the Participant shall not be deemed to be for Can$ess and until the Chief Executive Officer, Vigeesident of Human Resources and Ge
Counsel unanimously agree that, in their good fagmion, the Participant is guilty of the conddetscribed in subsections (i) or (ii) above, an
notify the Participant specifying the particuldngreof in detail.

“ Change in Control means

(@) The acquisition by any individual, entity or gro(waithin the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d){2}the Exchange Act ) (a “Persgn”
of beneficial ownership (within the meaning of Raf&d-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act) of (i) 50%itier the total fair mark
value or the combined voting power of the then tamding voting securities of the Company entitied/dte generally in the election
directors (the “Outstanding Company Voting Secesit), or (ii) during a 12 month period ending on the dafethe most rece
acquisition by such Person, 30% of the Outstanating Securities; provided, however, that for mses of this subsection (a),
following acquisitions shall not constitute a Charg Control: (i) any acquisition directly from ti@ompany, (ii) any acquisition by t
Company, including any acquisition which, by redgcthe number of shares outstanding, is the salsecéor increasing the percent
of shares beneficially owned by any such Persomdoe than the applicable percentage set forth ab@ieany acquisition by ar
employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsaechaintained by the Company or any corporatiortroied by the Company or (i
any acquisition by any corporation pursuant toamgaction which complies with clauses (i), (ii) afi@ of subsection (c) of th
definition; or

(b) Individuals who, as of the date hereof, constitbeeBoard (the “Incumbent Board€ease for any reason within any period of 12 m¢
to constitute at least a majority of the Board;vied, however, that any individual becoming a dive subsequent to the date he
whose election, or nomination for election by thempanys stockholders, was approved by a vote of at leasajority of the directo
then comprising the Incumbent Board, shall be aersd a:
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(d)

though such individual were a member of the Incumi®oard, but excluding, for this purpose, any simtividual whose initic
assumption of office occurs as a result of an dauahreatened election contest with respect odtection or removal of directors
other actual or threatened solicitation of proxiesonsents by or on behalf of a Person other tie®Board.

Consummation by the Company of a merger, consddidair reorganization or other transaction involyvithe Company and anotl
business or the acquisition of the securities eetssof another business (a “Business Combination8ach case, unless, following s
Business Combination, (i) more than 50% of, respelgt, the then outstanding shares of common séwmeckthe combined voting powel
the then outstanding voting securities entitleddte generally in the election of directors, as ¢hee may be, of the controlling pal
entity resulting from such Business Combinatiorl(iding without limitation, a corporation which asesult of such transaction owns
Company or all or substantially all of the Companyssets either directly or through one or moresididries) is represented
Outstanding Company Common Stock and Outstandimgp@ay Voting Securities, respectively, that wertstanding immediately pri
to such Business Combination (or, if applicablerepresented by shares into which such Outstan@mmpany Common Stock a
Outstanding Company Voting Securities were condeptigrsuant to such Business Combination) and sucteiship of common sto
and voting power among the holders thereof is bstantially the same proportions as their ownetrshimediately prior to such Busine
Combination, of the Outstanding Company Common IStmed Outstanding Company Voting Securities, ascdme may be, (ii) 1
Person (excluding any employee benefit plan (oateel trust) of the Company or such controlling parmntity resulting from sut
Business Combination) beneficially owns, directhyirairectly, 20% or more of, respectively, thernhmitstanding voting securities of
controlling parent entity resulting from such Buesss Combination or except to the extent that swehecship existed prior to t
Business Combination and (iii) at least a majooitghe members of the board of directors (or singlaverning body) of the controllil
parent entity resulting from such Business Comimnaivere members of the Incumbent Board at the tinthe execution of the initi
agreement, or of the action of the Board, providorgsuch Business Combination;

Sale or other disposition of all or substantiallyoathe assets of the Compat

“ Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as agtend

“ Committee” means the Committee, as specified in Section, 2fg)ointed by the Board to administer the Plan.

“ Company” means The Clorox Company and any successor thaseprovided in Section 23 herein.

“ Consultant’ means any consultant or advisor to the Compargy $ubsidiary.

“ Continuous Servicé means that the provision of services to the Compamginy Subsidiary in any capacity of Employee,ebior o

Consultant is not interrupted or terminated. Cartirs Service shall not be considered interruptetlarcase of (i) any leave of absence approwv:
the Company or (ii) transfers between locationshef Company or between the Company, any Subsidisrgny successor. A leave of abse
approved by the Company shall include sick leaviitamy leave, or any other personal leave approligdan authorized representative of
Company. For purposes of Incentive Stock Optionssuch leave may exceed ninety (90) days, unlesaployment upon expiration of such le
is guaranteed by statute or contract.

“ Director ” means any individual who is a member of the BaafrBirectors of the Company or a Subsidiary whoasan Employee.

“ Dividend " means the dividends declared and paid on Shatgec to an Award.

“ Dividend Equivalent means, with respect to Shares subject to an Avearight to be paid an amount equal to the Dividedetdared and pa

on an equal number of outstanding Shares pridrddssuance of Shares.

“ Employee” means any employee of the Company or a Subsidiary
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“ Exchange Act means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asdet:
“ Exercise Pricé means the price at which a Share may be purchageadParticipant pursuant to an Option.

“ Fair Market Valug’ means, as of any date, the value of a Sharerdated as follows:

(@) Where there exists a public market for the Shdwe Rair Market Value shall be (A) the closing salese for a Share on the date of
determination (or, if no sales were reported ort tizde, on the last trading date on which saleseweported) on the New York Stc
Exchange, the NASDAQ Global Market or the princigakurities exchange on which the Share is listedtrhding, whichever
applicable, or (B) if the Share is not traded oy anch exchange or national market system, theageeof the closing bid and asl
prices of a Share on the NASDAQ Capital Marketeath case, as reported in The Wall Street Joumalich other source as
Committee deems reliable;

(b) In the absence of an established market of the dgseribed above, for the Share, the Fair Markéud/thereof shall be determined
the Committee in good faith, and such determinatival be conclusive and binding on all persi

“ Freestanding SARmeans a SAR that is granted independently of@pijons, as described in Section 7 herein.

“ Incentive Stock Optiori or “ 1ISO ” means an Option intended to qualify as an incergigek option within the meaning of Section 422he
Code.

“ Nongualified Stock Optiofi means an Option that is not intended to meetéhj@irement of Section 422 of the Code.

“ Option” means an Incentive Stock Option or a Nonqualifsedck Option granted under the Plan, as descith&ection 6 herein.

“ Option Proceed’ means the cash received by the Company as payrtrg BExercise Price upon exercise of an Optioa Brior Plan optic
plus the federal tax benefit that could be realizgdhe Company as a result of the Option of PRilan option exercise, which shall be determ
by multiplying the amount that is deductible asautt of the Option or Prior Plan option exerciser{ently equal to the amount upon which
Participants withholding tax obligation is calculated) by fimaximum federal corporate income tax rate for tharyof exercise. To the extent th
Participant pays the Exercise Price and/or withingldaxes with Shares, Option Proceeds shall naatmilated with respect to the amount pa
such manner.

“ Other StockBased Award means a Share-based or Share-related Award grantsuant to Section 12 herein.

“ Participant’ means a current or former Employee, Director on§lltant who has rights relating to an outstandivwgrd.

“ PerformanceBased Exceptiohmeans the performance-based exception from thdeductibility limitations of Code Section 162(m).

“ Performance Measuréshall have the meaning set forth in Section 14(a)

“ Performance Perioimeans the period during which a performance nreaswst be met.

“ Performance Sharemeans an Award granted to a Participant, as destin Section 10 herein.

“ Performance Unit means an Award granted to a Participant, as de=tin Section 11 herein.

“ Period of Restrictiorf means the period Restricted Stock, RestrictediStimits or Other StocBased Awards are subject to a substantia
of forfeiture and are not transferable.

“ Plan” means The Clorox Company 2005 Stock IncentivePla

A-17




“ Prior Plans’ means The Clorox Company 1996 Stock Incentive Plae, Clorox Company 1987 Long Term Compensatiorgiara, Thi
Clorox Company Independent Directors’ Stock-Baseth@@ensation Plan, and the 1993 Directors’ Stockab®lan.

“ Restricted Stock means an Award granted to a Participant, as destin Section 8 herein.

“ Restricted Stock Unitsmeans an Award granted to a Participant, as destin Section 9 herein.

“ SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchaogen@ission.
“ Share” means a share of common stock of the Companyadae $1.00 per share, subject to adjustment patdo Section 18 herein.

“ Stock Appreciation Right or “ SAR " means an Award granted to a Participant, eithemealar in connection with a related Option
described in Section 7 herein.

“ Subsidiary” means any corporation in which the Company ownesgcty or indirectly, at least fifty percent (50%) the total combined voti
power of all classes of stock, or any other ertitgluding, but not limited to, partnerships andjosentures) in which the Company owns, dire
or indirectly, at least fifty percent (50%) of tlequity securities thereof. Notwithstanding the fmieg, for purposes of determining whether
individual may be a Participant for purposes of gmnt of Incentive Stock Options, the term “Sulzsig’ shall have the meaning ascribed to ¢
term in Code Section 424(f).

“ Subsidiary Dispositiori means (i) the disposition by the Company of somallasf its equity holdings in any Subsidiary effed by a merge
consolidation or a similar transaction involvin@ttSubsidiary, (ii) the Compars/sale or distribution of substantially all of thetstanding capit
stock of such Subsidiary, in either case such the@tSubsidiary is not longer a Subsidiary followisigch transaction, or (iii) the sale of al
substantially all of the assets of that Subsidiary.

“ Tandem SAR’ means a SAR that is granted in connection witblated Option, as described in Section 7 herein.

“ Voting Securities' means voting securities of the Company entittesdte generally in the election of Directors.
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Appendix B

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Clorox Company
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@dition and Results of Operations (MD&A) is desidrio provide a reader of the Company
financial statements with a narrative from the pecsive of management on the Companfnancial condition, results of operations, lidjty anc
certain other factors that may affect future resulh certain instances, parenthetical referencesnede to relevant sections of the Note
Consolidated Financial Statements to direct theleedo a further detailed discussion. This sectstwould be read in conjunction with
Consolidated Financial Statements and Suppleme@atg included in this Annual Report on Form K.OThe following sections are includ
herein:

e Executive Overview

e Results of Operations

e Financial Position and Liquidity

e Contingencies

e Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MafRisk
e New Accounting Pronouncements

e Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

e Summary of Non-GAAP Financial Measures
EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

The Clorox Company (the Company or Clorox) is alieg manufacturer and marketer of consumer ancepsidgnal products with approximat
8,400 employees worldwide as of June 30, 2012, feswdl year 2012 net sales of $5,468. Clorox sidlsproducts primarily through me
merchandisers, grocery stores, other retail outthssributors and medical supply providers. Cloroarkets some of consumersbst trusted ar

recognized brand names, including its namesakeciblaad cleaning products, Clorox Healthcare™, Meaik ® , Aplicare® and DispatcH®
products, Green Work& naturally derived home care products, Pine&deaners, Poef home care products, Fresh Stegat litter, Glad® bags
wraps and containers, Kingsfofticharcoal, Hidden Vallef and K C Masterpiec® dressings and sauces, Bftavaterfiltration products, ar
Burt's Bees® and gid® natural personal care products. The Company matuézcproducts in more than two dozen countriesraakets them |
more than 100 countries.

The Company primarily markets its leading brandsmidsized categories considered to have attraeaenomic profit potential. Most of t
Company'’s products compete with other nationallyeatised brands within each category and with ‘@iéviabel” brands.
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The Company operates through strategic businegs that are aggregated into four reportable segnéZieaning, Household, Lifestyle ¢
International. Beginning in the fourth quarter @fchl year 2012, natural personal care financisililte outside the U.S. are being reported it
International segment rather than in the Lifespdgment because management of the Internationalesggnow has primary oversight of the nat
personal care financial results outside the U.Sp@atiods presented have been recast to reflecictiange. The four reportable segments cons
the following:

e Cleaningconsists of laundry, home care and professionadyms marketed and sold in the United States. Rteduithin this segme
include laundry additives, including bleach proguahder the Cloro® brand and Clorox £ stain fighter and color booster; home
products, primarily under the Clor&k, Formula 409, Liquid-Plumr® , Pine-Sol® , S.0.S® and Tilex® brands; naturally derived hol
care products under the Green Wdfksrand; and professional cleaning and disinfectiraglpcts under the ClordX, Dispatch® , Aplicare
®  HealthLink® and Clorox HealthcarE brands.

e Householdconsists of charcoal, cat litter and plastic bagsps and container products marketed and soldariunited States. Produ
within this segment include plastic bags, wraps emdtainers under the Gldbrand; cat litter products under the Fresh SteScooj
Away ® and Ever Cleaff brands; and charcoal products under the Kingsfamdd Match Ligh® brands.

e Lifestyleconsists of food products, watiltration systems and filters and natural persorele products marketed and sold in the Ul
States. Products within this segment include dngssand sauces, primarily under the Hidden Valleynd K C Masterpiec® and Soy Va
® prands; water-filtration systems and filters unther Brita® brand; and natural personal care products undeBtines Bees® and gid®
brands.

e International consists of products sold outside the United St®esducts within this segment include laundry, koare, watefiltration,
charcoal and cat litter products, dressings andesaplastic bags, wraps and containers and natarabnal care products, primarily ur

the Clorox® , Javex®, Glad®, PinoLuz®, Ayudin®, Limpido®, Clorinda®, Poett® , Mistolin ®, Lestoil®, Bon Bril®, Nevex® , Brita
®  Green Work® , Pine-Sol®, Agua Jan€ , Chux®, Kingsford® , Fresh Stef¥, Scoop Away® , Ever Clear® , K C Masterpiecé ,
Hidden Valley® and Burt's Bee® brands.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

This Executive Overview, the succeeding section8IDRA and Exhibit 99.3 include certain financial asres that are not defined by accout
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica (U.S. GAAP). These measures, which aferred to as noGAAP measures, are lis
below.

e Economic profit (EP)

e Free cash flow

e Free cash flow as a percentage of net sales

e Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) margiBI{Eas a percentage of net sales)

Where indicated each of the following financial me@s is presented on a U.S. GAAP basis as wallrmmGAAP basis to exclude the fiscal y
2011 noncash goodwill impairment charge:

e Earnings from continuing operations
e Diluted net earnings per share from continuing @iens

e Earnings from continuing operations before incomees

For a discussion of these measures and the reazamsgement believes they are useful to investefsr to “Summary of NoiGGAAP Financia
Measures’below. This MD&A and Exhibit 99.3 include reconatiions to the most directly comparable financiabmees calculated and prese
in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

B-2




Strategic Goals and Initiatives — Centennial Stratgy

Since 2006, Clorox has been operating under itdeDaral Strategy, which guides its strategic cheiaed financial goals to drive growth thro
its 100-year anniversary in fiscal year 2013.

In May 2012, the Company updated its financial goaicluding a target for annual organic sales g¢inow the range of 3-5 percent; 85-basi
points of annual improvement in EBIT margin; aneeficash flow as a percentage of net sales dRlffiercent, which the Company anticipates t
to invest in the business, maintain debt leveragjaimits target range and return cash to shareslthrough dividends and share repurchases.

Clorox continues to reshape its portfolio towardrenstrategic businesses aligned with the four amesumegatrends of health & wellne
sustainability, the multicultural marketplace arfbralability/value. The Company is also focusedtba growth pillars of U.S. Retail, Professic
Products and International businesses: growing Refail through execution of its “30femand creation model; growing Professional Pradiy
expanding its healthcare business organically Braligh bolten acquisitions; and growing International by fdngson existing markets where
Company has significant scale and competitive atdegm

Clorox also will continue enhancing its capabibtilm the “3Ds”: Desire, Decide and Delight, as a means of incrgasonsumer loyalty. 3
capabilities include breakthrough marketing comroatibons to drive consumetesire, stand-out product packaging andsiere promotions
compel purchase decisions at the pointdetideand superior quality products ttelight consumers. Moreover, Clorox aims to accelera
innovation efforts and has raised its annual tafigesales growth from new products from 2 perderg percent.

Looking forward, the Company will continue to exezagainst its strategy to deliver profitable giowhd long-term shareholder value.
Fiscal Year 2012 Financial Highlights

The Company reported earnings from continuing djmers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 5df3%and diluted net earnings per share
continuing operations of $4.10 based on weightetage diluted shares outstanding of approximatg® rhillion. This compares to earnings fr
continuing operations for the fiscal year endedeJa®, 2011, of $287 and diluted net earnings paresfrom continuing operations of $2.07 b
on weighted average diluted shares outstandingmfoaimately 138 million. Excluding the noncash dail impairment charge of $258, which
Company recorded in fiscal year 2011, the Compapynted earnings from continuing operations of $64%$3.93 diluted net earnings per sl
from continuing operations for the fiscal year eshdane 30, 2011.

In fiscal year 2012, the Company delivered soliohgh and remains focused on rebuilding marginsiteespntinuing to face a challenging busir
and consumer environment. The Company addressed tillenges through the execution of the 3D ddnecagation model, implementation
price increases, product innovation and productavgments that meet consumer demands and delilwgg t@consumers, as well as cost strut
management.

Key fiscal year 2012 results are summarized aeviali

e The Companys fiscal year 2012 net sales grew 5% with increasedl four reportable segments as a result afhsly improving U.S
categories, successful pricing execution, strorgg bausiness results and the benefit of the reaentisitions of HealthLink, Aplicare, In
and Soy Vay Enterprises, Inc.

e The Companys gross margin decreased to 42.1% in fiscal yeb? #@m 43.5% in fiscal year 2011, reflecting highests for commoditie
manufacturing and logistics. These results werggtigroffset by the benefit of price increases andt savings.

e The Company responded to cost pressures by takioigpg actions, which resulted in a gross margindfi¢ of approximately $150, a
aggressively managing costs, which generated appabdely $100 of cost savings.
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e EP increased to $402 in fiscal year 2012 compareg893 in fiscal year 2011 (Refer to the recontidiaof EP to earnings from continui
operations before income taxes in Exhibit 99.3).

e The Company delivered diluted net earnings peresfram continuing operations in fiscal year 20124f10, an increase of approxima
4% from fiscal year 2011 diluted net earnings s of $3.93, excluding the fiscal year 2011 nehaoodwill impairment charge.

e Free cash flow was $428 or 8% of net sales inffigear 2012, a decline from $462 or 9% of net saldiscal year 2011 (Refer td-tee cas
flow” below).

e The Company returned $315 in dividends to stockdrslénd in May 2012 announced an increase of n@é#lin the cash dividend to $2
per share from $2.40 per share. In addition, usliegremaining proceeds from the Companiovember 2010 sale of its global auto
businesses (Auto Businesses), the Company repaattesproximately 2.4 million shares of its commuock at a cost of approximat:
$158. In fiscal year 2012, the Company repurchasé¢gdtal of 3.4 million shares of its common stotkaacost of approximately $2:
reducing total common shares outstanding by afnE¥ofor the fiscal year.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Management’s discussion and analysis of the Conipaegults of operations, unless otherwise notedpenes fiscal year 2012 to fiscal year 2!
and fiscal year 2011 to fiscal year 2010, using@etage and basis point changes calculated omaedwbasis, except as noted.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
Continuing Operations

Net Sales
Fy1o | s 5.2:
Fy11 |, 55.231
Fv2 Y §;.:s:

Net salesin fiscal year 2012 increased 5%. Volume incre&éd driven by higher shipments in the professigmatucts business, primarily due
the recent acquisitions of HealthLink and Aplicalrs;.; higher shipments of ClordX disinfecting wipes behind strong merchandisingvitiis;
higher shipments in Argentina; higher shipment&efish Steff cat litter behind new product innovation; higheipshents of Burt's Bee® natura
personal care products, primarily driven by incegamerchandising and new products, including thadh of the gi® natural personal care lir
and higher shipments of the on-the-go Bfft&Bottle. These increases were partially offset byeo shipments of Cloro® laundry additive:
primarily due to price increases; lower shipmemighie nonstrategic export business; lower shipmehtSlad ® base trash bags due to p
increases; lower shipments in Venezuela, primakilyen by the Venezuelan government’s new pricerobtaw; and lower shipments of Pirgs!

® cleaners, primarily due to price increases. Netssgtowth outpaced volume growth primarily duehi® tbenefit of price increases (approxime
480 basis points), partially offset by unfavorapteduct mix (approximately 110 basis points) arghkr tradgaromotion spending (approximat
60 basis points).

Net sales in fiscal year 2011 were flat, primadle to the benefit of price increases offset byavofable product mix, the impact of customer -
up allowances and unfavorable foreign exchanges ratémarily related to Venezuela. Volume was dlag which reflected higher shipments
Burt’s Bees® natural personal care products, primarily driverlipypalm strength and international market growtigher shipments of Pine-S8I
cleaners, primarily due to increased merchandieirepts and
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distribution gains; and higher shipments of Fresép$ cat litter, driven by product improvements and @asred merchandising events. Tl
increases were offset by lower shipments of Glddod storage products and Gl8drash bags, primarily due to competitive activiGategor
consumption on an all-outlet basis was down appmately 2% for fiscal year 2011; however, the Conypiacreased its albutlet market share |
approximately 0.5%. In addition, strong retaileraandising in the prior fiscal year, primarilyatgdd to Kingsfor® charcoal products and Hidc
Valley ® bottled salad dressings, contributed to the Comigdtat sales.

Gross margin
Fyio | 30
Fyi1 | :3.5%%
Fyi [ : 1%

Gross profitincreased 1% in fiscal year 2012, from $2,273 t¢B®2, and gross margin, defined as gross profia gercentage of net sa
decreased 140 basis points to 42.1%. Gross maogitnaction in fiscal year 2012 reflects 220 basims from higher commodity costs, 180 b
points from higher manufacturing and logistics sastd 90 basis points from unfavorable product fMbese factors were partially offset by .
and 160 basis points from the benefits of pricedases and cost savings, respectively.

Gross profit decreased 2% in fiscal year 2011, f®2i319 to $2,273, and gross margin decreased 8@ paints to 43.5%. Gross matr
contraction in fiscal year 2011 reflects 160 bamits from higher commodity costs and 60 basisiggofrom unfavorable product mix. Th
factors were partially offset by 170 basis poim&sif cost savings and 80 basis points from the liesfgfrice increases.

Diluted net earnings per share from continuing opions

The following table includes a reconciliation ofutiéd net earnings per share from continuing opsratto diluted net earnings per share 1
continuing operations before the noncash goodmiflairment charge of $258 recognized in fiscal y@&Hrl:

2012 2011 2010
Diluted net earnings per share from continuing apens $ 4.1C $ 207 $ 3.6¢
Add back: Noncash goodwill impairment per share — 1.8¢ —
Diluted net earnings per share from continuing apens

before noncash goodwill impairment $ 4.1C $ 3.9¢ $ 3.6¢
Percent change from prior fiscal year 4.2% 6.5% 10.8%

Excluding the fiscal year 2011 noncash goodwill @nment charge, the Compasydiluted net earnings per share from continuingraton:
increased $0.17 in fiscal year 2012, driven byepiicreases implemented across the portfolio, higbleime, strong cost savings, share repurcl
and a lower effective tax rate. These factors vpamially offset by higher commodity costs; inflatary pressures impacting manufacturing
logistics costs; and higher selling and administeatosts, primarily due to higher employee incenttompensation costs and investments il
Company’s information technology (IT) systems antew facility located in Pleasanton, Calif.

Excluding the fiscal year 2011 noncash goodwill @ainment charge, the Compasydiluted net earnings per share from continuingragion:
increased $0.24 in fiscal year 2011, primarily dnvby cost savings, the benefit of price increaseger employee incentive compensation ci
lower interest expense, a lower effective tax gae share repurchases. These increases werelpaftisét by higher commodity costs, unfavore
product mix and higher manufacturing and logistiosts.
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Free cash flow

2012 2011 2010
Net cash provided by continuing operatit $ 62C $ 69C $ 764
Less: capital expenditures (192) (228) (207)
Free cash flow $ 42t $ 462 $ 562
Free cash flow as a percentage of net sales 7.8% 8.8% 10.8%

Free cash flow as a percentage of net sallexreased in fiscal year 2012, primarily due todptax payments in fiscal year 2011, resulting 1
favorable tax depreciation rules, and the timinggafpayments in the current year.

Free cash flow as a percentage of net sales dedr@afiscal year 2011, primarily due to changewanking capital and higher capital expenditi
for investments in IT systems and the new Pleasdaiility.

Expenses
Change % of Net sales
2012 2011
to to
2012 2011 2010 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010

Selling and administrative expenses $ 79¢ $ T3E $ 734 9% —%  14.% 14.% 14.%
Advertising costs 482 50z 494 4 2 8.8 9.€ 9.4
Research and development costs 121 11F 11¢ 5 ©) 2.2 2.2 2.3

Selling and administrative expensincreased in fiscal year 2012, driven by higher leyge incentive compensation costs and investniertts
Company’s IT systems and the new Pleasanton faqilértially offset by cost savings.

Selling and administrative expenses remained ffldiscal year 2011, as increased investments isyBlems and the new Pleasanton facility
offset by lower employee incentive compensatioriscand cost savings, primarily from the Compangstnucturing activities.

Advertising costdecreased as a percentage of net sales in fiszaP9a2, primarily driven by reduced media spending
Advertising costs increased in fiscal year 2011theasCompany increased its investment behind n@dymts and its established brands, prim
related to Hidden Valle and K C Masterpiec® dressings and sauces, the on-the-go BriBottle, and International initiatives. These inere

were partially offset by decreased investment ieEreen Work® natural cleaning products and Gf&atrash bags, and cost savings.

Research and development coremained flat as a percentage of net sales inlfigza 2012 as the Company continues to supponieis product
and established brands with an emphasis on inravati

Research and development costs decreased in fiseal 2011, primarily due to lower employee incemtsompensation costs and decre
investment behind Green WorRsnatural cleaning products, partially offset by #msed investment behind Burt's Béesatural personal ce
products, BritéP water-filtration products and International initiegs.

Goodwill impairment, interest expense, other (incejrexpense, net, and the effective tax rate on medfrom continuing operations

2012 2011 2010
Goodwill impairment $ — $ 2656 $ —
Interest expense 12t 12¢ 13¢
Other (income) expense, net (13 (29) 29
Income taxes from continuing operations 24¢ 27€ 27¢
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Goodwill impairment

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2012, bempany completed its annual impairment test ofdgadlh trademarks with indefinite lives a
other indefinite-lived intangible assets and nadanses of impairment were identified.

During fiscal year 2011, the Company identified llgres in increasing sales for the BsirBees business in certain international marke
accordance with projections, particularly in thedpean Union and Asia. Additionally, during fisgalar 2011, the Company initiated its proces
updating the three-year long-range financial andrating plan for the Bu$’ Bees business. In addition to slower than pregegrowth o
international sales and challenges in the timingceftain international expansion plans, the doroesstural personal care category had
recovered in accordance with the Compangrojections. Following a comprehensive reevatuatthe Company recognized a noncash goao
impairment charge of $258 during fiscal year 2011.

The impairment charge was a result of changesdraisumptions used to determine the fair valueeBurt's Bees business based on slower
forecasted category growth as well as challeng@gténnational expansion plans, which adverselgcéd the original assumptions for internati
growth and the estimates of expenses necessarghieva that growth. The revised assumptions reftbctomewhat higher cost levels t
previously projected. As a result of this assessniba Company determined that the book value eBbrt’'s Bees reporting unit exceeded its
value, resulting in a noncash goodwill impairmehame of $258 recognized in fiscal year 2011. Thecash goodwill impairment charge \
based on the Company’s estimates regarding thesftinancial performance of the BigtBees business and macroeconomic factors. Ther@g
substantial tax benefit associated with this nonchsirge.

To determine the fair value of the BwtBees reporting unit, which was reflected in thiedtyle reportable segment in fiscal year 201%
Company used a discounted cash flow (DCF) apprait,believed this approach was the most reliatniEator of the fair value of the busine
Under this approach, the Company estimated thedutash flows of the Bug’'Bees reporting unit and discounted these castsflt a rate «
return that reflected its relative risk.

The Company’s trademarks and indefinite-lived igihle assets for the Bust’Bees reporting unit were tested for impairmerfisoal year 201:
the Company concluded that these assets were patrizd. No other instances of impairment were ifiedtduring fiscal years 2011 and 2010.

Interest expenseincreased $2 in fiscal year 2012, primarily duehigher average commercial paper balances. Intergrsinse decreased $1¢
fiscal year 2011, primarily due to a decline inrage debt balances.

Other (income) expense, netof $(13) in fiscal year 2012 included $(11) otame from equity investees and $(6) of income fitoamsitior
services related to the Company'’s sale of its Businesses; partially offset by $9 of amortizatidtrademarks and other intangible assets.

Other (income) expense, net, of $(23) in fiscalry®@l1 included $(13) of lowrcome housing partnership gains, $(9) of inconeenftransitiol
services related to the Compasysale of its Auto Businesses and $(8) of incomenfequity investees; partially offset by $9 of atization o
trademarks and other intangible assets.

Other (income) expense, net, of $29 in fiscal &0 included $26 of net foreign exchange transaand remeasurement losses, primarily re
to the Companyg subsidiary in Venezuela and $9 of amortizatiotrademarks and other intangible assets; partidfget by $(9) of income fro
equity investees.

The effective tax rate on income from continuing emtionswas 31.4%, 49.0% and 34.7% in fiscal years 20121 20hd 2010, respectively. 1
decrease in the fiscal year 2012 effective tax wede primarily due to the substantially higher tate in fiscal year 2011 as a result of the non-
deductible noncash goodwill impairment charge d3&#2elated to the Bu’’Bees reporting unit, as there was no substaatidbenefit associat
with this noncash charge. Also contributing to tleerease in fiscal year 2012 was lower tax on gorearnings, favorable tax settlements a
decrease in the blended state tax rate; partiffetoby higher uncertain tax position releasefisical year 2011. The substantially higher tax ra
fiscal year 2011 as compared to fiscal year 2019 also driven by the effect of the noncash goodwifiairment charge.
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Discontinued operations

In September 2010, the Company entered into aitlefiragreement to sell its Auto Businesses to fiitisée of Avista Capital Partners in an all-
cash transaction. In November 2010, the Companypteied the sale pursuant to the terms of a Purcdmad&ale Agreement (Purchase Agreen
and received cash consideration of $755. The Coynpiso received cash flows of approximately $3@texl to net working capital that v
retained by the Company as part of the sale. Ieclud earnings from discontinued operations forfigwal year ended June 30, 2011, was an after
tax gain on the transaction of $247. In fiscal y2@t2, the Company recognized $1 of additionalnmedax expense related to the gain on the
which was recorded in (losses) earnings from discoad operations, net of tax.

As part of the Purchase Agreement, certain tramsiervices were provided to the buyer from the détsale, November 5, 2010, through Ma
2012, a period of eighteen months. The purposéeftervices was to provide shtetm assistance to the buyer in assuming the apesadf the
Auto Businesses. These services did not confehgéocCompany the ability to influence the operatindimancial policies of the Auto Busines
under their new ownership. Income from these ttemsservices for the fiscal years ended June B022nd 2011, was $6 and $9, respectively
was reported in other (income) expense, net, ittim@ing operations in the consolidated statemefiteamnings. The costs associated with
services were also reflected in continuing openaticAside from the transition services, the Compiatjuded the financial results of the A
Businesses in discontinued operations for all pisrigresented.

The following table includes financial results itiitable to the Auto Businesses as of June 30:

2012 2011 2010
Net sales $ — $ 95 $ 30C
Earnings before income taxes $ — $ 34 $ 12
Income tax expense on earnings — (11 (43)
(Loss) gain on sale, net of tax () 247 —
(Losses) earnings from discontinued operationsphigtx $ (1) $ 27 $ 77

SEGMENT RESULTS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 20h2tural personal care financial results outsideW.S. are being reported in the Internati
segment rather than in the Lifestyle segment becenenagement of the International segment now hampy oversight of natural personal ¢
financial results outside the U.S. All periods preed have been recast to reflect this changeaéditional information regarding the finant
impacts to the Company’s net sales and profit measuefer to Note 20 of the Notes to Consolid&iedncial Statements.

The following presents the results from continumperations of the Compars/reportable segments and certain unallocated cefiexted i
Corporate (See Note 20 of the Notes to Consolidateaincial Statements for a reconciliation of seginesults to consolidated results):

Cleaning
Change
2012 2011
to to
2012 2011 2010 2011 2010
Net sales $ 1692 $ 161¢ $ 1,62 % —%
Earnings from continuing operations before income$ 381 35¢€ 36¢ 7 (€)




Fiscal year 2012 versus fiscal year 201Net sales, volume and earnings from continuing afjmrs before income taxes increased during
year 2012. Volume growth of 2% was primarily driven higher shipments in the professional productsirtess, primarily due to the rec
acquisitions of HealthLink and Aplicare, Inc. anidtdbution gains in health care channels; higtepsents of Cloro® disinfecting wipes behir
strong merchandising activities; and higher shipmeri Clorox® disinfecting bathroom cleaner due to product intiova These increases w
partially offset by lower shipments of Clor&laundry additives, primarily due to price increashgt sales growth outpaced volume grc
primarily due to the benefit of price increasespfagimately 450 basis points), partially offsetdnyfavorable product mix (approximately 190 b
points). The increase in earnings from continuipgrations before income taxes was primarily du$7® of higher net sales, $22 of cost sav
due to various manufacturing efficiencies and $flldwer advertising and sales promotion expenshssg& increases were patrtially offset by $:
higher commodity costs, primarily resin, $14 ofandrable product mix and $14 of higher manufactyend logistics costs.

Fiscal year 2011 versus fiscal year 2010et sales were flat, volume increased and earrfiregs continuing operations before income te
decreased during fiscal year 2011. Volume growth%fwas primarily driven by increased shipmentslisinfecting products in the professic
products business. Also contributing to volume growere increased shipments of several produatsding Pine-Sof cleaners, Cloro® Clean-
Up ® Cleaner with Bleach, Cloro® disinfecting bathroom cleaners and Clof8xDisinfecting Wipes, primarily behind strong mercHiming
activities. These increases were partially offsetdwer shipments of Cloro® laundry additives due to category softness; anaiashipments
Tilex ® mold and mildew remover, due to competitive agfivivolume growth outpaced net sales primarily doehe impact of incremen
customer pickip allowances (approximately 60 basis points). T@ikerease in earnings from continuing operation®rbeincome taxes w
primarily driven by $27 of higher commodity cos$d,7 of unfavorable product mix and other smallemis. These decreases were partially offs
$29 of cost savings, due to various manufacturifiigiencies and network consolidations, and $12lafer advertising and sales promot
activities.

Household
Change
2012 2011
to to
2012 2011 2010 2011 2010
Net sales $ 167¢ $ 1611 $ 1,66 4% 3%
Earnings from continuing operations before income$ 29¢ 27¢ 29C 7 4

Fiscal year 2012 versus fiscal year 201Net sales, volume and earnings from continuing afjmrs before income taxes increased during
year 2012. Volume growth of 1% was primarily drivien higher shipments of Fresh St&mat litter behind new product innovation and hi
shipments of Gla@® OdorShield® trash bags with FebreZe; partially offset by lower shipments of Gl&base trash bags due to price incre:
Net sales growth outpaced volume growth primarikg b the benefit of price increases (approximad@§ basis points). The increase in earr
from continuing operations before income taxes pranarily due to $65 of higher net sales and $36ast savings related to various manufactt
efficiencies. These increases were partially offse$44 of higher commodity costs, primarily resind $30 of higher manufacturing and logis
costs.

Fiscal year 2011 versus fiscal year 2010let sales, volume and earnings from continuing ajoars before income taxes decreased during
year 2011. Volume decline of 2% was primarily driviey lower shipments of Gld@food-storage products, primarily due to competitive \aiytj
and lower shipments of Kingsfoficharcoal products. Also contributing to volume texivas lower shipments of Gl&mbase trash bags, primai
due to competitive activity and the impact of prinereases. These decreases were partially offseigher shipments of Fresh St8at litter

driven by product improvements and increased mextismg events; and higher shipments of Glgatemium trash bags, primarily due to proc
improvements.

The variance between net sales and volume was iiindaie to the impact of incremental customer pigkallowances (approximately 110 bi
points) and unfavorable product mix (approxima@lybasis points), partially offset by the benefitpricing (approximately 90 basis points). -
decrease in earnings from continuing operationsreeincome taxes was primarily due to lower neesand $30 of higher commodity co
primarily resin, partially offset by $30 of costviags due to various manufacturing efficiencies prmtuct improvements, and other smaller items.
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Lifestyle

Change
2012 2011
to to
2012 2011 2010 2011 2010
Net sales $ 901 $ 84¢ $ 83¢ 6% 2%
Earnings from continuing operations before incomeas$ 26E 91 304 191 (7C)
Noncash goodwill impairmel — 164 —
Earnings from continuing operations before incoex@$ and noncash
goodwill impairment charge $ 268 $ 258 $§ 304 4%  (16)%

Fiscal year 2012 versus fiscal year 201 Net sales, volume and earnings from continuing atpmrs before income taxes and noncash goc
impairment charge increased during fiscal year 20Afume growth of 3% was primarily driven by highghipments of Burt's Bee® natura
personal care products, primarily due to increasedchandising and new products, including the launicthe giid® natural personal care lit
higher shipments of the on-the-go BritaBottle and the acquisition of Soy Vay Enterprises, These increases were partially offset by I¢
shipments of bottled Hidden Vall&salad dressings due to price increases and lovigmehts of Brita® pour through watefiltration products
Net sales growth outpaced volume growth primarile ¢o the benefit of price increases (approximad&l§ basis points). The increase in earr
from continuing operations before income taxes aolcash goodwill impairment charge was primarilg do $52 of higher net sales and $1
cost savings related to various manufacturing iefficies, partially offset by $20 of higher commagdibsts, primarily soybean oil.

Fiscal year 2011 versus fiscal year 201Met sales and volume increased while earnings ftontinuing operations before income taxes
noncash goodwill impairment charge decreased ddisicgl year 2011. Volume growth of 2% was primadriven by higher shipments of But’
Bees® natural personal care products, due to lip balensith. Also contributing to volume growth was higbBipments of Hidden Valle§ salac
dressings and higher shipments of the new on-thBeija ® Bottle. These increases were partially offset hydbshipments of K C Masterpie®e
barbeque sauces. The decrease in earnings fronmwogt operations before income taxes and the reingmodwill impairment charge w
primarily due to $22 of higher advertising costsipport of product innovation; $7 of higher comiitypdosts, primarily soybean oil and garlic;
of higher manufacturing and logistics costs; an@figher selling and administrative expenses.séHactors were partially offset by $14 of hic
net sales and $9 of cost savings, due to variomufaeturing efficiencies, and other smaller items.

International
Change
2012 2011
to to
2012 2011 2010 2011 2010
Net sales $ 1,19¢ $ 1,152 $ 1,11 4% 4%
Earnings from continuing operations before incomea$ 11¢ 55 14z 11€ (62)
Noncash goodwill impairmel — 94 —
Earnings from continuing operations before incomes$ and
noncash goodwill impairment charge $ 11¢ $ 14¢ $ 14T (20% 4%

Fiscal year 2012 versus fiscal year 201Net sales and volume increased while earnings frontinuing operations before income taxes an
noncash goodwill impairment charge decreased ddisicgl year 2012. Volume growth of 2% was primadue to higher shipments in Argenti
partially offset by lower shipments in the nonstgit export business and Venezuela, primarily drivg the Venezuelan governmentiew pric
control law. Net sales growth outpaced volume ghoptimarily due to the benefit of price increasapproximately 530 basis points), parti
offset by unfavorable foreign currency exchangesdapproximately 110 basis points). The decreasaiinings from continuing operations be
income taxes and noncash goodwill impairment charge primarily due to $37 of higher manufacturingl dogistics costs due to the impac
inflationary pressures in Argentina and Venezug® of higher selling and administrative costs esded with investments in IT systems; and
of higher commaodity costs, primarily resin. Thesemases were partially offset by $47 of highersaégs and $14 of cost savings, primarily rel
to various manufacturing efficiencies.
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Fiscal year 2011 versus fiscal year 2010let sales, volume and earnings from continuing atrs before income taxes and noncash goc
impairment charge increased during fiscal year 2&blume growth of 1% was primarily due to Burt'@&® growth in international markets. I
sales growth outpaced volume growth primarily dughe benefit of price increases (approximately B6&§is points); partially offset by the img
of unfavorable foreign exchange rates (approximat&D basis points) and unfavorable product mijp(apimately 110 basis points). The incre
in earnings from continuing operations before inedlaxes and noncash goodwill impairment charge puasarily due to $40 of higher net se
driven by inflation in Latin America and $17 of tasvings. These increases were partially offse$2% of higher manufacturing and logis
costs, primarily due to inflation in Latin Americ&28 of higher selling and administration costdmgrily associated with investments in
systems; $22 of higher commodity costs behind fiiofteary pressures in Latin America and other smitiens.

Venezuela

Prior to December 31, 2009, the Company transligedenezuelan subsidiary’s financial statementsgi¥enezuela official currency exchan
rate, which had been fixed by the Venezuelan gawent at 2.15 bolivar Fuertes (VEFs) to the U.SatolEffective December 31, 2009,
Company began translating its Venezuelan subsididiipancial statements using the then prevailingalpd market currency exchange |
(exchange rates negotiated with local financiakrimediaries), the rate at which the Company exgettiebe able to remit dividends or ret
capital. The rate used at December 31, 2009, v@&&\BEFs to the U.S. dollar. On a pretax basis, ¢thsnge in the rate used for converting t
currencies resulted in a remeasurement loss of @iirthg the Company’fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2009, whiciteelprimarily to U.
dollar denominated inventory purchases.

Effective January 1, 2010, the financial statemdatsthe Company Venezuelan subsidiary are consolidated undemutes governing tt
translation of financial information in a highlyfiationary economy. As such, the subsidiary’s mh&- dollar monetary assets and liabilities
remeasured into U.S dollars each reporting perimdi the exchange gains and losses from these reraezsuts are reflected in the Company’
current net earnings.

In May 2010, the Venezuelan government suspendedutictioning of the parallel currency exchange kefirand in June 2010, establishes
alternative currency exchange market controlledheyCentral Bank of Venezuela. As a result, the @aomy began utilizing the exchange rat
which the Company was purchasing U.S. dollars tnothis alternative market as the remeasurement frat the Compang’ Venezuela
subsidiarys financial statements. The average exchangeaatd.§. dollars purchased through this alternatiagket was 5.5 VEFs for both fis
years ending June 30, 2012 and 2011, and 5.4 iRkd fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. This alterm market also includes volume restrict
on the amount of U.S dollars which may be conveeeth month.

For each of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2@, and 2010, Venezuela’s net sales and totalsassgmtesented 2% and 1% of the Compsmg
sales and total assets, respectively.

In November 2011, the Venezuelan government enactatte control law that negatively impacted tle¢ selling prices of certain products sol
Venezuela. This impact was not significant fordisgear 2012. The Comparsyability to effectively manage net sales and aetiags in Venezue
will be affected by a number of factors includifge tCompanys ability to mitigate the effect of the price cai$; possible future curren
devaluations, local economic conditions and thélaidity of raw materials and utilities.

Corporate
Change
2012 2011
to to
2012 2011 2010 2011 2010
Losses from continuing operations before incomesax $ (272 $ (217 $ (300 25% (29%

Corporate includes certain non-allocated admirtiggacosts, interest income, interest expense artdio other nomperating income and expent
Corporate assets include cash and cash equivai¢inés,investments and deferred taxes.
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Fiscal year 2012 versus fiscal year 201The increase in losses from continuing operaticgfore income taxes was primarily due to hig
employee incentive compensation and benefit cbhigber lowincome housing partnership gains in fiscal yearl2éid fees related to a withdre
proxy contest in fiscal year 2012; partially offegtlower IT expenses reflected in Corporate.

Fiscal year 2011 versus fiscal year 2010’he decrease in losses from continuing operati@ieré income taxes was primarily due to lo
employee benefit and incentive compensation céstgr interest expense, primarily due to a dedinaverage debt balances; lomeome housin
partnership gains; cost savings associated witlCthmapanys restructuring initiatives; and income from traiosi services related to the sale of
Auto Businesses.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND LIQUIDITY

Management’s discussion and analysis of the Compdmancial position and liquidity describes itsxsolidated operating, investing and finan
activities, contractual obligations and off-balasbeet arrangements.

The following table summarizes cash activities adune 30:

2012 2011 2010
Net cash provided by continuing operatic $ 62 $ 69C $ 764
Net cash (used for) provided by investing actigifiem continuing operatior 277 544 (229)
Net cash used for financing activiti (321) (1,07¢) (70¢€)

The Companys cash position includes amounts held by foreidisisiiaries, and as a result the repatriation adbéercash balances from some of
Companys foreign subsidiaries could result in additiorsd tosts. However, these cash balances are ggnavallable without legal restriction
fund local business operations. In addition, aiporbf the Company cash balances is held in U.S. dollars by forsigssidiaries whose functiol
currency is their local currency. Such U.S. dobatances are reported on the foreign subsidiabiesks, in their functional currency, with -
impact from foreign currency exchange rate diffeemnrecorded in other (income) expense, net. Tiep@oy's cash holdings as of the end of fi
years 2012, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

2012 2011 2010
Non-U.S. dollar balances held by non-U.S. dollar fiowl currency subsidiaries $ 81 $ 98 $ 42
U.S. dollar balances held by non-U.S. dollar furail currency subsidiaries 35 15 13
Non-U.S. dollar balances held by U.S. dollar functionarency subsidiaries 20 26 7
U.S. dollar balances held by U.S. dollar functioniarency subsidiaries 131 12C 25
Total $ 267 $ 25¢ $ 87

The Company’s total cash balance remained esdgritalas of June 30, 2012, as compared to Jun2(BL.

The Companys total cash balance increased $172 as of Jur203@, as compared to June 30, 2010. The increas@mvaarily attributable to tt
expiration of a U.S. federal tax law in June 204t provided tax relief for U.S. companies to barfoom their foreign subsidiaries on a shtatar
basis, borrowings which the Company used to payndoemmercial paper balances in fiscal year 20100A3une 30, 2010, the Company
shortterm intercompany borrowings, with an initial matyiof 60 days, from its foreign subsidiaries of6$] pursuant to the provisions of this
relief.

As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, total current litiefliexceeded total current assets (excludingsabséd for sale) by $685 and $86, respectively.
year-over-year change was primarily attributabl&860 of current maturities of long-term debt at€J@0, 2012.

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by continuing operations dece&s&620 in fiscal year 2012 from $690 in fiscahy 2011. The decrease was primarily di
lower tax payments in fiscal year 2011, resultirayf favorable tax depreciation rules, and the tgroftax payments in the current year.
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Net cash provided by continuing operations dec#s&690 in fiscal year 2011 from $764 in fiscahy 2010. The ye-overyear decrease w
primarily driven by higher fiscal year 2010 incermticompensation payments paid in fiscal year 2@%1compared to fiscal year 2009 incer
compensation payments paid in 2010, and other wgr&apital changes; partially offset by lower tayments.

Investing Activities

Capital expenditures were $192, $228 and $201¢entisely, in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010. @égipending as a percentage of net sale:
3.5%, 4.4% and 3.8% for fiscal years 2012, 2011 201D, respectively. The decrease in fiscal yed22tapital spending is primarily associz
with higher spending for manufacturing efficiencieshe prior fiscal year. The Company estimatgstahspending during fiscal year 2013 will
in the range of $230 to $240, which includes caritig investments in IT systems and the new Pleasdatility.

In fiscal year 2011, investing activities includgt¥47 of proceeds from the sale of the Auto Busieesset of transaction costs.
Acquisitions

On December 31, 2011, the Company acquired Healkhl4plicare, Inc. and Soy Vay Enterprises, Inc.garchase prices aggregating $97, fur
through commercial paper borrowings. The amound p&i$93 represents the aggregate purchase peseschsh acquired. HealthLink, base
Jacksonville, Fla., and Aplicare, Inc., based inritfen, Conn., are leading providers of infectiomtcol products for the health care indus
complementing and expanding the Compamy'ofessional products business. Results for thasmesses are reflected in the Cleaning repe
segment. Soy Vay Enterprises, Inc., a Californiselaoperation, provides the Companfdod products business a presence in the gromarge
for Asian sauces. These acquisitions added a mbeestfit of approximately 1% to the Compasyiet sales and volume, respectively, for fi
year 2012.

In January 2010, the Company acquired the assé@sltéch Industries, Inc., a company that providissfectants for the health care industry,
an aggregate price of $24, with the objective gfamding the Company’capabilities in the areas of health and welln€ss. Company paid for t!
acquisition in cash.

Financing Activities
Capital Resources and Liquidity

Net cash used for financing activities was $32fisnal year 2012, as compared to $1,078 in fiseary2011. The decrease in net cash use
financing activities was primarily due to the u§e@mceeds from the sale of the Auto Businessespgay commercial paper in the prior year.

In November 2011, the Company filed a shelf regtiin statement with the SEC, which allows the Camypto offer and sell an unlimited ama
of its senior unsecured indebtedness from timéme.tThe shelf registration statement will expmeNovember 2014. Subsequently, in Nover
2011, the Company issued $300 of senior notes whdeshelf registration statement. The notes camrginnual fixed interest rate of 3.80% pay
semiannually in May and November. The notes mature owelhber 15, 2021. Proceeds from the notes weretosedire commercial paper. T
notes rank equally with all of the Company’s exigtand future senior indebtedness.

In fiscal years 2011 and 2010, $300 and $598, otisedy, of longterm debt became due and was paid. The Compangduthe debt repayme
with commercial paper and operating cash flows.

In fiscal year 2010, the Company issued $300 afdamm debt in senior notes. The notes carry amarfixed interest rate of 3.55% payable semi-
annually in May and November. The notes mature oneshber 1, 2015. Proceeds from the notes weretosegpay commercial paper. The n
rank equally with all of the Company’s existing gntlre senior indebtedness.
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Credit Arrangements

During fiscal year 2012, the Company entered inteesv $1.1 billion revolving credit agreement, whiekpires in May 2017 and concurrel
terminated its prior $1.1 billion revolving credigreement, which was due to mature in April 2018.t&fmination fees or penalties were incu
by the Company in connection with the terminatidnttee prior credit agreement. As of June 30, 2ah2re were no borrowings under
agreement, and the Company believes that borrowingsr the revolving credit facility are and wirtinue to be available for general corpc
purposes. The agreement includes certain resticthvenants and limitations. The primary restreetbovenant is a maximum ratio of total det
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, twation and other items (EBITDA) for the trailifigur quarters (EBITDA ratio), as defined in
Companys revolving credit agreement, of 3.50. EBITDA, a$irnkd, includes adjustments to exclude results fdiscontinued operations, and r
not be comparable to similarly tited measures usedther entities.

The following table sets forth the calculation bEtEBITDA ratio as of June 30, using EBITDA for thrailing four quarters, as contractui
defined in the periods presented:

2012 2011 2010
Net earnings $ 54: % 557 $ 602
Add back:

Interest expense 12¢ 12¢ 13¢

Income tax expense 24¢ 36€ 322

Depreciation and amortization 17¢€ 173 18¢

Goodwill impairment charge — 25¢ —
Deduct:

Interest income 3 3 3

Gain on sale — 32¢€ —
EBITDA $ 1,091 $ 1,148 $ 1,24¢
Total debt $ 2,721 $ 258 $ 2,79
EBITDA ratio 2.4¢ 2.2¢F 2.24

The Company is in compliance with all restrictiv@/enants and limitations as of June 30, 2012. Toérafg2ny anticipates being in compliance
all restrictive covenants for the foreseeable fitithe Company continues to monitor the financiatkats and assess its ability to fully draw o
revolving credit facility, and currently expectsattany drawing on the facility will be fully funded

The Company had $44 of foreign and other credisliat June 30, 2012, of which $29 was availabledorowing.

Based on the Company’s working capital requiremeanticipated ability to generate positive caslwfidrom operations in the future, investment-
grade credit ratings, demonstrated access to lang-shorterm credit markets and current borrowing availgbiinder credit agreements,
Company believes it will have the funds necessargnéet its financing requirements and other fixbtigations as they become due. In Oct
2012 and March 2013, $350 and $500 of senior umedawtes will become due and payable, respectiVélg Company anticipates that the 1
repayment will be made through partial debt refeiag and use of operating cash flows. Should the@my undertake other transactions requ
funds in excess of its current cash levels andl@dai credit lines, it would consider the issuan€additional debt or other securities to fina
acquisitions, repurchase shares, refinance delfunat other activities for general business purpo3é& Company access to or cost of si
additional funds could be adversely affected by degrease in credit ratings, which were the follayas of June 30:

2012 2011

Short-term Long-term Short-term Long-term

Standard and Poor’s A-2 BBB+ A-2 BBB+
Moody’s pP-2 Baal pP-2 Baal
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Share Repurchases and Dividend Payme

The Company has three share repurchase programsip@nmarket purchase programs and a program to offedtitpact of share dilution relat
to share-based awards (the Evergreen Program)ain2@08, the Company’s board of directors appramedpenmarket purchase program wit
total authorization of $750, of which $71 remaireilable as of June 30, 2012. In May 2011, thedoédirectors approved a second opearke
purchase program with a total authorization of $8l0of which remained available for repurchase@dune 30, 2012. The Evergreen Progran
no authorization limit as to amount or timing opuechases. The purpose of the Evergreen Progreoroiéset the impact of share dilution relate
share-based awards.

Share repurchases under authorized programs wésbaaes during the fiscal years ended June 30:

2012 2011 2010
Shares Shares Shares

Amount (000) Amount (000) Amount (000)
Open-market purchase programs $ 15¢ 2,42¢ $ 521 765 $ — |
Evergreen Program 67 99C 134 2,127 15C 2,37
Total $ 22t 3,41¢ $ 65E 9,77¢ $ 15C 2,37¢

During fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Commietlared dividends per share of $2.44, $2.25%h@5, respectively. During fiscal ye
2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company paid dividendsspare of $2.40, $2.20 and $2.00, respectivelyjvatent to $315, $303 and $2
respectively.

Contractual Obligations

The Company had contractual obligations as of 3012, payable or maturing in the following &ikgears:

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter Total
Long-term debt maturities including interest

payments (See Note 9) $ 95¢ $ 75 $ 65C $ 341 $ 3B $ 768 $ 2,82t
Notes and loans payable (See Not 30C — — — — — 30C
Purchase obligatior{$) 34¢ 16( 88 28 25 48 697
Operating leases (See Note 16) 38 34 30 28 26 95 251
ITS Agreement (service agreement ort®)) 34 9 — — — — 43
Contributions to non-qualified supplemental

post retirement plaf® 1¢ 16 15 15 17 82 164
Venture Agreement terminal obligation

(See Note 11) — — — — — 281 281
Total $ 169 $ 294 $ 78 $ 41z $ 10z $ 1,26¢ $ 4,55¢

(1) Purchase obligations are defined as purchase agrgernthat are enforceable and legally binding drad specify all significant terrr
including quantity, price and the approximate tigiiof the transaction. For purchase obligations estibjo variable price and/or quan
provisions, an estimate of the price and/or quartds been made. Examples of the Compamyirchase obligations include contract
purchase raw materials, commitments to contractufaaturers, commitments for IT and related servi@bvertising contracts, utili
agreements, capital expenditure agreements, sefmeuisition and license commitments, and secocgracts

(2) In October 2006, the Company entered into an Inftion Technology Services (ITS) agreement with HgtalPackard (HP), a thirparty
service provider. Upon the terms and subject tactimditions set forth in the ITS Agreement, HPrigviding certain IT and related servic
The services began in March 2007 and will contitiweugh October 2013. The total minimum contractidigations at June 30, 2012,
$49, of which $6 are included in operating lea3ése minimum contractual obligations are based omrarual service fee that is adjus
periodically based upon updates to services angbegunt provided. Included in the ITS Agreement @ggain acceleration payment clat
if the Company terminates the contract without ea
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(3) Represents expected payments through 2022. Baségeaaccounting rules for retirement and postnetéet benefit plans, the liabiliti
reflected in the Compang’consolidated balance sheets differ from theseagd future payments (See Note 19 of the Not&otwsolidate
Financial Statements

At June 30, 2012, the liability recorded for una@rttax positions, excluding associated interedt@analties, was approximately $80. In the tw
months succeeding June 30, 2012, audit resolutionksl potentially reduce total unrecognized taxdiigmby up to $4, primarily as a result of ¢
settlement payments. Since the ultimate amounttiamdg of further cash settlements cannot be ptediciue to the high degree of uncerta
liabilities for uncertain tax positions are excldd&om the contractual obligation table (See No& dof the Notes to Consolidated Finan
Statements).

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In conjunction with divestitures and other trangatt, the Company may provide typical indemnifioas (e.g., indemnifications for representat
and warranties and retention of previously exisémyironmental, tax and employee liabilities) thate terms that vary in duration and in
potential amount of the total obligation and, innp&ircumstances, are not explicitly defined. Tham@any has not made, nor does it believe t
is probable that it will make, any payments relgtio its indemnifications, and believes that argsomably possible payments would not ha
material adverse effect, individually or in the eggate, on the Company’s consolidated financiaéstants taken as a whole.

As of June 30, 2012, the Company was a party étterlof credit of $15, related to one of its irmwae carriers.
The Company had not recorded any liabilities on @friyre aforementioned guarantees as of June 3@. 20
CONTINGENCIES

The Company is involved in certain environmentattara, including response actions at various locati The Company had a recorded liabilit
$14 and $15 as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, resphbgtior its share of aggregate future remediatiosts related to these matters. One mat
Dickinson County, Michigan, for which the Compasyjaintly and severally liable, accounted for astahtial majority of the recorded liability
of both June 30, 2012 and 2011. The Company haeddo be liable for 24.3% of the aggregate rentiediaand associated costs for this m:
pursuant to a costharing arrangement with a third party. With theistance of environmental consultants, the Compaaintains an undiscount
liability representing its current best estimateitefshare of the capital expenditures, maintenamze other costs that may be incurred ove
estimated 3Qear remediation period. Currently, the Companynoaccurately predict the timing of future paynsettitat may be made under-
obligation. In addition, the Comparsyestimated loss exposure is sensitive to a vaaktyncertain factors, including the efficacy ofrrediatior
efforts, changes in remediation requirements arad fthure availability of alternative cleamp technologies. Although it is possible that
Company'’s exposure may exceed the amount recoatdgcimount of such additional exposures, or rafiggmosures, is not estimable at this time.

The Company is subject to various other lawsuits @aims relating to issues such as contract dispyiroduct liability, patents and trademe
advertising, and employee and other matters. Basdbde Company analysis of these claims and litigation, it is tpinion of management that
ultimate disposition of these matters, to the exteot previously provided for or disclosed belowillwmot have a material adverse effi
individually or in the aggregate, on the Comparygasolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

On August 7, 2012, an appellate court hearing veereéned in a lawsuit pending in Brazil against @@mpany and one of its whollywnec
subsidiaries, The Glad Products Company (“Gladfe pending lawsuit was initially filed in a Brdaih lower court in 2002 by two Brazili
companies and one Uruguayan company (collectiviestroplus”) related to joint venture agreementsHerdistribution of STP autcare produc
in Brazil with three companies that became subsatiaof the Company as a result of the Compmmgerger with First Brands Corporatior
January 1999 (collectively, “Clorox SubsidiariesThe pending lawsuit seeks indemnification for daesagnd losses for alleged breaches ¢
joint venture agreements and abuse of economic ipby¢he Company and Glad. Petroplus had previousiuccessfully raised the same cle
and sought damages from the Company and the CBubsidiaries in an International Chamber of CommgftCC”) arbitration proceeding
Miami filed in 2001. The ICC arbitration panel uiraously ruled against Petroplus in numerous rulimg2001 through 2003, reaching a fi
decision against Petroplus in November 2003 (“Fi6&l Arbitration Award”). The Final ICC ArbitratioAward
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was ratified by the Superior Court of Justice o&8lrin May 2007 (“Foreign Judgment'and the United States District Court for the Sotrt
District of Florida subsequently confirmed the Fil@C Arbitration Award and recognized and adopteel Foreign Judgment as a judgment o
United States District Court for the Southern Distof Florida (“U.S. Judgment”Despite this, in March 2008 a Brazilian lower cauted again:
the Company and Glad in the pending lawsuit and@ehPetroplus R$22,952,678 ($13) plus interest. dlhirent value of that judgment, incluc
interest and foreign exchange fluctuation as ofusid 4, 2012, is approximately $34.

Because the Final ICC Arbitration Award, the Forelyidgment and the U.S. Judgment relate to the skaimes as those in the pending lawsuit
Company believes that Petroplus is precluded freditigating these claims. Prior to the August 201dud hearing, the Company viewe
potential loss in excess of amounts accrued in@ction with this matter as remote. Based on theg@dings in August, the Company now beli
that it is reasonably possible that a loss coulthberred in this matter in excess of amounts amtralthough it is unable to reasonably estimat
amount of any such additional loss. The Companytimoes to believe that its defenses are meritorituthe appellate court rules against
Company and Glad, they plan to appeal the decisiathe highest courts of Brazil, which could taleags to resolve. Expenses related to
litigation and any potential additional loss woule reflected in Discontinued Operations, consistatit the Companys classification of expens
related to its discontinued Brazil operations.

Glad and the Clorox Subsidiaries have also filggheste lawsuits against Petroplus alleging misfiseeoSTP trademark and related matters, w
are currently pending before Brazilian courts.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

As a multinational company, the Company is expdseitie impact of foreign currency fluctuations, gas in commodity prices, interestte risl
and other types of market risk.

In the normal course of business, where available aeasonable cost, the Company manages its exgpdsumarket risk using contract
agreements and a variety of derivative instrumehitee Companys objective in managing its exposure to market igsko limit the impact ¢
fluctuations on earnings and cash flow throughube of swaps, forward purchases and futures castrBerivative contracts are entered intc
non-trading purposes with major credit-worthy itgtons, thereby decreasing the risk of credit.loss

The Company uses different methodologies, whenssacg, to estimate the fair value of its derivatbemtracts. The estimated fair values ol
majority of the Compang’ contracts are based on quoted market pricegdradchange market prices, or broker price quatstiand represent 1
estimated amounts that the Company would pay @ivedo terminate the contracts.

Sensitivity Analysis for Derivative Contracts

For fiscal years 2012 and 2011, the CompsmxXposure to market risk was estimated using tbatysanalyses, which illustrate the change in
fair value of a derivative financial instrument @séng hypothetical changes in foreign exchangesratemmodity prices or interest rates.
results of the sensitivity analyses for foreignrency derivative contracts, commodity derivativatcacts and interest rate contracts are summs
below. Actual changes in foreign exchange ratesyngodity prices or interest rates may differ frora ttypothetical changes, and any changes
fair value of the contracts, real or hypothetigabuld be partly to fully offset by an inverse charig the value of the underlying hedged items.

The changes in the fair value of derivatives amomed as either assets or liabilities in the badasheet with an offset to net earnings or ¢
comprehensive income, depending on whether orfoiogccounting purposes, the derivative is desigghaind qualified as a hedge. In the ever
Company has contracts not designated as hedgasdounting purposes, the Company recognizes thegekan the fair value of these contrac
other (income) expense, net.
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Foreign Currency Risk

The Company seeks to minimize the impact of cerfairign currency fluctuations by hedging transawi exposures with foreigrurrenc
forward contracts. At June 30, 2012, the Compaifyfgigncurrency transactional exposures pertaining tovegvie contracts existed with 1
Canadian dollar. At June 30, 2011, the Companytsidm-currency transactional exposure pertaining to @¢isie contracts existed with 1
Canadian and Australian dollars. Based on a hypiotiedecrease or increase of 10% in the valuehefW.S. dollar against the Canadian
Australian dollars at June 30, 2012 and June 3Q12¢he estimated fair value of the Companforeign currency derivative contracts wc
decrease or increase by $1 and $4, respectiveth, the corresponding impact included in accumulatéer comprehensive net losses or ¢
(income) expense, net, as appropriate.

Commodity Price Risk

The Company is exposed to changes in the pricowintodities used as raw materials in the manufagjuoif its products. The Company u
various strategies to manage cost exposures oaircgew material purchases with the objective dfamting more predictable costs for th
commodities, including longerm commaodity purchase contracts and commoditivaliére contracts, where available at a reasonetdt. At Jun
30, 2012 and June 30, 2011, the Compsungiv materials exposures pertaining to derivativ@racts existed with solvent and soybean oileBas

a hypothetical decrease or increase of 10% in tbesenodity prices at June 30, 2012 and June 30,282 estimated fair value of the Company’
thenexisting derivative contracts would decrease oreiase by $4 and $5, respectively, with the cormedimy impact included in accumula
other comprehensive net losses or other (incommrese, net, as appropriate.

Interest Rate Risl

The Company is exposed to interest rate volatilitth regard to existing and anticipated future &@stes of debt. Primary exposures relate
existing debt include movements in U.S. commerngégder rates. Weighted average interest rates fomacial paper have been less than 1 pe
during fiscal years 2012 and 2011. Assuming avevag@ble rate debt levels during the fiscal yaat00 basis point increase in interest rates v
increase interest expense from commercial papappyoximately $4 in fiscal years 2012 and 2011.ufsag average variable rate debt leve
fiscal years 2012 and 2011, a decrease in intestes to zero percent would decrease interest sgpgieom commercial paper by approximately
and $1, respectively.

The Company is also exposed to interest rate \ibfatiith regard to anticipated future issuanceslebt. Primary exposures include movemer
U.S. Treasury rates. The Company periodically Usedard interest rate contracts to reduce interatd volatility during fiscal years 2012 ¢
2011. Based on a hypothetical decrease or inciafaE@0 basis points on the underlying U.S. Treasatgs at June 30, 2012 and June 30, 201
estimated fair value of the Company’s thexisting interest rate derivative contracts wouddrgase or increase by $21 and $25, respectivily
the corresponding impact included in accumulatéeérntomprehensive net losses.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
Recently Issued Pronouncements

On July 27, 2012, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (FASB) issued new guidance to simplify hentities test indefinitéived intangible
assets for impairment. The new guidance allows ratityeto first assess qualitative factors to deteanwhether it is necessary to perfori
quantitative indefinite-lived intangible asset imp@ent test. The new guidance is effective for ainndefinitelived intangible asset impairme
tests to be performed in fiscal year 2013, witHyeadoption permitted. The Company will adopt thisdance beginning in fiscal year 2013
does not expect the adoption to have any impa@sawonsolidated financial statements.

On June 16, 2011, the FASB issued new requirenmnthe presentation of comprehensive income. Corapanill be required to present
components of net income and other comprehensis@nie either in one continuous statement, refervedstthe Statement of Comprehen
Income, or in two separate, consecutive statemBPrésentation requirements also eliminate the ntogtion to report other comprehensive inc
and its components in the Statement of Stockhdld®xsficit) Equity. The components recognized in m&toime or other comprehensive ince
under current accounting guidance will not chafigee presentation requirements are required to bptad by the Company in the first quarte
fiscal year 2013.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The methods, estimates, and judgments the Compaayyin applying its most critical accounting p@ghave a significant impact on the result:
Company reports in its consolidated financial steets. Specific areas, among others, requiringagi@ication of managemestestimates al
judgment include assumptions pertaining to accrisglsonsumer and tra-promotion programs, share-based compensation, @estsion and post-
employment benefit costs, future cash flows assediavith impairment testing of goodwill and othengived assets, credit worthiness
customers, uncertain tax positions, tax valuatidowences and legal, environmental and insurancéensa Accordingly, a different financ
presentation could result depending on the judgsp@stimates, or assumptions that are used. Thieanitisal accounting policies are those that
most important to the portrayal of the Companfihancial condition and results, and require Gloenpany to make its most difficult and subjec
judgments, often estimating the outcome of futwrengs that are inherently uncertain. The Com’s most critical accounting policies are: reve
recognition; valuation of intangible assets andpprty, plant and equipment; employee benefits,uilioly estimates related to shdnase:
compensation; and income taxes. The Compauwyitical accounting policies have been reviewdth whe Audit Committee of the Board
Directors. A summary of the Company’s significact@unting policies is contained in Note 1 of the@$ato Consolidated Financial Statements.

Revenue Recognition

Sales are recognized as revenue when the risksefdad title pass to the customer and when alhefféllowing have occurred: a firm se
arrangement exists, pricing is fixed or determiealhd collection is reasonably assured. Saleseaceded net of allowances for trapgemotion:
and other discounts. The Company routinely cominitsne-time or on-going trade-promotion programthwiustomers. Programs include shelf-
price reductions, end-of-aisle or in-store displajshe Company’s products and graphics and otfeglepromotion activities conducted by -
customer. Costs related to these programs aredetas a reduction of sales. The Company’s estimatsts of trad@romotions incorpora
historical sales and spending trends by customeicategory. The determination of these estimatstsaequires judgment and may change il
future as a result of changes in customer promgiaoticipation, particularly for new programs amd programs related to the introduction of |
products. Final determination of the total cospafmotion is dependent upon customers providingrintion about proof of performance and ¢
information related to the promotional event. Thiecess of analyzing and settling trgmtemotion programs with customers could impac
Companys results of operations and trade spending accdegdending on how actual results of the progrannspewoe to original estimates. If 1
Company'’s trade spending accrual estimates at3an2012, were to differ by 10%, the impact ongadés would be approximately $9.

Valuation of Intangible Assets and Property, Plantand Equipment

The Company tests its goodwill and other indefitiited intangible assets for impairment annuallyttie fiscal fourth quarter unless there
indications during a different interim period tllagése assets may have become impaired.

Goodwill

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2012, thempany reassessed the structure of its Interradti@porting units based on changes ir
Company'’s international management structure. Assalt, the Companyg’International reporting units for goodwill impaient testing purpos
are Canada, Latin America and Rest of World. FerUtsS., the Compang’reporting units continue to be its Strategic Bess Units (SBUs). The
reporting units are components of the Compatyisiness that are either operating segmentseolegal below an operating segment and for w
discrete financial information is available thatréviewed by the managers of the respective opgratgments. No instances of impairment
identified during the fiscal year 2012 impairmegxiew and the change in reporting units did nov@né any impairment charges.

In its evaluation of goodwill impairment, the Comggperforms either an initial qualitative or quaatiive evaluation for each of its reporting ur
Factors considered in the qualitative test incliggmorting unit operating results as well as newnéssand circumstances impacting the operatio
a qualitative test is performed that indicatesghtential for impairment, a quantitative test iscaperformed. For the quantitative test, impairr
occurs when the carrying amount of a reporting’ argbodwill exceeds its implied fair value. An imypaént charge is recorded for the differe
between the carrying amount and the implied faueaf the reporting unit’'s goodwill.
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To determine the fair value of a reporting unipast of its quantitative test, the Company useseodinted cash flow (DCF) approach, as it beli
that this approach is the most reliable indicafahe fair value of its businesses and the faiugalf their future earnings and cash flows. Untis
approach, the Company estimates the future casls ftd each reporting unit and discounts these fasls at a rate of return that reflects tl
relative risk. The cash flows used in the DCF ampststent with the Company’s three year leagge plan, which is presented to the Boarc
gives consideration to actual business trends eqpezd, and the broader business strategy forothg term. The other key estimates and fa
used in the DCF include, but are not limited taufa sales volumes, revenue and expense growth, reb@nges in working capital, fore
exchange rates, currency devaluation, inflatiod, aperpetuity growth rate.

Trademarks and Other Indefinite-Lived Intangible Asts

For trademarks and other intangible assets witkfinie lives, impairment occurs when the carryargount of an asset is greater than its estir
fair value. An impairment charge is recorded foe tlifference between the carrying amount and tirevedue. The Company uses an ince
approach, the relief-fromeyalty method, to estimate the fair value of iedemarks and other intangible assets with indefilnres. This methc
assumes that, in lieu of ownership, a third parbuld be willing to pay a royalty in order to obtaime rights to use the comparable asset.
determination of the fair values of trademarks atiter intangible assets with indefinite lives regsisignificant judgments in determining both
assetsestimated cash flows as well as the appropriatodig and royalty rates applied to those cash flondetermine fair value. Changes in <
estimates or the application of alternative assionptcould produce different results. There werénstances of impairment identified during fis
years 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Fini-Lived Intangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment and firliteed intangible assets are reviewed for possitsipairment whenever events or changes in circumast
occur that indicate that the carrying amount ofaaset (or asset group) may not be recoverable.Cdmpanys impairment review requir
significant management judgment including estingatime future success of product lines, future sabdsmes, revenue and expense growth t
alternative uses for the assets and estimated gaecom the disposal of the assets. The Compangduots quarterly reviews of idle €
underutilized equipment, and reviews business flangossible impairment indicators. Impairmenturscwhen the carrying amount of the asse
asset group) exceeds its estimated future undisedurash flows and the impairment is viewed asrothan temporary. When impairmen
indicated, an impairment charge is recorded fordifference between the assebook value and its estimated fair value. Dependim the asse
estimated fair value may be determined either leyafsa DCF model or by reference to estimatedrgglialues of assets in similar condition.
use of different assumptions would increase or ebsz the estimated fair value of assets and wawcbase or decrease any impairr
measurement.

Employee Benefits
The Company has various individual and group corsgéon and retirement income programs.
Incentive Compensation and Profit Sharing Prograr

Through June 30, 2011, The Clorox Company 401(k&hRthe “401(k) plan”has two components: a 401(k) matching componentaaptbfit
sharing component. Employee contributions madéeci01(k) component are partially matched with Canypcontributions. As of June 30, 2C
the Companys contributions to the profit sharing componentva8% of eligible employee earnings were discretigprand were based on
Company achieving certain financial targets. Effectiuly 1, 2011, The Clorox Company 401(k) Plamasvamended to enhance the matc
provisions and also to provide for a fixed and wdiseretionary annual contribution in place of thefip sharing component.

The Company’s payouts under the annual incentingpemsation program are based on the Company acbiegitain financial targets.
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The Company accrues for the 401(k) contributiords@mual incentive compensation program costs giiarfThe annual incentive compensatic
based on estimated annual results versus targetsissed by the Comparg/Board of Directors and is adjusted to actualltesu the end of tt
fiscal year. As of June 30, 2012, the Company atfL5 for the 401(k) contribution and anticipatezking the payment to the 401(k) plan by
third quarter of fiscal year 2013. As of June 3012 and 2011, the Company accrued $65 and $26eatagly, related to the annual incen
compensation program.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company grants various nonqualified stbeked compensation awards, including stock optipeprmance units and restricted stock.
sharebased compensation expense and related incometefitorecognized in the consolidated statememaohings in fiscal year 2012 were !
and $10, respectively. As of June 30, 2012, theas $85 of unrecognized compensation costs relatedrivested stock options, restricted st
and performance unit awards, which is expectedtrebognized over a weighted average remainingngegeriod of two years.

The Company estimates the fair value of each stgtion award on the date of grant using the Bl&ckeles valuation model, which requ
management to make estimates regarding expectezhdifé¢, stock price volatility and other assungpts. Groups of employees that have sir
historical exercise behavior are considered seglgrfr valuation purposes. The Company estimataskoption forfeitures based on historical
for each employee grouping and the estimated farferate is adjusted to reflect actual forfeiturpsn vesting of such grouping. The adjustme
the forfeiture rate will result in a cumulative claup adjustment in the period the forfeiture estimatechanged. During fiscal year 20
adjustments totaled less than $1.

The use of different assumptions in the Bl&ttioles valuation model could lead to a differestingate of the fair value of each stock option.
expected volatility is based on implied volatilifsom publicly traded options on the Compasstock at the date of grant, historical img
volatility of the Company’s publicly traded optioaad other factors. If the Comparydssumption for the volatility rate increased hg percentag
point, the fair value of options granted in fisgehr 2012 would have increased by $1. The expdifeedf the stock options is based on obse
historical exercise patterns. If the Compangssumption for the expected life increased byyesae, the fair value of options granted in fisgad
2012 would have increased by less than $1.

The Companyg performance unit grants provide for the issuasfceommon stock to certain managerial staff andcetree management if tl
Company achieves specified performance targetsp&hermance unit grants generally vest after tlyeges. The fair value of each grant issu
estimated on the date of grant based on the cumarket price of the stock. The total amount of penmsation expense recognized reflects estir
forfeiture rates and the initial assumption thatf@enance goals will be achieved. Compensation eseds adjusted based on managersent’
assessment of the probability that performancesgwdl be achieved. If such goals are not met @8 determined that achievement of performi
goals is not probable, previously recognized corspon expense is adjusted to reflect the expeptgut level. If it is determined that
performance goals will be exceeded, additional aamsption expense is recognized.

Retirement Income Plan

The determination of net periodic pension costased on actuarial assumptions including a discratetto reflect the time value of money,
longterm rate of return on plan assets, employee cosgpiem rates and demographic assumptions to detertime probability and timing of bent
payments. The selection of assumptions is basddstorical trends and known economic and marketlitimms at the time of valuation. The long-
term rate of return on plan assets assumption sedan historical returns for similar classes aets for each asset class and the current
allocation. It is a summation of the estimated metof each asset class weighted by each dgssiportion to the total plan assets. The actat
periodic pension cost could differ from the expdctesults because actuarial assumptions and estnaaé used. In the calculation of pen
expense related to domestic plans for 2012, thepaosnused a lonterm rate of return on plan assets assumption7&%s.and a beginning of ye
discount rate assumption of 5.3%. The use of a&wifft discount rate or lortgrm rate of return on domestic plan assets carifisigntly impac
pension expense. For example, at June 30, 2018 raake of 100 basis points in the discount ratddaiacrease pension liability by approxima
$74, and increase fiscal year 2012 pension expengd. A 100 basis point decrease in the ltergn rate of return on plan assets would inct
fiscal year 2012 pension expense by $4. In fisealry2012, the lonterm rate of return is assumed to be 7.6% for traastic plan assets. T
change is a result of the change in the mlamrget investment allocation. The Company alse defined benefit pension plans for elig
international employees, including Canadian andtralian employees, and different assumptions aeel irs the determination of pension expe
for those plans, as appropriate. Refer to Note flthe@ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsffcther discussion of pension and o
retirement plan obligations.
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Income Taxes

The Companys effective tax rate is based on income by tasgliction, statutory tax rates and tax planning oppities available to the Compe
in the various jurisdictions in which the Comparpemtes. Significant judgment is required in deteimg the Companyg effective tax rate and
evaluating its tax positions.

The Company maintains valuation allowances wheiselikely that all or a portion of a deferred tasset will not be realized. Changes in value
allowances from period to period are included i@ @ompanys income tax provision in the period of changedétermining whether a valuati
allowance is warranted, the Company takes intowatcsuch factors as prior earnings history, expefiteure earnings, unsettled circumstances
if unfavorably resolved, would adversely affectiméition of a deferred tax asset, statutory caagkband carryferward periods, and tax strateg
that could potentially enhance the likelihood ddlization of a deferred tax asset. Valuation alloees maintained by the Company relate mos
deferred tax assets arising from the Company’satisr anticipated inability to use net operatingses in certain foreign countries.

In addition to valuation allowances, the Compangvjaes for uncertain tax positions when such tagitpms do not meet certain recognit
thresholds or measurement standards. Amounts f@riain tax positions are adjusted in quarters wiem information becomes available or w
positions are effectively settled.

United States income taxes and foreign withholdiages are not provided when foreign earnings adefinitely reinvested. The Compe
determines whether its foreign subsidiaries willgist their undistributed earnings indefinitely arpdssesses this determination on a periodic
A change to the Company’s determination may be améed based on the Compasgxperience as well as plans regarding futureriat®na
operations and expected remittances. Changes i@dhmanys determination would likely require an adjustmienthe income tax provision in t
quarter in which the determination is made.

SUMMARY OF NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

The nonGAAP financial measures included in this MD&A anghiibit 99.3 and the reasons management believesaiteeuseful to investors ¢
described below. These measures should be condidemplemental in nature and are not intended ta sebstitute for the related finan
information prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAPaddition, these measures may not be the samserdarly named measures presente
other companies.

Where indicated each of the following financial m@@s is presented on a U.S. GAAP basis as wallrmmGAAP basis to exclude the fiscal y
2011 noncash goodwill impairment charge:

e Earnings from continuing operations before incomness,
e Earnings from continuing operations
e Diluted net earnings per share from continuing @ems

The Companys management believes measures excluding the fiseal2011 noncash goodwill impairment charge eflective of its sustainak
results and trends and that this non-GAAP inforamaprovides investors with a more comparable meastiyear-overear financial performanc
Refer to “Executive Summary,” “Results of Operation Diluted net earnings per share from continudpgrations,” Segment results fro
continuing operations — Lifestyle” and “Segmentutts from continuing operations — Internationdtir reconciliations to the most direc
comparable financial measures calculated and plexdémaccordance with U.S. GAAP.

EBIT represents earnings before income taxes, excluglagiwill impairment (for fiscal year 2011), interéscome and interest expeng&BIT
margin is a measure of EBIT as a percentage of net sdles. Companys management believes these measures provide caddlitiseft
information to investors about current trends i blusiness.

Economic profit (EPis defined by the Company as earnings from contgpoiperations before income taxes, noncash restimgtrelated and as:
impairment costs, noncash goodwill impairment iscal year 2011) and interest expense; less aruanf tax based on the effective tax
(before the fiscal year 2011 noncash goodwill ceprgnd less a capital charge. The Compmanmganagement uses EP to evaluate bus
performance and allocate resources, and is a coempgndetermining management’s
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incentive compensation. EP provides additional peotve to investors about financial returns getegrdy the business and represents
generated over and above the cost of capital ugddebbusiness to generate that profit. (Referxiitiit 99.3 for a reconciliation of EP to earni
from continuing operations before income taxes.)

Free cash flovis calculated as net cash provided by continuingratons less capital expenditures. The Commamanagement uses this mea
andfree cash flow as a percentage of satebelp assess the cash generation ability of tisinbss and funds available for investing actigjt&icl

as acquisitions, investing in the business to digvewth, and financing activities, including debayments, dividend payments and s
repurchases. Free cash flow does not representavasiable only for discretionary expenditures,ceithe Company has mandatory debt se
requirements and other contractual and non-diseraty expenditures. Refer to “Free cash flow” aktet cash flow as a percentage of net sales
above for a reconciliation of these non-GAAP meesur

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This Annual Report on Form 1K-(this Report), including the exhibits hereto att@ information incorporated by reference herewntain:
“forward-looking statementsivithin the meaning of Section 27A of the Securittes of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act), @action 21E ¢
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendedE#thange Act), and such forwdabking statements involve risks and uncertaintiescep
for historical information, matters discussed belaweluding statements about future volume, salests, cost savings, earnings, cash flows,
objectives, expectations, growth, or profitabiligre forward-looking statements based on managésestimates, assumptions and project
Words such as “will,” “could,” “may,” “expects,” ‘@icipates,” “targets,” “goals,” “projects,” “intats,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,”
and variations on such words, and similar expressiare intended to identify such forward-lookitgtaments. These forwatdeking statemen
are only predictions, subject to risks and uncsetiees, and actual results could differ materiatlynfi those discussed below. Important factors
could affect performance and cause results tordiffaterially from management’s expectations areritesd in the sections entitled “Risk Factors”
and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fite@rncondition and Results of Operations” in thisnial Report on Form 1K-for the fisca
year ended June 30, 2012, as updated from timim&ih the Companyg’ Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) fililgese factors incluc
but are not limited to the Company’s costs, inahgdivolatility and increases in commodity costs sashresin, diesel, chlakali, sodiun
hypochlorite, highstrength bleach, agricultural commodities and otfaev materials; increases in energy costs; thatalif the Company 1
implement and generate expected savings from é@grams to reduce costs, including its supply chegstructuring and other restructuring pl:
supply disruptions or any future supply constrathts may affect key commodities or product inputsks inherent in relationships with suppli
including sole-source or singtmurce suppliers; risks related to the handlingartdansportation of hazardous substances, inofdiut not limite
to, chlorine; the success of the Compangtrategies; the ability to manage and realize bibeefits of joint ventures and other cooper:
relationships, including the Company’s joint vemtuwegarding the Company’s Glad@astic bags, wraps and containers business, a
agreements relating to the provision of informatiechnology, procure to pay and other key senvigethird parties; risks relating to acquisitic
mergers and divestitures, and the costs assodiagedwith; risks inherent in maintaining an effeetisystem of internal controls, including
potential impact of acquisitions or the use ofdkparty service providers, and the need to refindrotmto adjust for accounting, financial repor
and other organizational changes or business donsljitthe ability of the Company to successfullynage tax, regulatory, product liabili
intellectual property, environmental and other legatters, including the risk resulting from joiaind several liability for environmen
contingencies and risks inherent in litigation,lirding class action litigation and Internationaigiation; risks related to maintaining and upde
the Companys information systems, including potential disropt, costs and the ability of the Company to imgetradequate informati
systems in order to support the current businedd@eupport the Comparsy/potential growth; the ability of the Company &vdlop commercial
successful products that delight the consumer;woes and customer reaction to price changes; actigncompetitors; risks related to custo
concentration; customespecific ordering patterns and trends; risks agisint of natural disasters; the impact of diseagbreaks or pandemics
the Company'’s, suppliers’ or customers’ operatia@hsinges in the Compasytax rate; unfavorable worldwide, regional or lageneral econom
and marketplace conditions and events, includingsemer confidence and consumer spending levelstatieeof economic growth, the rate
inflation or deflation, and the financial conditiaf the Company customers, suppliers and service providers; dareurrency exchange r.
fluctuations and other risks of international opierss, including governmentrposed price controls; unfavorable political cdiudis in the
countries where we do business and other operatitsha in such countries; the impact of the vdilgtiof the debt and equity markets on
Company’s cost of borrowing, cost of capital andemss to funds, including commercial paper and thm@anys credit facility; risks relating
changes in the Company’s
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capital structure, including risks related to thenpany’s ability to implement share repurchase pland the impact thereof on the Company’
capital structure and earnings per share; the ibgfeeny unanticipated restructuring or assgpairment charges and the ability of the Compa
successfully implement restructuring plans; riskisileg from declines in cash flow, whether resgtifrom declining sales, declining prod
categories, higher cost levels, tax payments, g@elyments, share repurchases, higher capital spgniliterest cost increases greater
management’ expectations, interest rate fluctuations, in@sas debt or changes in credit ratings, or otregwithe costs and availability
shipping and transport services; potential costeérevent of stockholder activism; and the Com{mapility to maintain its business reputation
the reputation of its brands.

The Company’s forward-looking statements in thip&te are based on managemsraurrent views and assumptions regarding futuemtsvan
speak only as of their dates. The Company undesta&eobligation to publicly update or revise angnvfard{ooking statements, whether as a re
of new information, future events or otherwise,aptcas required by the federal securities laws.

In this Report, unless the context requires othgewthe terms “the Company” and “Clorox” refer teeTClorox Company and its subsidiaries.
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC |AL REPORTING

The Company’s management is responsible for estdbtji and maintaining adequate internal controlr direancial reporting. The Comparsy’
internal control over financial reporting is a pess designed under the supervision of its Chiet@iiee Officer and Chief Financial Officer
provide reasonable assurance regarding the rétyabfl financial reporting and the preparation bétCompanyg financial statements for exter
reporting in accordance with accounting principeserally accepted in the United States of Amercaompanys internal control over financ
reporting includes those policies and proceduras (i) pertain to the maintenance of records thaigasonable detail, accurately and fairly re
the transactions and dispositions of the assetfseo€ompany; (2) provide reasonable assurancertireactions are recorded as necessary to |
preparation of financial statements in accordanite generally accepted accounting principles, dxad teceipts and expenditures of the com
are being made only in accordance with authorimatiaf management and directors of the company(@ngprovide reasonable assurance rega
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asttjon, use, or disposition of the compasassets that could have a material effect o
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtover financial reporting may not prevent or de¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadéegbecause of changes in conditions or ths
degree of compliance with the policies or procegunay deteriorate.

Management evaluated the effectiveness of the Coypanternal control over financial reporting usitng tcriteria set forth by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway CommisgZDSO) ininternal Control — Integrated FramewordManagement, under the supervit
and with the participation of the Company’s ChiefeEutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, asse the effectiveness of the Company
internal control over financial reporting at Jur® 3012 and concluded that it is effective.

The Company’s independent registered public acaogifirm, Ernst & Young LLP has audited the effgetiess of the Comparsyinternal contrc
over financial reporting as of June 30, 2012.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of The Clasx Company and subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of The Clorox Company and subsidiariesf deane 30, 2012 and 2011, and
related consolidated statements of earnings, stddkts’ @eficit) equity, and cash flows for each of theethiyears in the period ended June
2012. Our audits also included the financial stateinschedule in Exhibit 99.2. These financial steets and schedule are the responsibility ¢
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to epian opinion on these financial statements dretisite based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversighamo(United States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbtaasonable assurance about whether the finastat@iments are free of material misstater
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, ewidesupporting the amounts and disclosures initt@dial statements. An audit also inclu
assessing the accounting principles used and ®ignif estimates made by management, as well asiaie) the overall financial statem
presentation. We believe that our audits provideaaonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrechbove present fairly, in all material respedtg, tonsolidated financial position of The Clc
Company and subsidiaries at June 30, 2012 and 20@lithe consolidated results of their operatiaonsthaeir cash flows for each of the three y
in the period ended June 30, 2012, in conformitthwd.S. generally accepted accounting principlelsoAin our opinion, the related financ
statement schedule, when considered in relatioth¢obasic financial statements taken as a whoksepts fairly in all material respects
information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@ynited States), The Clorox Compagy’
internal control over financial reporting as of 8us0, 2012, based on criteria established in Iate@ontrolintegrated Framework issued by
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TremdWommission and our report dated August 24, 28d#tessed an unqualified opin
thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Francisco, California
August 24, 2012
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of The Clasx Company and subsidiaries

We have audited The Clorox Company and subsidiémesnal control over financial reporting as 0hdu30, 2012, based on criteria establish
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpng Organizations of the Treadway Commissibe EOSO criteria
The Clorox Company and subsidiariesanagement is responsible for maintaining effectiternal control over financial reporting, and fts
assessment of the effectiveness of internal contret financial reporting included in the accomgagyManagemens Report on Internal Cont
Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility isetqpress an opinion on the company’s internal cbotrer financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight lodJnited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaiasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditideld obtaining an understanding of internal cordwer financial reporting, assessing the risk
material weakness exists, testing and evaluatieglésign and operating effectiveness of internatrobbased on the assessed risk, and perfol
such other procedures as we considered necesstgy éircumstances. We believe that our audit plewia reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is a@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranceliregshe reliability of financie
reporting and the preparation of financial statetméor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A company’
internal control over financial reporting includésse policies and procedures that (1) pertairhéonbaintenance of records that, in reasor
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transawsi and dispositions of the assets of the comp@yyprovide reasonable assurance that transa
are recorded as necessary to permit preparatitinasfcial statements in accordance with generalbeptedaccounting principles, and that rece
and expenditures of the company are being made iondccordance with authorizations of managemedt directors of the company; and
provide reasonable assurance regarding preventitimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, ,usedisposition of the comparg/assets th
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtover financial reporting may not prevent or deteisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgiext to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or thi
degree of compliance with the policies or procegunay deteriorate.

In our opinion, The Clorox Company and subsidiariegintained, in all material respects, effectivieiinal control over financial reporting as
June 30, 2012 based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blofdnited States), the consolida
balance sheets of The Clorox Company and subsidiaas of June 30, 2012 and 2011, and the relatesblidated statements of earnit
stockholders’ deficit) equity, and cash flows for each of thesthgears in the period ended June 30, 2012, ofCldrex Company and subsidiar
and our report dated August 24, 2012 expresseaaualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Francisco, California
August 24, 2012
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Dollars in millions, except per share amount 2012 2011 2010

3,164 2,95¢

N

Advertising costs 482 502 49

Goodwill impairment — 25¢

©

Other (income) expense, net (13 (23) 2

N
~
«“

Income taxes on continuing operations 24¢ 27¢

N
~
(e}
~
~l

(Losses) earnings from discontinued operationsphtetx (2

Basic

o
(3}
m

Discontinued operations (0.0 1.97

4.1C 207 % 3.6

@
&
I7a)

Continuing operations

“
~

4.0¢

132

Diluted net earnings per share 40z $ 4.2

Basic 130,85: 136,69! 140,27:

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
The Clorox Company

As of June 30
Dollars in millions, except share amount 2012 2011

Current assets

Receivables, net 57¢€ 52E

Other current assets 14¢ 11z

Property, plant and equipment, net 1,081 1,03¢

Trademarks, net 55€ 55C

Other assets 144 14z

Current liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt 85C —

Accrued liabilities 494 442

Total current liabilities 2,061 1,36¢

Other liabilities 73¢ 61¢

Total liabilities 4,49( 4,24¢

i)
=
@
—h
(0]
3
)
o
n
—
o
Q
=
&%
o
o
o
=
©
QD
=
<
=
c
@
(8]
o
o
o
o
o
o
n
g
N
)
o
>
o
>
@

issued or outstanding — —

Additional paid-in capital 632 632

Treasury shares, at cost: 29,179,379 and 27,674%es at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively (1,88)) 1,770

Stockholders’ deficit (135 (8€)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS'’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY
The Clorox Company

Accumulated

Other
Preferred Stock ~ Common Stock  aggitional Treasury Shares  Comprehensive Total
Dollars in millions, except share Shares Shares Paid-in  Retained Shares Net (Losses’ Comprehensive
amounts (000) Amount (000) Amount Capital Earnings (000) Amount Gains Total Income

Comprehensive income

Translation adjustments,
net of tax of $1 9 9 9

Pension and postretirement benefit

adjustments, net of tax of $26 43 (43) (43)
Toalcomprehensieincome s ek
Accrued dividends I (290) o0
Employeestockplans 3% (9 18 me 1
Treasury stock purchased (2,379 (150 (150)

Balance at June 30, 2010 — — 158,74: 15¢ 617 92C (19,97) (1,242 (377) 83
Comprehensiveincome
Net earnings I 557 557 $ 557

Change in valuation of derivatives,

net of tax of $3 5 5 5
Accrued dividends (30€) (306)

Total comprehensive income $ 67¢€
Balance at June 30, 2011 — — 158,74 15¢ 632 1,14: (27,679 1,770 (250) (86)

Net earnings 541 541 $ 541

Change in valuation of derivatives,

net of tax of $4 (37) (37) (37)
Total comprehensive income $ 39t
Employee stock plans 1 (149 1,91 11< 101
Balance at June 30, 2012 — $ — 158,74 $ 15¢ $ 632 $ 1,35( (29,179 $ (1,88) $ (396) $ (13§

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
The Clorox Company

Years ended June 3
Dollars in millions
Operating activities:
Net earnings
Deduct: (Losses) earnings from discontinogerations
Earnings from continuing operations
Adjustments to reconcile earnings from auunitig operations to net cash
provided by continuing operations:
Depreciation and amortization
Share-based compensation
Deferred income taxes
Goodwill impairment
Other
Changes in:
Receivables, net
Inventories, net
Other current assets
Accounts payable ancraed liabilities
Income taxes payable
Net cash provided by continuing operatic
Net cash (used for) provided by discontinued opara
Net cash provided by operatio
Investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sale of businesses, net mddiion costs
Businesses acquired, net of cash acquired
Other
Net cash (used for) provided by investing actigifieom continuing operatior
Net cash used for investing activities from disawntd operation
Net cash (used for) provided by investing actigi
Financing activities:
Notes and loans payable, net
Long-term debt borrowings, net of issuanests
Long-term debt repayments
Treasury stock purchased
Cash dividends paid
Issuance of common stock for employee spiaks and other
Net cash used for financing activiti
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casia&nts
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year
End of year
Supplemental cash flow information:
Interest paid
Income taxes paid, net of refunds
Non-cash financing activities:
Dividends declared and accrued, botipaid

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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2012 2011 2010
$ 541 557 $  60Z
@ 27C 77
54z 287 52¢
17¢ 172 18%
27 32 6C
(12) 73 24
— 25¢ —
(36) 12 (15)
(52 (33 (27)
1 (37) 6
A3) 21 ()
10 (52) 30
(36) (44 (20)
62C 69C 764
8) 8 55
61z 69€ 81c
(192) (228) (201)
— 747 —
(93) — (19)
8 25 (9)
277 544 (229)
— — (2
277 544 (231)
(164) 87 (52)
297 — 29¢
— (300) (59¢)
(228) (655) (150)
(315) (309 (282)
86 93 80
(321) (1,079 (706)
(6) 8 1)
8 177 (11)
25¢ 87 20€
$ 267 25¢  $ 87
$ 127 131 $  14¢
292 29t 301
85 80 78



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Clorox Company
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation

The Company is principally engaged in the produstinarketing and sales of consumer products througgs merchandisers, grocery stores,
retail outlets, distributors and medical supplyyiers. The consolidated financial statements belthe statements of the Company and its wholly:
owned and controlled subsidiaries. All significantercompany transactions and accounts were elbdnan consolidation. Certain prior yi
reclassifications were made in the consolidatedrfimal statements and related notes to consolidatadcial statements to conform to the cur
year presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these consolidated financialestants in conformity with accounting principlesngeally accepted in the United State:
America (U.S. GAAP) requires management to makienasts and assumptions that affect reported ama@unttselated disclosures. Specific a
requiring the application of management’s estimated judgments include assumptions pertaining touats for consumer and tragesmotior
programs, share-based compensation costs, penstbpastemployment benefit costs, future cash flows assediavith impairment testing
goodwill and other londjived assets, credit worthiness of customers, daitetax positions, tax valuation allowances arghlgenvironmental ai
insurance matters. Actual results could materigififer from estimates and assumptions made.

New Accounting Pronouncements
Recently Issued Pronouncemer

On July 27, 2012, the Financial Accounting Standa@dard (FASB) issued new guidance to simplify hentities test indefinitéived intangible
assets for impairment. The new guidance allows ratityeto first assess qualitative factors to deteanwhether it is necessary to perfori
quantitative indefinite-lived intangible asset imp@ent test. The new guidance is effective for ainndefinitelived intangible asset impairme
tests to be performed in fiscal year 2013, witHyeadoption permitted. The Company will adopt thisdance beginning in fiscal year 2013
does not expect the adoption to have any impagsawonsolidated financial statements.

On June 16, 2011, the FASB issued new requiren@nthe presentation of comprehensive income. Comapanill be required to present
components of net income and other comprehensis@nie either in one continuous statement, refervedstthe Statement of Comprehen
Income, or in two separate, consecutive statemBnésentation requirements also eliminate the stiogtion to report other comprehensive inc
and its components in the Statement of Stockhdld®nsficit) Equity. The components recognized in m&toime or other comprehensive ince
under current accounting guidance will not chafigee presentation requirements are required to bptad by the Company in the first quarte
fiscal year 2013.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid instrusetime deposits and money market funds with @&mimmaturity at purchase of three month
less. The fair value of cash and cash equivalg@ysoaimates the carrying amount.

The Companys cash position includes amounts held by foreidssisliaries, and, as a result, the repatriationeofain cash balances from som:
the Companys foreign subsidiaries could result in additiorzed tosts. However, these cash balances are ggnevallable without legal restricti
to fund local business operations. In additionpdipn of the Company’s cash
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

balances is held in U.S. dollars by foreign sulasids, whose functional currency is their localrency. Such U.S. dollar balances are reporte
the foreign subsidiarieddooks, in their functional currency, with the impdimm foreign currency exchange rate differencesorded in othe
expense (income), net. The Company’s cash holdirge as follows as of June 30:

2012 2011
Nor-U.S. dollar balances held by non-U.S. dollar fioral currency subsidiaries $ 81 $ 98
U.S. dollar balances held by non-U.S. dollar fumaail currency subsidiaries 35 15
Nor-U.S. dollar balances held by U.S. dollar functionarency subsidiaries 20 26
U.S. dollar balances held by U.S. dollar functiotiarency subsidiaries 131 12C
Total $ 267 $ 25¢

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mialk/hen necessary, the Company provides allowancagjust the carrying value of its invent
to the lower of cost or market, including any cadstsell or dispose. Appropriate considerationiveiy to obsolescence, excessive inventory le
product deterioration and other factors in evahgatiet realizable value for the purposes of det@ngithe lower of cost or market.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Finite-Lived Intangible Assets

Property, plant and equipment and firliteed intangible assets are stated at cost. Degiieni and amortization expense are calculated b
straightline method using the estimated useful lives of rflated assets. The table below provides estimagetlul lives of property, plant a
equipment by asset classification.

Estimated

Useful Lives
Land improvements 10 -30 year
Buildings 10 -40 year
Machinery and equipment 3 -15year
Computer equipment 3 year
Capitalized software costs 3 -7 year

Property, plant and equipment and firliteed intangible assets are reviewed for impairmenénever events or changes in circumstances tica!
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset §getagroup) may not be recoverable. The Comgainypairment review is based on an estima
the undiscounted cash flows at the lowest levelfich identifiable cash flows exist. Impairmentars when the book value of the asset exc
the estimated future undiscounted cash flows gésbtay the asset and the impairment is viewed fasr dhan temporary. When an impairmel
indicated, an impairment charge is recorded fordifference between the book value of the asseitarebtimated fair market value. Dependin
the asset, estimated fair market value may beméted either by use of a discounted cash flow mautdby reference to estimated selling value
assets in similar condition.

Impairment Review of Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

The Company tests its goodwill, trademarks withefimdte lives and other indefinitiéved intangible assets annually in the fiscal fhuguarte
unless there are indications during a differergrimi period that these assets may have becomerzdpadith respect to goodwill, the Compi
performs either a qualitative or quantitative easilon for each of its reporting units. Factors ¢desed in the qualitative test include reportingt
specific operating results as well as new events @rcumstances impacting the operations at thertiyg units. For the quantitative te
impairment occurs when the carrying amount of aépg unit's goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. An impaént charge is recorded for
difference between the carrying amount and theiadgdhir value of the reporting unitgoodwill. For other intangible assets with ind&é lives, i
quantitative test is performed. Impairment occunemwthe carrying amount of an asset is greateritb@stimated fair value. An impairment
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

charge is recorded for the difference between #reying amount and the estimated fair value. Then@anys estimates of fair value are ba
primarily on a discounted cash flow approach tlegjuires significant management judgment with reispeduture sales volumes, revenue
expense growth rates, changes in working capiedidgn-exchange rates, currency devaluation, ioflatand a perpetuity growth rate.

Capitalization of Software Costs

The Company capitalizes significant costs incuniredhe acquisition and development of software ifdernal use, including the costs of
software, materials, consultants, interest andglgnd payroll-related costs for employees incdirire developing internalkse computer softwe
once final selection of the software is made. Costsrred prior to the final selection of softwaaed costs not qualifying for capitalization
charged to expense. Capitalized software amomizatias $18, $19 and $29, in fiscal years 2012, 20i12010.

Share-Based Compensation
The Company grants various nonqualified stock-baseapensation awards, including stock options arfbpmance units.

For stock options, the Company estimates the flirevof each award on the date of grant using taekBscholes valuation model, which requ
management to make estimates regarding expectamhdii¢, stock price volatility and other assungpis. Groups of employees that have sir
historical exercise behavior are considered seglgrr valuation purposes. The Company estimataskption forfeitures based on historical
for each employee grouping and the estimated farferate is adjusted to reflect actual forfeiturpsn vesting of such grouping. The adjustme
the forfeiture rate will result in a cumulative claup adjustment in the period the forfeiture estimatehanged. The expense is recorde
amortizing the grant date fair values on a straligiet basis over the vesting period, adjusted &ingated forfeitures.

The Companyg performance unit grants provide for the issuasfceommon stock to certain managerial staff andcetree management if tl
Company achieves specified performance targets gfdmgs generally vest after three years. Thevigite of each grant issued is estimated o
date of grant based on the current market pridgeetock. The total amount of compensation expessegnized reflects estimated forfeiture r
and the initial assumption that performance godlshe achieved. Compensation expense is adjustsgédon managemesitassessment of |
probability that performance goals will be achievddsuch goals are not met or it is determined #ghievement of performance goals is
probable, previously recognized compensation expenadjusted to reflect the expected payout ldfélis determined that the performance g
will be exceeded, additional compensation expensedognized.

Cash flows resulting from tax deductions in excafsthe cumulative compensation cost recognizecsfarebased payment arrangements (ex
tax benefit) are primarily classified as financeagh flows. For the fiscal years ended June 32,22011 and 2010, $10, $9, and $10, respect
of excess tax benefits were generated from shavedg@ayment arrangements, and were recognizedaaciing cash flows.

Employee Benefits

The Company accounts for its defined benefit retéet income and retirement health care plans usbbgarial methods. These methods us
attribution approach that generally spreads “phaenés” over the service lives of plan participants. Exaspdf plan events are plan amendrr
and changes in actuarial assumptions such as ezt return on plan assets, discount rate, fateropensation increase, and certain employee
related factors, such as retirement age and mgrtdlhe principle underlying the attribution appchas that employees render service over
employment period on a relatively “smootbédsis, and, therefore, the statement of earnirfgstefof retirement income and retirement healtie
plans are recognized in the same pattern.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

One of the principal assumptions used in the nebgie benefit cost calculation is the expectedumeton plan assets. The required use ¢
expected return on plan assets may result in rézegrpension expense or income that differs fromabtual returns of those plan assets ir
given year. Over time, however, the goal is forekpected londerm returns to approximate the actual returns thetefore, the expectation is t
the pattern of income and expense recognition sholalsely match the pattern of the services pravidg the participants. The Company us
marketrelated value method for calculating plan assetspfoposes of determining the amortization of adaliagains and losses. This metl
employs an asset smoothing approach. The diffesgneveen actual and expected returns are recabjimizke net periodic benefit cost calcula
over the average remaining service period of tae plrticipants using the corridor approach. Uttldisrapproach, only actuarial gains (losses)
exceed 5% of the greater of the projected benbfigation or the marketelated value of assets are amortized to pensiparse by the Compal
In developing its expected return on plan asskeésCompany considers the lotegm actual returns relative to the mix of investtsehat compris
its plan assets and also develops estimates agkfirtuestment returns by considering external sesurc

The Company recognizes an actuabated obligation at the onset of disability fortaer benefits provided to individuals after emplam bu
before retirement, that include medical, dentaion, life and other benefits.

Environmental Costs

The Company is involved in certain environmentaheeiation and omgoing compliance activities. Accruals for enviromted matters are record
on a site-bysite basis when it is probable that a liability Heeen incurred and the amount of the liability d@nreasonably estimated. -
Companys accruals reflect the anticipated participatiomotifer potentially responsible parties in thosdainses where it is probable that s
parties are legally responsible and financiallyadde of paying their respective shares of the eelecosts. These accruals are adjusted perioc
as assessment and remediation efforts progress additional technical or legal information beconaesilable. Actual costs to be incurret
identified sites in future periods may vary frone tbstimates, given the inherent uncertainties aluafing environmental exposures. The aggre
accrual for environmental matters is included iheotliabilities in the Compang’consolidated balance sheets on an undiscoungsl dge to th
uncertainty and timing of future payments.

Revenue Recognition

Sales are recognized as revenue when the risksefdad title pass to the customer and when alhefféllowing have occurred: a firm se
arrangement exists, pricing is fixed or determiralaind collection is reasonably assured. Saleseamrded net of allowances for returns, trade-
promotions, coupons and other discounts. The Compautinely commits to one-time or on-going trgatemotion programs with customers .
consumer coupon programs that require the Compamstimate and accrue the expected costs of swgragons. Programs include shelf p
reductions, end-of-aisle or in-store displays & @ompany’s products and graphics and other tpadeotion activities conducted by the custol
Coupons are recognized as a liability when disteétibased upon expected consumer redemptions. dimpaly maintains liabilities at the enc
each period for the estimated expenses incurredytqpaid for these programs. Tragiemotion and coupon costs are recorded as a fedusf
sales. The Company provides an allowance for dollaticounts based on its historical experienceaapdriodic review of its accounts receiva
Receivables were presented net of an allowanceldabtful accounts of $7 and $5 at June 30, 2012201d, respectively. The Compasy’
provision for doubtful accounts was $3 in fiscahy2012 and less than $1 for fiscal year 2011.

Cost of Products Sold

Cost of products sold represents the costs direelfyed to the manufacture and distribution of @enpany$ products and primarily includes r
materials, packaging, contract packer fees, shippimd handling, warehousing, package design, degiet amortization and direct and indit
labor and operating costs for the Company’s manufeg facilities including salary, benefit costsdaincentive compensation.

Costs associated with developing and designing peskaging are expensed as incurred and includgrdemitwork, films and labeling. Expen
for fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2@t6 $10, $11, and $8, respectively, of which $@ and $7 were classified as cost of proc
sold, with the remainder classified as selling addhinistrative expenses.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses represent austsred by the Company in generating revenuesnaaisiaging the business and include m:
research, commissions and certain administratiypereses. Administrative expenses include salaryefiisnincentive compensation, professit
fees and services, software and licensing feesadiner operating costs associated with the Compangismanufacturing, noresearch ar
development staff, facilities and equipment.

Advertising and Research and Development Costs
The Company expenses advertising and researcheaeibgment costs in the period incurred.
Income Taxes

The Company uses the asset and liability methaattmunt for income taxes. Deferred tax assets iabdities are recognized for the anticipe
future tax consequences attributable to differermmtsveen financial statement amounts and theirems@ tax bases. Management reviews
Companys deferred tax assets to determine whether thkievan be realized based upon available evidehgeluation allowance is establist
when management believes that it is more likelynthat that some portion of its deferred tax assélisnot be realized. Changes in valual
allowances from period to period are included ia @ompanys tax provision in the period of change. In additio valuation allowances, t
Company provides for uncertain tax positions whaohstax positions do not meet certain recognitioregholds or measurement stand:
Amounts for uncertain tax positions are adjusteguarters when new information becomes availableh@n positions are effectively settled.

U.S. income tax expense and foreign withholdingssare provided on unremitted foreign earningsahanot indefinitely reinvested at the time
earnings are generated. Where foreign earningmaeéinitely reinvested, no provision for U.S. imee or foreign withholding taxes is made. W
circumstances change and the Company determinesdh®e or all of the undistributed earnings will teeitted in the foreseeable future,
Company accrues an expense in the current peridd.& income taxes and foreign withholding taxistatable to the anticipated remittance.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

Other than Venezuela, which operates in a highfiationary economy, local currencies are the fuor@i currencies for substantially all of
Companys foreign operations. When the transactional casrés different than the functional currency, tractson gains and losses are include

a component of other (income) expense, net. Intiaddicertain assets and liabilities denominatedurrencies different than a foreign subsidiary’
functional currency are reported on the subsidgabooks in its functional currency, with the imp&am exchange rate differences recorde
other (income) expense, net. Assets and liabiliteforeign operations are translated into U.Slatslusing the exchange rates in effect a
balance sheet date. Income and expenses are teahatahe average monthly exchange rates durmgehr. Gains and losses on foreign curr
translations are reported as a component of othepoehensive income. Deferred taxes are not prdvate cumulative translation adjustme
where the Company expects earnings of a foreigsidiainy to be indefinitely reinvested. The incorag &ffect of currency translation adjustmu
related to foreign subsidiaries and joint ventdogsvhich earnings are not considered indefinitelynvested is recorded as a component of del
taxes with an offset to other comprehensive income.

Venezuela

Prior to December 31, 2009, the Company transligedenezuelan subsidiary’s financial statementsgi¥enezuela official currency exchan
rate, which had been fixed by the Venezuelan gowent at 2.15 bolivar Fuertes (VEFs) to the U.SatolEffective December 31, 2009,
Company began translating its Venezuelan subsididiipancial statements using the then prevailingalpd market currency exchange |
(exchange rates negotiated with local financiakrimediaries), the rate at which the Company exgetiebe able to remit dividends or ret
capital. The rate used at December 31, 2009, VBES\EEFs to the U.S. dollar.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Effective January 1, 2010, the financial statemdatsthe Company Venezuelan subsidiary are consolidated undemules governing tt
translation of financial information in a highlyfiationary economy. As such, the subsidiary’s nb&- dollar monetary assets and liabilities
remeasured into U.S dollars each reporting periudi the exchange gains and losses from these rersesuts are reflected in the Company’
current net earnings.

In May 2010, the Venezuelan government suspendeduttictioning of the parallel currency exchange kegrand in June 2010, establishe«
alternative currency exchange market controlledheyCentral Bank of Venezuela. As a result, the @aomy began utilizing the exchange rat
which the Company was purchasing U.S. dollars tinothis alternative market as the remeasuremest frat the Compang’ Venezuela
subsidiarys financial statements. The average exchangeaatd.§. dollars purchased through this alternatiagket was 5.5 VEFs for both fis
years ending June 30, 2012 and 2011, and 5.4 \\iRkd fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

Derivative Instruments

The Company’s use of derivative instruments, ppally swaps, futures, and forward contracts, istéchto nontrading purposes and is designe
partially manage exposure to changes in interestsrdoreign currencies and commodity prices. Then@anys contracts are hedges
transactions with notional balances and periodssistent with the related exposures and do not ttotestinvestments independent of tr
exposures.

Most commodity derivative contracts, interest ridevards and foreigmxchange contracts are designated as cash flonebkeafgcertain ra
material, forecasted interest payments and finisheods inventory purchase obligations based oraicetiedge criteria. The criteria usec
determine if hedge accounting treatment is appatprare: (a) whether the designation of the hesige an underlying exposure and (b) whe
there is sufficient correlation between the valdeth®e derivative instrument and the underlying gation. The changes in the fair value
derivatives are recorded as either assets oritiabiin the balance sheet with an offset to netiegs or other comprehensive income, dependit
whether, for accounting purposes, the derivativddsignated and qualified as a hedge. The Compewmlesignates a hedge relationship th
accounted for as a hedge whenever it determingstbahedge relationship is no longer highly effextor that the forecasted transaction i
longer probable. Upon déesignation of a hedge, the portion of gains osdeson the subject derivative instrument that wesipusly accumulate
in other comprehensive income remains in accundilatieer comprehensive income until the forecagtausaction is recognized in net earning
is recognized in earnings immediately if the fosted transaction is no longer probable. From tim@ne, the Company may have contracts
designated as hedges for accounting purposes, Hmhvit recognizes changes in the fair value o¢heontracts in other (income) expense,
Cash flows from hedging activities are classifisbperating activities in the consolidated stateameficash flows.

The Company uses different methodologies, whenssacg, to estimate the fair value of its derivatbemtracts. The estimated fair values ol
majority of the Compang’ contracts are based on quoted market pricegdraxtchange market prices, or broker price quatstiand represent 1
estimated amounts that the Company would pay @ivedo terminate the contracts.

NOTE 2. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In September 2010, the Company entered into aithefiragreement to sell its global auto care busses (Auto Businesses) to an affiliate of Ay
Capital Partners in an athsh transaction. In November 2010, the Companypliad the sale pursuant to the terms of a PurchadeSal
Agreement (Purchase Agreement) and received casidemation of $755. The Company also received fasls of approximately $30 related
net working capital that was retained by the Corgpaspart of the sale. Included in earnings frogstaitinued operations for the fiscal year el
June 30, 2011, was an aftax gain on the transaction of $247. In fiscal y2@t2, the Company recognized $1 of additional imedax expen:
related to the gain on the sale, which was recoim@idsses) earnings from discontinued operatioaspf tax.

As part of the Purchase Agreement, certain tramsiiervices were provided to the buyer from the aditsale, November 5, 2010, through |
2012, a period of eighteen months. The purposéeftervices was to provide shtetm assistance to the buyer in assuming the apesadf the
Auto Businesses. These services did not confédrea@bmpany the ability to influence
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NOTE 2. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

the operating or financial policies of the Auto Biesses under their new ownership. Income fromete@msition services for the fiscal years el
June 30, 2012 and 2011, was $6 and $9, respectaetiwas reported in other (income) expense,imepntinuing operations in the consolide
statements of earnings. The costs associated hatlsdrvices were also reflected in continuing dpmra. Aside from the transition services,
Company included the financial results of the ABtsinesses in discontinued operations for all pisrjgresented.

The following table includes financial results ititable to the Auto Businesses as of June 30:

2012 2011 2010
Net sales $ — 3 9%5 $ 30C
Earnings before income taxes $ — 3 3 $ 12
Income tax expense on earnings — (12) (43
(Loss) gain on sale, net of tax (1) 247 —
(Losses) earnings from discontinued operationsofietx $ @ $ 21 $ 77

NOTE 3. BUSINESSES ACQUIRED
Fiscal Year 2012

On December 31, 2011, the Company acquired HealkhlAplicare, Inc. and Soy Vay Enterprises, Inogliding each busineswiorkforce, fo
purchase prices aggregating $97, funded throughrmreial paper borrowings. The amount paid of $38easents the aggregate purchase f
less cash acquired. HealthLink, based in Jackden¥la., and Aplicare, Inc., based in Meriden, Qomre leading providers of infection con
products for the health care industry, complemegnéind expanding the Compasyprofessional products business. Results for thesmesses ¢
reflected in the Cleaning reportable segment. Say ¥nterprises, Inc., a California-based operatimoyvides the Company’food product
business a presence in the growing market for As@rtes. Results for this business are reflectedeiriifestyle reportable segment. Pro fo
results reflecting the acquisitions were not présgrbecause the acquisitions were not significanttividually or when aggregated, to
Company'’s consolidated financial results.

Fiscal Year 2010

In January 2010, the Company acquired the asse@sltéch Industries, Inc., a company that providissfectants for the health care industry,
an aggregate price of $24, with the objective qfaading the Compang’capabilities in the areas of health and wellnessonnection with tF
purchase, the Company acquired Caltech Indusiness workforce. The Company paid for the acquisitiorcash. Results for this business
reflected in the Cleaning reportable segment. Brm& results were not presented because the daouigias not significant to the Compaay’
consolidated financial results.

NOTE 4. INVENTORIES, NET

Inventories, net, consisted of the following adwoifie 30:

2012 2011
Finished goods $ 307 $ 31t
Raw materials and packaging 12C 104
Work in process 4 3
LIFO allowances 37 (29
Allowances for obsolescence (10 (12)
Total $ 384 $ 38
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NOTE 4. INVENTORIES, NET (Continued)

The last-in, firsteut (LIFO) method was used to value approximat&%o3and 37% of inventories as of June 30, 2012 &id 2respectively. Tt
carrying values for all other inventories, incluglimventories of all international businesses,determined on the first-in, firgut (FIFO) methoc
The effect on earnings of the liquidation of LIF&yérs was a benefit of $2, $1 and $3 for the figealrs ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and :
respectively.

During fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Comganventory obsolescence expense was $13, $1%ahdrespectively.
NOTE 5. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Other current assets consisted of the followingfakine 30:

2012 2011
Deferred tax assets $ 92 $ 68
Prepaid expenses 43 36
Other 14 9
Total $ 14¢ $ 118
NOTE 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET
The components of property, plant and equipmeitt,coasisted of the following as of June 30:
2012 2011

Machinery and equipment $ 153: $ 1,54(
Buildings 64€ 61F
Capitalized software costs 32¢ 36(
Construction in progress 14¢ 13C
Land and improvements 14z 137
Computer equipment 87 92

2,88t 2,87¢
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,809 (1,835
Total $ 1,081 $ 1,03¢

Depreciation and amortization expense related apgaty, plant and equipment, net, was $158, $163%4163 in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2
respectively.

NOTE 7. GOODWILL, TRADEMARKS AND OTHER INTANGIBLE A SSETS

Beginning in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 20h2tural personal care financial results outsideW.S. are being reported in the Internati
segment rather than in the Lifestyle segment becenenagement of the International segment now hampy oversight of natural personal ¢
financial results outside the U.S. All periods erged have been recast to reflect this changefiseal year 2011, the Lifestyle and Internatic
reportable segments included a noncash goodwilhimment charge of $164 and $94, respectively,HerBurt's Bees business.
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NOTE 7. GOODWILL, TRADEMARKS AND OTHER INTANGIBLE A SSETS (Continued)

Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill, traddmand other intangible assets for the fiscal yearded June 30, 2012 and 2011, we
follows:

Goodwill
Cleaning Lifestyle Householc International Total
Balance June 30, 2010 $ 27 $ 39¢ 3 85 $ 544 $ 1,30:
Goodwill impairment — (164) — (94) (25¢)
Translation adjustments and other — — — 25 25
Balance June 30, 2011 $ 278 $ 23 $ 85 % 478 $ 1,07(
Acquisitions 48 8 — — 56
Translation adjustments and other — 1 — (15) (149
Balance June 30, 2012 $ 322 $ 244 $ 85 $ 46C $ 1,112
Other intangible assets
Trademarks subject to amortization
Technology
Subject to Not subject tc and Product
amortization amortization Total formulae Other Total
Balance June 30, 2010 $ 24 3 52¢ $ 55C $ 37 $ 59 $ 96
Amortization (©)] — 3 9 5) (14
Translation adjustments and other 2 1 3 3 2 1
Balance June 30, 2011 23 527 55C 31 52 83
Acquisitions — 1C 10 — 18 18
Amortization (©)] — 3 8) (6) (149
Translation adjustments and other @ — @ — @ (@)
Balance June 30, 2012 $ 19 3 537 $ 55€ $ 23 $ 63 $ 86

Intangible assets subject to amortization wereofiéttal accumulated amortization of $257 and $at3une 30, 2012 and 2011, respectivel
which $18 and $15, respectively, related to tradkmaTotal accumulated amortization included $188 129 at June 30, 2012 and 2!
respectively, related to intangible assets sulieamortization that were fully amortized, of whigfi and $5, respectively, related to tradem
Estimated amortization expense for these intangibsets is $17, $16, $12, $7 and $7 for fiscalsy2@t3, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2012, bempany completed its annual impairment test ofdgalb and indefinitelived intangible asse
and no instances of impairment were identified.

During fiscal year 2011, the Company identified llgres in increasing sales for the BsirBees business in certain international marke
accordance with projections, particularly in thedpean Union and Asia. Additionally, during fisgalar 2011, the Company initiated its proces
updating the three-year long-range financial andrating plan for the Bu$’ Bees business. In addition to slower than pregegrowth o
international sales and challenges in the timingceftain international expansion plans, the doroesétural personal care category had
recovered in accordance with the Compangtojections. Following a comprehensive reevatuatthe Company recognized a noncash goao
impairment charge of $258 during fiscal year 2011.

The impairment charge was a result of changesdraisumptions used to determine the fair valueeBurt's Bees business based on slower
forecasted category growth as well as challeng@gténnational expansion plans, which adverselgcéd the original assumptions for internati
growth and the estimates of expenses necessarghieva that growth. The revised assumptions reftbctomewhat higher cost levels t
previously projected. As a result of this assessniba Company determined that the book value eBbrt’'s Bees reporting unit exceeded its
value, resulting in a noncash goodwill impairmehame of $258 recognized in fiscal year 2011. Thecash goodwill impairment charge \
based on the Company’s estimates regarding thesffinancial performance of the BugtBees business and macroeconomic factors. Ther@g
substantial tax benefit associated with this nomchsrge.
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NOTE 7. GOODWILL, TRADEMARKS AND OTHER INTANGIBLE A SSETS (Continued)

To determine the fair value of the BwrtBees reporting unit, which was reflected in thiedtyle reportable segment in fiscal year 201%
Company used a discounted cash flow (DCF) appraeit,believed this approach was the most reliaalizator of the fair value of the busine
Under this approach, the Company estimated thedutash flows of the Bug’Bees reporting unit and discounted these castsflt a rate «
return that reflected its relative risk.

The Company’s trademarks and indefinite-lived igihle assets for the Bust'Bees reporting unit were tested for impairmerfisoal year 201:
and the Company concluded that these assets weiapaired. No other instances of impairment weemntified during fiscal years 2011 and 2C

NOTE 8. ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities consisted of the following alsJaine 30:

2012 2011
Compensation and employee benefit costs $ 168 $ 12C
Trade and sales promotion 10t 88
Dividends 85 80
Interest 34 32
Other 10E 122
Total $ 494 $ 44z
NOTE 9. DEBT

Notes and loans payable, which mature in less dhanyear, included the following as of June

2012 2011

Commercial paper $ 28¢ $ 45¢€
Foreign borrowings 11 3
Total $ 30C $ 45¢

The weighted average interest rate on commercgmpaas 0.46% and 0.33% as of June 30, 2012 ant, 2@4pectively. During the fiscal ye
ended June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the weight@ge interest rates on the average balance of aatkloans payable was 0.85%, 0.73%
0.62%, respectively. The carrying value of noted laans payable as of June 30, 2012 and 2011 appated its fair value due to its short matur

Long-term debt, carried at face value net of undizexnt discounts or premiums, included the followasgof June 30:

2012 2011
Senior unsecured notes and debentures:
5.45%, $350 due October 2012 $ 35C $ 35C
5.00%, $500 due March 2013 50C 50C
5.00%, $575 due January 2015 57¢ 57¢
3.55%, $300 due November 2015 30C 29¢
5.95%, $400 due October 2017 39¢ 39¢
3.80%, $300 due November 2021 297 —
Foreign borrowings — 3
Total 2,421 2,12¢
Less: Current maturities of long-term debt (850 —
Long-term debt $ 1571 $ 2,12
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NOTE 9. DEBT (Continued)

The weighted average interest rate on lterga debt was 5.18% and 5.20% as of June 30, 280 2@11, respectively. During the fiscal years &l
June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the weighted avenagrest rates on the average balance of teng- debt, including the effect of interest
swaps, was 5.21%, 5.22% and 5.16%, respectively.eBtimated fair value of lortgrm debt, including current maturities, was $2,6066 $2,30
as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Thevédiie of longterm debt was determined using secondary marketpguoted by corporate b
dealers, and was classified as level 2.

In November 2011, the Company filed a shelf regt&in statement with the SEC, which allows the Canypto offer and sell an unlimited ama
of its senior unsecured indebtedness from timéme.tThe shelf registration statement will expmeNovember 2014. Subsequently, in Nover
2011, the Company issued $300 of senior notes wthdeshelf registration statement. The notes camrgnnual fixed interest rate of 3.80% pay
semiannually in May and November. The notes mature owelhber 15, 2021. Proceeds from the notes weretosedire commercial paper. T
notes rank equally with all of the Company’s exigtand future senior indebtedness.

In fiscal years 2011 and 2010, $300 and $598, otisedy, of longterm debt became due and was paid. The Compangduthe debt repayme
with commercial paper and operating cash flows.

In fiscal year 2010, the Company issued $300 afdtamm debt in senior notes. The notes carry amarfixed interest rate of 3.55% payable semi-
annually in May and November. The notes mature onekhber 1, 2015. Proceeds from the notes were tosegpay commercial paper. The n
rank equally with all of the Company’s existing daotlre senior indebtedness.

The Company’s borrowing capacity under other fimag@rrangements as of June 30 was as follows:

2012 2011
Revolving credit facility $ 1,00C $ 1,10C
Foreign credit lines 31 18
Other credit lines 13 13
Total $ 1,14« $ 1,131

During fiscal year 2012, the Company entered inteesv $1.1 billion revolving credit agreement, whiekpires in May 2017 and concurrel
terminated its prior $1.1 billion revolving credigreement, which was due to mature in April 2018.t&fmination fees or penalties were incu
by the Company in connection with the terminatidnttee prior credit agreement. As of June 30, 2ah2re were no borrowings under
agreement, and the Company believes that borrowindsr the revolving credit facility are and wiiitinue to be available for general corpc
purposes. The agreement includes certain resgictivenants and limitations, with which the Compamg in compliance as of June 30, 2012.

Of the $44 of foreign and other credit lines ateJ@0, 2012, $29 was available for borrowing.

Long+erm debt maturities as of June 30, 2012, are $850, $575, $300, zero and $700 in fiscal yeal820014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and theres
respectively.

NOTE 10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASU REMENTS

Accounting guidance on fair value measurementséotain financial assets and liabilities requitest financial assets and liabilities carried at
value be classified and disclosed in one of thiedohg three categories:

Level 1: Quoted market prices in active marketddentical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Observable market-based inputs or unobddevinputs that are corroborated by market data.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs reflecting the repaytentity’s own assumptions.

As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the Compariyiancial assets and liabilities that were mesdat fair value on a recurring basis during thar
included derivative financial instruments, whichrevall level 2.
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NOTE 10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASU REMENTS (Continued)
Financial Risk Management and Derivative Instrumensg

The Company is exposed to certain commodity, isterae and foreign currency risks relating taitgoing business operations and uses deri\
instruments to mitigate its exposure to these risks

Commodity Price Risk Management

The Company may use commodity exchange tradedefutand over-theeunter swap contracts to fix the price of a portdd its forecasted re
material requirements. Contract maturities, whioh generally no longer than 18 months, are matt¢hete length of the raw material purchk
contracts. Commodity purchase contracts are medsafair value using market quotations obtainedfficommodity derivative dealers.

As of June 30, 2012, the net notional value of cadity derivatives was $39, of which $22 relatedetofuel, $14 related to soybean oil, anc
related to crude oil. As of June 30, 2011, thenmional value of commaodity derivatives was $44wdfich $22 related to jet fuel, $16 relate
soybean oil, $3 related to crude oil and $3 reladediesel fuel.

Interest Rate Risk Managemel

The Company may enter into over-tbednter interest rate forward contracts to fix &tipa of the benchmark interest rate prior to thédpatec
issuance of fixed rate debt. These interest ratedi@ contracts generally have durations of leas tiwvelve months. The interest rate contract
measured at fair value using information quotedJb8. government bond dealers. During the fiscal yealed June 30, 2012, the Company
$36 to settle interest rate forward contracts, Whiere reflected as operating cash flows.

As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the net notionalevefinterest rate forward contracts was $250 @@D$respectively.
Foreign Currency Risk Management

The Company may also enter into certain over-th@ta foreign currency-related derivative contractamanage a portion of the Company’
foreign exchange risk associated with the purclwiseventory and certain intercompany transactidrtese foreign currency contracts gene
have durations no longer than twelve months. Theida exchange contracts are measured at fair uadireg information quoted by forei
exchange dealers.

The net notional values of outstanding foreign ency forward contracts used by the Comparstbsidiaries in Canada and Australia to h
forecasted purchases of inventory were $28 ands$®f dune 30, 2012, respectively, and $28 and $18f dune 30, 2011, respectively. The
notional values of outstanding foreign currencyMard contracts used by the Company to economibaitige foreign exchange risk associated
certain intercompany transactions were $17 ands$ff dune 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Counterparty Risk Management

Certain terms of the agreements governing the Caogipaver-theeounter derivative instruments require the Compamnthe counterparty to pe
collateral when the fair value of the derivativastmments exceeds contractually defined counterpitbility position limits. The $4 and $1
derivative instruments in accrued liabilities asJohe 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, contain trchs. As of June 30, 2012, the Company
not required to post any collateral.

Certain terms of the agreements governing the thecounter derivative instruments contain provisidmet require the credit ratings, as assi
by Standard & Poor’'s and Moodyto the Company and its counterparties, to remamlevel equal to or better than the minimumrofreeestmer
grade credit rating. If the Compasycredit ratings were to fall below investment gratie counterparties to the derivative instrumeatgd reque:
full collateralization on derivative instrumentsriet liability positions. As of June 30, 2012, thempany and each of its counterparties maint:
investment grade ratings with both Standard & Poarid Moody'’s.
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NOTE 10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASU REMENTS (Continued)
Fair Value of Derivative Instruments

The accounting for changes in the fair value (gains or losses) of a derivative instrument depemdwhether it has been designated and qui
as a hedge, and, if so, on the type of the hedgilagionship. For those derivative instruments giesied and qualifying as hedging instruments
Company must designate the hedging instrumentfas salue hedge or a cash flow hedge. The Complsjgnates its commodity forward :
future contracts for forecasted purchases of raweriads, interest rate forward contracts for fosted interest payments, and foreign curr
forward contracts for forecasted purchases of itargras cash flow hedges. The Company does nogrsi its foreign currency forward contri
for certain intercompany transactions as accouritédges.

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, 20412810, the Company had no hedging instrumenigrted as fair value hedges.

The Companys derivative instruments designated as hedginguim&nts were recorded at fair value in the conatdid balance sheets as of Jun
as follows:

Balance Sheet classificatic 2012 2011
Assets
Foreign exchange contracts Other currentassets $ 1 $ —
Interest rate contracts Other current assel — 1
Commodity purchase contracts Other currentassets  — 4
$ 18 5
Liabilities
Interest rate contracts Accrued liabilities $ 3 $ 1
Commodity purchase contracts Accrued liabilities I
$ 4 $ 1

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the 2oy entered into foreign currency forward consabat were not designated as accoul
hedging instruments. These derivatives are usetidompany to economically hedge foreign exchaisfeassociated with certain intercomp
transactions between subsidiaries in Canada and.®ieThe Company did not enter into any such #&etisns during the years ended June 30,
and 2010.

The Companys derivative financial instruments not designateth@dging instruments were recorded at fair vaiube consolidated balance sh
as of June 30 as follows:

Balance Sheet classificatic 2012 2011
Assets
Commodity purchase contracts Othercurrentassets $ — $ 1
Liabilities
Foreign exchange contracts Accrued liabilities $ — $ —

For derivative instruments designated and qualifyas cash flow hedges, the effective portion ofigiar losses is reported as a component of
comprehensive income (OCI) and reclassified intmiegs in the same period or periods during whieh lledged transaction affects earnings.
estimated amount of the existing net loss as of Bn 2012, expected to be reclassified into egemivithin the next twelve months is $4. Gains
losses on derivative instruments representing ehikdge ineffectiveness or hedge components extlfrden the assessment of effectivenes:
recognized in current earnings. During the fisazrg ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, hedge ineffaeg was not material. The Company de-
designates cash flow hedge relationships whenéwdstérmines that the hedge relationships are ngelohighly effective or that the forecas
transaction is no longer probable. The portionaifhg or losses on the derivative instrument preshipaccumulated in OCI for
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NOTE 10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASU REMENTS (Continued)

de-designated hedges remains in accumulated OClthetfiorecasted transaction is recognized in easnioigis recognized in earnings immedis
if the forecasted transaction is no longer prohabBlanges in the value of derivative instrumentsdesignated as accounting hedges are recor
other (income) expense, net. The effects of daveahstruments designated as hedging instrumemt®©GI| and the consolidated statement
earnings were as follows during the fiscal yeadeenJune 30:

(Losses) gain: Gains (losses) reclassified from OCI an
recognized in OCI recognized in earnings
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Commaodity purchase contracts $ @ $ 8 $ (3 3 4 % 3 $ (19
Interest rate contracts (39 3 — 2 — —
Foreign exchange contracts 3 (4) (2 2 (3) 3)
Total $ B3 $ 7 $ (5 ¢$ 4 $ — $ (19

The gains and losses reclassified from OCI andgmized in earnings during the fiscal years endett B0, 2012, 2011 and 2010 for commc
purchase contracts and foreign exchange contraars wwcluded in cost of products sold. The lostassified from OCI and recognized in earni
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 forrésterate contracts was included in interest expe@s the losses reclassified from OCI
recognized in earnings during fiscal year 2010, $&8 included in cost of products sold and $2 watuded in earnings from discontint
operations.

The loss from derivatives not designated as acaugihedges was $0 during the fiscal year ended 30n2012. The gain reclassified from OCI
recognized in earnings from designated hedges was $0 for fiscal years endesl 3yn2012, 2011 and 2010. Changes in the valukedfative
instruments after ddesignation were included in other (income) expenstg and amounted to $0, $(6) and $3 for fisealry 2012, 2011 and 20
respectively.

Other

During fiscal year 2011, the Company determined tha book value of the Bugt’'Bees reporting unit exceeded its fair value awbgnized
noncash goodwill impairment charge of $258 (SeeeNQt The implied fair value was based on signiftaanobservable inputs, and as a resuli
fair value measurement was classified as level8ing the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012, 20812840, the Company did not recognize
other significant fair value measurements classiéis level 3.

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalentsumts receivable and accounts payable approxithatefair values as of June 30, 2012
2011, due to their nature.

NOTE 11. OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liabilities consisted of the following askfne 30:

2012 2011
Employee benefit obligations $ 31z $ 21t
Venture agreement net terminal obligation 281 277
Taxes 82 89
Other 64 38
Total $ 73¢ $ 61¢
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NOTE 11. OTHER LIABILITIES (Continued)
Venture Agreement

The Company has an agreement with The Procter & bBa@ompany (P&G) for its Glaf plastic bags, wraps and containers business
Company maintains a net terminal obligation liapjlivhich reflects the estimated value of the cactral requirement to repurchase P&@iteres
at the termination of the agreement. As of June28@2 and 2011, P&G had a 20% interest in the venithe Company pays a royalty to P&G

its interest in the profits, losses and cash flagsgontractually defined, of the GI8idusiness, which is included in cost of products sol

The agreement, entered into in 2003, has a 20tgear with a 10year renewal option and can be terminated undégiinezircumstances, includi
at P&G’s option upon a change in control of the @any, or, at either party’s option, upon the sdlthe Glad® business by the Company. Uj
termination of the agreement, the Company will pase P&GS interest for cash at fair value as establisheprbgletermined valuation procedu
Following termination, the Gla8l business will retain the exclusive core intelletpraperty licenses contributed by P&G on a royélge basis fc
the licensed products marketed.

NOTE 12. OTHER CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES
Contingencies

The Company is involved in certain environmentattara, including response actions at various locati The Company had a recorded liabilit
$14 and $15 as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, resphbgtior its share of aggregate future remediatiosts related to these matters. One mat
Dickinson County, Michigan, for which the Compamsyjaintly and severally liable, accounted for astahtial majority of the recorded liability
of both June 30, 2012 and 2011. The Company haeddo be liable for 24.3% of the aggregate rentiediaand associated costs for this m:
pursuant to a costharing arrangement with a third party. With theistance of environmental consultants, the Compaaiyntains an undiscount
liability representing its current best estimateitefshare of the capital expenditures, maintenamze other costs that may be incurred ove
estimated 3Qrear remediation period. Currently, the Companyncaccurately predict the timing of future paynsettitat may be made under-
obligation. In addition, the Comparsyestimated loss exposure is sensitive to a vaoktyncertain factors, including the efficacy ofmediatior
efforts, changes in remediation requirements ared fthure availability of alternative cleamp technologies. Although it is possible that
Company’s exposure may exceed the amount recoadgcamount of such additional exposures, or rafiggmosures, is not estimable at this time.

The Company is subject to various other lawsuits @aims relating to issues such as contract dispyiroduct liability, patents and trademe
advertising, and employee and other matters. Basdbde Company analysis of these claims and litigation, it is &pinion of management that
ultimate disposition of these matters, to the exteot previously provided for or disclosed belowillwmot have a material adverse effi
individually or in the aggregate, on the Comparggasolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

On August 7, 2012, an appellate court hearing veereéned in a lawsuit pending in Brazil against @@mpany and one of its whollywnec
subsidiaries, The Glad Products Company (“Gladhe pending lawsuit was initially filed in a Braaih lower court in 2002 by two Brazili
companies and one Uruguayan company (collectiviestroplus”) related to joint venture agreementsHerdistribution of STP autcare produc
in Brazil with three companies that became subsatiaof the Company as a result of the Compmmgerger with First Brands Corporatior
January 1999 (collectively, “Clorox SubsidiariesThe pending lawsuit seeks indemnification for daesagnd losses for alleged breaches ¢
joint venture agreements and abuse of economic ipbywéhe Company and Glad. Petroplus had previousiuccessfully raised the same cle
and sought damages from the Company and the CBubsidiaries in an International Chamber of CommgftCC™) arbitration proceeding
Miami filed in 2001. The ICC arbitration panel uiraously ruled against Petroplus in numerous rulimg2001 through 2003, reaching a fi
decision against Petroplus in November 2003 (“FiG& Arbitration Award”).The Final ICC Arbitration Award was ratified by tseiperior Cou
of Justice of Brazil in May 2007 (“Foreign Judgmigntand the United States District Court for the SomhBistrict of Florida subsequen
confirmed the Final ICC Arbitration Award and reo@ed and adopted the Foreign Judgment as a judgmidéime United States District Court
the Southern District of Florida (“U.S. JudgmenDjespite this, in March 2008 a Brazilian lower cowted against the Company and Glad ir
pending lawsuit and awarded Petroplus R$22,952$¥8) plus interest. The current value of that judgt, including interest and foreign exche
fluctuation as of August 14, 2012, is approximatkdy.
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NOTE 12. OTHER CONTINGENCIES AND GUARANTEES (Contin ued)

Because the Final ICC Arbitration Award, the Forelyidgment and the U.S. Judgment relate to the skaimes as those in the pending lawsuit
Company believes that Petroplus is precluded freditigating these claims. Prior to the August 201durt hearing, the Company viewe
potential loss in excess of amounts accrued in@ction with this matter as remote. Based on theg@dings in August, the Company now beli
that it is reasonably possible that a loss coulthberred in this matter in excess of amounts amtralthough it is unable to reasonably estimat
amount of any such additional loss. The Companyticoes to believe that its defenses are meritoritfuthe appellate court rules against
Company and Glad, they plan to appeal the decisiathe highest courts of Brazil, which could taleags to resolve. Expenses related to
litigation and any potential additional loss woule reflected in Discontinued Operations, consistatit the Companys classification of expens
related to its discontinued Brazil operations.

Glad and the Clorox Subsidiaries have also filggheste lawsuits against Petroplus alleging misfiseeoSTP trademark and related matters, w
are currently pending before Brazilian courts.

Guarantees

In conjunction with divestitures and other trangatt, the Company may provide typical indemnifioas (e.g., indemnifications for representat
and warranties and retention of previously exisémyironmental, tax and employee liabilities) thave terms that vary in duration and in
potential amount of the total obligation and, innyp&ircumstances, are not explicitly defined. Thempany has not made, nor does it believe t
is probable that it will make, any payments relgtio its indemnifications, and believes that argsomably possible payments would not ha
material adverse effect, individually or in the sggate, on the Company’s consolidated financiaéstants taken as a whole.

As of June 30, 2012, the Company was a party étterlof credit of $15, related to one of its irmae carriers.
The Company had not recorded any liabilities on @fithe aforementioned guarantees as of June 3@. 20
NOTE 13. STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY

The Company has three share repurchase programsip@nmarket purchase programs and a program to offedtitpact of share dilution relat
to share-based awards (the Evergreen Program)ain2@08, the Company’s board of directors appraredpenmarket purchase program wit
total authorization of $750, of which $71 remaireilable as of June 30, 2012. In May 2011, thedoédirectors approved a second opearke
purchase program with a total authorization of $7Z8I0of which remained available for repurchasefdune 30, 2012. The Evergreen Progran
no authorization limit as to amount or timing opuechases. The purpose of the Evergreen Progreoroiéset the impact of share dilution relate
share-based awards.

Share repurchases under authorized programs wéstaags during the fiscal years ended June 30:

2012 2011 2010

Shares Shares Shares

Amount (000) Amount (000) Amount (000)

Open-market purchase programs $ 158 242¢ $ 521 765/ $ — —
Evergreen Program 67 99C 134 2,127 15C 2,37¢
Total $ 22t 341¢ $ 65 9,77¢ $ 15C 2,37¢

During fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Commtatlared dividends per share of $2.44, $2.25%05, respectively, and paid dividends
share of $2.40, $2.20 and $2.00, respectively.
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NOTE 13. STOCKHOLDERS'’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY (Continued)

Accumulated other comprehensive net losses at3wn2012, 2011 and 2010 included the following afetax gains (losses):

2012 2011 2010
Currency translation $ (199 $ (157 $ (21))
Derivatives 33 4 1
Pension and postretirement benefit adjustments (265) (97) (163)
Total $ (39 $ (2500 $ (37))

Preferred Stock and Shareholder Rights Plan

The Company is authorized to issue up to 5.0 milsbares of preferred stock, of which 1.4 millibues have been designated as Series A .
Participating Preferred Stock in connection witke #idoption of a Rights Agreement (see below). Adwfe 30, 2012 and 2011, no share
preferred stock were issued or outstanding. Thegamyis board of directors may issue preferred stockni @ more series from time to time. -
board of directors is authorized to establish frimme to time the number of shares to be includeddoh such series, and to fix the designe
powers, preferences and rights of the shares &f ®ach series and the qualifications, limitationsestrictions thereof.

On July 18, 2011, the Board of Directors adoptetioekholder rights plan (the “Rights AgreemenPyrsuant to the Rights Agreement, the B
of Directors declared a dividend distribution ofaright for each share of common stock (the “RightSach Right entitled the holder to purct
from the Company one ontheusandth of a share of Series A Junior Participa®referred Stock at an initial exercise pricés860 per share. T
Rights expired on July 16, 2012.

NOTE 14. NET EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following is the reconciliation of net earnirtgsnet earnings applicable to common stock:

2012 2011 2010
Earnings from continuing operations $ 54 $ 287 $ 52¢
(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations (2) 27C 77
Net earning: 541 557 603
Less: Earnings allocated to participating secugitie — 2 3
Net earnings applicable to common st $ 541 $ 558 $ 60C

The following is the reconciliation of the weightaderage number of shares outstanding (in thou}aisesl to calculate basic net earnings per
(EPS) to those used to calculate diluted net EPS:

2012 2011 2010
Basic 130,85: 136,69¢ 140,27:
Dilutive effect of stock options and other 1,45¢ 1,40z 1,262
Diluted 132,31( 138,10: 141,53

During fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Compuhd not include stock options to purchase appnately 1.8 million, 2.0 million and 4
million shares, respectively, of the Compaigbmmon stock in the calculations of diluted neSEbecause their exercise price was greater tle
average market price, making them anti-dilutive.
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NOTE 15. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

In November 2005, the Compasystockholders approved the 2005 Stock Incentige 2005 Plan). The 2005 Plan permits the Compaugyan
various nonqualified, shateased compensation awards, including stock opti@ssicted stock, performance units, deferredkstotts, restricte
stock units, stock appreciation rights and otheclsbased awards. The Company is authorized to gratd Gpmillion common shares under
2005 Plan, and, as of June 30, 2012, approximéteiyilion common shares were available for grartarthe plan.

Compensation cost and the related income tax herefognized in the Comparsyfiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 consolidatean€ia
statements for share-based compensation plansclessfied as indicated below.

2012 2011 2010
Cost of products sold $ 3 $ 4 $ 8
Selling and administrative expenses 22 26 46
Research and development costs 2 2 6
Total compensation cost $ 27 $ 32 $ 6C
Related income tax benefit $ 10 $ 12 $ 22

Cash received during fiscal years 2012, 2011 arid) 2®m stock options exercised under all sHzsed payment arrangements was $79, $8
$69, respectively. The Company issues shares meslased compensation plans from treasury stock. Tmpa@ny may repurchase shares u
its Evergreen Program to offset the estimated impfBshare dilution related to share-based aw&3ds (Note 13).

Details regarding the valuation and accounting starck options, restricted stock awards, performamuiés and deferred stock units for non-
employee directors follow.

Stock Options

The fair value of each stock option award grantedng fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 was estinatethe date of grant using the Black-
Scholes valuation model and assumptions noteceifioifowing table:

2012 2011 2010
Expected life 49-57years 4.9-5.9 year: 5.1 -5.4 years
Weighted-average expected life 5.7 years 5.4 years 5.2 years
Expected volatility 21.9% to 25.9¢ 20.6% to 21.0¢ 21.6% to 22.9¢
Weighted-average volatility 23.5% 20.6% 22.0%
Risk-free interest rate 0.9% to 1.1% 1.5% 2.2% to 2.4%
Weighted-average risk-free interest rate 0.9% 1.5% 2.4%
Dividend yield 3.5%-3.8% 3.4%-3.6% 3.4% to 3.6%
Weighted-average dividend yield 3.5% 3.4% 3.6%

The expected life of the stock options is basedbserved historical exercise patterns. Groups gfl@yees having similar historical exerc
behavior are considered separately for valuatiopgees. The Company estimates stock option foréstbased on historical data for each seg
employee grouping, and adjusts the rate to expdotégltures periodically. The adjustment of theféiture rate will result in a cumulative catap-
adjustment in the period the forfeiture estimatehanged. The expected volatility is based on iegpliolatility from publicly traded options on -
Company’s stock at the date of grant,
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NOTE 15. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

historical implied volatility of the Company’s pudlly traded options and other factors. The fige interest rate is based on the implied yield
U.S. Treasury zergeupon issue with a remaining term equal to theeetqa term of the option. The dividend yield isdghen the projected ann
dividend payment per share, divided by the stodtepat the date of grant. Details of the Comparstbck option plan at June 30 are summa
below:

Weighted-
Average Average
Exercise Remaining Aggregate
Number of Price Contractual Intrinsic
Shares per Share Life Value
(In thousands)
Outstanding at June 30, 2011 995/ $ 59 6years $ 83
Granted 1,89¢ 68
Exercised (1,530 52
Cancelled (214 59
Outstanding at June 30, 2012 10,10 $ 62 6years $ 10¢
Options vested at June 30, 2012 5792 $ 59 S5years $ 78

The weightedaverage fair value per share of each option gradteihg fiscal years 2012, 2011, and 2010, estichatethe grant date using
Black-Scholes option pricing model, was $9.24, $8.27 &34, respectively. The total intrinsic value @tions exercised in fiscal years 2C
2011 and 2010 was $29, $38 and $36, respectively.

Stock option awards outstanding as of June 30, ,2td\& been granted at prices that are either ¢gualabove the market value of the stock ol
date of grant. Stock option grants generally vesr dour years and expire no later than ten yefies the grant date. The Company recogr
compensation expense ratably over the vesting ¢ghefis of June 30, 2012, there was $17 of total eogrized compensation cost related to non-
vested options, which is expected to be recogrozed a remaining weighted-average vesting peridwvofyears, subject to forfeiture changes.

Restricted Stock Awards

The fair value of restricted stock awards is estéman the date of grant based on the market pfitke stock and is amortized to compens:
expense on a straighite basis over the related vesting periods, whighgenerally three to four years. The total nunabeestricted stock awar
expected to vest is adjusted by estimated forfeitates. Restricted stock grants prior to July@Q92 receive dividend distributions during tl
vesting period. Restricted stock grants after dJul®009, receive dividend distributions earnedmythe vesting period upon vesting.

As of June 30, 2012, there was $1 of total unrezeghcompensation cost related to n@sted restricted stock awards, which is expeaietk
recognized over a remaining weightaxgerage vesting period of two years. The total falue of the shares that vested in fiscal yeafl2001:
and 2010 was $3, $4 and $5, respectively. The waighverage gramtate fair value of awards granted was $68.52, $6arfsl $58.91 per share
fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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NOTE 15. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

A summary of the status of the Company’s restristedk awards as of June 30 is presented below:

Weightec-Average

Grant Date
Number of Fair Value
Shares per Share

(In thousands'

Restricted stock awards at June 30, 2011 68 $ 64
Granted 4 69
Vested (47) 64
Forfeited 3 65
Restricted stock awards at June 30, 2012 22 3 65

Performance Units

The Companys performance unit grants provide for the issuasfceommon stock to certain managerial staff andcettee management if tl
Company achieves certain performance targets. Enf@rmance unit grants vest after three years.oRegnce unit grants prior to July 1, 2
receive dividend distributions during their vestipgriods. Performance unit grants after July 1,92@eive dividends earned during the ve:
period upon vesting.

The fair value of each grant issued is estimatetherdate of grant based on the current markee @fithe stock. The total amount of compensi
expense recognized reflects estimated forfeituesrand the initial assumption that performancasgwill be achieved. Compensation expen
adjusted, as necessary, on a quarterly basis lmasathnagemert’assessment of the probability that performanedsgeill be achieved. If su
goals are not met or it is determined that achi@mnof performance goals is not probable, any presly recognized compensation expen:
reversed to reflect the expected payout levelt i idetermined that the performance goals willeReeeded, additional compensation exper
recognized, subject to a cap of 150% of target.

The number of shares issued will be dependent upsting and the achievement of specified perforradargets. At June 30, 2012, there was

in unrecognized compensation cost related to natedeperformance unit grants that is expected toebegnized over a remaining weighted-
average performance period of two years. The wetihtverage grarttate fair value of awards granted was $68.17, $68ml $57.28 per share
fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

A summary of the status of the Company’s perforreamtt awards as of June 30 is presented below:

Weighteco-Average

Grant Date
Number of Fair Value
Shares per Share

(In thousands'

Performance unit awards as of June 30, 2011 1,47¢ $ 60
Granted 57¢ 68
Distributed (602) 64
Forfeited (8€) 64
Performance unit awards as of June 30, 2012 1,370 $ 62
Performance units vested and deferred as of Jurn203@ 21C g 51

The nonvested performance units outstanding at June 312 20d 2011 were 1,160,000 and 1,203,000, respdctiand the weighted aver:
grant date fair value was $64.04 and $62.55 peeshaspectively. Total shares vested during figear 2012 were 536,000 which had a weig
average grant date fair value per share of $63.86.total fair value of shares vested was $34,8#V$33 during fiscal years 2012, 2011 and Z
respectively. Upon vesting, the recipients of thengs receive the
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NOTE 15. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

distribution as shares or, if previously electedelgible recipients, as deferred stock. Duringdisyears 2012 and 2011, $33 and $25, respect
of the vested awards were paid by the issuancéarks. During fiscal years 2012 and 2011, $1 andekectively, of the vested awards v
deferred. Deferred shares receive dividend digioha during their deferral period.

Deferred Stock Units for Nonemployee Directors

Nonemployee directors receive annual grants ofroedestock units under the Comp’s director compensation program and can electceive al
or a portion of their annual retainers and feetheform of deferred stock units. The deferred lstagits receive dividend distributions, which
reinvested as deferred stock units, and are rezedrat their fair value on the date of grant. Edeferred stock unit represents the right to rec
one share of the Company’s common stock followirgtermination of a director’s service.

During fiscal year 2012, the Company granted 22 @&@rred stock units, reinvested dividends of @,60its and distributed 16,400 shares, w
had a weighte@verage fair value on grant date of $66.95, $6ad $60.93 per share, respectively. As of June2802, 222,900 units we
outstanding, which had a weighted-average fairevalu grant date of $58.80 per share.

NOTE 16. LEASES AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Company leases transportation equipment, oeitdédrmation technology equipment and various niacturing, warehousing, and off
facilities. The Company’s leases are classified@erating leases, and the CompamgXisting contracts will expire by 2024. The Compaxpect
that, in the normal course of business, existingreats will be renewed or replaced by other leahe future minimum rental payments requ
under the Company’s existing noancelable lease agreements at June 30, 2012 @eeted to be $38, $34, $30, $28, $26 and $95aafiyear
2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and thereafter, réspbc

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2012, the Campbegan the process of relocating certain empbf®m its general office building in Oakla
Calif. to a new facility located in Pleasanton €dlimployees from its Technical and Data CentePlgasanton, Calif. are also expected t
relocated to the new facility by the end of fisgahr 2013. The new facility consists of approxiyaB3,000 square feet of leased space ant
house the Companyresearch and development group, as well as atheinistrative and operational support personnet fliture minimum rent
payments required under the Company’s existingcareelable lease agreement for the new facilifuae 30, 2012, are expected to be $4, $t
$7, $7 and $43 in fiscal years 2013, 2014, 2013,62@017 and thereafter, respectively. These amoarg included in the Compasyfuture
minimum rental payments disclosed above.

Rental expense for all operating leases was $68a%6 $59 in fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 ectsely. Certain space not occupied by
Company in its general office building is rentedtber tenants under operating leases expiringiir@017. Future minimum rentals to be rece
under these leases total $3 and do not exceed@tyinone year.

The Company is also a party to certain purchasigatidns, which are defined as purchase agreentiesitsare enforceable and legalijrding ani
that specify all significant terms, including quiantprice and the approximate timing of the trasti&m. Examples of the Compamsypurchas
obligations include contracts to purchase raw neercommitments to contract manufacturers, commeyitts for information technology &
related services, advertising contracts, utilityeggnents, capital expenditure agreements, softa@reisition and license commitments, and se
contracts. At June 30, 2012, the Companpurchase obligations, including the servicestedldo the Information Technology Services (I
Agreement, totaled $382, $169, $88, $28, $25 artl {4 fiscal years 2013 through 2017, and thereafespectively. Estimates for the |
Agreement are based on an annual service feesttaljusted periodically based upon updates to@nand equipment provided. Included in
ITS Agreement are certain acceleration paymensekif the Company terminates the contract witlcause.
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NOTE 17. OTHER (INCOME) EXPENSE, NET

The major components of other (income) expensefaorethe fiscal years ended June 30 were:

2012 2011 2010
Income from equity investees $ A1) $ B8 $ (9
Income from transition services (Note 2) (6) 9) —
Low-income housing partnership (gains) losses ()] 13 1
Amortization of trademarks and other intangiblestés¢Note 7) 9 9 9
Foreign exchange transaction losses (gains), rae(N 1 @) 26
Other, net @) — 2
Total $ 1 § (29 § 2¢

As of June 30, 2012, the Company owns, directlyndirectly, limited partnership interests of upd®% in 24 lowincome housing partnerships
fiscal year 2011, the Company sold three propestesrecognized a gain of $13.

Approximately $24 of the fiscal year 2010 foreigrtleange transaction losses, net, represent renseasnt losses for the Compasywenezuela
subsidiary (see Note 1).

NOTE 18. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes on continuing operet, by tax jurisdiction, consisted of the follagias of June 30:

2012 2011 2010
Current
Federal $ 20 $ 13¢ $ 19:
State 12 19 23
Foreign 48 45 39
Total current 26C 20¢ 258
Deferred
Federal — 71 18
State 1 2 2
Foreign (13 — 4
Total deferred (12 73 24
Total $ 24t $ 27¢ $ 27¢

The components of earnings from continuing openatimefore income taxes, by tax jurisdiction, caesi®f the following as of June 30:

2012 2011 2010
United States $ 655 $ 446 $ 664
Foreign 13€ 117 141
Total $ 790 $ 56 $ 80
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NOTE 18. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

A reconciliation of the statutory federal incomeg tate to the Company’s effective tax rate on cuoritig operations follows as of June 30:

2012 2011 2010
Statutory federal tax rate 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State taxes (net of federal tax benefits) 1.1 2.3 2.2
Tax differential on foreign earnings (2.5) (2.0 (2.0
Domestic manufacturing deduction (2.2) (3.5) (1.9)
Noncash goodwill impairmel — 16.C —
Other differences — 0.2 0.2
Effective tax rate 31.% 49.% 34.%

The substantially different effective tax rate iscal year 2011 primarily resulted from the 16.0%pact of the nomeductible noncash goodv
impairment charge of $258 related to the Burt'sBeporting unit as there was no substantial taetiteassociated with this noncash charge.

Applicable U.S. income taxes and foreign withhoidilaxes have not been provided on approximatelys $ff4undistributed earnings of cert
foreign subsidiaries at June 30, 2012, because th@sings are considered indefinitely reinvestdd net federal income tax liability that wo
arise if these earnings were not indefinitely ressted is approximately $36. Applicable U.S. incand foreign withholding taxes are providec
these earnings in the periods in which they aronger considered indefinitely reinvested.

Tax benefits resulting from shab&sed payment arrangements that are in excese tdxtbenefits recorded in net earnings over tiséing perios
of those arrangements are recorded as increaseklitiional paidn capital. Excess tax benefits of approximatel®,$89, and $10, were reali:
and recorded to additional paiid-capital for the fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 20&6pectively. The components of deferred taxtagiabilities) a
of June 30 are shown below:

2012 2011
Deferred tax assets
Compensation and benefit programs $ 20z $ 157
Basis difference related to Venture Agreeimen 30 3C
Accruals and reserves 49 34
Inventory costs 22 13
Net operating loss and tax credit carryfonsa 21 18
Other 23 36
Subtotal 34¢ 28¢
Valuation allowance (20 (14)
Total deferred tax assets 32¢ 274
Deferred tax liabilities
Fixed and intangible assets (26¢) (25¢)
Low-income housing partnerships (29 (27)
Other (32 (35)
Total deferred tax liabilities (329 (320
Net deferred tax liabilities $ () $ (48
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NOTE 18. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The Company periodically reviews its deferred tageds for recoverability. A valuation allowancesgablished when the Company believes tl
is more likely than not that some portion of it$eteed tax assets will not be realized. Valuatiboveances have been provided to reduce def
tax assets to amounts considered recoverable.I®efdhe valuation allowance were as follows adwfe 30:

2012 2011
Valuation allowance at beginning of year $ (149 $ (@12
Net decrease in realizability of foreign deferrad asset 3 D
Net increase in foreign net operating loss cariyérd and othe 3 ()]
Valuation allowance at end of year $ (20 $ (19

At June 30, 2012, the Company had foreign tax tiedryforwards of $7 for U.S. income tax purpoSesx benefits from foreign net operating |
carryforwards of $8 have expiration dates betwésraf years 2013 and 2021. Tax benefits from foreigt operating loss carryforwards of $6 |
be carried forward indefinitely.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal and various state, local and foreign jurisoiits. In the first quarter of fiscal year 2010
Company paid federal tax and interest of $8 relatedudits of the 2004 and 2006 fiscal tax yearghe first quarter of fiscal year 2011, cer
issues relating to 2003, 2004 and 2006 were efiegtisettled by the Company and the IRS Appealssitin. Tax and interest payments of
were made with respect to these issues in the deqaarter of fiscal year 2011. Interest payment$dofvere made with respect to these issues
third quarter of fiscal year 2011. No tax benefiital previously been recognized for the issueseltt the 2003, 2004 and 2006 tax settlem
The federal statute of limitations has expireddibtax years through June 30, 2008. Various inctareeturns in state and foreign jurisdictions
currently in the process of examination.

The Company recognizes interest and penaltieseckkat uncertain tax positions as a component afnmectax expense. As of June 30, 2012
2011, the total balance of accrued interest andlpes related to uncertain tax positions was &Y 8 respectively. Interest and penalties incl
in income tax expense resulted in a net benefit3pfa net benefit of $3 and a net expense of $Badal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respecti
The following is a reconciliation of the beginniagd ending amounts of the Company’s gross unrezedriax benefits:

2012 2011 2010
Unrecognized tax benefits - July 1 $ 97 $ 84 $ 98
Gross increases - tax positions in prior periods 4 3 1C
Gross decreases - tax positions in prior periods (16 (9) (15)
Gross increases - current period tax positions 6 45 5
Gross decreases - current period tax positions (@) — —
Settlements (10 (26 (19
Unrecognized tax benefits - June 30 $§ 80 $ 97 § 84

Included in the balance of unrecognized tax bemefitiune 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, are potentifite of $56, $68 and $57, respectively, wi
if recognized, would affect the effective tax rateearnings.

In the twelve months succeeding June 30, 2012} aeslblutions could potentially reduce total uniggtiaed tax benefits by up to $4, primarily ¢
result of cash settlement payments. Audit outcoamekthe timing of audit settlements are subjesidoificant uncertainty.
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NOTE 19. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Retirement Income Plans

Effective July 1, 2011, and as part of a set ofylterm, cost neutral enhancements to the Compamwérall employee benefit plans, the dom:
qualified plan was frozen for service accrual algikglity purposes, however, interest credits vantinue to accrue on participant balances.
June 30, 2012, the benefits of the domestic gedlifilan are based on either employee years ofteeavid compensation or a stated dollar an
per years of service. The Company is the sole ibartr to the plan in amounts deemed necessaryowide benefits and to the extent deduc
for federal income tax purposes. Assets of the ptarsist primarily of investments in cash equividemutual funds and common collective trusts.

The Company did not make any contributions to asdstic qualified retirement income plan duringfikeal year 2012. It contributed $15 and
in fiscal years 2011 and 2010, respectively. Cbaotions made to the domestic ngualified retirement income plans were $11, $8 $8dn fisca
years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Coynpan also contributed $1, $1, and $2 to its foreigfirement income plans for fiscal ye
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Commfynding policy is to contribute amounts sufficiém meet minimum funding requirements as
forth in employee benefit tax laws plus additioaalounts as the Company may determine to be apptepri

Retirement Health Care

The Company provides certain health care benefitefployees who meet age, participation and leafjiervice requirements at retirement.
plans pay stated percentages of covered expentmsaafual deductibles have been met. Benefits f@did into consideration payments
Medicare for the domestic plan. The plans are fdrateclaims are paid, and the Company has thetoghbdify or terminate certain of these ple

The assumed domestic health care cost trend rateinsneasuring the accumulated postretirementfiveddigation (APBO) was 7.8% for medic
and 8.7% for prescription drugs for fiscal year 20Lhese rates have been assumed to graduallyadeceach year until an assumed ultimate
of 4.5% is reached in 2028. The health care cesttrate assumption has an effect on the amoumtsteel. The effect of a hypothetical 100 b
point increase or decrease in the assumed domiestith care cost trend rate on the total serviag iaterest cost components, and
postretirement benefit obligation would have beérfc§ the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, andthess $1 for both fiscal years ended June
2011 and 2010.
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NOTE 19. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)

Financial Information Related to Retirement Incomeand Retirement Health Care

Summarized information for the Compasy'etirement income and retirement health carespi&nand for the fiscal years ended June 30

follows:

Change in benefit obligations:

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost

Employee contributions to deferred compeasgitlans

Actuarial (gain) loss

Plan amendments

Curtailment (gain) loss

Translation adjustment

Benefits paid

Projected benefit obligation at end of year

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets

Employer contributions to qualified and naoalified plans

Translation adjustment

Benefits paid
Fair value of plan assets at end of year
Accrued benefit cost, net funded status

Amount recognized in the balance sheets consists of

Pension benefit assets
Current accrued benefit liability
Non-current accrued benefit liability

Accrued benefit cost, net

Retirement
Income

Retirement
Health Care

2012 2011

2012 2011

$ 566 $ 56(

— 12 1 2
29 29 3 4
5 7 — —
82 12 3 23)
o o o 2
(36) (32 (1) (1)
64€ 56€ 63 58
41C 33t — —
9 80 — —
12 24 1 1
1) 3 — —
(36) (32 (1) (2)
394 41C — —

$ (252) $ 15¢€

$ — % 1
(14) (12)
(23¢) (14¢6)

$ — —
(6) ®)
(57) (53)

$ (25 $ (15

$ 6) $ (59

Information for retirement income plans with an@otlated benefit obligation (ABO) in excess of ptasets as of June 30 follows:

Projected benefit obligation
Accumulated benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Other
Pension Plans Retirement Plans
2012 2011 2012 2011
$ 56 $ 47 $ 8 $ 71
561 46¢ 84 71
39¢ 38¢€ — —
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NOTE 19. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)

The ABO for all pension plans was $561, $490 ar@D$despectively, as of June 30, 2012, 2011 an@.Z¥e ABO for all retirement income pls
increased by $85 in fiscal year 2012, primarily ttu@ decrease in the discount rate. The net cbsie retirement income and health care plar
the fiscal years ended June 30 include the follgweibmponents:

Retirement Income Retirement Health Care
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Service cost $ — $ 12 % 9 $ 1 $ 2 $ 2
Interest cost 29 29 3C 3 4 4
Expected return on plan assets (39 (39 (3) — — —
Curtailment gain — D — — — —
Amortization of unrecognized items 8 17 9 3 2 2
Total $ 6 $ 24 $ 17 $ 1 $ 4 $ 4

Items not yet recognized as a component of postreéint expense as of June 30, 2012, consisted of:

Retirement Retirement

Income Health Care

Net actuarial loss (gair $ 28¢ % (22)
Prior service cost (benefit) 1 2
Net deferred income tax (assets) liabilit (20) 9
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (income) $ 18 % (19

Net actuarial loss (gain) recorded in accumulatédrocomprehensive net losses for the fiscal yede@ June 30, 2012, included the followi

Retirement Retirement

Income Health Care

Net actuarial loss (gain) at beginning of y $ 18¢ $ (28)
Amortization during the year @) 2
Loss during the year 107 4
Net actuarial loss (gain) at end of yi $ 28 % (2)

The Company uses the straight line amortizatiorhodefor unrecognized prior service costs and bendfi fiscal year 2013, the Company exp
to recognize, on a pretax basis, approximatelyttess $1 of the prior service cost and $12 of thieactuarial loss, and approximately $1 of ther
service credit and $2 of the net actuarial gaira asmponent of net periodic benefit cost for gtirement income and retirement health care f
respectively.

Weighted-average assumptions used to estimatetharil present value of benefit obligations adwfe 30 are as follows:

Retirement Income Retirement Health Care

2012 2011 2012 2011
Discount rate 3.81% 5.31% 3.86% 5.29Y
Rate of compensation increase 3.71% 3.9% n/a n/a
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NOTE 19. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)
Weighted-average assumptions used to estimateethegeriodic pension and other postretirement beoeéts as of June 30 are as follows:

Retirement Income

2012 2011 2010
Discount rate 531% 5.34% 6.81%
Rate of compensation increase 39% 42(% 4.22%
Expected return on plan assets 8.12% 8.11% 8.11%

Retirement Health Care

2012 2011 2010
Discount rate 52% 5.3t% 6.8(%

The expected lonterm rate of return assumption is based on an sisaty historical experience of the portfolio ahe summation of prospect
returns for each asset class in proportion touhe’s current asset allocation.

Expected benefit payments for the Company’s pereaizhother postretirement plans as of June 30sdi@laws:

Retirement Retirement

Income Health Care
2013 $ 34 $ 6
2014 34 6
2015 35 5
2016 35 4
2017 37 4
Fiscal years 2018 — 2021 18¢ 1

Expected benefit payments are based on the sameptisns used to measure the benefit obligatiorts inolude estimated future emplo
service.

The target allocations and weighted average a#lsehtions by asset category of the investmentfplaotfor the Companys domestic retireme
income plans as of June 30 are:

% of Plan Assets

% Target

Allocation 2012 2011
U.S. equity 2% 2% 50%
International equity 30 29 19
Fixed income 36 37 25
Other 5 5 6
Total 10C% 10C% 100%

The target asset allocation is determined basetth@optimal balance between risk and return antmegts, may be adjusted to achieve the glan’
overall investment objective to generate sufficissgources to pay current and projected plan diigs over the life of the domestic qualif
retirement income plan.
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NOTE 19. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)

The following table sets forth by level, within tfer value hierarchy, the retirement income plassets carried at fair value as of June 30:

2012
Level 1 Level 2 Total

Cash equivalents $ 2 $ — 3 2
Common/collective trusts

Bond funds — 14¢ 14¢

International equity funds — 11€ 11€

Domestic equity funds — 10€ 10€

Real Estate fund — 21 21
Total common/collective trusts — 392 392
Total assets at fair value $ 2 $ 392 $ 394

2011
Level 1 Level 2 Total

Cash equivalents $ 3 $ — 3 3
Mutual funds

Domestic equity fund 96 — 96

International equity funds 75 — 75

Bond fund 48 — 48

Real Estate fund 19 — 19
Total mutual funds 23¢ — 23¢
Common/collective trusts

Domestic equity fund — 96 96

International equity funds — 11 11

Bond funds — 62 62
Total common/collective trusts — 16¢ 16¢
Total assets at fair value $ 241§ 16 $ 41C

The carrying value of cash equivalents approximttes fair value as of June 30, 2012 and 2011.

Mutual funds are valued at quoted market priceschvhepresent the net asset values of shares haltelplans as of June 30, 2011. As of Jun
2012, the plan is not invested in mutual funds.

Common/collective trust funds are valued at a ssetavalue unit price determined by the portfslisponsor based on the fair value of under
assets held by the common collective trust fundwre 30, 2012 and 2011.

The common/collective trusts are invested in varitwsts that attempt to achieve their investmdiéatives by investing primarily in oth
collective investment funds which have charactesstonsistent with each trust’s overall investnajective and strategy.
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NOTE 19. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (Continued)
Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has defined contribution plans for rob#s domestic employees. The plans include Tloea® Company 401(k) Plan. Effective J

1, 2011, The Clorox Company 401(k) Plan was amendezhhance the matching of employee contributems to provide for a fixed and non-
discretionary annual contribution in place of thefip sharing component. Prior to July 1, 2011, @amy contributions to the profit shar
component above 3% of employee eligible earningseweiscretionary and were based on certain Compmamformance targets for eligil
employees. The aggregate cost of the defined toion plans was $46, $21, and $33 in fiscal y2ai, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Include
the 2011 and 2010 costs was $17, and $29, respbrctof profit sharing contributions. The Compartsoahas defined contribution plans for cer

of its international employees. The aggregate abitese foreign plans was $1, $1 and $3 in figeals 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

NOTE 20. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company operates through strategic businegs that are aggregated into four reportable segnéZieaning, Household, Lifestyle ¢
International. Beginning in the fourth quarter @fchl year 2012, natural personal care financislilte outside the U.S. are being reported i
International segment rather than in the Lifesggdgment because management of the Internationadesggiow has primary oversight of nati
personal care financial results outside the U.Epatiods presented have been recast to reflexictiange. The four reportable segments cons
the following:

e Cleaningconsists of laundry, home care and professionalyms marketed and sold in the United States. Rtedvuithin this segmei
include laundry additives, including bleach progushder the Cloro® brand and Clorox & stain fighter and color booster; home «
products, primarily under the Clor&k, Formula 409, Liquid-Plumr®, Pine-Sol®, S.0.S® and Tilex® brands; naturally derived hol
care products under the Green WdPksrand; and professional cleaning and disinfectiragipcts under the ClordX, Dispatch® , Aplicare
® , HealthLink® and Clorox HealthcarE brands.

e Householdconsists of charcoal, cat litter and plastic bag®ps and container products marketed and soldlétJhited States. Produt
within this segment include plastic bags, wraps ematainers under the Gl&ibrand; cat litter products under the Fresh StepScoof
Away ® and Ever Cleaff brands; and charcoal products under the Kingsfadd Match Ligh® brands.

e Lifestyleconsists of food products, water-filtration systeamsl filters and natural personal care productketedand sold in the Unite
States. Products within this segment include dngssand sauces, primarily under the Hidden Vdllepd K C Masterpiec® and Soy Va
® prands; water-filtration systems and filters unther Brita® brand; and natural personal care products undeBtines Bees® and gid®
brands.

e International consists of products sold outside the United St®esducts within this segment include laundry, koare, watefiltration,
charcoal and cat litter products, dressings andesaplastic bags, wraps and containersreatdral personal care products, primarily u
the Clorox® , Javex® , Glad®, PinoLuz®, Ayudin®, Limpido®, Clorinda®, Poett® , Mistolin ®, Lestoil®, Bon Bril®, Nevex®, Brita
®  Green Work® , Pine-Sol®, Agua Jan€ , Chux®, Kingsford® , Fresh Steff , Scoop Away® , Ever Clear® , K C Masterpiecé ,
Hidden Valley® and Burt's Bee® brands.

Certain non-allocated administrative costs, inteiesome, interest expense and various otherapmrating income and expenses are reflect
Corporate. Corporate assets include cash and cashatents, other investments and deferred taxes.
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NOTE 20. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Fiscal Total
Year Cleaning Household  Lifestyle International Corporate Company
Net sales 201z $ 169z $ 167¢ $ 901 $ 1,19¢ $ — $ 5,46¢
2011 1,61¢ 1,611 84¢ 1,152 — 5,231
201c 1,624 1,66: 83t 1,117 — 5,23¢
Earnings (losses) from continuing operations
before income taxes 2012 381 29¢ 26E 11¢ (272) 791
2011 35€ 27¢ 91 55 (217) 563
201 36¢ 29C 304 142 (300 80t
Income from equity investees 2012 — — — 11 — 11
2011 — — — 8 — 8
201C — — — 9 — 9
Total assets 201z 942 81¢ 887 1,21¢ 48¢ 4,35¢
2011 83¢ 84¢ 88¢€ 1,201 39C 4,162
Capital expenditures 2012 63 79 18 32 — 192
2011 72 95 24 37 — 22¢
201c 74 79 18 30 — 201
Depreciation and amortization 201z 45 73 18 25 17 17¢
2011 44 73 18 22 16 17z
201C 51 77 21 22 12 18z
Significant noncash charges included in
earnings before income taxes:
Share-based compensation 201z 13 12 6 1 ®) 27
2011 14 13 6 2 3 32
201C 11 10 5 2 32 60
Noncash goodwill impairment 2012 — — — — — —
2011 — — 164 94 — 25¢
201c — — — — — —

Fiscal year 2011 earnings (losses) from continoipgrations before income taxes for the Lifestylé Biternational reportable segments includ
noncash goodwill impairment charge of $164 and $8dpectively, for the Bud’ Bees business. Fiscal year 2011 diluted netregsmer sha
from continuing operations included the impact df8% from this noncash goodwill impairment charge.

Fiscal years 2011 and 2010 net sales for the latiemal segment included $34 and $29, respectiteét, was previously reported in the Lifes
segment. Fiscal years 2011 and 2010 earnings §lpf®en continuing operations before income taxastlie International segment also inclu
$92 and $1 of losses, respectively, that were presly reported in the Lifestyle segment. In addifitotal assets for fiscal year 2011 for
International segment included $264 that was preshoreported in the Lifestyle segment.

Total assets for Corporate included $267 and $258%h and cash equivalents for fiscal years 20t22811, respectively.
All intersegment sales are eliminated and arem@tided in the Company’s reportable segments’ aess

Net sales to the Compe's largest customer, Walmart Stores, Inc. and fikadés, were 26%, 27% and 27% for the fiscal gemmded 2012, 20
and 2010, respectively, of consolidated net sadelsagcurred in each of the Companyéportable segments. No other customers excedfed>
consolidated net sales in any year. During fisealrg 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Compalffiye largest customers accounted for 44%, 44%4&8¢
of its net sales, respectively.

The Company has three product lines that have ateddor 10% or more of consolidated net salesndueach of the past three fiscal year:
fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivelgssal liquid bleach represented approximately 18486 and 13% of the Compasytonsolidate
net sales, approximately 26%, 27% and 28% of nietssa the Cleaning segment and approximately 22%8p and 22% of net sales in
International segment. In fiscal years 2012, 20dd 2010, respectively, sales of trash bags repredeapproximately 13%, 13% and 12% of
Companys consolidated net sales, approximately 35%, 3484346 of net sales in the Household segment anxippately 10%, 11% and 1(C
of net sales in the International segment. Saleshafcoal represented approximately 11% of the Gmylp consolidated net sales in each o
fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010 and approxim&®&dyg, 34% and 36% of net sales in the Household segmespectively.
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NOTE 20. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Net sales and lor-lived assets by geographic area as of and fdiigbal years ended June 30 were as follows:

Fiscal United Total
Year States Foreign Company
Net sales 201z $ 431 $ 1,152 $ 5,46¢
2011 4,12¢ 1,10¢ 5,231
201( 4,17: 1,062 5,23¢
Property, plant and equipment, net 2012  $ 90€ % 17t $ 1,081
2011 881 15€ 1,03¢

NOTE 21. UNAUDITED QUARTERLY DATA

Quarters Ended

September 30 December 31 March 31 June 30 Total Year
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2012
Net sales $ 1,308 % 1,227 $ 1401 $ 1541 $ 5,46¢
Cost of products sold $ 75¢ % 714 % 80¢ $ 88: $ 3,164
Earnings from continuing operations $ 13C % 108 % 134  $ 174 $ 542
Losses from discontinued operations, net of tax $ — % —  $ 2 $ — $ (2)
Net earnings $ 13C % 108 % 13z $ 174 $ 541
Per common share:
Basic
Continuing operations $ 0.9¢ $ 0.7¢ $ 1.0 $ 132 $ 4.1¢
Discontinued operations — — (0.0 — (0.03)
Basic net earnings per share $ 0.9¢ $ 0.7¢ $ 10z $ 132 ¢ 4.1¢
Diluted
Continuing operations $ 0.9t $ 0.7¢ $ 1.0z $ 132 $ 4.1C
Discontinued operations — — (0.0 — (0.09)
Diluted net earnings per share $ 0.9¢ $ 0.7¢ $ 101 $ 132 $ 4.0¢
Dividends declared per common share $ 0.6C $ 06C $ 06C $ 06/ % 2.4¢
Market price (NYSE)
High $ 75.4¢  $ 6961 $ 708 $ 735/ $ 75.4¢
Low 63.5¢€ 63.0¢ 66.37 66.7: 63.0¢
Year-end 72.4¢
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2011
Net sales $ 1,266 $ 1,17¢ $ 1304/ $ 148. $ 5,231
Cost of products sold $ 70t $ 687 $ 72¢ 3 837 $ 2,95¢
Earnings (losses) from continuing operations $ 14C  $ (163 $ 141 3 16¢ $ 287
Earnings from discontinued operations, net of tax $ 7€ $ 184 $ 10 $ — 8 27(
Net earning: $ 21€ 3 21 % 151 3 16¢ $ 557
Per common share:
Basic
Continuing operations $ 09¢ $ (119) $ 102 $ 127 $ 2.0¢
Discontinued operations 0.5¢ 1.32 0.07 — 1.97
Basic net earnings per share $ 154 $ 0.1t $ 1.1C  $ 127 $ 4.0¢
Diluted
Continuing operations $ 09 $ (119) $ 1.0z $ 12¢ $  2.07
Discontinued operations 0.54 1.32 0.07 — 1.9t
Diluted net earnings per share $ 152 $ 0.1t $ 1.0¢ $ 12¢ $ 4.02
Dividends declared per common share $ 058 $ 058 $ 05t $ o06C $ 2.2¢
Market price (NYSE)
High $ 67.8¢ $ 69.0C $ 724: $ 7100 $ 72.4:
Low 61.52 61.4¢ 60.5¢ 65.91 60.5¢
Year-end 67.4¢

Fiscal year 2011 earnings (losses) from contingipgrations and net earnings included a $258 norgaatiwill impairment charge recognized
the Burt’s Bees business. Fiscal year 2011 diluted netreggiier share from continuing operations includedimpact of $1.86 from this nonci

oodwill impairment charge.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
The Clorox Company

Years ended June 30

Dollars in millions, except share data 2012 201103 20101 20091 2008(1A)
OPERATIONS

Net sales $ 5,46 $ 523 $ 523 $ 515 $ 4,95
Gross profit 2,30 2,27: 2,31¢ 2,204 2,01z
Earnings from continuing operations $ 54 % 287 % 52¢ % 47z $ 382
(Losses) earnings from discontinued operationsphtetx (2 27C 77 65 79
Net earnings $ 541 % 557 % 60z $ 537 $ 461

COMMON STOCK
Earnings per share
Continuing operations

Basic $ 4.1% $ 20¢ % 3.7 % 3.3¢ $ 2.71
Diluted 4.1C 2.07 3.6¢ 3.3¢ 2.6¢
Dividends declared per share $ 24 $ 228 $ 20t $ 18 $ 1.6¢€
OTHER DATA
Total assets $ 4358 $ 4,160 $ 4,546 $ 456¢ $ 4,704
Long-term debt 1,571 2,12¢ 2,12¢ 2,151 2,72(

(1) In November 2010, the Company completed the salhefAuto Businesses pursuant to the terms of ahldse and Sale Agreement
received cash consideration of $755. Included iniegs from discontinued operations for fiscal yeaded June 30, 2011, is an atger-gair
on the transaction of $247. In connection with thigcontinued operations presentation in the codatdd financial statements, cer
financial statement footnotes have been updateefiect the impact of discontinued operatic

(2) Earnings from continuing operations and net easiingluded the $258 noncash goodwill impairmentgdaecognized in fiscal year 2(
for the Burts Bees business. Diluted net earnings per shane éantinuing operations included the impact of $1f®m this noncas
goodwill impairment charge

(3) Infiscal year 2008, the Company acquired BuBees Inc. for an aggregate price of $913 exctudizb paid for tax benefits associated
the acquisition. In addition, the Company entergd an accelerated share repurchase agreementwhibérit repurchased 12 million of
shares for an aggregate price of $7
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VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES (Dol lars in Millions)

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions Deductions
Balance at Charged to Charged Credited to Credited Balance at
beginning costs and to other costs and to other end
Description of period expenses accounts expenses accounts of period

Year ended June 30, 2012 $ B $ 3 $ — 3 1 $ — 3 @)

Year ended June 30, 2010 (6) — — — — (6)

Year ended June 30, 2012 $ (29 $ ® $ — 3 —  $ — $ @37

Year ended June 30, 2010 (31) — — 3 — (28)

Year ended June 30, 2012 $ (149 $ ® $ — —  $ — $ (20

Year ended June 30, 2010 (6) (6) — — — (12

Year ended June 30, 2012 $ (1) $ (1 $ — 3 — $ 14 $ (10

Year ended June 30, 2010 (20 (112) — — 11 (1C)
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THE CLOROX COMPANY
RECONCILIATION OF ECONOMIC PROFIT

Dollars in millions FY12 Fy11® Fyio®
Earnings from continuing operations before incomedxes $ 791 $ 562 $ 80t
Noncash restructuril-related and asset impairment costs 4 6 4
Noncash goodwill impairmel — 25¢ —
Interest expense 12t 12¢ 13¢

Earnings from continuing operations before incomes$, noncash
restructuring-related and asset impairmests; honcash goodwill

impairment and interest expense $ 92C $ 95C $ 94¢
Adjusted after tax profit @ $ 631 $  62¢ $  61¢
Average capital employ€d 2,54+ 2,61¢ 2,52¢
Capital charge® 22¢ 23¢€ 227
Economic profit (Adjusted after tax profit less captal charge) $ 40z $ 39z $ 39z
% change over prior year +2.2% +0.2% +12.6%
(1) Inthe fiscal year 2011 Annual Report to Sharehsl@dad in the Company’s Annual Report on FornKl@conomic profit (EP) for all fisc
years presented included the results of the Autsirgsses (but excluded the net gain on sale) bedhis was the method used by
Company to calculate EP to determine the amoushoftterm compensation for fiscal year 2011. In the entrfiscal year and in this tak
EP calculations for all fiscal years presented wkelthe Auto Businesse
(2) Adjusted after tax profit represents earnings froomtinuing operations before income taxes, nonaasitructuringrelated and ass
impairment costs, noncash goodwill impairment ameérest expense, after tax. The tax rate appligbeiseffective tax rate on continu
operations before the noncash goodwill impairmérarge for fiscal year 2011, which was 31.4%, 33&%d 34.7% in fiscal years 20
2011 and 2010, respectively. The difference betwihenfiscal year 2011 effective tax rate on coritiguoperations before the nonc
goodwill impairment charge and the effective tateran continuing operations of 49% is (16.0)% emato the nomeductible nonca:
goodwill impairment charge and 0.8% for other téeas related to excluding this chari
(3) Total capital employed represents total assetsnesénterest bearing liabilities. Adjusted capital eoy#d represents total capital emplc
adjusted to add back current year noncash restimgirelated and asset impairment costs and noncashwgbodpairment. Average capit
employed represents a typoint average of adjusted capital employed forcimeent year and total capital employed for thempyear, base
on yea-end balances. See below for details of the averagigal employed calculatio
FY12 Fy11 @ Fyio®
Total assets $ 435 $ 4,160 $ 4,54¢
Adjustments related to the Auto Businesses — — (40%)
Total assets adjusted for the Auto Businesses 4,35¢ 4,16% 4,14
Less:
Accounts payable 417 427 40¢
Accrued liabilities 494 447 491
Income taxes payable 5 41 74
Other liabilities 73¢ 61¢ 677
Deferred income taxes 11¢ 14C 19
Non-interest bearing liabilities 1,76¢ 1,66 1,67C
Total capital employed 2,58¢ 2,49¢ 2,47:
Noncash restructuril-related and asset impairment costs 4 6 4
Noncash goodwill impairmel — 25¢ —
Adjusted capital employed $ 259 $ 2,76: $ 247
Average capital employed $ 254 $ 261¢ $ 2,52¢
(4) Capital charge represents average capital employétiplied by the weighted-average cost of capitdle weightedaverage cost of capi

used to calculate the capital charge was 9% fdisathl years presente
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THE CLOROX COMPANY

| AHPOR TANT ANNUAL STOCKHOLDER S MEETING INMFORMATION |

Using ablack ink pen, mark your votes with & as shown in this example. X
Please do not write outside the designated areas.

Annual Meeting Proxy Card

, PLEASE FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND RETUR N THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. ,

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FORhe election of each of the following director nonmees:

1. Election of Directors: For Against Abstain For  Against Abstain For Against Abstain

01 - Daniel Boggan, Jr. D D D 04 - George J. Harad D D D 07 -Edward A. Muelle D D D
02 - Richard H. Carmona D D D 05 - Donald R. Knauss D D D 08 - Pamela Thomas- D D D

Graham
03 - Tully M. Friedman D D D 06 - Robert W. Matschullat D D D 09 - Carolyn M. D D D
Ticknor
BB} The Board of Directors recommends a vote FORroposal 2. The Board of Directors recommends a vote FORroposal 3.
For Against  Abstain For Against Abstain
2. Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation. D D D 3. Ratification of Independent Registered Public Aatting D D D

Firm.

B] The Board of Directors recommends a vote FORroposal 4.

For Against  Abstain

4. To Approve the Amended and Restated 2005 Stock D D D
Incentive Plan.

IF VOTING BY MAIL, YOU MUST COMPLETE SECTIONS A - E ON BOTH SIDES OF THIS CARD.




Dear Stockholders:

Attached is the proxy for The Clorox Company’s 2@kthual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Annual Megtin It is important that you vote your
shares. You may vote via telephone, the Internetait. If you wish to vote via telephone or theelmtet, instructions are printed on this form. Itr
wish to vote by mail, please mark, sign, date atdrn the proxy using the enclosed envelope.

Only stockholders on the record date, Septembe2dB, or their legal proxy holders, may attendAhaual Meeting. To be admitted to the
Annual Meeting, you must bring a current form offgmment-issued photo identification and proof tf@at owned Clorox common stock on the
record datePlease see the “Attending the Annual Meeting” sextiof the proxy statement for further information.

Sincerely,
i
Mol Clad

Angela C. Hilt
Vice President — Corporate Secretary &
Associate General Counsel

Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Meeting Date: November 14, 2012

Check — In Time: 8:30 a.m. Pacific Time

Meeting Time: 9:00 a.m. Pacific Time

Meeting Location: the Company’s Pleasanton Camipgated at 4900 Johnson Drive, Building C, PleamanCA 94588

Please note that cameras, recording equipment thied e@ectronic devices will not be allowed in thneeting except for use by the Company.
your protection, briefcases, purses, packagesmetg.be inspected as you enter the meeting.

The Notice of Annual Meeting, Proxy Statement and @L2 Annual Report — Executive Summary are available ¢
www.envisionreports.com/CLX.

, PLEASE FOLD ALONG THE PERFORATION, DETACH AND RETUR N THE BOTTOM PORTION IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE. ,

Proxy — The Clorox Company
THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF D IRECTORS OF THE CLOROX COMPANY

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS — NOVEMBER 14, 2012

The stockholder(s) whose signature(s) appear(fi@neverse side hereby appoint(s) Donald R. Kné&tephen M. Robb and Laura Stein, and
of them individually, as proxies, each with fullvyper of substitution, to vote as designated on thense side of this ballot, all of the share
common stock of The Clorox Company that the stolddr¢s) whose signature(s) appear(s) on the rev&@de would be entitled to vote,
personally present, at the Annual Meeting of Stotdérs to be held at 9:00 a.m., Pacific time on Wsdlay, November 14, 2012, at the Company’
Pleasanton Campus located at 4900 Johnson DrivlglilBuC, Pleasanton, CA 94588 and any adjournmoemostponement thereof. A majority
said proxies, including any substitutes, or if oohe of them be present, then that one, may exeatlief the powers of said proxies hereunder.

THIS PROXY, WHEN PROPERLY EXECUTED, WILL BE VOTED A S DIRECTED BY THE STOCKHOLDER(S). IF NO SUCH
DIRECTIONS ARE GIVEN, THIS PROXY WILL BE VOTED FOR __THE ELECTION OF THE NOMINEES LISTED ON THE
REVERSE SIDE FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, FOR PROPOSAL 2, FORPROPOSAL 3 AND FORPROPOSAL 4.

If any other matters properly come before the meetig, the persons named in this proxy will vote in thir discretion.
PLEASE MARK, SIGN, DATE AND RETURN THIS PROXY CARD PROMPTLY USING THE ENCLOSED REPLY ENVELOPE.

(Items to be voted appear on reverse side)

Authorized Signatures — This section must be compted for your vote to be counted. — Date and Sign Bewv

Please sign exactly as name(s) appears hereohodaiers should each sign. When signing as attommacutor, administrator, corporate officer, teestguardian, or custodian, please give full
title.

Signature 2 —Please keep signature within

Date (mm/dd/yyyy) — Please print date below. Signature 1 — Please keep signature within the box. box

/ /

IF VOTING BY MAIL, YOU MUST _COMPLETE SECTIONS A - E ON BOTH SIDES OF THIS CARD.







